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Message from the chairman

66

Working teams and employees
are key factors of the
development of balancing
people, nature and everything

for empathy

%29

Srivichai Vejvivat Public Company Limited has focused on
quality of medical treatment and profit generation. Moreover,
it places importance on the corporate sustainability of
Vichaivej International Hospital Group. Management
paradigms must be adjusted which the stakeholders must
have the same direction, especially employees, communities
and partners to get recognition and drive the company
for sustainability. Social development is promoted as
foundation of the company in the future. Thus, the company
places value on nature, environment, social and economy
that have to be integrated. Economy and environmental
conservation must be in parallel with the company’s economy
development. Working teams and employees are key
factors of the development of balancing people, nature
and everything for empathy. As a result, the company will
achieve sustainability goals.

Furthermore, the company has participated in Thai
Private Sector Collective Action Against Corruption and
renewed the membership in 2022. It believes that hon-
est, transparent and auditable business as well as anti-
corruption are the key foundation of sustainable growth. The
company has been recognized by the Stock Exchange of
Thailand as the company with good governance receiving
scores of more than 90% or 5-star excellent level for 5
consecutive years. Thai Investors Association also
recognizes the company for holding excellent shareholders’
meetings every year, which the company received full 100
scores in some years.

Vichaivej
wismatat
L =r-N

In 2022, the company received Outstanding Company
Performance Award and Outstanding CEO Award from
SET Award which presented the utmost commitment of all
physicians, nurses and employees of the company in
fighting against COVID-19. They took risks for works
and managed limited human resources during the great
crisis. Then, they overcome the crisis perfectly in terms of
humanity, society, environment and economy management.

To achieve the sustainability is not difficult, if all of us
join hands. | would like to express my gratitude and appre-
ciation to the Board of Directors, executives, employees,
shareholders, communities and partners as well as all
related government agencies that have supported the
company’s goal regarding the corporate sustainability. With
this direction, the company believes that Thai society will
be pleasant, economy will become success and all sectors
will be joyous.

(422 fimetegnm.

Assoc.Prof.Vichai Vanadurongwan,
M.D.,Ph.D.,FIMS
Chairman of the Board
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Structure and Operation of the company

Vichaivej International Hospital Group started in 1987 by Assoc. Prof. Vichai Vanadurongwan, M.D., Ph.D., FIMS
together with Ass. Prof. Saisunee Vanadurongwan,M.D., was established “Saivichai Development Company Limited”
for provide medical service under the name is “Srivichai Nongkhaem Hospital”. In 1993, was established “Srivichai
Vejvivat Company Limited” with registered capital of 200 million Baht to operation a business under the name is
“Srivichai Omnoi Hospital”.

In 1994, the business was expended by the founders and established “Srisakorn Vejavivat Company Limited”
to operate “Srivichai Samut Sakhon Hospital”. After that the Company reorganized its structure of the company and
increased the registered capital until the registered capital was increased to 535 million baht, which was a paid-up
capital of 400 million baht and converted to a public company under the name of Srivichai Vejvivat Public Company
Limited in 2011

The Company has invested in another subsidiary, Srivichai Vocational School Company Limited, for the purpose of
being a training for nursing assistant staff. As a result, the hospital group has continually qualified medical personnel.

11 Policy and Business Overview

Srivichai Vejvivat Public Company limited (“Company” or “VIH”) was established in 1993 in order to operate a
private hospital business under the name Vichaivej International Hospital Omnoi which is a hospital under Vichaive;j
International Hospital Group. In 1993 when the Company was established, its registered capital was 200 million
Baht with major shareholders and controlling directors being Assoc. Prof. Vichai Vanadurongwan, M.D., Ph.D., FIMS
and Ass. Prof. Saisunee Vanadurongwan,M.D., who is founder of the hospital Group.

2 O O In 2008, the Company reorganized its structure by purchasing ordinary shares of Saivichai Development Company

Limited and Srisakorn Vejavivat Company Limited from the Directors who were former shareholders in order to rearrange
the investment structure of the Company that would suit the business operating nature as a hospital Group, with Saivichai Development
Company Limited and Srisakom Vejavivat Company Limited being subsidiary companies.

At the beginning of 2011, Vichaivej International Hospital Group underwent a corporate re-branding to become

2 O 1 1 more modern and be able to reflect the hospital group’s ability in elevating its service potential and undergoing

continuous development as well as maintaining consistency with the Company’s vision of wanting to expand its

service to reach foreign customers on a wide scale. The hospital group had changed its name from Srivichai Hospital Group to
Vichaivej Intemational Hospital Group and underwent logo change as well.

In 2012, the Company registered as listed securities in the SET with total registered capital of 535 million

201 2 Baht, divided into 535 million ordinary shares valued at 1.00 Baht per share in which the 535 million Baht

was paid-up capital.

In 2014, the Company increased its registered capital at 35,666,666 Baht, which led the new registered capital to be
2 O] 570,666,666 Baht from originally 535,000,000 Baht, by issuing additional 35,666,666 million ordinary shares valued at

1.00 Baht per share in which the 570,665,433 Baht was paid-up capital.
In the same year, BBTV Equity Company Limited bought the Company’s shares at 20% of total shares in the Company which brought about
change in the major shareholder group of the Company. The change was executed in order to support expansion of hospital care business
and increase the variety of medical service to be more comprehensive in the future.

In the year 2016, The meeting had approved the entering into the acquisition of asset by the acquisition of The
2 O 1 6 Bangkok Orthopedic Hospital Company Limited’s ordinary shares, in the number of 89,998 shares or equivalent to

99.99 percent of total registered capital from the existing shareholders, The company had been singed the Share
Purchase Agreement relating to the ordinary shares of The Bangkok Orthopedic Hospital Company Limited on 28 June 2016



56-1 ONE REPORT s19v1uUsS:91U 2565

Srivichaivejvivat Public Company Limited 4 USBN AS3G8I0BIIU DR (UNIBU)

During 2020 — 2021, all over the world and Thailand faced crisis of COVID-19 which many patients passed away.
Vichaivej International Hospital Group was one of the medical leading groups cooperating with the government
agencies to control the pandemic and treat more than 70,000 COVID-19 patients. Its business was well managed
and overcome the crisis. As a result, it received Excellent Hospital Award from Social Security Office and Business
Excellence Award from the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

2022 ——— divided ———
1Nnto

As of 31D ber 2022

S . 570,666,666

the Company haS tOtal ordinary shar:;r\;ahl;:zs at 1.00 Baht

registered capital woodu -
— paid-up capital T

570,666,666 aan b

| 270,665,433 eant

On 28 October 2022, Vichaivej International Hospital Group on behalf of Srivichai Vejvivat Public Company Limited
received Outstanding Company Performance Award and Outstanding CEO Award from SET Awards No. 19in 2022.
It emphasized outstanding operations and leadership with vision of business management during crisis. Assoc. Prof.
Vichai Vanadurongwan, M.D., Ph.D., FIMS (the chairman) and Asst. Prof. Saisunee Vanadurongwan (CEQ) received
the awards at Stock Exchange of Thailand. The award ceremony was held by the Stock Exchange of Thailand and
Money & Banking Magazine to announce and honor the accomplishment of listed companies, asset management
companies, fund management companies, financial advisory companies, and the outstanding highest-level
executive of listed companies.For the Business Excellence category, the Outstanding Company Performance Award
is given to companies in the SET-listed group with a market capitalization of more than 3,000 million baht but not more
than 10,000 million baht at the level outstanding. The award reflects the business operations that business growth
along with good corporate governance including being able to comply with the regulations of the Stock Exchange of
Thailand information disclosure and the quality of the company’s financial statements reflects the potential in doing
business that is outstanding.

For Outstanding Company Performance Award under Business Excellence category, itis given to listed companies
under SET which have market value of 3,000 million Baht — 10,000 million Baht. The award reflects business
operations that create performance growth, good corporate governance and compliance with the SET’s regulations
regarding information disclosure and quality of financial statements that present outstanding business operations.

Outstanding CEO Award is given to the highest-level executive with excellent leadership who leads the company
to success. Moreover, the executive must have integrity in management, and vision and competency to promote
investor relations activities as well as placing importance on society and sectors that support sustainability of the
company strongly.

These 2 awards displayed achievement of Vichaivej International Hospital Group as a role model of health service
business in Thailand. Furthermore, they encouraged the Group to continuously develop the operations in terms of
quantity and quality by focusing on environment, social responsibility and corporate governance for the sustainable
growth.

The Company also expressed intention in joining Thai Private Sector Collective Action Against Corruption (CAC)
since 19 December 2016 and was approved for the 1st membership renewal on 31 March 2022 which is valid until
31 March 2025.
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At present, Vichaivej International Hospital Group runs secondary general hospital business with 4 hos-
pitals within the Group, that is, 1) Vichaive] International Hospital Omnoi; 2) Vichaivej International Hospital
Nongkhaem; 3) Vichaivej International Hospital Samutsakorn; and 4) Vichaivej Yeakfaichai, being operated
by the Company. The subsidiary companies comprise Srivichai Vejvivat Public Company limited, Saivichai
Development Company Limited, Srisakorn Vejavivat Company Limited, and The Bangkok Orthopedic Hospital
Company Limited, respectively. In addition, the Company also has another subsidiary company, Srivichai
Vocational School Company limited, which operates business under the name Srivichai Vocational School and
serves as a training facility for assistant nurses of Vichaivej International Hospital Group. The Company and
subsidiary companies operate under the management of Ass. Prof. Saisunee Vanadurongwan, M.D. who is
the Chief Executive Officer and Vice Chairman since establishment until today.

The Company announced its intention to join the Thai Private Sector Collective Action Coalition Against
Corruption (CAC) on December 19, 2016 and was certified by the CAC project on February 4, 2019, which will
expire on February 3, 2022. The company has renewed the certification period. by submitting documents for
renewal of certification to the Thai Private Sector Collective Action Coalition against Corruption on December
30, 2021

The main customer group of Vichaivej International Hospital Group comprises 2 major groups: 1) Non-capi-
tation customer group, namely general individual customers, life insurance customer, contract party customers,
cars victims, customers under workmen compensation fund program,; and 2) Capitation customer group,
namely customers under social security fund program, customers under Universal Health Care Coverage
Project, Moreover the company had expaned the customer group of health check up in the establishment,
civil servants and their family under Diagnosis-Related Group (DRG) project; and ,foreign customers residing
in Thailand and came as tourist or to work.

Main revenue of Vichaivej International Hospital Group is divided into 2 major categories based on the
nature of customers, that is:

o - Capitation
( Non—Capltatlon T revenue comprises earnings from the services
For non-capitation revenue, provided to patients under social security program,
this is made up of patients under Universal Health Care Coverage
non-capitation OPD Project, and patients under foreign laborer health
insurance project. The ratio of non-capitation
non-capitation IPD revenue to capitation revenue was 76:24 91:9 and
S revenues )L 86:14 in 2020-2022 respectively. )

In terms of operating performance, the Company and subsidiaries achieved total revenue from the hospital group
in 2020-2022 equivalent to 2,275.67 million Baht, 4,717.84 million Baht and 3,645.90 million Baht respectively. The
revenue type which has the highest proportion was the revenue from non-capitation IPD, followed by revenue from
non-capitation OPD and social security program respectively. In addition, during the same period, the hospital
which showed the highest revenue among the hospital group was Vichaivej International Hospital Omnoi followed by
Vichaivej International Hospital Nongkhaem, Vichaivej International Hospital Samutsakorn, and Vichaivej Yeakfaichai
respectively.

In 2020-2022, the hospital group achieved net profit at 186.85 million Baht, 1,260.21 million Baht and 699.24 Baht
respectively, while its operating profit margins were 10.31%, 33.76% and 23.78% in 2020, 2021, and 2022 respectively.
As of 31 December 2022, the Company and subsidiary companies has total assets of 3,707.67 million Baht and
land building, and equipment totaling 2,001.30 million Baht. Meanwhile, the hospital group’s total liabilities as of
31 December 2022 was 699.59 million Baht and equity at 3,008.08 million Baht comprising retained earnings of
2,371.15 million Baht.

However, the hospital business operated by the Company and its subsidiaries may still encounter impact from certain
risk factor which the hospital group has recognized the significance of such risk factor and, therefore, set guideline for
preventing and solving the problem in manner suitable to each risk type. The Company has placed great emphasis
and close attention on management of different risks as per the details mentioned under risk factors.
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Each hospital has different unique features in providing services

as follows

Vichaivej International
Omnoi Hospital

provides 24-hour medical service with specialist
physicians ready to provide OPD care until midnight, in
addition to the different kinds of specialized treatment
available, such as Laparoscopic Surgery Center,
Orthopedic Center, Urology Center, Brain Center, Cardi-
ology Clinic, Nephrology Center, Endocrinology Clinic,
Gastrointestinal Clinic, Pediatric Clinic, Obstetrics and
Gynecology clinic, Emergency and Trauma Center,
Dental Center, Check - up Center and Anti-aging
and Wellness Center. The hospital has operating
rooms under positive pressure system, 100% sterile,
dust-free, and moisture-free according to international
standards. In addition, the MRI Center is also open for
service. To increase the capacity of medical services
and to diagnose with modern tools and technology.
Can clearly see abnormal parts of the body There are
very few side effects for patients. It is good to enable
doctors to diagnose the disease precisely. And can
be treated directly. And also a hospital that has been
certified for the establishment of a stroke unit under the
stroke service development program to reduce mortality
in the elderly.

In 2022, Vichaivej Hospital International Omnoi
opened Advanced Vichaivej Interventional Radiology
Center that provides radiological tools for examination
and treatment of artery and vein diseases and cancer
(Interventional Radiology) by specialist physicians and
radiological tools.

Vichaivej International

Nongkhaem Hospital

is a hospital that provides comprehensive care
and counseling services. There are specialist doctors
available to serve in various fields. By the Vichaivej
Heart Center, which is a heart center that is ready and
highly effective, providing services in all aspects of heart
disease, from prevention, early diagnosis, treatment, to
heart rehabilitation. Including 24-hour critical care for
patients. By ateam of cardiologists including Cardiologist,
Heart and Chest Surgeon Along with a team of nurses
and trained personnel specialized in the care of patients
with heart disease. Led by Dr. Wattana Bunsom,
a specialist in cardiovascular disease. In addition,
Vichaivej International Nongkhaem Hospital also has an
Orthopedic Center, Child Development Center, Pediatric
Center, Laparoscopic Surgery Center, Obstetrics &
Gynecology Center , iSKY Innovative Skin & Laser
Surgery Center, which is famous and recognized in the
country as a full-service aesthetic laser surgery center,
Comprehensive Health Check Center, i-SHA Anti-Aging
Center. The international patient service center that is
ready to provide services and facilitate the treatment for
all users to receive the best convenience and service.
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Vichaivej International
Samutsakhon Hospital

also has similar comprehensive clinical service
capacity as Vichaivej International Hospital Omnoi and
has expertise in the provision of health services offsite
such as in the establishment of the private and public
sectors and enterprise. And opened occupational
medicine center for health services and up-to-date tools
for checkup to search for the effect of health from work
with laboratory center that full a complete range of tools
for analyzing blood results and specimens. Moreover,
Vichaivej International Hospital Samutsakhon has a
clinic at Mae Sod District, Tak Province that serves
Thai and Burmese customers, and has cooperated
with partners in the Republic of the Union of Myanmar
in examining the health of foreign laborers in Yangon,
the Republic of the Union of Myanmar.

In mid-2022, Vichaivej Ranong Clinic at Khao
Niwet subdistrict, Muang district, Ranong province was
opened to provide services of general examination and
laboratory analysis for local people in Ranong province
and nearby area. Moreover, the clinic and Cl Center
of Ranong province provide COVID-19 test for foreign
workers.

$19v1uUs:91U 2565
USBN ASIGEIEIIAL 9INA (UABU)

Vichaivej

Yeakfaichai Hospital

In the Midyear of 2016, The Company has invested
in Vichaivej Yeakfaichai Hospital by focusing on to
develop a treatment for specialty care units due to the
location of Vichaive] Yeakfaichai Hospital is closed to
Siriraj Hospital. That will cause the doctors of Siriraj
Hospital to cure the patients at Sam Yaek Fai Chai.
Moreover, there is a construction of the skytrain at Fai
Chai junction that will help a convenient transportation
to the hospital. Moreover, Vichaivej Yeakfaichai Hospital
has a renowned iSKY Innovative Skin & Laser Surgery
Center, SMILE by iSKY dental clinic, Orthopedic Center,
Trauma and Emergency Center, Check - up Center and
Fertility Center.
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1.1.1 Vision Mission Objective

The Company realizes and recognizes the importance of the Company’s vision, mission, business objective and
strategies of company by the Board of Directors and executives are involved in formulating and approving the vision,
mission, objective and strategies of the Company. as well as follow up on the implementation of the Company’s
strategy to ensure that the executives and employees in the same direction. Directors and executives are responsible
for considering and reviewing the vision, mission, objective and strategies of the Company every year. In 2022, the
Board of Directors and the Executive Committee reviewed the vision, mission, objective, values and strategies of the
Company and deems it appropriate to maintain the Company’s vision, mission, objective and strategies as follows:

[
: Vichaivej International Hospital Group is strongly determined to be the leading hospital that
Vision | operates at international standard level by using modern technology and medical equipment,
I engaging teams of specialist physicians from every field, and upholding strict moral and ethical

: principles.”
“We are firmly determined to provide medical care service that is based on holistic
professional standards through use of quality tools and qualified staffs and by adopting a service

Mission recipient-centric approach in order to be sure that our service recipients receive utmost satisfaction.”

) Vichaivej International Hospital Group’s operation focuses on providing superb quality services
Business for patients and others who visit the hospital and on engaging specialized medical treatment
Ob]ectlve combined with preventive measures under the slogan “V care V cure V can”. Our objectives are

as follows.

1. Develop the hospital group to become one of the leading private hospital groups that is
equipped with treatment capability in every field of medicine, with emphasis on accident and
Orthopedic care. The objective is to become a medical center for specific disease and eventually
escalating into Tertiary Medical Care, involving development of necessary medical personnel and
modern diagnostic and treatment facilities ready to administer complicated diseases.

2. Set high standards for quality and service and focus on being customer-centric with a genuine
belief that “customers are highly valued individuals which every hospital personnel has to pay close
attention and ensure that they receive proper medical treatment, health care, and various services
available at the hospital in a proper manner and according to professional standards, which in all
creates utmost satisfied experience for the customers.”

3. Establish efficient organizational management process and proper human resources
management system that give priority to every single employee, by enhancing the quality, skills,
and knowledge of all level staff on a regular basis, meanwhile creating a culture that allows a free
exchange of ideas and opinions in order to build a sense of ownership and strong commitment
among the employees with the hospital.

4. Develop quality and management operations to be more systematic and consistent by
connecting and fostering joint work between management and quality development teams that
will enable us to set our goal of improving the quality of medical care and service. The ensuing
focus is to reduce risks in terms of medication administration and medical records, complaints,
nursing practice, etc. in order to establish patient safety goal and customer satisfaction.
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Business
Objective

5. Explore opportunities for business or product line expansion by increasing the number
of specialty clinics and developing such clinics to serve as integrated specialized centers,
to be in line with the company’s mission to expand its customer base in the country and
abroad.

6. Give priority and social responsibility attention to society and community where hospital
is located by promoting safety and good hygiene as well as environment protection care on
a regular basis.

[
|
[
[
[
|
[
[
|
l
Objective : Quality Hospital
and : There are many private hospitals in the area make a competition higher. Therefore the hos(pita)l
emphasizes the policy to increase quality in every step and maintain the national quality (HA

Strategy : and advance to the ini/ernational level (ng). ’ ’

: Service excellence

: Expectation of service recipients,stakeholders including the consumers’ rights to access

i quality information and services. As a result, hospitals have to adapt to the growing expectations

: of consumers.

i Cost management

: The company have careful and detailed cost management in order not to affect the operating

[

|

results and make the operating results meet the objective set by the hospital.

[
[
1. Working with systems based on good governance.
: 2. Customer focus

3. Support empowered decision-making.

: 4. Continuous development

| 5. Teamwork

[
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11.2 Important changes and development

In2022, the company had managedthe set strategy.
The company sees quality as important in every step of
the maintenance process to enter the international level
and the company’s performance achievement of the
company’s goals. >

Vichaivej International
Omnoi Hospital

* Opened Advanced Vichaivej Interventional
Radiology Center that provides radiological tools for
examination and treatment of artery and vein diseases
and cancer (Interventional Radiology) by specialist
physicians and radiological tools.

* Received Outstanding Award for COVID-19
Pandemic Management at Samutsakhon province on ﬂué§ué‘§3u§nuq 56&][0[1
31 March 2022. =

» Being certified for COVID FREE AREA standard
at Samutsakhon province.

Advanced Vichaivej Interventional Radiology Center

» Being certified for process quality No. 3 which is
valid from 25 June 2022 — 24 June 2025 from The Health-
care Accreditation Institute (Public Organization).

+ Certified competence according to standards and
terms and conditions I1ISO 15190 : 2003 Accreditation
of competence testing laboratories for medical and
public health of the Bureau laboratory standards in the
field of medical laboratory safety since certificate from
24 May 2022 — 23 May 2026

» Certified competence according to standards
and terms and conditions ISO 15189 : 2012 Accredita- e s A
tion of competence testing laboratories for medical and NIENIVFISIS A
public health of the Bureau laboratory standards in the “mmﬁummmamd;
field of medical laboratory safety. since certificate from o] Vs fuanstugas
24 May 2022 — 23 May 2026 ans

» Passedthelaboratory health check, for job seekers
to work abroad audit in August,25 2020 (certification

Tsawenwam llunalvaigany
Aulrasiuduuua sanias

o 1 o
Wl 74/5 Wil 4 auuwrsiney cuadentiay

period : 20 August 2022 — 19 September 2024) dnanssjuuuy Saniaannsanns 74130
° Opeﬂed 4 hOSpitel for Suppor"[ the treatment of Iumsiunadwdwion fianfimansoansaumen
. . . Aalvameyszing munasgmnsuingmaaimsuwnd dasms
COVld 1 9 patlents' namely' '?uiaamwmmmvfaoﬂﬁu“ﬁmmﬂaqﬂmwmwrmuﬁa:‘lﬂvhnum‘ﬂms:mw
* - Ramada Plaza Ba ng kok Menam Riverside, Amomiuasitmsitmualianmsuurg
Bangkok 147 beds v e
- VST Residence 300 beds L
(wsuwndenia @anval)
- i-Chapter Suvannaphumi 240 beds sdudnsi/Anmenasndmumd
W o duii 20 Aumaw 2565
- Avana 520 beds Aaduil 19 Aumau 2567 wingaansiioy 2108/53

* Renovated OPD G common area for general clients
since 15 July 2022 and expected to complete by March 2023.
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Vichaivej International
Nongkhaem Hospital

* Received the certification of Hospital Accredi-
tation (HA) level 3 from The Healthcare Accreditation
Institute (Public Organization); and being certified for
process quality via electronic method which is valid for
3 years (10 October 2021 — 9 October 2024) from The
Healthcare Accreditation Institute (Public Organization)

+ Being certified as the laboratory for examination
of workers who work in foreign countries according
to the standard of Department of Medical Sciences,
Ministry of Public Health since 2000 (this certification is
valid from 17 September 2022 — 16 September 2024).

« Being certified for Laboratory Accreditation (LA)
for medical laboratory by Medical Technology Council
since 2013 (this certification is valid from 19 April 2022
— 18 April 2025)

* Being certified for ISO 15189: 2012, and medical
and public health laboratory of Laboratory Office, Ministry
of Public Health under category “Medical Laboratory”
totaling 86 test lists since 2018 (this certification is valid
from 26 September 2022 — 25 September 2026).

+ Being certified for ISO 15190: 2020, and medical
and public health laboratory of Laboratory Office under
category “Medical Laboratory Security” since 2018
(this certification is valid from 26 September 2022 — 25
September 2026).

* Being certified as the laboratory network
for SARS-CoV-2 test based on Real-Time RT-PCR
(Individual Sample) approach according to the standard
of Department of Medical Sciences, Ministry of Public
Health since 2018 (this certification is valid from 13 April
2022 — 12 April 2023).

» Received the fresh ingredients certification by
Food Safety campaign by Bureau of Quality and Safety
of Food, Ministry of Public Health on 17 January 2023
(in process of certification renewal).

* Being certified as Green Office at good level (G:
Copper) on 13 August 2022 by Department of Environ-
mental Quality Promotion.

* Renovated service area of CCU and CATH LAB
departments (1 October 2021 — 7 February 2022).

* Opened 9 hospitel for support the treatment of
Covid-19 patients, namely

11 $19v1uUs:91U 2565
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- Ramada Plaza Menam Riverside Bangkok 420
beds

- The Heritage Hotels Bangkok 154 beds

- Golden Tulip Mandison Suites 300 beds

- The Platinum Suite 338 beds

- Aurora Hotel 420 beds

- Malaysia Hotel 200 beds

- Chaleen Hotel 250 beds

- King Park Hotel 500 beds

- Bangkok Chada Hotel 103 beds
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Vichaivej International
SamutSakhon Hospital

* In mid-2022, Vichaivej Ranong Clinic at Khao
Niwet subdistrict, Muang district, Ranong province was
opened to provide services of general examination and
laboratory analysis for local people in Ranong province
and nearby area. Moreover, the clinic and CI Center
of Ranong province provide COVID-19 test for foreign
workers.

* Opened ARI clinic to screen, treatment of re-
spiratory patients and screening COVID-19 outside a
building in March 2020 until present

* Provides daily testing for COVID-19 by RT-PCR
method.

* Open laboratory testing center to support
Covid-19 testing with RT-PCR standards

* Opened 7 hospitel for support the treatment of
Covid-19 patients in SamutSakhon , namely

- Royal King Suite hotel, Samut Prakan 429 beds

- Icare Residence & Hotel, Bangkok 212 beds

- A-One Bangkok 283 beds

- The Platinum suite, Bangkok 200 beds

- Ramada Plaza Menam Riverside Bangkok 104 beds

- Mahachai Green Boutique 52 beds
And The last Hospitel will be closed in August 2022.

 Certificated hospital accreditation (HA) from the
healthcare accreditation institute.

» Certificated quality in accordance with 1SO
9001:2015 standard.

» Certificated quality in accordance with 1SO
15189:2012 standard.

» Certificated quality in accordance with 1SO
15190:2003 standard.

+ Being certified as the laboratory network for
SARS-CoV-2 test based on Real-Time RT-PCR by De-
partment of Medical Sciences.

» Certificated as the laboratory health check, for
job seekers to work abroad,Except Saudi Arabia, Israel,
Brunei Darussalam and Taiwan.

* Received Outstanding Award for COVID-19
Pandemic Management Unit at Samutsakhon province
on 31 March 2022 from the Provincial Governor of
Samutsakhon province on 26 May 2022 at the city hall
of Samutsakhon province.

* Received Excellent Hospital Award for 2 consec-
utive years (2021 and 2022) from Minister of Ministry of
Labour on 3 September 2022 at Social Security Office.
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s18v1uUs:91U 2565
USBN AS3G8I0BIIU DR (UNIBU)

* Received Outstanding Contributor to Social
Security Office Award of 2022 from promoting social
security services (Ms. Paijit Eithongchai) from Minister
of Ministry of Labour on 3 September 2022 at Social
Security Office.

» Passed the certificate Laboratory Accreditation :
LA for the Medical Laboratory by Medical Technology
Council.

» Selected as contract party hospital to checkup
a staff of the CPF (Thailand) Public Company Limited
Group.From 16 January -30 September 2022

* Being selected as the network hospital for health
checkup of Police General Hospital’s personnel in
Bangkok area during 4 July — 24 September 2022.

+ Being selected as the network hospital for health
checkup of Dararassamee Hospital’s personnel in
Bangkok area during 18 April — 27 June 2022.

» Selected as contract party hospital to checkup
Government agencies and state enterprises in Ratch-
aburi Province and Ratchaburi Hospital.

» Selected as contract party hospital for labora-
tory analysis of teacher hospitals under ,the Office of
the Welfare Promotion Commission for Teachers and

Educational Personnel.
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Vichaivej Yeakfichai Hospital

« Certificated quality in accordance with ISO
9001:2015 standard.

* Being certified for ISO 9001: 2015 which is valid
during 11 December 2022 — 10 December 2025.

* Received the certification for the medial
laboratory in participating the National External Quality
Assessment Scheme for HIV Serology Testing of 2022.

* Received the certification for the medial
laboratory in participating the National External Quality
Assessment Scheme for HbA1c Testing of 2022.

* Received the certification for the medial
laboratory in participating the National External Quality
Assessment Scheme for Anti-HCV Testing of 2022.

* Opened 2 hospitel for support the treatment of
Covid-19 patients in , namely

- 9 Winner Resident Hotel , Bangkok 214 beds

- The Platinum suite, Bangkok 176 beds

Srivichai Vocational School

» Certified “Care for the Elderly course “ under the
Health Establishment Act B.E. 2559 under the the De-
partment of Health Service Support, Ministry of Health.
Opened teaching from April 19,2021 - present

» Received “2022 Outstanding School Award” from
Office of the Private Education Commission on 29 Octo-
ber 2022 under the campaign arranged by Non-formal
Education Association (Thailand).

* Received “2022 Outstanding School Director
Award” (Asst. Prof. Ratchada Fongtanakit, Ph. D.) from
Private Education Commission and Non-formal Educa-
tion Association (Thailand) on 29 October 2022.

» Received “2022 Outstanding Teacher Award”
(Miss Sopa Luadsong) from Private Education Commis-
sion and Non-formal Education Association (Thailand)
on 29 October 2022.

» Received “2022 Outstanding Student Award”
(Miss Phornkamol Atirattana and Miss Piyaphorn
Boonsom — students of Srivichai Vocational School)
from Private Education Commission and Non-formal
Education Association (Thailand) on 29 October 2022.
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» Assigned nursing assistant students to join the
nursing competency competition arranged by Private
Education Commission Office on 30 July 2022 and
received the following awards.

- “Gold Medal” for vital signs checking

- “Gold Medal” for infant bathing

- “Gold Medal” for assisting elderly persons to sit in
a wheelchair with correct mobility

* Being certified for the standard of school with
hygiene and sanitation against COVID-19 from Private
Education Commission Office.
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Awards and honors for quality and operating standards of the company.

» Srivichai Vejvivat Public Company Limited
received Outstanding Company Performance Award
which was given to listed companies under SET which
have market value of 3,000 million Baht— 10,000 million
Baht. Assoc. Prof. Vichai Vanadurongwan, M.D., Ph.D.,
FIMS (the chairman) received the award at SET Awards
2022 on 28 October 2022 arranged by Stock Exchange
of Thailand and Money & Banking Magazine.

« Asst. Prof. Saisunee Vanadurongwan (CEO)
received Outstanding CEO Awards which was given
to the highest-level executive with excellent leadership
who leads the company to success at SET Awards 2022
on 28 October 2022 arranged by Stock Exchange of
Thailand and Money & Banking Magazine.

» Assoc. Prof. Vichai Vanadurongwan, M.D., Ph.D.,
FIMS (the chairman) was recognized as the contributor
for physical education, recreational sports, and sports
science of 2022, and received “Phra Pholbodhi Award”
and “Recognition Award” on the occasion of the estab-
lishment date of Department of Physical Education on
9 December 2022 at Arnoma Grand Bangkok Hotel.
This is honorary award that recognizes the contributor
for physical education, recreational sports, and sports
science who has outstanding performance in the public
and is inspiration for developing the physical education
and sports science of the country.

s
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* The company was assessed about Corporate
Governance Report of Thai Listed Companies of 2022
according to Corporate Governance Report of Thai Listed
Companies 2021 (CGR) receiving 91 scores which
was in excellent level (5 stars). It was also recognized
by the SET to be the company with good governance
receiving scores of more than 90% or 5-star excellent

level for 5 consecutive years.

SET AWARDS 2022

A ding Comp Perf Awards

Business Excellence
SET market capitalization of over THB3 bin.
but no more than THB10 bin.

Srivichaivejvivat pcl
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* Received a special award for the hospital project
in the heart of the year 2021 and the year 2022 for
hospitals that cooperate and support the work of the
Social Security Office.

+ Vichaivej Omnoi Hospital, Vichaivej Nong Khaem
Hospital and Vichaivej Samut Sakhon Hospital received
certificates the Hospital Accreditation (HA) from The
Healthcare Accreditation Institute (Public Organization)

» Hospital in Vichaivej International Hospital Group
accreditation for quality management system according
to the standards of medical technology from the Medical
Technological Council.

* Hospital in the Vichaivej International Hospital
Group has been certified by the Department of Medical
Sciences: Accreditation of labor health examination
laboratories to work abroad from October 16, 1997 —
present.

Laboratory;i;

Accreditation

Thailand Medical Technology Council
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» Srivichai Vocational School Company Limited
certificates for non-formal schools that have internal
quality assurance systems at a very good level since
2012 until the present by the Office of the Private
Education Commission, Ministry of Education.
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» Vichaivej Hospital International Samutsakhon
received Excellent Hospital Award for 2 consecutive
years (2021 and 2022) since the hospital gives
cooperation and support to Social Security Office.
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11.3 Fundraising
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In 2022, the company had not raised additional funds.

114 Offering of securities

In 2022, the company did not offer securities for sale or any additional obligations.

1.1.5 Location

Srivichai Vejvivat Public Company Limited

Type of Business
Location

Telephone Number
Facsimile

Website

E-mail

Number of beds
Registration Number
First Trade Date
Par Value
Common Stock
Authorized Capital
Paid-up Capital

Private Hospital operating under the name “Vichaivej International Omnoi Hospital”
74/5 Moo 4, Phetkasem Road, Omnoi Subdistrict, Krathumbaen District, Samutsakhon
Province 74130

(+662) 441-7899 and Hotline 1792

(+662) 431-1404

www.vichaivej.com

bod@vichaivej.com

196 beds

0107554000062

09 May 2012

1.00 Baht

570,666,666.00 Baht
570,665,433.00 Baht
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1.2 Nature of Business Operation

Vichaivej International Hospital Group provides patients with 24 hours medical treatment covering every disease
in order to satisfy their needs, such as Orthopedic Center, General Surgery and include Urology, Brain Center,
General Medicine Clinic and it subspecialty as Cardio Vascular Medicine, Nephrology, Endocrinology, Dermatology
and Neurology. Addition service include; Dental Center, Physical Rehabilitation and Plastic Surgery, etc. For inpatient
treatment, the Hospital Group is equipped with 483 listed bed and 483 sickbeds divided into different room types,
such as 1) special private single-bed consisting of GRAND VIP, VIP, Deluxe and Standard, 2) special private 2-beds,

3) special private 4-beds, 4) common 8-beds, 5) ICU, and 6) Infant ward.

1.2.1 Revenue Structure

Revenues and profits of the Company and its subsidiaries for the years 2020 - 2022 (each hospital)

Name of Hospital

Vichaivej International Hospital Omnoi

2022

2021

2020

Thousand baht Thousand baht Thousand baht

: Revenue from sales and services 1,287,032.90 34 1,334,393.70 27 922,042.38 39
: Net profit 454.863.36 46 561,682.39 35 137,057.41 55
Vichaivej International Hospital Nongkhaem

: Revenue from sales and services 1,257,010.44 33 1,5679,842.60 32 726,424.87 31
: Net profit 324,877.80 33 507,601.12 31 73,338.44 29
Vichaivej International Hospital Samuttsakhon

: Revenue from sales and services 958,204.37 25 1,640,650.29 34 471,151.83 20
: Net profit 181,111.37 18 487,274.41 30 35,753.52 14
Vichaivej Hospital Yeakfaichai

Revenue from sales and services 281,877.26 7 343,046.14 7 227,517.84 10
. Net profit 26,025.43 3 68,385.34 4 5,476.67 2
Srivichai Vocational School

. Net profit 540.08 0 138.67 0 360.88 0
Total revenue before elimination transaction 3,784,124.97 100 4,896,356.59 100 2,347,136.92 100
Value of transaction 138,220.11 - 178,521.25 - 71,465.09 -
Total revenue after elimination transaction 3,645,904.86 - 4,717,835.34 - 2,275,671.83 -
Total profit before elimination transaction 987,418.04 100 1,625,081.93 100 251,986.92 100
Value of transaction 288,177.19 - 364,871.06 - 65,134.99 -
Total profit after elimination transaction 699,240.85 - 1,260,210.87 - 186,851.93 -

Remark: In 2020-2022, Srivichai Vocational School Limited Company (its subsidiaries) with revenue at 3.09
million Baht, 2.22 million Baht, and 2.72 million Baht. respectively and achieved net profit at 0.36 million Baht, 0.14
million Baht, and 0.54 million Baht respectively, which Srivichai Vocational School Limited Company (its subsidiaries)
in the list of other income in the consolidated financial statements.
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Revenues of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year 2020 - 2022 (by the type of client)

Name of Hospital

Vichaivej International Hospital Omnoi

2022
Thousand baht

2021
Thousand baht

2020

Thousand baht

%

Revenues from Capitation 364,060.54 9.62 303,962.68 6.21 364,310.90 15.52
Revenues from Non-Capitation 922,972.36 24.39 1,030,431.02 21.05 557,731.48 23.76
Total revenues from services 1,287,032.90 34.01 1,334,393.70 27.26 922,042.38 39.28
Vichaivej International Hospital Nongkhaem
Revenues from Capitation - - - - 1,817.50  0.08
Revenues from Non-Capitation 1,257,010.44 3322 1,578,266.46 32.23 724,607.37 30.87
Total revenues from services 1,257,010.44 33.22 1,578,266.46 32.23 726,424.87 30.95
Vichaivej International Hospital Samuttsakhon
Revenues from Capitation 196,589.22 5.20 137,315.27 2.80 151,203.05 6.44
Revenues from Non-Capitation 761,615.15 20.13  1,503,335.02 30.71 319,948.77 13.63
Total revenues from services 958,204.37 25.32 1,640,650.29 33.51 471,151.83 20.07
Vichaivej Hospital Yeakfaichai
Revenues from Capitation - - 63.88 0.00 57,172.23 243
Revenues from Non-Capitation 281,877.26 7.45 342,982.26 7.00 170,345.62 7.26
Total revenues from services 281,87726 7.45 343,04614 7.00 227,51784 9.69
Total revenue before elimination transaction 3,784,124 .97 100  4,896,356.59 100 2,347,136.92 100
Value of transaction 138,220.11 - 178,521.25 - 71,465.09 -
Total revenue after elimination transaction 3,645,904.86 - 4,717,835.34 - 2,275,671.83 -

Number of beds for inpatients
Vichaivej Hospital Group are beds for inpatient services as of December 31, 2022 as follows:

Inpatient

Hospitals

Number of beds | Number of beds
registered Used

Prices

Vichaivej Hospital Omnoi 196 188 400 -4,500
Vichaivej Hospital Nongkhaem 118 116 1,650 — 4,600
Vichaivej Hospital Samuttsakhon 120 90 600 - 5,600
Vichaivej Hospital Yeakfaichai 49 49 600 - 2,600
Total 483 443 400 - 5,600

Remarks: The highest price is the grand VIP room and the lowest price is a shared room
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1.2.2 Product Line

1) Service and Product

@ Heart Clinic

Cardiovascular Center at Vichaive] provides modern medical service for every step of treatment since checking
initial symptoms of coronal heart disease or heart disease, treatment of heart disease, and recovering the function
of the heart by cardiovascular medical specialists (Dr. Wattana Boonsom) and medical specialist team from the
famous medical school. Moreover, we also provide modern medical devices and CCU, which enable nursing teams
and cardiovascular medical specialist to conduct treatment and give advices to patients effectively 24 hours.

i !"WL'\ Noninvasive Procedure

- Electrocardiography (EKG)  Checking electrical produced by the heart muscle while the systole. How to
checking a heart disease that is a good result to take a 5 minute. This examination may be normal in initiating Acute
Coronary Syndrome, If doubt should be repeated.

- Holter Monitoring Equipped Holter Monitoring with the patient at all times during activities of daily life or work
normally. The machine will record the ECG. After 24-hour, the patient is back to the doctor to diagnose with irregular
heartbeats or not.

- Echocardiography  The Echocardiography digital system through the chest wall to the heart with the special
probe to see of heart chamber and systole.For help diagnose disease, detection of disease and follow-up treatment
of cardiovascular disease effectively.

- Exercise Stress Test Detecting for Ischemic heart disease while exercise by walking on a much faster treadmill.
This exercise has resulted in heart perfusion is inadequate cause cardiac ischemia and signs of changes in the
ECG may help diagnose disease.

Cardiac Catheterization Laboratory

- Cardiac Catheterization & Angiography

- Percutaneous Transluminal Coronary Intervention

- Permanent Pacemaker

- Automated Implantable Cardioverter Defibrillators : AICD)

- Intra-aortic Balloon Pump; IABP

- Radiofrequency Ablation

Surgery treatment

- Coronary Artery Bypass Grafting ; CABG
- Valvular repair/replacement

- Congenital heart disease correction
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Statistic of Diagnosed and Treatment in Cardiac Catheterization Laboratory

Average sleep

Medical Procedure 2020 2022 .
duration
Diagnosed and Treatment in Cardiac Cath-
o 1,569 2,262 2,258 1,726 2,201 1-2 Days
eterization Laboratory
Heart surgery treatment 217 216 229 183 211 7-8 Days

\'/[ Advanced Vichaivej Interventional Radiology Center

In January 2022, Vichaivej International Hospital Group opened Advanced Vichaivej Interventional Radiology
Center that provides radiological tools for examination and treatment of artery and vein diseases and cancer
(Interventional Radiology) by specialist physicians and radiological tools. The services are as follows.

1. Treatment for stroke by sucking up or removing blood clots directly in case of stroke that cannot be cured
with medicine.

2. Treatment for Cerebral Aneurysm, or severe cerebrovascular dissection, or cerebrovascular disorder which
cannot be cured with other methods.

3. Examination for disorder of blood vessels of nervous system such as in brain, spinal cord, head, throat,
backbone and others via catheter which is the most accurate examination.

4. Embolization or angioplasty for arteries as to examine and treat aortic aneurysm, aortic dissection or
peripheral arterial disease.

5. Examination and treatment for vein diseases such as atherosclerosis or venous thromboembolism.

6. Treatment for liver cancer by Transcatheter Arterial Chemo Embolization as to inject intensive chemotherapy

to cancerous tumor directly which this method reduces chemotherapy volume and complications as well as

Transarterial oily chemoembolization (TOCE); this treatment is currently well-known with good results. Radiologists
involves in the treatment.

7. Radiofrequency Ablation (RFA) or Microwave Ablation (MWA) to remove tumor or cancerous tumor with
radius of 2 — 3 centimeters of the needle tip.

8. Biopsy by using ultrasound or x-ray computer to accurately point out tumor location and the wound is

minimal.

Highlight of interventional radiology is accurate treatment that involves radiologists who are expertise in
interpretation of x-ray, ultrasound, CT scan and mammogram that leads to clear specification of disorder location,
and small wound because of biopsy method that surgery is not required. Thus, it mitigates impacts from surgery and
anesthesia which patients will recover quickly and have shorter recovery period as well as reducing medical expense.
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Magnetic resonance imaging
(MRI)

()

Vichaivej International Hospital has increased the
efficiency of the Magnetic Resonance Imaging (MRI)
diagnosis by able to examine all parts of the body.
Checking with MRI can differentiate between various
tissues as well. Make an accurate more diagnosis and
more efficiency of medical technology to hospitals.

% Akarabut Fertility Center

Treatment of infertility with technology to help fertility
atthe international level by specialist doctors, embryonic
scientists and professional nurses.The hospital have
technological services to help fertility such as, IVF,
Intraplasmic sperm injection (ICSI) , Intrauterine
insemination (IUl), and Testicular Epididymal Sperm
Extraction (TESE). Moreover, to give advice service
about infertility, check up before to married and other
service about mothernity.

! Occupational Medicine
—- Check-up Center

Occupational Medicine Check-up Center focuses
on the prevention of causing the occupational disease.
We provide mobile health check-up that delivers to your
workplace in order to check workers’ health and prevent
any disease caused by the worker being in the work
environment. Our specialists will check your health and
diagnose the disease in laboratory room to prevent,
treat, and recover occupational disease hazards.

Occupational Medicine Check-Up Center provides
professional teams including doctors, nurses, and
medical specialists with mobile Digital x-rays, innovative
medical devices, laboratory with advanced standard
equipment ,which allows a specialist team to analyze
the result correctly and reach HA standard.
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Orthopedic Center

|

Orthopedic center, Vichaivej International Hospital

Group provide treatment service about the bones,
muscles, tendons, nerves, bone and joint operation
including Osteoporosis and bone disease in children
by the professional surgeon’s team of Orthopedic
who have knowledge, potential, and experience. The
hospital we provide service of treatment diseases of
the bones, muscles, tendons, nerves and treatment to
people who have been injured in sports, exercises or
injury from the use of too much.

@ Health Check-up Center

Check-up Center at Vichaivej International Hospital,
We offer all types of physical exam and test with accurate
results, convenience, comfort and modern facilities
including internet access and relaxing atmosphere.
We provide comprehensive check-up services for
personal and companies. For group check-ups can be
arranged at Vichaivej International Hospital or on-site
using our team of check-up including doctors, nurses,
medical technicians and staff with highly experienced.
We personal assist you into the best health checkup
package including Annual health check-up program,
Pre-employment health check-up program, Pre-Mar-
riage check-up program, Mammography & Breast
exams and much more.

Trauma and Emergency
Center

Vichaivej International Hospital has a Trauma and
Emergency Center. To provide help victims of an
accident and emergency accurately and promptly
with the team of medical experts and nursing staff with
expertise. With all advanced technology devices and
the ambulance to rescue fully the Advance Life Support
(ALS) and Basic Life Support (BLS) availability with an
emergency 24 hours.
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Mobile Medical Unit
Vichaivej International
Hospital Group

Mobile Medical Unit Vichaivej International Hospital
Group providing health check services on-site by a team
of occupational medicine doctors, Medical technician,
Professional nurse and skilled staff which providing
health check-up services before working on-site and
outside the country, annual health check up and on-site
occupational health risk groups, providing service walk
through survey by a team of occupational medicine
physicians, Service Vaccination check up foreign workers,
license work permit and check up MOU group.

In addition, the Mobile Medical Unit at Vichaive;
International Hospital Group are modern and ready
equipment such as mobile x-ray machines digital
systems, along with modern equipment and tools that
certified by the Department of Medical Sciences. And
diagnose by the Radiologist of Hospital trusted by the
education institute, State enterprises, public organiza-
tions, establishments and leading financial institutions
in the country.

)
=

Vichaivej International Hospital providing services
and surgical treatment of all kinds such as Gastroin-
testinal surgery, Urology Surgery, Neurological Surgery
and surgical correction of defects and disabilities. With
the technology of laparoscopic surgery, which method
is help wounds heal faster, hurt less, wounds from

Laparoscopic Surgery
Center

surgery are small. This is different from old surgical scars
that are long and large. Vichaivej International Hospital
provides diagnosis and surgical treatment by the
specialist team of experienced surgeons with modern
medical equipment and nurses who will take care you
in a highly integrated.

22
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Obstetrics Surgery Center

Obstetrics and Laparoscopic Surgery Center at
Vichaivej Internation Hospital provides thorough medical
consultation and treatment of Obstetrics / Gynecologic’s
diseases by highly skilled specialists. Moreover, we
perform Obstetrics / Gynecologic service for women
of all ages such as check-up, Mammography including
biopsy, Thin Prep Cytology, Ultrasound diagnostics,
Female reproductive organs and Pelvic exam by
Laparoscopic, Laparoscopic surgery remains the
leading brink when it comes to Gynecologic surgical
techniques since it has a faster recovery time, less
pain, less tissue trauma, few complications and better
aesthetic result.

Mother and Child Health
Center

Mother and Child Health Center at Vichaivej
International Hospital, We provide a fullrange of healthcare
services for children. Our experienced and dedicated
team of doctors, nurses and staff are committed to
providing the best medical care possible for children.
Our clinic greets families and visitors in a bright, modern
facility where clients are treated with dignity, respect

and kindness.

Gagd)
@

Gastroenterology

The hospital has a medical specialist of the digestive
system and liver disease with advanced equipment,
such as alaparoscope esophagus, Stomach, Duodenum
and Colon. Making clear and accurate diagnosis and
can also Endoscopy for makes the problems caused
by disorders of the digestive system and liver were
treated quickly and completely, Includes instructions in
caring of the digestive system and vaccination against
diseases of the digestive system.
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Diabetes Mellitus and
Endocrinology Center

Vichaivej International Hospital preservation for
patients with diabetes and endocrine-related diseases
such as Thyroid disease, Adrenal Gland Disorders,
Pituitary disease, Obesity and Disorders of Calcium
and osteoporosis. By a team of specialist doctors and
nurses trained with highly experienced and advanced
technology of medical devices to ensure patients in the
treatment process. And also promote patients or the
general public gets to know the facts about diabetes
and endocrine disorders to understand and take care
of themselves properly. In addition to the year 2021 in
group of patients with chronic diseases such as diabetes,
hypertension. Vichaivej Hospital Group have a policy
that delivers a drugs to social security patients by post
for save a patient from having to come the hospital and
reduce the spread of COVID-19.

Urology Center

The hospital provides medical care for gallstones and
urinary system diseases, such as urinary tract stones,
Kidney stone and ureter, Stone in the gallbladder,
Kidney cancer, Bladder cancer, Urinary Tract Diseases,
Hematuria, etc. under the care of highly experienced
medical specialists and nurses who take care of patients
throughout the course of treatment until healed.

Medicine Clinic

Vichaivej International Hospital provides medical
treatment by a specialist team of doctors and high
experience for 24 hours such as cardiovascular diseases,
Neurological, Diseases of the blood, Kidney disease,
Skin diseases, Nervous system and the brain. And
provide advice and counseling to take care of yourself
deprived these diseases. We also encourage patients
to have a medical examination to ensure that patients
have a healthy body as well.
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Eye Clinic

Vichaivej International hospital provides care for all
types of eye diseases for both children and adults. By
a team of an experienced ophthalmologists and team
of nurses with completed the trainings and according
to international standards. Consultation and instructions
treatment for people who have visual problems such
as Visual acuity measurement, Treatment of cataract,
Glaucoma, Pinquecula, Retinal surgery, short-sighted-
ness, Presbyopia, Astigmatism, Diabetic Retinopathy,
Eye Infection, etc.

Ear Nose and Throat
(ENT) Clinic

Vichaivej International Hospital providing services at
all types of ear, nose, throat such as otitis, sinusitis, etc.
By a team of medical experts and highly experienced
staff with modern medical devices safety throughout
the treatment.

Dialysis Center

Dialysis Center at Vichaivej International Hospital,
We provides hemodialysis procedure that cleans and
filters the blood from individuals whose kidneys have
failed. And we provides dialysis services in a clean,
comfortable, and safe environment, using modern
dialysis machines, and offering the care under high
standard of professional conduct. With 10 State-of-the-
Art imported Dialysis Machines and We use Reverse
Osmosis water treatment system dedicated to the
Dialysis Unit meeting the international standards
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Dental Center

Dental Center at Vichaivej International Hospital,
here we provide attentive dental services with advice
and recommendations by a highly qualified trained team
of dentists as if you were our family member. For your
healthy teeth, the dental clinic offers the services such
as Restorative dental care, Gum disease treatment,
Prosthodontics treatment, Oral surgery, Pediatric dental
treatment, Endodontic or root canal treatment, Aesthetic
dentistry, etc... With taking care of dentists and nurse
keeping you healthy teeth and a bright smile.

Physical Therapy Clinic

Vichaivej International Hospital have providing
Rehabilitation or Physical therapy by a team of physio-
therapists that through training and highly experienced.
Along with consulting and advice If the patients requires
to physical therapy by themselves. It also has the inter-
national standard of physical tools and safe for patients
such as Lumbar traction & cervical traction, Ultrasound
therapy, Electrical Stimulation, Short wave diathermy,
Transcutaneous Electrical Nerve Stimulation, Electrical
Tilt table, etc.. To ensure that patients can return to
normal or close to normal as possible.
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Skin Clinic

Vichaivej International hospital provides treatment for
all types of skin diseases such as dermatitis, psoriasis,
allergies, vitiligo, melasma, freckles, drug allergy, skin
diseases in children and the elderly. Including beauty
such as Botox and Filler injections to fix wrinkles, deep
cheek, lips up and customize the face, Injection treatment
of varicose veins, Treatment of acne, melasma, freckles,
and diseases related to the hair.

Radiology Center

Vichaivej International hospital provides medical
services to patients with care and attention to all the
preserve of specialized medical personnel and nurses
who have experienced. With medical technologies that
have helped to maintain a high quality, fast and efficient.
Make the patient trust and confidence that will get good
service and satisfaction.
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Acute Respiratory Infection
Clinic: ARl clinic

Vichaivej International Hospital assigned a patient
at risk of COVID-19 screening to treat ARI Clinic (Acute
Respiratory Infection Clinic) for treatment of respiratory
infections. ARI Clinicis openonthe day. Monday - Sunday,
which located outside a building in order to prevent the
spread of infection.

$19v1uUs:91U 2565
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Practical Nurse Training
Center by Srivichai
Vocational School

=

Srivichai Vejvivat Public Company Limited has
invested as major shareholders in Srivichai Vocational
School Company Limited which the facility will be mainly
used to produce, train, and develop the personnel for
Vichaivej International Hospital Group. The emphasis
has been to produce nurse aid whose duty is to take
care and provide convenience for patients, such as
taking care of primary health. Srivichai Vocational
School Company Limited plays instrumental role in
producing nurse aid personnel for Vichaivej International
Hospital Group as a way of reducing personnel shortage
and poor quality personnel problems. The training lasts
for 6 months and has been certified by the Ministry of
education. In the past, the school produced a total of
894 nurse aid

Furthermore, the Company has formed an agreement
with the Faculty of Nursing, both public and private
universities in organizing course for practical nurses
certified by Thailand Nursing and Midwifery Council. The
School produced nurse aid staff to work under Vichaivej
International Hospital Group that allows the hospitals to
have higher quality nursing personnel thereby assuring
the patients and customers receiving service with the
hospitals. Simultaneously, this serves as a channel for
developing hospital personnel’s career path.
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2) Marketing and Competition

Marketing policy

The currentcustomer of the hospital can be categorized
into two: non-capitation and Capitation :as follow.

Non-capitation: Those who live or work near the
hospital and outside the area, but do trust the doctor
especially in orthopedic clinic and choose the hospital
by yourself. The hospital will publicize the event,
organize volunteer activities for the community to let
customers know about the hospital and the medical
services that the hospital for customers in this group.

Contract: The customers who are office employees,
factory workers and the government offices who have
the contract with the hospital or customers of insurance
companies that the agency has a contract with the
hospital for medical treatment or that the insurance
company has entered into a contract with the hospital
that will be responsible for medical expenses including
treatment according to the Third Person Insurance
Act, with a various types of medical services; such
as annual health checks ,in times of illness. However,
these contracting companies will require the hospital to
collect expenses from the counterparties for the period
specified in the contract.

Capitation: The group of patients who received
medical treatment in the hospital using the per capita
privileges per year through The Social Security Scheme.
The hospital will receive compensation from the Social
Security Office both outpatients and inpatients

Characteristics of target customers

Target customers are separated into 4 groups.

1. The group that lives within the radius of 10-20 km
of each hospital in which the hospital has publicized
among its target customer group so that they are
informed and understand the hospital group’s expertise
in treating bone and joint disease including the standard
and readiness to treat other diseases. The hospitals
have expanded and introduced new service that
promotes strong health or prevents ilinesses in addition
to general treatment service available in order to attract
non-patient customers.

s18v1uUs:91U 2565
USBN AS3G8I0BIIU DR (UNIBU)

2. The group comprising private companies, factories,
educational institutes, banks, schools, government
agencies, and business group in the industry that have
not formed service contracts with the hospital group
including management level staffs who are drawn to
use more treatment service from the hospital group.
The hospital group assigns its marketing and sales
departments to be responsible for publicizing and
contacting the various companies.

3. With life insurance companies, the hospital group
certainly places great emphasis in doing marketing
activities with this customer group as they are perceived
to have high growth rate due to public attitude change
that turns more attention to taking care of their health.
This certainly is consistent with the government’s
promotion in wanting people to pay more attention to
their health, plus the state’s policy in allowing the use
of premiums to deduct tax. Each hospital within the
group would have marketing officers contact and form
contracts with life insurers in order to become their
contract hospitals and treat their patients. This would
offer convenience to patients who come for treatment
at the hospital.

4. International customer group that lives in Thai-
land and comes into the country to do business or work
or just as tourists as the hospital recognizes the growth
potential in this customer group. The hospital group
has started to contact representatives and partners
overseas in order for them to send foreign patients in
Asia and Middle East to receive treatment at the hospital.

Quality service at competitive
price

The entire Vichaivej International Hospital Group,
focuses on service through the customer relation service
center to achieve customer satisfaction which leads to
customer loyalty and create an impressive experience
for customers.
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The medical

Vichaivej International Hospital Group focuses on the
recruitment of doctors who have specialized knowledge,
experience and expertise in each clinic. They are
available to patients 24 hours a day, together with
nurses and staff who have the knowledge and expertise
in each job to deliver maximum benefits to customers.

Advertising and public relations

Public relations is one way of creating public
awareness and understanding about the capability and
service quality of the hospital. We have established
community and insurance agent commitment projects
such as Provide knowledge about health in schools and
workplaces annually, Afternoon Tea at VIO to make a
good relationships between hospitals and insurance
agents etc..

In addition, it will also promote the national level to
the reputation and expertise of the hospital is known and
familiar to the public at large, by means of focusing on
digital marketing to increase communication efficiency
such as

» Promoting the activities and events of the hospital
through leading newspaper such as Thairath,Dailynews,
Komchadluek, Matichon , etc.

» Website Vichaivej International Hospital Group
including social media such as YouTube, and Line.
By creating info graphic and VDO content about
medical knowledge and promotion of the hospital to
create awareness the potential of the hospital group
while providing useful knowledge to society through
the social media.

Sales and distribution channels

The hospital has several distribution channels. The
direct sales focus on customers paying cash, Life
insurance,Contract companies and through the
government such as Social Security Scheme.

Social Responsible Activities

The Hospital aims to run the business with social
responsibility and contribution to community as an
organization of medical care.

» Organized diabetes screening activities for the
general public and educational under the project name.
“World Diabetes Day” to raise awareness of the health
care and how to prevent diabetes.
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* Toeducated of breast cancer for checked breast
abnormalities with a digital mammogram.

* Organized “ Vichaivej Aerobic Club” to promote
exercise for community of Om Noi, Om Yai, Sampran
have good health.

* Organized a training program about health in a
schools and workplaces , from 2006 to the present.

» Organize a workplace safety of week activities in
the workplace. To organized an exhibition, consultation
on health problems.

» To promote dental health in children by oral health
examination and fluoride coating

» Toorganized check-ups for the elderly at various
elderly clubs associations

* Facebook live under topics regarding good
health, disease prevention, and how to take care of
yourself such as heart disease topic, diabetes preven-
tion, dental care, activities for mothers, World Hepatitis
Day, etc.

* “Finest Pregnancy” activity by obstetricians to
support new mothers to overcome 9 months as Happy
Mom with free of charge.

+ Knowledge sharing session with free of charge
under topics of new laws about medical expense
reimbursement from the compensation fund, medical
consultants, compensation fund, Social Security Office,
Department of Labour Protection and Welfare.

* Happiness Sharing campaign that donates
goods to impoverished persons and underprivileged
persons such as a happiness cabinet of Phornpipat
community that donates educational and sports equip-
ment for Wat Nhong Yaplong School, Darn Makham Tier
district, Kanchanaburi province.

* Health Charity campaign by Vichaivej Heart
Centertoinstillawareness, share and promote healthcare
to all Thai people who can be saviors in all normal and
crisis situations.

* We Change, the World Changes campaign to
create awareness and support behavior changes for
environment and sustainable development as well as
educating about impacts from global warming.
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Setting the treatment fee

For cash customer group, the hospital group operates
with a pricing policy that takes into account the business
operating costs and pricing that is market competitive,
such as physician fee, medicine and medical supplies
fees, medical equipment fee. For room charges, price
would be set by referring to market prices of nearby
hospitals, inclusive of items and facilities inside the
room. Overriding everything, fees must be set based
on pricing fairness principle and with consumers being
the focal concern. Each hospital within the group would
take into account the income level of target customer
group before setting price standard to be consistent
and suitable. The group has studied the possibility of
adjusting its medical fees to be equivalent with other
hospitals at the same level as today Vichaivej Interna-
tional Hospital Group has made leaping progress and
is fully equipped with tools and equipment while its fees
were still low compared to other hospitals.

OnDecember 19,2019 Vichaivej International Hospital
Group certificated “Moral Hospital” from the Deputy
Prime Minister and the Minister of Commerce which to
guarantee that Vichaivej International Hospital Omnoi,
Vichaivej International Hospital Nong Khaem, Vichaivej
International Hospital Samut Sakhon and Vichaive;j
Hospital Yaek Faichai is a hospital with morality and
good governance hospital which certificated confirming
the price policy of the hospital and the most fairness
to consumers.

Status of Industry and Competition
1. Status of Industry health care

service

Fluctuations in economic conditions in Thailand are
caused by different factors, both from changes in val-
ues, thoughts, behaviors, specifically the growth of tech-
nology, communication systems, including the impact of
politics. Cause of hospital business industry in Thailand
has been fluctuating continuously and one of the rea-
sons came from the government’s decision to expand
the health care coverage of The Social Security Scheme,
Universal health Coverage, Migrant Health Coverage,
and Civil Servant Medical Benefit Scheme. At the
same time, the private health care providers have been
adjusting their strategies in line with the competition,
and in order to comply with changes in behavioral
health services.
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For keep pace with such changes Vichaivej
international Hospital Group has created a combination
of its unique selling points in order to develop a clear
and positive image for the hospital, and emphasizing
on the specialization of the hospital in the treatment of
certain ailments is an important part of the strategy.
Forming part of this is the creation of a network of
business partners in the form of hospital chain that
can be effective in terms of hospital operation and
management, cost and human resources; the expan-
sion of customer data base and the standardization of
services; the modernization of medical equipment and
advance technologies.;the development of staff and
public relation activities to promote the hospital, such
as “The mobile medical unit providing community cares
on various occasions”, “The project Jit-ar-sa-mo-tor-zai-
kuu-chiph” (The motorcycle taxi driver was a volunteer
rescue), “Obesity in Children”, and school tours to explain
about health care etc.

2. Competitions

Hospital and health-related service business is
considered to be one of the businesses that remains
in the people’s interest as today consumers turn more
attention to taking care of their health and having proper
hygiene. For that reason, this has led competition to
be more intense, from both the competition amongst
private hospitals and the competition against state
hospitals that have adjusted their operations to gear
toward consumer market more. At the same time,
consumers are more educated and start to compare
quality and price. This implies that service prices
are regulated by the factors of business competition
situation, replacement products, buyer’s power, and
partner’s negotiation power. Inthe past, Vichaivej Inter-
national Hospital Group has created strong competition
power in that it has managed its purchasing operation
together as a group and with other hospital partners in
order to establish negotiation power against business
counterparties, such as medicine and medical supplies
suppliers, in order to minimize product costs.

The hospital business competition that Vichaivej
International Hospital Group has to face is not just from
hospitals in southern part of Bangkok, Samutsakhon
Province, and Nakhon Pathom Province only, however,
private hospitals in nearby provinces, alternative
medicine treatment as well as drug stores and clinics
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all try to compete in the business in order to take away
the market share from Vichaivej International Hospital
Group. The reason for such strong competition is
due to the locations of the three hospitals which lie in
industrial areas with not less than 5,400 factories and
densely-populated community zones. However, Private
hospital nearby in 10-20 kilometers as the following

- Kasemrad Hospital Bangkae
- Bangkok Hospital Sanamchan
- Thonburi 2 Hospital

- Mahachai 2 Hospital

Vichaivej International

Omnoi Hospital

- Phyathai 3 Hospital

- Petkasem Hospital

- Bangphai Hospital

- Thonburi 2 Hospital

- Bangpakok 9 International
Hospital

- Nakornthon Hospital

Vichaivej International

Nongkheam Hospital

- Mahachai 1 Hospital

- Mahachai 3 Hospital

- Ekachai Hospital

- Vibharam Samutsakhon

Vichaivej International Hospital
SEM LGN i - Bangpakok 9 International
Hospital
- PMG Hospital

- Nakornthon Hospital
- Bangpakok 8 Hospital

- Phyathai 3 Hospital

- Thonburi Hospital

- Bangphai Hospital

- Yanhee Hospital

- Chaophya Hospital

- Siriraj Hospital

- Samitivej Thonburi Hospital

- Thonburi 2 Hospital

- Mitrpracha Hospital

- Kasemrad International
Hospital

Vichaivej Yeakfaichai

Hospital

However, in 2023 January, a new private hospital
was opened,Causing more competition, such as
Synphaet Hospital, Nakhon Pathom, located on
Petchkasem Road
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3. Providing products and services

Providing medical staff: Doctors, nurses and staff
are a valuable asset in the business. Recruiting doctors
also means building a good relationship with them via
the development of the medical staff through training and
scholarship programs. The Hospital provides on-the-job
training for nursing students from Thai universities.

Providing medicines and medical supplies: The
raw materials and cost of hospital pharmaceutical and
Therapeutics Committee. This includes doctors, nurses,
pharmacists, and the purchasing department. The
Purchasing Department in order to compare quality,
price, quantity, and reliability of each distributor
before ordering. The hospital purchases medicines and
medical supplies through local drug dealers. Currently,
the hospital group has purchased some types of drugs
and medical supplies together with partner hospitals
by the purchasing department of the hospital group;
the company has an efficient inventory management.
Using a computer system in inventory management. In
addition, the company stores each type of inventory in
a suitable place in terms of temperature, sunlight and
humidity in order to maintain the shelf life and quality
of the drugs to ensure safety for patients. Including
various color labels To make it convenient to consider
the expiration date

Providing medical equipment: Medical device
directors will consider the appropriateness of the tool
to compare quality, price, service, delivery, after sales
service and reliability of each distributor before ordering.
To maintenance of particular property medical
equipment according to the period to provide various
tools, that the hospital group is ready for treatment
by providing medical equipment that is modern and
efficient. At present, the diagnostic radiology
department has plans to add service potential by
procurement and service of MRI 1.5 T (Tesla) and in the
year 2020, the hospital group bought a computer X-ray
machine which increases the potential for radiological
diagnosis.



56-1 ONE REPORT s19v1uUsS:91U 2565

Srivichaivejvivat Public Company Limited 30 USBN AS3G8I0BIIU DR (UNIBU)

4. Asset of business operation

Asset of business operation in the company and its subsidiaries according to the net book value as of
December 31, 2022, details are as follows:

Net book
Ownership Value

Nature (Million ClalleRien

Baht)

Srivichai Vejvivat Public Company Limited

Land and building

1. Land (31-2-38 Rai) located on Petchkasem Road Owner 286.13 Loan guarantee obligation 340
Krathum Baen District Samut Sakhon Provinc ’ million baht (As of December
31, 2022, the remaining principal

amount is 72.93

2. 7 storey building of 4-storey buildings (2 buildings) and Owner 672.24 Guarantee limit of 15 million baht
improvements of 5 storey building (2 buildings) ' and overdraft limit account (OD) 20
million baht
3. Tools and medical egiupment Owner 94.29 None
4.0ff|9e equipment, decoration , installation and office Owner 41.08 None
supplies
5. Buﬂd!ngs, tools and equipment during construction or Owner 28.10 None
installation
6. Vehicle Owner 10.05 Net value of 0.38 million baht.
There are commitments under the
lease agreement.
Total Land, building and equipment - Net 1,131.89

Saivichai Development Company Limited (a subsiarie)

Land and building

1.Land Owner 290

2. 4 storey building (area 3,962 sgm) and 10.62 None
building improvements Owner '

3.Building improvements on land leasehold rights Owner 138.27 None
4. Tools and medical egiupment Owner 42.52 None
5. Office equipment, decoration , installation Owner 13.18 None
6. Vehicle Owner 0.61 None
7. Bwld!ngs, tools and equipment during construction or Owner 053

installation

Total Land, Building and equipment - Net 495.73

Srisakorn Vejavivat Company Limited (a subsiarie)

Land and building

1. Land (area 5-2-75 rai) located on Setthakit Road, Owner 26,54
Mueang District, Samut Sakhon Province. ' anrantee for credit '”.”e of 142'59
million baht, guarantee line for 15 mil-
lion baht and overdraft line (OD) of 20
million baht, and guarantee credit line
2. 7 storey hospital building and additional parts of Saivichai Development Co., Ltd.
(Area 11.182.10 ) Owner 28.44 110 million baht, guaranteed line
rea 1, -1Usg.m. of 2 million baht and overdraft line
(OD) 28 million baht.



56-1 ONE REPORT s1gvuUs:91U 2565

Srivichaivejvivat Public Company Limited 31 USBN ASIGEIEIIAL 9INA (UABU)

Net book
Ownership Value .
Nature (Million Seleaie
Baht)
: 3. Occupational Medicine Building 5 floors and additional parts Owner 11795 :
' (area 2,780 sq.m.) '
4. Building improvements on leasehold rights Owner 0.56 None
5. Tools and medical egiupment Owner 50.76 None
6. OffI.CG equipment, decoration , installation and office Owner 2232 None
' supplies ;
! 7.Vehicle 14.38 None :
8. Assets during installation and construction 6.10
Total Land, Building and equipment - Net 317.05

Bangkok Orthopedic Hospital Company Limited (a subsidiary)

Land and building

Guarantee obligation for credit line 88
1. Land (area 56 square wa) located on Charansanitwong Owner 6.30 million baht
Road, Bangkok Noi Bangkok ' (As of December 31, 22, the principal

amount is 5.06 million baht))

2.Land (area 14 square wa) located on Charansanitwong

Road Bangkok Noi Bangkok Owner 2.10 None

Guarantee obligation for credit line

3. Building 1, 3 booths (5 floors), no. 240/5 , 240/6 and 240/7 96.30 million bant

(area 144 sq.m.) Owner 3.56 (As .of December 3j, 22, the
principal amount is 32.82
million baht)
4. Building 3, 1 booth (5 floors), no. 240/100 (area 48 sg.m.) Owner 0.35 None
5. Building improvements Owner 2.21 None :
6. Building improvements on leasehold rights Owner 4.38 None
7. Tools and medical egiupment Owner 13.04 None
SL.J(F))ZiI(i:eesequipment, decoration , installation and office Owner 2 49 None
9. Building, Tool and equipment during the installation Owner 2.91 None :
10.Vehicle Owner 0.36 None
Total Property, plant and equipment - Net 37.70
Srivichai Vocational School Company Limited (subsidiary)
Office equipment, decoration installation and office supplies Owner 0.04 None
Total Land, Building and equipment - Net 0.04
Property appraisal Bangkok Orthopedic Hospital Co., Ltd. (Add) 1.89

Commercial building leased by Bangkok Orthopedic Hospital 17.00
Company Limited Co., Ltd. ’

Total — The Company and its subsidiaries 2,001.30

5. Work not yet delivered

In 2022, the company have not work delivered yet.
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1.3 Shareholding Structure of the Company

The Company has investments in its subsidiaries, namely Saivichai Development Company Limited (total value
under the cost method 159.53 million baht), Srisakorn Vejavivat Company Limited (total value using the cost method
108.51 million baht), Srivichai Vocational School Company Limited (valued at total by cost method 0.10 million
baht) and Bangkok Orthopedic Hospital Company Limited (total value under the cost method 78.00 million baht),
in which the Company has recorded the value of long-term investments in subsidiaries under the total cost method
of 346.14 million baht, with the proportion of investments in subsidiaries to the Company'’s total assets since 2020
-2022, respectively, as follows: 2020 at 26.02%, in 2021 at 17.48% and in 2022 at 16.73%.

The Company has a long-term investment policy in it subsidiaries that operate business related to hospital business
at least 50 percent of the investment will be considered in order to have the power to supervise the administration
and set the policy by sending the directors to be representatives in the subsidiary in the number of more than half
of the total number of committees and if the subsidiary has a business that has a significant impact on the company
Subsidiaries must first seek approval from the Board of Directors’ meeting. The composition of investment decisions
depends on the potential for business growth, the right timing, the readiness of the company and favorable economic
conditions. The investment in subsidiaries must be considered by the Board of Directors for approval before taking
any further steps.

In addition, the Company may consider investing in associated companies that are linked to the Company’s
core business and has the potential to generate profits and growth opportunities. To increase the profitability of
the company or it may be a business that benefits (Synergy) or can create added value (Value Added) for the
Company which helps to support the Company’s core business to be more comprehensive. By investing in an
associated company, the company has a desire to send a representative to join as a director of that company which the
Company will consider as appropriate and comply with the agreement between the Companies. The representative
of the Company may be a director senior management or any person with suitable qualifications and experience
in such business.

1.3.1 Shareholding Structure and the Company Group Structure
Shareholding Structure of the Company as at 31 December 2022

99.43% (... . )
Saivichai Development Company Limited
The proportion of shares
99.56% _ . .
o ] o ) Srisakorn Vejavivat Company Limited
Srivichai Vejvivat Public
mpany Limi
Co pany ted 100.00% Bangkok Orthopedic Hospital
Company Limited

O,
\ 99.98% Srivichai Vocational School
Company Limited

\/ \_/ '/ \L
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The details of the registered capital of Srivichai Vejvivat Public Company
Limited and subsidiaries companies as at 31 December 2022

Registered | Paid-up Cap- Number of | Holding shares

Compan
et Capital ital shares

570,666,666 570,665,433 196 570,666,666 - -

Srivichai Vejvivat Public Company Limited:Vichaivej
International Hospital Omnoi

Subsidiaries

Saivichai Development Company Limited

1 1 118 30,000,000 29,829,500 99.43
:Vichaivej International Hospital Nongkhaem 50,000,000 50:000.000 T T

Srisakorn Vejvivat Company Limited

2 2 120 19,840,000 19,752,654 99.56
:Vichaivej International Hospital Samutsakhon 99,200,000 99,200,000
Bangkok Orthopedic Hospital Company Limited
N o . 9,000,000 9,000,000 a9 90,000 89,998 99.99
: Vichaivej Yaekfaichai Hospital
Srivichai Vocational School Company Limited
100,000 100,000 - 20,000 19,996 99.98

: Srivichai Vocational School

Company holding more than 10%

Saivichai Development Company Limited (Subsidiary)

Number of Beds 118 beds
Registration Number 0105530047130

Par Value 5.00 Baht
The proportion of shares held by VIH 99.43%

Type of Business Private Hospital operating under the name “Vichaivej International Nongkhaem Hospital”
Location 456-456/8 Phetkasem Road, NongkhangPlue Subdistrict,Nongkhaem District, Bangkok 10160
Telephone Number  (+662) 441-6999

Facsimile (+662) 421-1784 Registered Capital 150,000,000 Baht

Website www.vichaivej.com . Paid-up Capital 150,000,000 Baht

E-mail nongkhaem@vichaivej.com Common Stock 30,000,000 shares

Srisakorn Vejavivat Company Limited (Subsidiary)

Type of Business Private Hospital operating under the name “Vichaive] International Samutsakhon Hospital”

Location 93/256 Mahachai Intersection, Sethakit 1 Road, Tasai Subdistrict, Muang Samutsakorn
District, Samutsakhon Province 74000

Telephone Number  (+6634) 410-700-6

Facsimile (+6634) 410-710 Registered Capital 99,200,000 Baht
Website www.vichaivej.com Paid-up Capital 99,200,000 Baht
E-mail samutsakhon@vichaivej.com Common Stock 19,840,000 shares
Number of Beds 120 beds Par Value 5.00 Baht

Registration Number 0105537019778 The proportion of shares held by VIH 99.56%
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Bangkok Orthopedic Hospital Company Limited (Subsidiary)

Type of Business Private Hospital operating under the name “Vichaivej Yaekfaichai Hospital”

Location 240/2-4 Charunsanitwong Road, Banchanghlor, Bangkoknoi, Bangkok 10700
Telephone Number  (+662) 412 0055-60

Facsimile (+662) 412 7581-2 E Registered Capital 9,000,000 Baht

Website www.vichaivej.com Paid-up Capital 9,000,000 Baht

E-mail yaekfaichai@vichaivej.com Common Stock 90,000 shares

Number of Beds 49 beds Par Value 100 Baht

Registration Number 0105525008687 ! The proportion of shares held by VIH 99.99%

Srivichai Vocational School Company Limite (Subsidiary)

Type of Business Occupational School operating to produce child and senior caretaker personnel
Location 74/5 Moo 4, Phetkasem Road, Omnoi Subdistrict, Krathumbaen District, Samutsakhon 74130
Telephone Number  (+662) 441-7899 Ext. 1703 i Registered Capital 100,000 Baht

Facsimile (+662) 431-1404 Paid-up Capital 100,000 Baht

Website www.srivichai.ac.th Common Stock 20,000 shares

E-mail teacher@srivichai.ac.th Par Value 5.00 Baht

Registration Number 0745553005535 The proportion of shares held by VIH 99.98%

13.2 The Company does not have any person or group of persons who may have
conflicts, holding more than 10% of the shares with voting rights of the Company.

1.3.3 The main business of the Company does not have a significant
relationshipor involvement in other business operations of its major
shareholders.



56-1 ONE REPORT s1gvuUs:91U 2565

Srivichaivejvivat Public Company Limited 35 USBN ASIGEIEIIAL 9INA (UABU)

1.3.4 Shareholders

(1) List of major Shareholder
A The group 10 major shareholders
The first 10 major shareholders as at December 30, 2022 are as follows:

As of 30 Dec 2022 As of 30 Dec 2021
No.of % of Paid No.of % of Paid

\ ) +/(-) %
Shares up Capita Shares up Capita

1. BBTV Equity Company Limited 114,240,000 20.02 114,240,000 20.02

2. Bavornrat Vanadurongwan, M.D. 90,000,000 16.77 85,296,107 14.95 4,703,893 5.51
3. Pat Rojmahamongkol, M.D. 78,556,000 13.77 78,556,000 13.77 - -
4.Rungsima Wanitphakdeedecha,M.D. 78,555,999 13.77 78,555,999 13.77 - -
5. Patcharapan Vanadurongwan, Ms 28,000,000 491 28,000,000 4.91 = -
6. Sitthiwat Kamkangwong, Dr. 7,246,400 1.27 4,150,000 0.73 3,096,400 -
7. Tanphong Tansalarak,Mr 6,000,000 1.05 - - - -
8. Asso.Prof.Vichai Vanadurongwan, 4,792,320 0.84 4,792,320 0.84 - -
9. Ploenchit  Wanawanichkul 4,490,000 0.79 5,290,000 0.93  (800,000)  15.12
10. Woranan Panchavoranyan 4,000,000 0.70 4,000,000 0.70 - -

Remark: Refer to the Thailand Securities Depository Company Limited (TSD)
B The major shareholders of the Company do not have any behavior that significantly influences the policy, man-
agement or operation of the Company.

(2) The company does not operate a holding company business.

(3) The company has no agreement between the major shareholders.

14 Amount of registered capital and paid-up capita

1.4.1 The company is listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand with registered capital. 570,666,666 baht, already
paid 570,665,433 baht, divided into ordinary shares 570,665,433 shares at par value of 1 baht per share.

Shareholding structure classified by shareholding party categories As of December

Shareholder Category Number No. of shares %

Legal entity

Thai nationality 9 118,673,035 20.80
Foreign nationality 20 6,790,200 1.19
Total legal entity 29 125,463,235 21.99
Ordinary person

Thai nationality 5,438 445,133,932 78.00
Foreign nationality 1 68,266 0.01
Total Ordinary person 5,439 445,202,198 78.01

Total 5,468 570,665,433 100.00
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Shareholding structure classified by shareholding ratio As of December 30, 2022

sarehoder Catesor

Legal entity

Holding shares over 0.5% 3 121,338,816 21.26
Holding shares not over 0.5% but not less than 1 board lot 26 4,124,419 0.72
Holding shares less than 1 board lot 0 0 0.00
Total legal entity 29 125,463,235 21.98

Ordinary person

Holding shares over 0.5% 13 316,640,356 55.49
Holding shares not over 0.5% but not less than 1 board lot 4,833 128,545,686 22.53
Holding shares less than 1 board lot 593 16,156 0.00
Total ordinary person 5,439 445,202,198 78.02

Total 5,468 570,665,433 100.00

Remark: Refer to the Thailand Securities Depository Company Limited (TSD)

The company not have any Shareholders’ Agreement between major shareholders with possible impact on the
issuance and offering of securities or on the management of the company, co-signed by the company.

14.2 The Company has no shares other than ordinary shares.
14.3 The Company does not have convertible shares or securities.

1.5 Issuance of other securities

In 2022, the company has no other securities issuance.
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1.6 Dividend Policy

The Company’s policy is to pay dividend to shareholders at a rate not less than 50 per cent of net profit after
tax and net of all reserves required by law based on the separated financial statements. However, the payment of
dividend will depend on the cash flow, investment plan, contract terms and conditions that the Company is bound,
including legal restrictions, necessity and other matters appropriate in the future. The resolution of the Board of
Directors’ approval for dividend payment will have to be proposed for approval by the general meeting of shareholders,
unless it is an interim dividend payment whereby the Board of Directors has authority to approve the payment.
However, such interim dividend payment has to be reported to the shareholders’ following meeting.

Dividend Payout Information

Dividend payments details

1. Net profits Million Baht 561.68 137.06 158.48
2. Net Profit as legal reserve Million Baht 555.59 130.20 150.55
3. Number of shares Million shares 570.67 570.67 570.67
4. Dividend payment Baht per share 0.50 0.125 0.14
5. Total dividend payments Million Baht 285.33 71.33 79.89
6. Payout ratio** percent 51.36 54.79 53.06

** Payout ratio refers to net profit after income tax and various reserves all types as required by law.

Remark : 1. Use the net profit of the separate financial statements to calculate.
2. The Board of Directors resolved to set dividend payment rate at Baht 0.50 per share, for further proposal
to the shareholders’ general meeting year 2022 for approval, on April 22, 2022.
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/ Risk Management

2.1 Risk Management Policy

The Company manages the business risk through supervision of the Risk Management Committee that is responsible
for formulating risk management policy and risk management guideline, monitoring, assessing and improving operation
plan in order to reduce risk caused by both internal and external factors. The Committee needs to ensure efficient
risk management and control risk at an acceptable level in accordance to the Company policy, which recognizes
the importance of risk management to cope with any situations and changing trends, both inside and outside the
organization that change rapidly.

2.2. Business Risk Factors
2.2.1 Strategic Risk
Have risk management to expand the business and manage income to meet the target
1) Risk from increased hospital industry competition
The private hospital business is highly competitive and is likely to be even more competitive in the future. Apart
from competition with hospitals at the same level, the Company must also compete with low level private hospitals,
as well as public hospitals that have also expanded their medical services such as opening after-hours clinics. In
that case, the Company has augmented and expanded the service area by investing additionally in Vichaive] Heart
Center, mobile medical unit service, Occupational Medicine Center, Sports Medicine Center, in order to respond to
community and customers residential surroundings.
2) Risk from the coronavirus 2019 disease outbreak
Such risks affect the service system both in terms of location, personnel, medical equipment and service
recipients Non-urgent medical services are discontinued, telemedicine systems are used for consultation and drug
delivery. Organize a service area for respiratory diseases (ARI Clinic). Infectious waste is managed according to
the standards and strictly adheres to the measures of the Ministry of Public Health. There has been an increase in
proactive services in vaccination against various diseases for personnel and service recipients. including cooperating
with the government in the search for COVID-19 cases in communities and various enterprises at the national level.
3) Due to the COVID-19 situation, Vichaivej Hospital Group can be known and accepted by both the government
and the public, which can be a channel to increase revenue to meet the goals.

2.2.2 Financial Risk

To have confidence in the investment, cash flow and income - expenditure according to the target

Risk of reliance on distributors of medicine and medical supplies

One of the important factors in providing medical services is the sufficient procurement of quality medicine and
medical supplies. Due to COVID-19, medicine management and distribution has been impacted especially medicine
for chronic diseases such as diabetes and hypertension that patients regularly require. Since there is an issue of
manufacturing and import of medicines due to COVID-19, the Company makes orders of medicines for 3 months in
advance as to update distributors of medicine and medical supplies about the demand.

2.2.3 Operation Risk

Has set up operational procedures, such as analyzing the work processes of hospital groups to find problems /
risks / gathering information. Analyze the occurrence and impact of risks and find ways to prevent significant risks
according to standard of hospital operation such as Hospital Accreditation (HA) or International Organization for
Standardization (I1SO)
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1) Risk of medical device

A working group of medical devices was established,
Vichaivej Hospital Group, together with the medical de-
vice system program was used for management. The
potential of group leaders in each hospital is developed
to achieve efficient work, to reduce maintenance costs
repair and calibration of medical equipment including
monitoring of operating results every quarter.

2.2.4 IT Risk

Vichaivej International Hospital Group Establish an
IT Infrastructure Plan, Used Virtualization Technology
to save management costs, Maintenance cost and
increase the efficiency of data processing. Information
security systems have added protection equipment,
attacks from external networks (Firewall) and provide
a standard data backup system so that the information
system is safe and able to serve patients continuously.

In copyright infringement, Vichaivej International
Hospital Group have a policy the use of legitimate
programs only. In addition, the hospital continuously
develop the HIS system, which is an important factor
in business operations to keep up with the changes.

2.2.5 Legal risk

1) Risk of lawsuits

As the hospital business provides medical care ser-
vices, which relates to the life and health of the patrons,
the Company and network hospitals are faced with
the risk of being sued by persons receiving medical
services. This may affect the Company’s reputation
and patrons’ confidence in the Company and network
hospitals. Furthermore, the Act on Court Proceedings for
Consumer Cases B.E. 2551 (2008) has laid out a system
in considering cases that enable patients to fight for their
rights. Patients who have been wronged will receive
speedy remedy as the Act provides patients the right to
go to court. Businesses are therefore more likely to be
sued by patrons or have to pay damages for medical
services provided. It was then required of physicians to
take out insurance in order to protect in case of lawsuits
or damage claims in part of workers who through their role
have to set a plan for analyzing the work process of their
unit in order to look out for any risks and prepare proper
work system to prevent such risks from arising.
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2) Risk from future changes in standards or regula-
tions governing the Company

Risk from future changes in standards or regulations
governing the Company. The enforcement of laws or
new regulations, as well as the deliberation of the draft
Patient Protection Act, which protects persons who have
been wronged or received damages from health care
services with the goal to compensate the patients in a
timely manner without having to prove wrongdoing, may
affect health care providers including the Company.
There is also consideration of setting up a patient pro-
tection fund to pay for damages to patients, whereby
the health care institutions have to make contribution to
such fund according to the criteria and rate specified
by the Patient Protection Commission. Therefore, the
Company may not be able to guarantee that future
changes to laws and regulations or issuance of new
regulations or new policies related to the Company’s
business will not affect the Company’s operations and
business opportunities.

3) Risk of infringement of data privacy rights

The hospital is committed to protecting personal
information and patient privacy including data privacy
and cyber security. All customer information is confi-
dential and will not be disclosed unless required by
law or obtaining the consent of the service recipient.
The hospital has established procedures to protect the
information of users and define cybersecurity protection
procedures including user account management pro-
cedures with training provide knowledge on rules and
practices for managing privacy and cybersecurity. Let
all personnel be informed and prevent damage that will
occur to the company to collect Use and Disclosure of
Personal Information.

In 2022, there were no problems with violations of
the hospital’s marketing communications requirements.
No complaints from the supervisory authority including
no cases of violations of customer privacy data, data
loss, any data theft.
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Driving business for sustainability

3.1 Policy and Sustainability
Management Goals

The Company realize about the role mission
and responsible governance under business policy
alongside with the responsible personnel community
and social as well as those related parties including
environmental impact formed by the process of service
healthcare safety of patients and hygiene of staff at all
levels. Therefore, it has been set the policy of Corporate
Social Responsibility responsible governance as well as
ethics in business and can take the practice seriously
and continuously. Which is considered the core mission
of the organization.

Moreover, The Company also focused on responsi-
bility and good retaliation back to society. As one of the
organizations that provide quality health services to the
public according to international standards alongside
with the implementation of a sustainable business.

* Sustainable Development Operations
Economic

1. In 2022, the company set goals to provide the
utmost services in all aspects and expand channels
sharing knowledge about healthcare for clients and the
public via online platforms quickly.

2. Creating a feeling of attachment to the Vichaivej
International hospital group with activities with the com-
munity in taking care of health and promoting wellbeing
in the community.

3. Promote and develop human resources regard-
ing specific skills as to enhance treatment efficiency,
operations and services effectively as well as integrity.

4. Promote happiness at work to employees that
benefits performance and good living which will mo-
tivate employees to work fully and efficiently; SOOK
Body, SOOK Heart - the key for sustainable good health
campaign was arranged.

The objective is to build well-being and work-life bal-
ance as for employees to have better quality of life and
happiness with good physical and mental health. This
will enhance work efficiency together with well-being,
recreation and the following activities for perfect work-
life balance.

- Recommendations about exercise techniques or
clips for physical health care at workplace or home.

- Recommendations about healthy restaurants with
“Be Healthy Together” activity as for all employees to
have healthy food at affordable price.

- Mental health support activity in form of making
merit and listening to sermon to have clear mind and see
things indeed through strong spirit as well as adopting
dharma for everyday life and solution.

- Health information sharing via LINE or the hospital’s
communication channel on a regular basis.

- Voluntary activities to encourage employees to be
a giver for social and environment.

- Activities that build opportunity and revenue for
employees such as a market that employees can sell
products of their families, or healthy products for col-
leagues’ health.

- Shopping for Friends project at Vichaivej Hospital
International Samutsakhon

- Healthy market project at Vichaivej Hospital Inter-
national Omnoi

- Friends for Friends activity at Vichaivej Hospital
International Samutsakhon with objectives to change
employee’s behavior as to reduce risk of chronic
diseases.

Vichaivej International Hospital Group has arranged
several projects to create happiness at workplace for
employees and provide excellent services for patients,
partners and all clients.
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Society and Environment

1. Building awareness of the Company’s personnel
To have responsibility social and environmental by
building volunteerism culture to do social activities and
natural resources and environmental conservation on a
regular basis.

2. Support foundations and charities to help those
who lack opportunities.

3. Organize a project to educate people on health
in the community and enhance capabilities of people
in communities, organizations and underprivileged
people.

4. Caring for the environment around the community
as well as supervising the management and disposal of
waste processes General use Separation of waste and
other contaminants along with continuous monitoring.
So as not to affect the environment.

5. Do not support any activities that are harmful to
society or good morals and / or to promote vices.

 Practicality for Sustainable Development

1.The operation with impartiality

1.1 The promoting socially responsible on suppliers,
purchasing, provide and treat to customers. Having
regard to the faithful, obvious and mutual benefit with
partners seriously.

1.2 The Fair Competition such as no disinformation
or using any other method that does not comply with
the rules.

1.3 The rights and equitable treatment of all share-
holders. The protection of shareholders’ benefit and
rights which including the rights to receive dividend and
continuously acknowledge company’s information at
suitable time and continuously. The company also has
a duty to publish information in a transparent manner by
pass the Shareholders’ Meeting which focus to giving
priority to shareholders equally without any prejudice.

1.4 Recognizing the important group of stakeholders.
Whether the personnel within the organization or exter-
nal organization stakeholders such as Shareholders,
clients, creditors, suppliers, the community Government
agencies and other relevant organizations. These are
able to build long-term stability to the organization.
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2. Anti-corruption

2.1 Companies have always recognized that Stake-
holders themselves and the need to practice the rules
strictly .

2.2 Companies should not support the corruption
such as grafting, receiving gifts or any benefits which
are not appropriate. If examination and meet such ac-
tions will be punished according to the regulations of
the company.

3. Respect for human rights

3.1 The promotion to practice according to the regu-
lations of human rights under international standards to
cover all departments, whether employees, community
and social surroundings. By fixing the channel for com-
plaints, review process including suitable compensa-
tion.

3.2 The hospital have to practice according an-
nouncement of the rights of patients because the patient
as a person who must help both body and mind. So the
patients. So, the patient is importance individual need
to get protect rights for good relations and trust each
other between the hospital and a patients.

4. The practice to workers fairly

4.1 Respect for the right to work and not discrimina-
tion, do not be force for punish, no child labor, respects
for the rights and freedom for association bargaining
union law.

4.2 The Social Protection such as the protection of
working conditions for employees, wages and compen-
sation, date-time of work, vacations, penalties , welfare
, healthcare and various guarantee.

4.3 The protection about health and safety on work.
Promoting and maintaining high standards of well-be-
ing, both physically and mentally.

The company also sets guidelines for treating em-
ployees fair treatment including providing appropriate
welfare for employees. In the year 2022, the Company
has organized activities to promote health and human
resource development, such as an annual health
check-up for employees. Provide training that is useful
to employees in terms of management professional
skills and knowledge that is used in daily life Necessary
vaccinations to prevent disease for employees, such as
influenza vaccines and accident insurance for employ-
ees as well.
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5. Responsibility to consumer

5.1 The patients should be receive the rights basic
care. Whether healthcare and product pricing sensi-
bly and not misleading Information about goods and
services including the product label must specify the
method used, warning correctly.

5.2 Manufacturing safe products and do not affect
the health of consumers.

5.3 The hospital is committed to protect personal
data and privacy of patients in all aspects as well as
cybersecurity. Data of all clients is confidential and will
not be disclosed, unless the laws require or the hospital
directly receives consent from clients. Moreover, the
hospital has specified procedures of data protection,
cybersecurity as well as user account management
by preparing training courses about regulations and
guidelines of privacy and cybersecurity management
for all employees and prevention of damages that might
occurto the hospital in collecting, using and disclosing
personal data.

In 2022, there was no violation against the marketing
communication rules of the hospital, no complaints from
the regulator as well as no breach of clients’ data, data
loss or data theft.

5.4 Effective customer relationship management
before and after receiving services by welcoming
comments, analyzing opinions and needs of clients,
reviewing and improving complaint management and
conducting satisfaction survey regularly as to ensure that
clients are better satisfied with services. Customer rela-
tionship management guidelines have been prescribed
and compliance with the guidelines have been monitored
together with assistance and after-sales service.

Moreover, solutions have been prepared in case
of issues or dissatisfaction with services as well as
compensation for damages occurred from services or
treatments.

In late 2022, Vichaivej Hospital International Omnoi
established Service Excellence Policy as to maximize
service satisfaction of clients.

5.5 Responding all needs of clients such as health
information, treatment and services information that
benefit decision in buying products and services as well
as integrating digital communication channel to meet
consumers’ needs sustainably, for example;

+ Vichaivej International Hospital Group regularly
has Facebook live and TikTok love for each hospital
under the group such as Vichaivej Hospital International
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Omnoi, Vichaivej Hospital International Nongkhaem and
Vichaivej Hospital International Yaek Faichai to share
information about disease, treatments, technology and
services by specialists.

* Vichaivej Hospital International Omnoi and Vi-
chaivej Hospital International Nongkhaem have created
YouTube clips to educate consumers about diseases,
treatment technology and healthcare regularly.

* Line@ was created for consumers to have health
information and contact the hospital promptly from
anywhere.

* Vichaivej International Hospital Group has
opened online shops in many platforms such as LINE
my Shop, Shopee, Lazada, HD Mall, etc. in order for
clients to access to health check programs efficiently.

* Moreover, the Group established health promo-
tion team to train and share about health knowledge at
schools, organizations and units regularly.

6. Environmental protection

6.1 Planning, management control and prevent
pollution in hospitals and communities ; environmental
committee or working team was set up to prescribe
operational guidelines with the 2 key projects as follows.

» Green Office project as for everyone to be aware
of environmental protection, energy conservation and
environmental-friendly equipment and tools at work-
place.

» Green and Clean Hospitel as to promote and con-
duct activities to reduce global warming and emission
in form of waste management and waste utilization, en-
ergy saving, environmental management, chemical-free
foods and local vegetables.

6.2 Setclear goals and indicators regarding utilization
of resources, energy, waste and greenhouse gases.

6.3 Train employees and evaluate understanding
about energy saving and effective resources utilization
on a regular basis by setting clear annual training plan,
for example;

» Infectious waste training in 2022

+ Green Office training in 2022

» Basic firefighting training

+ Hospital’s waste water management training for
the controllers

» Fuel-saving driving tips
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* Prevention and control of infection or danger from
infectious waste

» Electricity maintenance principles, etc.

6.4 Promote and encourage employees and clients
to be aware of participation in natural resources and
environmental conservation, and proper consumption
of resources.

» Set clear and concrete environmental policy.

« Instill awareness of proper and effective con-
sumption of resources such as water, electricity, fuel
and paper, etc. for maximum benefits.

» Promote, prevent and control pollution as well as
effective waste management.

* Reduce pollution by using a golf cart to transfer
employees and clients between buildings.

« Manage hygiene and tidiness (5S).

* Put campaign placards in different area and
promote via the hospital’s communication channel such
as LINE group of employees regarding several topics,
for example;

- Environmental policy for acknowledgement and
compliance

- Energy-saving placards

- Fuel-saving measures placards

- Electricity-saving placards

- Pollution control and waste management plac-
ards, etc.

* Arrange activities and provide resources to de-
velop sustainable environment operations, for example;

- “Take Care of the World with Sa-ard” activity
to build employees’ awareness to recycle remaining
natural resources such as vegetable scraps and plastic
bottles to build green space and simply plant vege-
tables to reduce food waste and plastic waste in the
hospital.

- Promote fabric bags to get medicine, instead
of plastic bags.

6.5 Develop products and services to benefit society
and environment, and select suppliers based on appro-
priateness in terms of quality, price, product or service
delivery and mitigation of impacts on environment.

+ Check environmental-friendly products from
labels such as green label, green basket label, carbon
footprint label, foreign eco label with registration no. on
OTOP products.
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» Create environmental-friendly products lists doc-
ument to facilitate next purchase which product name,
brand, eco label type, expiry date must be specified;
in case of foreign eco label, agencies/ countries that
certify labels must be specified.

* Recruitemployees or hire organizations certified
by national or international environmental management
standards which have prevention measures against
pollution during work, and against danger from con-
struction or work as well as using environmental-friendly
products; moreover, employees must be trained about
effective consumption of resources, energy and envi-
ronmental management.

7. Participation in development the social and com-
munity

7.1 Participation in community by provide the activ-
ities to improve quality of life and health and provide
an opportunity for the stakeholders to participate in an
exchange of ideas with each other.

7.2 Promote and support participation in education
between the hospital and community.

7.3 Healthcare and promoting health. Including
support for disease prevention in community.

7.4 Establishing mutual cooperation between
community and hospital.Details of activities appear
in activities for the benefit of society Community and
environment

8. The Innovation and the dissemination of innovation

The promoting to positive activities to create effec-
tively and efficiently and developed of knowledge and
new ideas by focusing on the exploitation of the new
initiatives with social responsibility. Innovation must be
targeted to benefit the company or to bring benefits to
the wider society and has a positive impact to stake-
holders.

9. Customer Satisfaction Survey

The Group surveys satisfaction of customers includ-
ing outpatients and inpatients on a monthly basis as to
enhance services.

In 2022, the Company had no disputes or complaints
about social, environmental, corporate governance and
no human rights violations.
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3.2 Management of impacts on stakeholders in the value chain

3.2.1 Value chain

All stakeholders are significant for the company’s operations and have key roles for the company to achieve
sustainable growth. The company has analyzed and assessed business impacts and value chain to indicate stake-
holders and evaluate expectation of both internal and external stakeholders. The company has a discussion, survey
and recommendations to acknowledge the expectation and screen key issues to develop prevention and mitigation
of potential risks. Stakeholders are 1) employees, 2) shareholders/investors, 3) customers/consumers, 4) partners/
vendors, 5) community/society, 6) competitors, and 7) government agencies.

Stakeholders

1. Employees

ONoO L RN

. Performance evaluation

. Executives and employees training
. Employees’ quality of life development
. CQl development activities

Communication / Participation

New communication development

Employee’s health promotion
Communication through various channels
Employees’ complaints and recommen
dations management

Expectation

1. Proper incentive and welfare
payment

Work safety

Self-education and capabilit
development

. Comments and recommen
dations sharing

Career stability and
advancement

6. Good workplace environment

2.
3.

5.

1.

3.

a.

. Internal recruiting
. Provident fund

Response

Proper and fair incentive
payment

Fair performance evaluation
Respect for human rights and
equitable treatment
Employees’ skill development
and encouragement

2. Shareholders
/ investors

. Annual shareholders’” meeting

. Annual report (56-1 One Report)
. Quarterly performance report

. Information disclosure in the

company’s website

—_

. Good profit and return

. Continuous and sustainable

growth

Good corporate governance

. Fair treatment to share
holders

. Accurate, complete and
updated information

6. Good risk management,

audit and control

3.

4.

. Proper dividend payout
2.

. Transparent, fair and audit

Annual report (56-1 One Report)
in Thai and English version
Complete and prompt reports
to The Stock Exchange of
Thailand

Information disclosure via
www.vichaivej.com under
investor relations topic

able operations based on the
good corporate governance

3. Customers/
consumers

N U AW

. Communication through various channels
2. Meetings for issue and complaint

. Hospital visit

. Meeting rooms availability

. Customer satisfaction survey
. Activity participation

discussion

1. Details and accuracy of
sales promotion
. Quality and safety
. Healthcare
. Complete and correct
information of treatment
and service
. Customers’ personal data
maintenance
6. Compliance with contracts/
agreements
7. Good relationship
8. Understanding, assistance
and flexibility of coordination
9. Participation in organiza
tional activities

3.

4.

. Communication to customers

. Increase of sales promotion

. Personal data protection policy

and consumers about sales
promotion

channels

Responsibility for goods and
services

Development of products and
services based on qualified
and safety standard

which covers all customers
who share personal data
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Response

4. Partners/

1

. Communication through various

1. Compliance with trade terms

1. Payment on time

I

Conversation, discussion and community
visit

. Participation in activities with government
and private agencies to hold social
activities

. Survey and complaints

2. Business operations without
causing negative impacts to
community and society

3. Assistance and participation
in solving problems of
community and society

4. Transparency in business
operations

5. Participation in anti-corrution

vendors channels 2. Fair compliance with 2. Compliance with procurement
2. Accurate and clear information agreements policy
3. Meetings for solution 3. Good hospitality and 3. Ongoing good relationship
4. Joint problem-solving of partners relationship 4. Fair and equitable treatment
5. Activity participation 4. Participation in problem towards partners
-solving 5. Anti-corruption and compliance
5. Promotion and arrangement policy
of activities
5. Community/ | 1. Meetings for comments 1. Support for useful activities | 1. Support for public interest
society 2. Hospital visit for community activities

2. Establishment of units to sup
port and build relationship
with community

3. Budget allocation for assis
tance and problem-solving for
society

4. Development of employee
volunteers to contribute bene
fits to community and society

5. Life quality enhancement and
career building for community

6. Competitors

1

N

. Meetings per request
. Publication, letters, media

1. Fair treatment towards
competitors

2. Trade secrets under related
laws and regulations

1. Ethics for fair and transparent
operations

7. Government
agencies

1

. Meeting, discussion, clarification

1. Compliance with laws and
operation transparency
2. Participation in activities

1. Strict compliance with laws,
regulations, provisions, and
policies of the company and
government agencies

2. Participation and support for

government agencies’ projects

Furthermore, the company focuses on operating business in accordance with ethics, human rights, and the cor-

porate governance. It executes systematic management of environmental, safety and occupational health as well as

personal data. A person in charge is specifically assigned to manage records, control, access and disclosure under

the Personal Data Protection Act B.E. 2562. The company also participates in Private Sector Collective Action against

Corruption (CAC) as to ensure all stakeholders that the company operates business with fair treatment throughout

the value chain.
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3.3 Environmental sustainability
management

3.3.1 Environmental policies and

guidelines

The company is committed to be eco-friendly organi-
zation by building culture of environmental conservation
among all executives and employees as to become
the green hospital. Moreover, the company focuses on
reducing all types of wastes through training and envi-
ronmental activities. Placards to promote environmental
conservation are placed in the hospital and communica-
tion about environment is made via different channels. The
overall policy is promoting management to reduce envi-
ronmental impacts, and effective consumption of energy
and resources such as reducing and recycling waste,
reducing energy consumption, reducing CO2 emission,
controlling water consumption, treating waste water be-
fore releasing to public water source, increasing green
area in the hospital as well as encouraging employees
and communities to be aware of effective consumption of
resources as to mitigate negative impacts on environment,
global warming and climate change.

The company has systematic environment manage-
ment according to related guidelines, regulations, laws
and standards such as HA standard (The Healthcare
Accreditation Institute) covering environmental risk
management and resource consumption for the busi-
ness such as emergency response plan, procurement
of power and water supply for consumption, security
of buildings and facilities, security of waste manage-
ment (waste segregation and treatment), preventive
maintenance, machines and equipment maintenance
for public utility system, buildings, facilities and other
systems that support medical services in the hospital as
for 24-hour availability. The environmental and security
committee is responsible to formulate environmental
and security plan, supervise and review environmen-
tal and security operations to comply with laws, rules,
regulations and standards. The company also establishes
subcommittees to arrange environmental conservation
activities with all employees as to create awareness and
take actions. Moreover, the company supports all hospitals
under the Group to manage and promote environment,
besides normal practice.

s18v1uUs:91U 2565
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The company continuously focuses on energy con-
servation by targeting to reduce energy consumption
which is one of the management’s goals. This is to cre-
ate proper energy consumption and benefit the public
as much as possible under this policy. Objectives are
as follows.

1. The company shall comply with environmental, oc-
cupational health and work safety laws and regulations.

1.1 Encourage personnel and nearby communities
to have good awareness about environment and safety
as to have social responsibility.

1.2 Focus on building safety that supports health
promotion as well as coordinating with communities
and organizations to preserve, protect and develop
environmental management.

2. The company shall build safety in life and assets
for employees and visitors, i.e., fire safety, building
safety, security system, emergency response system
that is available 24 hours.

3. The company shall have disease screening and
surveillance, and good health promotion for personnel
and communities as well as prevention of accident/iliness
risks while performing duties of personnel.

4. The company shall implement energy manage-
ment to promote proper use of natural resources ac-
cording to policies.

4.1 Survey of system availability (Round Ward)

4.2 Energy and environmental conservation
projects

4.3 Health of personnel

4.4 Hospital landscape renovation

3.3.2 Sustainability management in
environmental dimensions

Energy management

The company manages energy saving without
lowering service quality such as use of energy-saving
tools, Solarcell installation, improvement of energy use
with prompt execution and low budget, and training to
build energy conservation awareness among employ-
ees.

Therefore, the company establishes an ener-
gy-saving working team comprising representatives
from various departments to plan and target reduction of
electrical energy consumption. Due to regular meetings,
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involvement and energy saving awareness, the company
saves more energy and electrical fee reduces.

According to energy conservation training,
personnel are educated about concept, methods and
technology of effective energy consumption. Moreover,
survey on energy consumption of different departments
shows that there are old electrical appliances such as
air conditioner or light bulbs; thus, they are replaced
with energy-saving devices

Policy

The company is aware of effective energy and
natural resources consumption; therefore, it promotes
and supports alternative energy as to reduce energy
consumption. Moreover, it has increased green area
to reduce global warming and greenhouse gases. As
a result, the energy and environmental conservation
policy is prescribed as follows.

1. Operate and develop energy management system
properly, and specify the energy conservation as a part
of the company’s strategy.

2. Enhance energy consumption regularly as to be
consistent with good practice.

3. Formulate plans, targets, measures, projects and
activities related to energy and environmental conserva-
tion by announcing to service providers and employees
to comply with correctly.

4. Involve executives and employees to be re-
sponsible and join hands to comply with energy and
environmental conservation measures according to the
company’s policy.

5. Promote and provide budget to employees
to arrange energy and environmental conservation
activities for service providers and employees to have
knowledge, understanding, and awareness accordingly.

6. The committee operates energy management;
revises target and the energy and environmental con-
servation policy to be consistent with energy and natural
resources consumption in each year.

7. Prepare nice-looking, clear, and safe internal
landscape and environment as well as reducing heat

in the buildings.
8. Prepare management system of waste, water,
garbage and scrap for recycling.

$19v1uUs:91U 2565
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Goals

The company is committed and be aware of energy
and environmental conservation by having cooperation
from executives and employees as to have sustainable
energy saving continuously. Thus, the goals of energy
and environmental conservation of the company are as
follows.

1. The company has effective energy and environ-
mental management system.

2. The company is energy and environmental con-
servation hospital certified by Ministry of Energy.

3. The company can reduce energy and environment
related expenses by 2% p.a.

4. Executives and employees have awareness about
energy and environmental conservation.

5. The company has executives and employees
with knowledge and capabilities in alternative energy
management effectively.

6. The company has firm, secured and safe facilities
with good and clean environment.

7. The company has management system of waste-
water and garbage for recycling to benefit the company.
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electricity consumption graph
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In this regard, the company encourages employees to comply with electricity management policy as to be
consistent with the energy and environmental conservation goals to reduce energy and environment related expenses.
It targets to reduce electricity consumption by 2% p.a.

In 2022, the company had electricity consumption totaling, which increased from 2021, because the company
opened a new building (social security building) with 5 floors and space of 8,544 sqg.m.
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Water management

The company controls and manages water con-
sumption as good as possible. Water pipe system in
the building is checked and fixed, while wastewater is
managed via wastewater treatment. Treated wastewa-
ter will be partially reused in outdoor activities such as
watering plants around the properties and the rest will
be discharged to public water source. However, used
water must be gone through the wastewater treatment
system and water quality is checked to be in line with
standards of Department of Health, Ministry of Public
Health and related laws before discharging to public
water source. The company outsources external envi-
ronmental agency to analyze water quality before dis-
charging and report back to the company on a monthly
basis. Moreover, internal maintenance technicians are
required to daily check and maintain the wastewater
treatment system.

Policy

Water is limited and key resource for the company’s
operation. Since, the company is aware of effective
water consumption, it has set goals and systematic
water management policy according to environmental
management standard regarding wastewater discharge
from specific buildings and size, and related laws.
Occupational health and environmental safety com-
mittee and the maintenance department are assigned
to check and evaluate performance of implementation
of the water and wastewater treatment management
plan. The company has wastewater treatment system
which is in line with the standard of Department of
Health, Ministry of Public Health before discharging
to the public. There is regular check of treated water
quality which parameters are in line with the standard.
The maintenance department is also assigned to for-
mulate clean water system plan, check availability of
equipment and create regular maintenance plan for
the water system. Spare equipment of the wastewater
treatment system is prepared as offensive prevention
measures. The company successfully passes annual
audit of Provincial Public Health Office and Social Se-
curity Office according conditions of hospitals under
the Office every year. In this regard, the company has
developed and improved the wastewater treatment
system continuously as for compliance with the safety
standard before water discharge.

$19v1uUs:91U 2565
usEN AS3G8I063IAU DA (UNNBU)

Goals

The company is committed to effectively manage
water consumption for maximum benefit. It set goal
to continuously reduce water consumption to 1 cubic
meter at maximum per patient admission date, and
long-term goal to encourage employees to change
water consumption behavior as follows.

1. Employees are aware of effective water con-
sumption for maximum benefit and change behavior to
reduce water consumption, wastewater and impacts on
environment.

2. New innovation, technology or tools are imple-
mented continuously to reduce water consumption as
well as encouraging employees to share comments,
projects or activities related to water and wastewater
management.

3. Regular water saving activities and projects are
arranged as well as evaluating performance annually.

4. There was no complaint regarding water and
wastewater management from communities, society
and related units.
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water consumption graph
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In this regard, the company encourages employees to comply with the water management policy as to be con-
sistent with the energy and environmental conservation goals to reduce energy and environment related expenses.
It targets to reduce water consumption by 2% p.a.

In 2022, the company had water consumption totaling 67,320,000 litre, which increased from 2021, because
opened a new building (social security building) with 5 floors and space of 8,544 sqg.m.
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Waste Management

The company systematically manages waste ac-
cording to related sanitary principles and laws. 4 types
of waste for separation are general waste, hazardous
waste, infectious waste and recyclable waste. Guidelines
and training about workplace dress code, contact, dis-
posal, collection and route of waste and improvements
by making a garbage compactor to compress waste to
reduce the amount of large waste to be smaller and can
help reduce the amount of waste.

The company outsources a service provider certified
for waste management according to related standards
and laws in order for waste disposal. A committee in
charge is assigned to monitor evaluation and waste
disposal regularly as well as preventing waste man-
agement to destroy environment.

Infectious waste management

The company places emphasis on the management
since infectious waste from hospitals during COVID-19
must be treated properly and effectively, otherwise
there will be impacts on environment and the public’s
health. Therefore, infectious waste must be put in
disposal container with clear signs of infectious waste
container, and put in red biohazard disposal bags that is
resistance to chemicals, high weight, leakage, and the
bag must be tied. Then, waste must be destroyed in
incinerator according to the standards. Representatives of
related committees are assigned to check the incinerator
according to the waste management standard.

Policy

The company has waste management according
to waste and hazardous waste management standard.
Infectious waste is burned in incinerator resulting
CO2 in atmosphere which affects global warming and
climate change. Thus, the company has set a policy
to reduce waste disposal amount and consumption
of all energy types. Employee training is arranged to
share knowledge and evaluate understanding about
energy saving and effective resource consumption on
a regular basis which annual training plan is prepared
clearly. This is for employees to change behavior as
to reduce environmental impacts and global warming.
Several projects are arranged such as Green Office

52
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and Green and Clean Hospitel to promote reduction
of global warming and greenhouse gas emission.
Moreover, activities about waste management, waste
recycling, energy consumption reduction, infectious
waster training are arranged to motivate employees to
recycle natural scraps such as vegetable scraps and
plastic bottles to build green area and simply plant
vegetables in order to reduce food waste and plastic
waste in the hospital.

Goals

1. Employees are aware of negative impacts of waste
and environment conservation, and have behavior of
waste segregation in the hospital and home to reduce
waste.

2. Employees are aware of proper waste segregation.

3. Project is arranged to segregate waste from in-
ternal operations continuously for the Group.

4. Recycling is promoted.

A\

4
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Table of infectious waste

weigh

January 4,483.00 3,813.00 5,371.00 42,588.50 36,223.50 64,452.00
February 4,985.00 3,962.00 5,052.00 47,357.50 37,639.00 60,624.00
March 4,578.00 4,225.10 6,835.00 43,491.00 40,138.45 82,020.00
April 3,848.00 4,836.10 5,829.00 36,556.00 45,942.95 69,948.00
May 3,702.00 6,133.00 5,450.00 35,169.00 58,263.50 65,400.00
June 3,835.00 5,950.00 5,647.00 36,432.50 56,525.00 67,764.00
July 5,885.00 8,365.00 7,831.00 55,907.50 79,467.50 93,972.00
August 4,368.00 9,209.00 8,5684.00 41,496.00 87,485.50 103,008.00
September 4,268.00 7,360.00 6,916.00 40,546.00 88,320.00 82,992.00
October 4,5652.00 5,447.00 6,259.00 43,244.00 65,364.00 75,108.00
November 5,323.00 5,759.00 6,345.00 50,568.50 69,108.00 76,140.00
December 4,911.00 5,488.00 6,010.00 46,654.50 65,856.00 72,120.00

54,738.00

70,547.20 76,129.00 520,011.00 730,333.40 913,548.00

Management of greenhouse gas emission reduction
The company places importance on reduction management since greenhouse gas emission which impacts envi-
ronment and well-being of the public. The company commits to reduce greenhouse gas emission through activities
to reduce air pollution.
1. Use renewable energy to reduce carbon dioxide emissions.
2. Conduct waste separation and recycling to reduce plastic pollution and carbon dioxide emissions.
3. Use paper bags and cloths bag for home medication instead of plastic bags as to reduce plastic pollution
and carbon dioxide emissions.
4. Use electric cars for transporting patients between parking lots and the buildings as to reduce carbon
dioxide emissions.
5. Prohibit to burn waste in any area of the company to reduce carbon dioxide emissions, dust and smoke in
the air.
The company has the following guidelines and policies about energy conservation and greenhouse gas emission
reduction.
- Reduce — Reduce consumption, think before consumption, reduce waste at workplace and daily life.
- Reuse - Keep reusing such as planting vegetables from vegetable scraps, or using old bed sheets for wheel-
chair cushion.

- Recycle — Segregate waste for recycling with good cooperation from employees, staff, clients, organizations
and schools in communities resulting concrete benefits for people and communities.
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34 Social sustainability management

3.4.1Social policies and guidelines

The company formulates developmental policies
and instills culture, ethics, environmental conservation
and sustainable social contribution. In this regard,
during COVID-19 pandemic in 2020 — 2022 globally,
the company still continues social sustainability man-
agement by adjusting operations to reduce the infection
risk based on safety of employees and visitors mainly.

3.4.2 Social performance

1) Employees

« Training and learning development

Meeting methods are changed and online training
is conducted by utilizing technology to facilitate work
process and learning via online and electronic systems.
Employees can join meetings or participate training or
access knowledge base via their mobile devices from
anywhere under security system. Variety of develop-
ment and training has been developed to suit skills of
each profession by focusing on building understanding
in policies and duties according to related laws and
environmental policies. Digital skills and self-develop-
ment of employees have to be enhanced to adapt and
perform duties happily.

The company has human resources development
policies that are in line with vision, mission and business
goals. The company aims to develop personnel to have
knowledge and capabilities, and retain personnel who
have knowledge and skills in a long term as well as
planning career advancement. Training is conducted
regularly and places importance on training needs of all
levels of personnel; moreover, training must be consis-
tent with professional standards. The company requires
all employees to participate training for at least 20 hours/
person/year, especially medical staff.

e HA System

e Preparation of private hospitals

e Annual HA Forum No. 22 with topic of Towards
Scaling Up and Resilience in Healthcare

e Disease code standard
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e Review of rules/ procedures/ manual/ operations
and codes

e Guidelines of budget request for public health
services in case of critical emergency patients

e Update on Practice in NICU 2022 (online)

e Patient care on ventilator assessment of laboratory
data emergency

e Basic life support

e ICN Forum No. 16

e Personal data protection according to Personal
Data Protection Act B.E. 2562 (PDPA)

e Laboratory safety standard, year 6, No. 1 (online)

e Personal data managementaccording to Personal
Data Protection Act (employees)

e |T sharing

e Service system quality development with Insur-
ance Claim (I Claim)

e EKG 12 lead

e Change COVID-19 case investigation from paper
to excel by Department of Disease Control

e Review KPIs of units in March 2022

e Review incidents of number of incorrect tool in-
dication

e Basic QC

e Seminar about New Medical Technology in the
New Era

e ACLS No. 1/2022

e ACLS No. 2/2022

e Electricity system of 2022

e Risk management

e Basic EKG skills

e Max Pulse skills

e UCEP disease code

e Spirometer functions and maintenance
Physical therapist development for COVID-19
patient care and recovery

e Ambulance driver training course

e Seminar of “Health & Wellness Business Oppor-
tunities & Trend”

e Review and Quiz ECG Echo and catheterization
laboratory

e 2P Safety Goals

e Venipuncture and peripheral intravenous tips

e Work safety

e nformation disclosure policy

e Patient transfer

e Maintenance management

e Workflow of COVID-19 patient admission
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e Transmission prevention in operating rooms

e Child restraint

e Soft touch and best skill service nurse

e Review of sterile technical wound dressing

e New law issued based on ministerial regulations
regarding infectious waste disposal B.E. 2564 (No. 2)

e Offensive basic maintenance

e Obstetric & gynecologic emergencies, modern
care and roles of nurses

e Medical codes

e Risks of OR

e Electricity maintenance principles

e Orientation of registered nurse No. 1/2022

e Orientation of registered nurse No. 3/2022

e Green office criteria training

e Colic seminar

e 5S and big cleaning activities

e Codes of diseases, surgeries and OPD medical
procedures

e Orientation of registered nurse No. 2/2022

e Codes of diseases, surgeries and medical pro-
cedures of obstetrics gynecology department and
pediatrics department

e Codes of surgeries and medical procedures of
orthopedics department

e Pain management

e EKG interpretation for evaluation

e Physical therapy for athletes

e Integration plan for disaster level 2 of 2022

e Codes of diseases and medical procedures of
funds

e Prevention and control of transmission or danger
from infectious waste

e Basic occupational medicine course for physi-
cians, class 11

e Codes of diseases, surgeries and medical
procedures of medicine department and cardiology
department

e Basic infection prevention and control nursing in
hospitals

e Right granting of cardiology department and
orthopedic surgery department

e Special tools for occupational health checkup

e Cast cutter training

e Pre- and post-CAG/PCI patient care guidelines

e Workflow of heart disease patient admission

e Soft touch

e How to use mobile capsule
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e Wiping body to reduce fever as to prevent febrile
seizure

e How to use Application STEMI
Venipuncture tips
Coronary pressure wire test

e Pre- and post catheterization patients for PN/NA
staff

e Assisting physicians for intubation and VAP pre-
vention

e Car checking before use

e Patient preparation and care after off sheath

e Procedure review of health checkup for workers
who will go abroad, class 1

e Microsoft digital literacy techniques

e Procedure review of health checkup for workers
who will go abroad, class 2

e Cooperation enhancement via Google applica-
tion

e Spirometry

e |ABP maintenance and preparation

e ISO 15189:2012, ISO 15190:2020, ISO
19011:2018

e Basic life support

e |Intravascular ultrasound

e Patient safety goal

e FElectricity senior supervisor, class 3

e How to cope with drastic change
Sharing and brainstorm for development

e Review of risks in units, 5S, service behavior,
codes

e Professional dietitian career path

e (Guidelines of direct reimbursement of medical
welfare in Bangkok

e Basic fire fighting training

e Complaint negotiation techniques

e Phlebitis and bed sore prevention, and bed sore
patch management/ examination order collection

e Food sanitation for food handler

e Emergency medical seminar of 2022

e Drug & Lab catalog

e Test at laboratory and venipuncture tips

e How to record data of the rights of hemodialysis
in Bangkok

e Responsibilities of accountants, and accounting
records according to the accounting standard

e Operations according to the government policies

e Spirometry

e Surgery appointment system for private hospitals
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e Risk management of accounting —finance in each
work system

e Automate hematology Sysmex XN-1000 training

e Basic and advanced operation analyzer, blood
gas analyzer

e Spirometry

e Meetings about guidelines of operations and
knowledge sharing about food waste segregation

e Risk management and internal control

e Infectious waste basic knowledge

e BGM maintenance and basic quality control

e First aid and basic CPR

e Preceptor teaching skill development project,
class 9

e New employee orientation in October

e Proper medical supplies for wound type

e Positive attitude towards the organization and
departments

e Spirometry

e Guidelines of head wound treatment

e Personal Data Protection Act

e Cash budgeting for high-level executives to for-
mulate plans and make a decision

e Computer unavailability response plan training

e Basic fire fighting training (theory)

e Service behavior of general service department

e LOW carbon economy a pathway to sustainable
industrial

e [T unavailability response drill

e High Alert Drugs work system

e New treatment for cardio-thoracic patients with
sustainable quality development

e Pediatric nursing update 2022

e Thailand Quality Award

e Disinfection and sterilization

56
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e |ead round nutrition, 5/6

e Reimbursement document for Comptroller Gen-
eral’s Department in case of heart surgery

e Expense calculation for general cases and heart
cases

Occupational health eye care training

e How to use EREB

e Basic fire fighting and evacuation training

e Occupational health and safety, and hospital
environment management

e Solutions for accounting documents and
accounting entry recognition related documents

e (Good presentation and communication skills

e Mass casualty incident plan drill

In 2022, regardless of COVID-19 pandemic,
the company conducted online training and average
training hours were 15.25 hours/person/year, lower
than the target of 20 hours/person/year. Details are as
follows.

2563 21.97
2564 12.32
2565 15.25

/
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« Workplace safety, occupational
health and environment

The company has developed and improved effi-
ciency of safety operations as to reduce risks of illness,
injury or death, and take care of life quality of employees
appropriately. Key operations are as follows.

- Formulate policies and guidelines about employ-
ees’ safety and occupational health management, and
establish an environmental, occupational health and
safety committee to develop physical environment that
complies with international standards.

- Regularly conduct training about occupational
health and safety for employees.

- Conduct training about infection prevention and
transmission during COVID-19 pandemic.

- Survey and improve workplace environment and
services according to the safety policy of Ministry of
Public Health.

- Assess potential risks.

- Place warning notice and signs at risky areas.

- Conduct employees’ and medical staff’'s health
checkup regularly.

- Provide sufficient PPE and PPE test must be con-
ducted pre- and post- use.

- Review and develop skills to correctly and safely
use medical supplies and equipment.

Due to aggressive COVID-19 pandemic in 2022,
14 medical staff and operational employees infected
COVID-19 from work and 71 medical staff and opera-
tional employees infected COVID-19 from workplace
(Omnoi). There were 12 persons had needle accident,
increased from 2021 by 1.89%.

Statistics of occupational accident or occupational

disease of the company’s and subsidiaries’ employees
are as follows.

Years Percent

2563 1.11
2564 272
2565 4.61
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 Formation of the good corpo-
rate governance and employees’
well-being culture

The company focuses on creating culture of em-
ployees’ good practice, especially formulation of work
ethics. 4 main policies are as follows.

- Anti-corruption policy to prohibit actions or support
of abuse of power

- Human rights policy and guidelines to create
awareness about respect for human rights and rights
at work

- Internal data usage policy, and disclosure policy

- Non-infringement of intellectual property rights
policy

+ Digital skills improvement

Digital skills are critical nowadays and have huge
roles in work and daily life. The company arranges
training to improve digital skills such as online platform,
online response, increase of sale distribution, etc.

 Employment

As of 31 December 2022, the company and subsid-
iaries had 2,401 employees (excluding directors and
executives of the company and subsidiaries). Details

are as follows.

Employees
Tvpe Full Part As of 31
yp Time | Time December
2022
Physicians 84 443 527
Nurses and nursing 649 46 695
assistants
Medical assistance 221 55 276
and operational
employees
General employees 887 16 903
Total 1,841 560 2,401

The company did not have labor dispute in the
past 3 years. Employees did not protest or strike.
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« Employee engagement

In 2022, turnover rate was 1.64%, reduced by 2.89% from previous year. Employee engagement scores were
80.88

2) Environment

The company has a policy to contribute participation in internal resources management and personnel develop-
ment with environmental management awareness. This builds the organization’s foundation that operates Eco-friendly
business according to the global strategies of sustainable development. Plans and guidelines have been formulated
to share knowledge to executives and employees related to environmental management. Environmental policies
related activities have been designed for executives and employees to acknowledge and understand consistently
which led to best practice. The company received environmental awards such as Bangkok Green & Clean Hospital
Plus Award (Silver rank) for achievement of environment health management in public health centers in Bangkok.

3) Customers or visitors

The company is aware that customer is one of key success factors of the business, and aims to satisfy customers
with high quality services. Moreover, it has a commitment to improve medical treatment quality as to meet needs and
expectation fairly and professionally. In this regard, data of all customers is confidential and will not be disclosed,
unless the laws require or the company directly receives consent from customers.

The company regularly conducts the customer satisfaction survey with objectives to assess customers’ opinion
towards the hospital’s critical operations and enhance the hospital’s quality as well as promoting culture of servicing
for best experience in every visit. The overall survey scores have been increasing clearly.

« Customer satisfaction survey

The company conducted the satisfaction survey based on a monthly basis as to develop and improve all
processes. Results of IPD and OPD satisfaction survey during 2019 — 2022 are as follows.

Results of IPD satisfaction survey during 2019 - 2022

100

Level of Satisfaction

2019 2020 2021 2022



56-1 ONE REPORT

Srivichaivejvivat Public Company Limited

59 $19v1uUs:91U 2565
USBN ASIGEIEIIAL 9INA (UABU)

Results of OPD satisfaction survey during 2019
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4) Responsibility for community and society

The company is aware of importance and aims to develop life quality continuously for community and society by
focusing on environmental impact reduction and avoiding operations that may cause negative impacts towards life

quality of nearby communities.

Moreover, it focuses on developing life quality and
promoting participation with communities or social
activities. For example:

- Donate milk boxes to Green Shelter project to be
recycled as construction materials such as roof, eco
woods, eco bricks, casing and others to build “house”
for natural disaster victims or those who need houses
due to other cases.

- "Handmade with Heart” activity to sew fill-up bra
for breast cancer patients to use in daily life.

- Join hands with PRECIOUS PLASTIC BANGKOK to
open donation for plastic caps from hospital employees
and clients as to be recycled as new products and buy
recycling tools for communities in Bangkok; so that,
they can solve plastic waste issue and recycle waste
to generate revenue for communities.

- Emergency life saving project by providing training
to the public with free of charge.
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5) Corporate social responsibility

Vichaivej International Hospital Group focuses on
health service development as well as society, com-
munity and environment development that benefit all
stakeholders continuously. The Group aims to operate
businesses and be responsible to the society as an
organization that provides medical and public health
services to the people based on international standard
and sustainable business operations.

Goals

1. Build happiness and opportunities for communi-
ties and society.

2. Create awareness about natural resources and
environmental conservation in society.

3. Build good foundation of society from sharing
and creating learning opportunity to have sustainable
benefit for the public; activities are as follows.

Heart Charity Campaign

by Vichaivej Nongkhaem

1A s$n

Vichaivej Heart Center has promoted the campaign
to instill awareness, share and promote healthcare to all
Thai people who can be saviors in all normal and crisis
situations. The campaign has taken actions as follows.

» Emergency life saving project: Vichaivej Interna-
tional Hospital Group has arranged CPR training for the
public with free of charge.

* Blood donation center and Thai Red Cross Society
are aware of sufficient, safe, high-quality blood volume
as to treat patients nationwide. Therefore, the blood
donation center was established to donate blood to
Thai Red Cross Society every year.

s18v1uUs:91U 2565
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Happiness Sharing Campaign

CARE AND SHARE @

1 Thnousn @ TRsoudu

“Volunteerism” culture has been built to encourage
everyone to be a smile and happiness giver forimpover-
ished persons and underprivileged persons. We believe
that smiles from this contribution will motivate Vichaivej
employees to do good things for the society via several
activities.

* Happiness sharing activity for underprivileged
persons by donating money and goods.

* Happiness cabinet for people in Phornpipat com-
munity, Yaek Faichai, during COVID-19.

* Happiness sharing activity for donating education-
al and sports equipment for Wat Nhong Yaplong School,
Darn Makham Tier district, Kanchanaburi province;
moreover, Vichaive] Foundation also donated money
and necessary goods from donators to the school.




56-1 ONE REPORT

Srivichaivejvivat Public Company Limited

* Happiness sharing activity for senior nursing
home at Wang Khanaitayikaram Temple, Kanchanaburi
province

* Happiness sharing activity for underprivileged
children at Baan Nokkamin Foundation.

* Happiness sharing activity for Baan Tan Tawan
Foundation.

» Happiness sharing activity for orphanage center
at Nakorn Pathom province.

$19v1uUs:91U 2565
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» “Share Wheelchair” by converting old supermarket
carts into D.1.Y. wheelchair as to donate to patients, dis-
abled persons or senior persons in order to overcome
difficulties and have normal living in society.

= N
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* “Handmade with Heart” activity for employees
and clients to produce necessary things for patients,
especially cancer patients to use in daily life such as

fill-up bra for breast cancer patients and bandanas for
cancer patients.

I
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» “Share the Love” activity for helpless persons,

which employees of Vichaivej International Hospital
Group and speakers donate consumer goods, sports
equipment, eyeglasses, common household medicines
and necessary things at Nonthaburi Protection Center
for the Homeless.
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*  “Happiness Vaccination” by Vichaive] Hospital
International Nongkhaem that arranges free vaccina-
tion unit for the following organizations, agencies and
communities as to prevent pandemic and contagious
diseases.

- “Happiness Vaccination” for Government Housing Bank

- “Happiness Vaccination” for SME D Bank

- “Happiness Vaccination” for Government Savings Bank

- “Happiness Vaccination” for National Housing
Authority

- “Happiness Vaccination” for Animal and Agriculture

petared Ix k.
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* “MASK For Kids” activity by Vichaivej Hospital
International Omnoi since students are risky group to
have COVID-19; thus, to control the pandemic, Vichaivej
Hospital International Group has arranged this activity
to give masks and alcohol gel, and teach the correct
way of washing hands and wearing masks. Infectious
disease control and prevention nurses conduct the
session for teachers and students at schools in Sam-
utsakhon and Nakorn Pathom provinces.

fsouonna
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» Donate lights by Vichaivej Hospital International

Samutsakhon that held an activity of offering robes to
Buddhist priests at monastery at Thong Tanmikaram
Temple.
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+ Knowledge sharing session for children and un-
derprivileged persons to learn beneficial information.

+ Corporate communication department of Vi-
chaivej Hospital International Nongkhaem was invited
by Petkasem Management Technological College to
share and train about academic and profession skills
under the topic “Infographic Design in Digital Business

to Become Professional”.

* Knowledge sharing for Wat Rat Thammaram
School which Vichaivej Hospital International Samut-
sakhon renovated agricultural area and shared about

first aid for students.

* Knowledge sharing for Baan Klong Sue School
which Vichaivej Hospital International Samutsakhon
shared about first aid for students



56-1 ONE REPORT

Srivichaivejvivat Public Company Limited

We Change, The World Changes
Campaign

1Is1Usu
TanwWasu

This is to create awareness and support behavior
changes for environment and sustainable development
as well as educating about impacts from global warming
with the following details.

» “Bottle Cap Please” activity that creates awareness
about plastic waste issue that impacts nature and living
things; the Group joins hands with PRECIOUS PLAS-
TIC BANGKOK to open donation for plastic caps from
hospital employees and clients as to be recycled as
new products and buy recycling tools for communities
in Bangkok. So that, they can solve plastic waste issue
and recycle waste to generate revenue for communities

* In order to reduce plastic waste and protect
environment, Vichaivej Hospital International Group
donates used ATK and medical plastic waste that hugely
increased during COVID-19 pandemic. The Group
joins hands with PRECIOUS PLASTIC BANGKOK (PPB)
which is plastic recycle project to open donation for
used ATK regardless of negative or positive results as
to be recycled as new products. This is to build aware-
ness and motivate employees, clients and partners to
start doing good contribution for sustainable natural
resources and environmental conservation.

$19v1uUs:91U 2565
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» “Boxes for Houses” activity that Vichaivej Hospital
International Group donates milk boxes to Green Shelter
project to be recycled as construction materials such
as roof, eco woods, eco bricks, casing and others to
build “house” for natural disaster victims or those who
need houses due to other cases.

m
y

* “Mangrove for All” activity that Vichaivej Hospital
International Group is aware of recovering richness of
the area; thus, mangrove reforestation activity is held
to recover the area and preserve marine and coastal
resources. The activity is held at Marine and Coastal
Resources Conservation Center, Samutsakhon province.

» “Mangrove Forest Protection” activity is held be-
cause marine debris has been considerably increased
due to humans which impacts marine ecosystem, and
marine animals have been dying from eating plastic
waste. Vichaivej Hospital International Group is aware
of marine ecosystem conservation, so, this activity is
held and employees observe the area, collect waste
and renovate mangrove forest landscape in commu-
nities at Mangrove Forest Resources Research and
Development Center, Samutsakhon province.
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+ “Take Care of the World with Sa-ard” activity is
created due to food and vegetable scraps in household
or workplace, especially the hospital, that have been
hugely increased and became food waste leading to
air pollution and greenhouse gas emission that impact
environment and the world. Lower scraps and effective
resource consumption are necessary. Vichaivej Hospital
International Group holds this activity to build employ-
ees’ awareness to recycle remaining natural resources
such as vegetable scraps from cooking, roots and
branches for maximum benefit. This will reduce waste
in the hospital and create more green area, for example;

- Create a basket from vegetable garden.

- Simply plant vegetables from vegetable scraps
and plastic bottles to reduce waste.

- Plant vegetables from vegetable scraps in house-
hold to have fresh vegetables and save cost.

*  “Orphan Waste” project by Vichaivej Hospital
International Samutsakhon that collects non-recyclable
or non-sellable leftovers to be used as alternative energy
to coal.

» “Environmental Protection” project by Vichaivej
Hospital International Samutsakhon that collects waste
in canals in communities.

* Energy conservation and greenhouse gas
emission which Vichaivej Hospital International Group
is committed to build the conservation through internal
activities and trainings based on 3 energy conservation
and greenhouse gas emission reduction guidelines as
follows.

Reduce — Reduce consumption, think before
consumption, reduce waste at workplace and daily life
such as fabric bags to get medicine, instead of plastic
bags, and a basket from natural materials.

Reuse — Keep reusing such as planting vegetables
from vegetable scraps, or using old bed sheets for
wheelchair cushion from Share Wheelchair project.

Recycle — Segregate waste for recycling with good
cooperation from employees, staff, clients, organizations
and schools in communities resulting concrete
benefits for people and communities. Vichaivej Hospital
International Group aims to continue operating social
activities continuously.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Operations result of the company, its Subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2022

i 22|20z

Revenues from hospital operations 3,645.90 4,717.84 (1,071.94) (22.72)
Other Income 15.88 11.92 3.96 33.22
Total revenues 3,661.78 4,729.76 (1,067.98) (22.58)
Cost of hospital operations 2,361.70 2,693.24 (331.54) (12.31)
Selling expenses 133.18 66.14 67.04 101.36
Administrative expenses 283.95 365.72 (81.77) (22.36)
Total expenses 2,778.83 3,125.10 (346.27) (11.08)
Operating Profit 882.95 1,604.67 (721.71) (44.98)
Finance cost 11.01 15.68 (4.67) (29.78)
Profit before income tax expenses 871.94 1,588.98 (717.04) (45.13)
Income tax expenses 172.70 328.77 (156.07) (47.47)
Profit for the year 699.24 1,260.21 (560.97) (44.51)

About ordinary shares

Number of ordinary shares issued (Million Shares) 570.67 570.67 - -
Book value per share ( Baht ) 527 4.55 0.72 15.82
Earnings per share ( baht ) 1.22 2.20 (0.98) (44.55)

For the company’s Performance ended December 31, 2022, the company and its subsidiaries had a net profit
of 699.24 million baht decrease from the year 2021 of 560.97 million baht or 44.51%

Revenue from hospitals operation for the year ended 31 December 2022 amounted to 3,645.90 million baht,
decrease from the year 2021 of 1,071.94 million baht or 22.72%. Due to the year 2022, the situation of COVID-19
began to relax along with the rate of medical expenses of the public sector decreased. As a result, the total income
of the Company and its subsidiaries decreased to 1,067.98 million baht or 22.58% from 4,729.76 million baht to
3,661.78 million baht net after deducting intercompany transactions.

Cost of hospital operations in 2022 of the Company and its subsidiaries, include 2,361.70 million baht, and de-
crease from the year 2021 of 331.54 million Baht or 12.31%. This is mainly due to situation the epidemic of Corona
Virus disease 2019, has relieve, revenue from COVID-19 patients declines causing, the use of medicines, medical
materials, including medical supplies, analysis fees and hospitel room service fees for the treatment of COVID-19
patients has decreased.

Selling expenses for the year ended 31 December 2022 amounted to 133.18 million baht, increase from the year
2021 of 67.06 million baht or 101.36% as a causing the relatively high competition for health checks, the cost of
sales increases.

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December 2022 amounted to 283.95 million baht decrease from
the year 2021 of 81.77 million baht or 22.36% as a result to the impairment of investments of subsidiaries in the
previous year and other administrative expenses.



56-1 ONE REPORT s19v1uUsS:91U 2565

Srivichaivejvivat Public Company Limited 66 USBN AS3G8I0BIIU DR (UNIBU)

Total financial costs for the year ended 31December 2022, amount was 11.01 million baht, a decrease of 4.67
million baht or 29.78% from the year 2021 due to short-term loan payments from financial institutions.

Total income tax expense for the year ended 31 December 2022 of 172.70 million baht, an decrease of 156.07
million baht from 2021 or 47.47% cause of the decrease in net profit.

Profitability Ratio

Unit: Million Baht

Gross Profit 1,284.21 2,024.60 (740.39) (36.57)
Gross Profit Margin Ratio 35.22 42.91 - (7.69)
EBITDA 1,053.05 1,762.50 (709.45) (40.25)
EBITDA Ratio 28.76 37.26 - (8.50)
Net Profit Margin Ratio 19.02 26.54 - (7.52)

From the above table, EBITDA decreased from 1,762.50 million baht in 2021 to 1,053.05 million baht in 2022 or
an decrease of 709.45%. As a result, the EBITDA Ratio decreased from 37.36% in 2021 to 28.76% in 2022 and the
net profit margin decreased from 26.54% in 2021 to 19.02% in 2022.

Financial Status Unit: Million Baht
Total Assets 3,707.67 3,639.28 68.39

Total Liabilities 699.59 1,043.70 (344.11) (32.97)
Shareholder’s Equity of the company 3,001.15 2,589.88 411.27 15.88
Total Shareholder’s Equity 3,008.08 2,595.58 412.50 15.89

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries as at December 31, 2022, with total
assets of 3,707.67 million baht, an increase of 68.39 million baht or 1.88% from 2021 due to land, building and
equipment increase of 466.10 million baht and increase of 27.82 million baht from investment property.

Total liabilities of the company and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2022, amounted to 699.59 million baht, an
decrease of 344.11 million baht or 32.97% from 2021 , due to the decrease in trade and other payables of 106.91
million baht and decrease in income tax payable of 111.84 million baht, short-term loans from financial institutions
decreased of 112.07 million baht.

The shareholders’ equity of the company as of December 31, 2022 totaled 3,001.15 million baht, an increase
from 2021 in the amount of 411.27 million baht or 15.88% from the net profit of the year 2022 that increased.
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Liquidity and capital management

Cash flow Unit: Million Baht
List 2022 2021
Net cash flows from operating activities 940.36 1,460.15
Net cash flows used in investing activities (639.72) (184.17)
Net cash flows used in financing activities (422.66) (291.12)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (122.02) 984.86
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,185.02 200.16
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 1,063.01 1,185.02

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company and its subsidiaries have net increase in cash and cash
equivalents in the amount of 122.02 million baht which the Company and its subsidiaries have 1,185.02 million
baht in cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year. As result net cash equivalents at end of year equals
1,063.01 million baht. Details of cash flows for each activity are as follows;

Net cash flow from operating activities amounted to 940.36 million baht, mainly due to the profit of the year 2022.
The net cash flow used in the investment business was 639.72 million baht mainly due to repayment of land, building
and equipment including improvement building and the net cash flow used in financing activities was 422.66 million
baht, and dividend payment and loans from financial institutions.

Financial Highlights

The consolidated financial statements 2022 2021

Efficiency Ratio

Return on Assets (%) 24.04 53.98
Turnover of Asset (times) 1.00 1.59
Return on fixed assets (%) 49.16 93.81
Return on equity (%) 24.92 62.89

Liquidity Ratio

Liquidity ratio (times) 3.01 2.52

Quick ratio (times) 2.87 2.37

Asset and Liability Management (Day)

Average collection period (Day) 55.27 39.83
Average selling time (Day) 9.47 7.64
Average repayment period (Day) 66.30 52.24

Financial Policy Ratio

Interest Payment Capability (times) 80.18 102.32

Debt to equity ratio (times) 0.23 0.40
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Return on assets and return on equity ratio of 53.98
in 2021 to 24.04 in 2022 and decreased from of 62.89
in 2021 to 24.92 in 2022 due to decreased hospital op-
erating results which caused the situation of COVID-19
relieve In addition, the rate of medical expenses of the
public sector decreased.

Liquidity increased from 2.52 (times) in 2021 to 3.01
(times) in 2022 due to receipts from receivables from
counterparties and UCEP COVID-19 receivables.

Average collection period increased from 39.83 days
in 2021 to 55.27 days in 2022, average sales period and
average repayment periods increased from 7.64 days
and 52.24 days in 2021 to 9.74 days and 66.30 days
in 2022, respectively.

Interest payment capability decreased from 102.32
times in 2021 to 80.18 times in 2022 as the company’s
earnings before finance and tax expenses decreased
from 2021, while interest expenses declined. And the
debt to equity ratio decreased from 0.40 times in 2021
to 0.23 times in 2022, which the Company and its sub-
sidiaries have managed to control concise financial
structure

Policy for setting the credit term of trade

The Company and its subsidiaries have a policy to
consider credit according to customer groups, which
can be divided into 2 groups as follows:

1. Counterparty customers and private companies.
The credit term is 60 days

2. Government agencies customers

2.1 Social Security Office, Health Insurance
Office, Comptroller General’'s Department. The credit
term is 180 days

2.2 Other government agencies in addition to
2.1, there is a credit term of 120 days.

Key Factors Affecting Future Perfor-
mance and Financial Status

1. The liberalization of hospital business in the ASE-
AN region according to the agreement of the ASEAN
Economic Community (AEC) may change the compet-
itive structure of the industry group.

The liberalization of trade in services gives ASEAN
investors the right to own up to 70 percent of the pre-
vious approximately 49 per cent in various enterprises
in the country including hospital business as well It will
be fully implemented in early 2016. Such liberalization
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is very important to the medical industry in Thailand.
Due to the following reasons.

» Hospital groups prepare for more intense com-
petition from the increase of foreign investors to invest
in the hospital business in the country. This may en-
hance the capital and medical technology potential of
competitor hospitals. Or it may be to set up a hospital
to compete directly.

* AEC liberalization may be an opportunity for
hospital groups to consider the possibility of entering
medical services business in neighboring countries. If
the investment is appropriate and can create added
value for the hospital’s business.

« Occupational mobility of important medical per-
sonnel such as medical professionals and highly expe-
rienced nurses.There is an opportunity to occur in many
dimensions both in terms of foreign doctors who will
come to work in the country and Thai doctors who will
go out to get jobs in ASEAN Hospital groups therefore
focus on appropriate human resource management.
They may consider hiring more foreign doctors in the
future to increase their ability to serve foreign custom-
ers. At the same time, personnel must be maintained.
Importantly, continue to work with the hospital group.

2. Government policies and changes in the per per-
son packaged rate under government health programs.
It will affect the income of the hospital group as follows:

* The annual health check-up program for social
security insurers, announced from January 1, 2017 on-
wards, requiring all insured people to undergo a health
check-up free of charge. The insured must receive
services in the hospital according to the rights that the
insured chooses. They can undergo basic health ex-
aminations such as blood tests, urine tests, and kidney
function tests. To find out the risk, abnormal condition
or disease, which if found abnormal will be treated.
from the first stage according to the list and the criteria
prescribed by the Medical Committee.

» Social Security program for dental insurers in
case of tooth extraction, filling, scaling and wisdom
tooth breaking 900 baht per person per year. You can
request services in the clinic or private hospitals or a
government hospital at the convenience of the insured
which does not require a reservation.
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» Insured Social Security Scheme, in the case of
influenza vaccine announced on October 15, 2020
onwards, insurers aged 50 years and over are eligible
to receive health promotion and disease prevention
services. In the case of influenza vaccine at a hospital
prescribed by the Social Security Office once a year,
by 2020 from October 15, 2020 to December 31, 2020,
and from 2021 onwards, between May 1 and August
31 of the year,. And 2022 from May 1,2022 to August
31,2022 extended until to December 31,2022 free of
charge pay

» Social Security Scheme which consists of medical
service fees and medical services other than the fixed
amount or additional payments for high-cost diseases
including the rate of medical services according to the
risk burden and medical service rates according to
service rates. In 2020, the form of payment of medical
services is a lump sum payment based on the number
of insured persons at a rate of 1,640 baht for general
medical treatment, a risk burden of 453 baht, including
a payment for Medical services according to Diagnosis
Related Groups (DRGs) with Adjusted Relative Weight
(Adj Rw) values greater than or equal to 2 in the past,
medical expenses under the Social Security Scheme
will be considered. Adjust every 2-3 years depending
on service rate and service cost.

* Universal Health Insurance Program In 2014-
2015, the Cabinet approved a per-capita budget In
2020, the government’s policy is to provide a per capita
budget of 1,242.68 baht per person per year. Interna-
tional has separated Fai Chai from the universal health
insurance program in September 2020.

* National Health Security Scheme, In case of
emergency sickness, crisis of COVID-19 (UCEP COVID
19) is open for private establishments for screening
and laboratory testing to confirm COVID-19 infection by
being a network laboratory that has passed laboratory
proficiency testing at certified professional standards
If the patient is found positive (Positive) if the private
care facility Has the potential to treat the coronavirus
disease 2019 Patients should be treated to avoid danger
according to professional standards without conditions
for collecting medical expenses from patients Howev-
er, the payment conditions are in accordance with the
announcement of the National Health Security Board.

3. Vichaivej Hospital Group is studying overseas
business operations to expand foreign customer base
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in different countries through a network of agents and
business partners abroad In addition, preparations for
serving foreign customers have been started, such
as recruiting staff with knowledge of the language for
additional training may cause a change in the revenue
structure This affects the profitability of the hospital
group in the future.

4. Changes in revenue structure to focus more on
revenue from general customers, including internal
business expansion and joint ventures with partners to
expand hospital branches.

Vichaivej Hospital Group is a business expansion
plan focusing on increasing the number of general cus-
tomers which pays for services according to the actual
treatment, such as insurance company customers, life
insurance and general customers, etc., and planning
policies and marketing strategies that are suitable for
such goals including building a good relationship with
various insurance companies to build a network includ-
ing the confidence of the Vichaivej Hospital Group.

5. Increasing demand for medical care

The long-term outlook for the private hospital busi-
ness can continue to grow from the increasing elderly
population an increase in per capita income especially
in provincial areas. The people’s emphasis on main-
taining good health for a long, quality life. There are
also positive factors from the demand for medical care
of foreign patients who come to receive health care in
Thailand (Medical Tourism) from the cost-effectiveness
of medical expenses and the good quality of medical
care.

The above factors are factors supporting the strategy
of the Company and its subsidiaries. by increasing the
potential for medical treatment Expanding the market
for general customers with medical technology new
service offerings regularly, including the readiness to
add medical personnel Focusing on the development
of service excellence Adding a Clinic Medical treatment
to cover all diseases The service is open 24 hours to
support the expansion of the customer group in the
future.
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General Information and Other
Importance Information

5.1 General Information

Srivichai Vejvivat Public Company Limited

Type of Business Private Hospital operating under the name “Vichaivej International Omnoi Hospital”

Location 74/5 Moo 4, Phetkasem Road, Omnoi Subdistrict, Krathumbaen District,
Samutsakhon Province 74130

Telephone Number (+662) 441-7899 and Hotline 1792

Facsimile (+662) 431-1404 First Trade Date 09 May 2012

Website www.vichaivej.com Par Value 1.00 Baht

E-mail bod@vichaivej.com Common Stock

Number of beds 196 beds Authorized Capital 570,666,666.00 Baht

Registration Number 0107554000062 Paid-up Capital 570,665,433.00 Baht

General Information of Subsidiary Companies

Saivichai Development Company Limited

Type of Business Private Hospital operating under the name “Vichaivej International Nongkhaem Hospital”
Location 456-456/8 Phetkasem Road, NongkhangPlue Subdistrict,Nongkhaem District, Bangkok 10160
Telephone Number (+662) 441-6999

Facsimile (+662) 421-1784 Registered Capital 150,000,000 Baht

Website www.vichaivej.com Paid-up Capital 150,000,000 Baht

E-mail nongkhaem@vichaivej.com Common Stock 30,000,000 shares

Number of Beds 118 beds Par Value 5.00 Baht

Registration Number 0105530047130 The proportion of shares held by VIH ~ 99.43%

Srisakorn Vejavivat Company Limited

Type of Business Private Hospital operating under the name “Vichaivej International Samutsakhon Hospital”

Location 93/256 Mahachai Intersection, Sethakit 1 Road, Tasai Subdistrict, Muang Samutsakorn
District, Samutsakhon Province 74000

Telephone Number (+6634) 410-700-6 Registered Capital 99,200,000 Baht

Facsimile (+6634) 410-710 Paid-up Capital 99,200,000 Baht

Website www.vichaivej.com Common Stock 19,840,000 shares

E-mail samutsakhon@vichaivej.com Par Value 5.00 Baht

Number of Beds 120 beds The proportion of shares held by VIH 99.56%

Registration Number 0105537019778
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Bangkok Orthopedic Hospital Company Limited

Type of Business Private Hospital operating under the name “Vichaivej Yaekfaichai Hospital”

Location 240/2-4 Charunsanitwong Road, Banchanghlor, Bangkoknoi, Bangkok 10700
Telephone Number (+662) 412 0055-60

Facsimile (+662) 412 7581-2 Registered Capital 9,000,000 Baht

Website www.vichaivej.com Paid-up Capital 9,000,000 Baht

E-mail yaekfaichai@vichaivej.com Common Stock 90,000 shares

Number of Beds 49 beds Par Value 100 Baht

Registration Number 0105525008687 The proportion of shares held by VIH 99.99%

Srivichai Vocational School Company Limited

Type of Business Occupational School operating to produce child and senior caretaker personnel

Location 74/5 Moo 4, Phetkasem Road, Omnoi Subdistrict, Krathumbaen District, Samutsakhon
74130

Telephone Number (+662) 441-7899 Ext. 1703 Registered Capital 100,000 Baht

Facsimile (+662) 431-1404 Paid-up Capital 100,000 Baht

Website www.srivichai.ac.th Common Stock 20,000 shares

E-mail teacher@srivichai.ac.th Par Value 5.00 Baht

Registration Number 0745553005535 The proportion of shares held by VIH ~ 99.98%

References

Securities Registrar Thailand Securities Depository Company Limited

93 Ratchadaphisek Road, Dindaeng,Bangkok 10400, Thailand
Tel. 02-009-9999 Fax 02-009-9991

Auditor EY OFFICE COMPANY LIMITED
33rd Floor, Lake Rajada Office Complex 193/136-137 New Rajadapisek Road
Klongtoey District, Bangkok 10110, Thailand Tel. 02-264-0777Fax 02-264-0789-90

Legal advisor SURIN SUSAWAD
Law Office Surin Susawad and friends
27 Soi Somdet Phrachao Taksin 13, Bukkhalo Sub-district, Thonburi District, Bangkok 10600

5.2 Other Importance Information
- None -

5.3 Legal dispute

As of December 31, 2022, the Company and its subsidiaries no legal disputes which may cause damage to the
Company and its subsidiaries More than 5% of the shareholders’ equity and no other legal disputes that may have
a significant impact on business operations

5.4 The company has only one securities listed on the Stock Exchange
of Thailand

5.5 The company does not issue debt securities in 2022
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Corporate Governance Policy

The Company realizes the importance of compliance
with corporate governance principles. Therefore, a pol-
icy has been established and principles of corporate
governance. The company has strictly operated in ac-
cordance with the principles of corporate governance
and has adopted the principles of good corporate
governance for listed companies (Corporate Gover-
nance Code: CG Code) established by the Securities
and Exchange Commission, including guidelines from
the Company’s good corporate governance policy to
apply more by applying the principles of good corporate
governance for listed companies in 2017 to be applied
as appropriate to the business context of the company
as much as possible and set additional guidelines that
the company should take to make improvements to suit
the company’s circumstances which has laid down the
principles of practice for the Board of Directors, 8 main
points are:

1. Establishing clear leadership role and responsibil-
ities of the Board, contributing to the sustainable value
creation for the business;

2. Defining objectives and goals that promote sus-
tainable value creation;

3. Enhancing the Board effectiveness;

4. Ensuring effective CEO and people management;

5. Nurturing innovation and responsible business;

6. Strengthening effective risk management and
internal control system;

7. Ensuring disclosure and maintaining financial
integrity;

8. Ensuring engagement and communication with
shareholders.

In addition, the company has established additional
guidelines that should be revised to suit the company,
such as reviewing the anti-corruption policy, adding
roles duties and responsibilities of the Corruption Risk
Committee Disclosure and Transparency including
taking into account the roles of stakeholders more
clearly.
governance principles for listed companies. There are
some guidelines that the Board of Directors considers
and should not be applied as they are still inappropriate

However, in the review of good corporate

to the context of the Company and a complicated. The
reasons were recorded as part of the Board'’s resolution.
In addition, the Company has established measures and
guidelines for supervision by other methods in order to
achieve good corporate governance in that matter.

6.1 The Overview of the Corporate
Governance Policy and Guidelines

The company respects the rights of shareholders,

equitable and accountable to stakeholders to make
organizational structure, workflow and process man-
agement and operational efficiency. Which is Board
of Directors and management have a vision and have
responsible for the company’s transparency, ethics and
accountability including the adequacy of the internal
control and monitoring systems.
The Company has had a clearly written corporate
governance policy and requires that one responsibility
of directors, executives, and employees of Company
and its affiliates is to acknowledge and comply with this
policy. The Company is to regularly revise the policy,
principles, and guidelines in line with its strategies and
the approach of corporate governance for listed compa-
nies under the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET). Last
updated in 2016, the policy together with its guidelines
underwent amendment this year. The contents are now
more clearly classified, encompassing key corporate
governance principles. The Company publicized the
revised policy, principles, and guidelines on its www.
vichaivej.com to enable those interested to examine
and download them. Below are the elements of the
corporate governance policy by the principle comprises
of 5 categories, namely:

1. Rights of Shareholders

2. Equitable Treatment of Shareholders

3. Role of Stakeholders

4. Disclosure and Transparency

5. Responsibilities of the Board of Directors
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The Company recognizing and valuing the principles
of good corporate governance, the Company strictly
conform to the rules and regulations in accordance
to the corporate governance principles, which can be
divided into five articles as follows:

Article 1: Right of Shareholders

The protection of rights of shareholders and facilitate
to exercise their rights on various matters as follows:

1.1 Shareholders’ rights protection policy

The Board of Directors values the rights of share-
holders and encourages shareholders to exercise their
rights including basic rights of the shareholders by law
namely the right to sell, buy, or transfer shares; the right
to receive the dividend equally; the right to receive
sufficient information; the right to attend shareholders’
meetings; the right to propose an agenda; the right to
vote at shareholders’ meeting to appoint or dismiss
directors; determine the remuneration of directors;
appointment of auditor and determine the audit fee; and
determine issues that fundamentally affects the Com-
pany, which may include any changes to the articles
of association, memorandum of associations and the
decrease or increase share capital and the approval
of any special items.

The Board of Directors also set the best practice to
look after the interest of shareholders beyond their basic
legal rights by providing the right to get any significant
Company information on a timely and sufficient basis
such as the results of operations, analysis of its opera-
tions, the credit rating, and newsletter to shareholders
via the company’s Home Page that is accessible and
convenient

1.2 Shareholders’ Meeting

The Company has scheduled Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders 1 time within 4 months after
the fiscal year. If there is an urgent matter that relates
to certain conditions, rules or applicable law that needs
shareholders’ approval, the Company will call an Ex-
traordinary General Meeting of Shareholders.
The Board of Directors has a policy to support and en-
courage all types of shareholders, including institutional
shareholders to attend the shareholders’ meeting by
requiring the invitation letter of Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders to clarify on details about registration
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procedures and documents used to register for each
type of shareholders including 3 types of proxy consist-
ing of Form A, Form B and Form C. Meeting documents
can be downloaded through Company’s website at
least 30 days before the meeting. By the year 2022, the
Company’s Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
on April 22, 2022 and has published a Notice of AGM
complete both in Thailand and in English on the website
of the Company on March 21, 2022.

1.2.1 Pre-proceeding of the Meeting

+ The General Meeting of Shareholders for the
year 2022 the Company provided an opportunity for
shareholders to propose agenda items, nominate can-
didates for director appointment, and send questions
during October 11 to December 31,2022. At the end
of such period, there were no shareholders proposing
agenda, candidate, or submit question in advance of
the meeting.

*  On February 24, 2022, the Company published
the resolution of the Board of Directors regarding the
General Meeting of Shareholders via SET's news and
the Company’s website and scheduled the 2022 Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders on April 22, 2022 at
9.00 AM. The Company set the Record Date, on which
shareholders have the rights to attend and to cast vote
in the 2022 AGM, on 10 March 2022

+ The Company prepares the Notice of the Annual
General Meeting of shareholders and related doc-
uments in both Thai and English languages (for the
convenience of foreign shareholders) with complete
details, including information about the date, time , and
location of the meeting, meeting agenda with a state-
ment indicating the reasons and opinion of the board
of directors, issues to take into consideration, proxy
forms as set by the Ministry of Commerce, rules and
procedures in attendance and the process of voting on
each agenda.

» The Company published the Notice of the 2022
Annual General Meeting together with the meeting’s
supporting documents in both Thai and English lan-
guages via SET’'s news and the Company’s website
on March 21, 2022 or 31 days before the meeting.
Thailand Securities Depository Company Limited (TSD)
was appointed to be registrar to send the Notice of the
2022 Annual General Meeting to shareholders through
registered post since March 29, 2022, or 23 days before
the meeting.
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+ The Company discloses the Notice of Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders to shareholders and
enclosures through the SET’s news and Company’s
Home Page at least 21 days before the meeting. The
Company sends the Notice and enclosures to the
shareholders by registered mail at least 21 days before
the meeting, which over the time period set by law. The
Notice of Annual General Meeting of Shareholders will
be advertised in the daily newspapers in the English
version and Thai version for 3 consecutive days and 3
days before the meeting.

1.2.2 Proceeding of the Meeting

* The Company sets date, time, and place of the
meeting of shareholders with consideration to the con-
venience of the shareholders. The place of the meeting
is adequate and easy access (accessible by public
bus).and The Company allows shareholders to register
for the meeting 2 hours before the meeting starts and
organizes easy document checking system.

* The Company held the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders for the year 2022 on Friday, 22 April 2022
at 9.00 AM at Vichaivej International Hospital Omnoi
No. 74/5 Moo 4 Phetkasem Road, Kratumbaen, Samut
Sakorn. There were 52 shareholders attending the Meet-
ing in person and by proxy, accounted for 423,289,152
shares representing 74.17% of the shares sold.

» Board of Directors, Chief executive officer Chair-
man of various subcommittees, Chief financial officer,
auditors, financial advisor and legal advisor attended
the meeting as the names appeared in the minutes of
the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for the year
2022. After the meeting, the company published the
resolutions of the meeting and the voting results of each
agenda on Friday, April 22, 2022. The Company has
published the minutes of the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders for the year 2022 through the news system
of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and the company’s
website on May 6, 2022

+ The Company provides the use of a proxy form
by shareholders who are unable to attend the meeting
to appoint a person or an independent director to attend
the meeting and cast votes on their behalf. Shareholders
can use the Proxy Form A., B., or C. (for Custodian) as
specified by Department of Business Development or
the Proxy Forms provided in the Company’s Website.
The Company encourages shareholders to use Proxy
Form B, which send together with the Notice of the
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AGM, the required documents/evidence, and the proxy
instruction to shareholders. In addition, shareholders
can download Proxy Forms via the Company’s web-
site. In 2022, due to the coronavirus disease epidemic
(COVID-19) situation the Company encourages share-
holders to consider appointing independent directors.
Instead of attending the meeting in person.

* The Company allows shareholders to register for
the meeting 2 hours for the meeting, to arrange a system
for checking documents that are not complicated which
was informed to the shareholders in advance in the
meeting invitation letter. The Company uses information
technology (computer systems and bar code) and the
ballot (every agenda) at the shareholders’ meeting for
the registration of shareholders, vote counting, and vote
result for fast, accurate, and reliable information.

* The Company provides a duty stamping service
in the proxy form to the proxies attending the meeting.
There is no service fee charged at the registration point
in order to reduce the cost of procuring stamp duty of
the shareholders.

* The Company has screened employees, execu-
tives, Board of Directors, shareholders before entering
the meeting, by checking ATK and body temperature
of all attendees at the entrance of the building and
in front of the meeting room. In case that a person is
found at risk with a temperature of 37.5 degrees or
have respiratory symptoms, or indications that may
cause suspected COVID-19 virus infection or any other
illnesses or indications that may be at risk of COVID-19
infection. The company reserves the right not to allow
enter the meeting room and kindly request the share-
holders and proxies to consider granting a proxy to the
director. In the case of concealing health information
or travel history, it is considered an offense under the
Communicable Disease Act B.E. 2558

* The Company uses information technology
(computer systems and bar code) and the ballot (every
agenda) at the shareholders’ meeting for the registration
of shareholders, vote counting, and vote result for fast,
accurate, and reliable information.

« Chairman, directors, chief executive officer,
managing director, Chairman of various committees,
and auditors are required to attend the shareholders’
meeting to provide answers to any questions related
to their scope In the General Meeting of Shareholders
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for the year 2022, there were 12 directors attending the
meeting out of the total number of 12 directors repre-
senting 100.00%.

* Volunteers from the meeting of shareholders
(independent parties) act on behalf of the meeting to
count or check the votes at the Annual General Meeting
or the Extraordinary General Meeting of shareholders.

» Voting is separate for each matter. For example,
for the election of directors, the shareholders can vote
for each director individually.

* The Company notifies the guideline of the pro-
cedure of the meetings of shareholders, including the
procedure of casting vote and the right to vote (with
Shareholders having 1 vote for 1 share), to the share-
holders at the start of the meeting,

* The Company holds clear and transparent vote
counting and disclosure of voting results in each agen-
da at the meeting of shareholders.

» Agenda other than those specified in the Notice of
meeting must not be raised and no significant changes
may be made to the agendas specified without prior
notice to the shareholders.

1.2.3 After the shareholders’ meeting

+ The Company publishes the resolutions of the
shareholders’ meeting and voting results of each agen-
da item through the Stock Exchange of Thailand and the
Company’s Home Page on the next date of the Annual
General Meeting of shareholders.

«  The Company prepares minutes of shareholders
that are accurate and complete for submission to the
Stock Exchange of Thailand and publish on the Com-
pany’s Home Page within 14 days from the date of the
meeting.

The Company must prepare the minutes of the
shareholder’'s meeting and shall notify SET within 14
days after the meeting, in accordance with the SET
regulations, and disseminate full details of the meeting.
This includes complete and appropriate records of the
meeting, voting and questioning process of the share-
holders in each session, along with the allocation of
video recordings of the AGM for their acknowledgment
in the Company’s website.

76

s18v1uUs:91U 2565
USBN AS3G8I0BIIU DR (UNIBU)

Article 2: Equitable Treatment of
Shareholders

The Company realizes the importance of equitable
treatment of shareholders both major and minor share-
holders. No shareholder shall have any special privileg-
es over other shareholders. The Company undertakes
the following actions:

2.1 Measures to prevent the use of inside information

The buying or selling of a security by an individual
who has access to material information about the se-
curity when such information is still nonpublic. Trading
while having special knowledge is unfair to other investors
who don’t have access to the knowledge.

The directors, employees, consultants and other
persons that work for the company. And related persons
(spouse, children, underage. Employees and any other
person having control or influence investment deci-
sions). Intends to invest in the shares of the Company.
Employees must not buy or sell shares of the Company
at the time of the Company defines it as “Black out
Period” the period of three days before the disclosure
of quarterly and annual financial statements and, within
24 hours after the disclosure of financial statements to
the public. And although the company is not defined
as a “Black out Period” before the announcement of
quarterly or annual. Employees who know the results of
operations of the Company, whether directly or indirect-
ly, Must realize that he possesses inside information of
the Company and are not allowed to buy or sell shares
of the Company until the Company has been publicly
disclosed financial results.

For the year 2022, the Company has no events that
directors, executives, employees, and related persons
violated rules of the use of inside information or traded
securities by using inside information.

2.2 Governance on the conflict of interest

The Company may in the course of its operation
create a conflict of interest with its directors, executives,
managers, and employees. Such conflict of interest may
appear in different forms. Therefore for the best interest
of the Company, the following guidelines regarding the
conflict of interests are stipulated as follows:

+  The Company’s directors, executives, managers,
and staff members at all levels shall not personally
receive any money or benefits from the Company’s cus-
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tomers or business partners, or from any other people
when working on behalf of the Company.

+ The Company personnel should not behave in a
manner that may pose a conflict of interest, and should
always recognize that they have an interest or benefit
in the performance.

» The Company should not support the corruption
such as grafting, receiving gifts or any benefits which
are not appropriate. If examination and meet such ac-
tions will be punished according to the regulations of
the company.

* The Company has provided training to all em-
ployees by provide training 1 time per year and an
orientation for new employees to be knowledgeable
about the policies and practices of the anti-corruption

2.3 Engaging in Business with Companies within the
group

For connected transactions where directors, exec-
utives, managers and employees may have a conflict
of interest, such persons shall disclose any conflict of
interest to the Company prior to engaging in the con-
nected transaction. Director, manager or employees,
who have conflict of interest, may not participate in
the consideration or approval of the connected trans-
action. The authorized person who acts on behalf of
the Company shall investigate and review whether the
Company’s directors, executives, managers, or em-
ployees have any relationship and conflicts of interest
on such transaction. The definition of relationships shall
be in accordance with “the Disclosure of Information
and Other Acts of Listed Companies Concerning the
Connected Transactions” set by the Stock Exchange of
Thailand and The Office of The Securities and Exchange
Commission.

2.4 Related party transactions amongst companies
within the Group

The consideration of related party transactions shall
be taken under the conditions and procedures of the
Notification of the Board of Governors of the Stock Ex-
change of Thailand and the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC). The connected transaction shall be
dealt on a fair and arm’s length basis and taking into
account the Company’s best interests. The stakeholders
who have conflict of interest must not participate in the
approval or consideration the transaction. The related
party transactions will be disclosed in the annual report
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(Form 56-1 One Report)and Annual Registration State-
ment (Form 56-1)
2.5 Conflict of interest of Directors

The Company has stipulated that the directors and
executives, including their related persons must prepare
and submit a report on the interests, connected trans-
actions and acquisition or disposal of assets belonging
to themselves or their related persons to the Company
under the Capital Market Commission’s and the Stock
Exchange of Thailand’s regulations. Then the report will
be proposed to the Board of Directors’ or shareholders’
meeting for approval. The directors will not participate
or vote on the agenda related to their own interests.

Article 3: Role of Stakeholder

The company with a focus on rights of stakeholders
of the company by recognizing relationships and good
cooperation between the company and its stakeholders
are factors that enable the company to grow sustainably.

The Company realizes the rights of all stakeholders
of the Company, namely shareholders, employees,
customers, trade partners, competitors, creditors, as well
as society and environment. With determination to ensure
that such rights are protected and treated fairly.

3.1 Equitable Treatment of Stakeholders

The Company, as a representative of the share-
holders, is committed to conducting business with
transparency, to put in place reliable financial and ac-
counting systems, and to deliver optimum shareholder
satisfaction.

3.1.1. Shareholders

The Company recognizes that shareholders are
owners. The Company has created value for share-
holders over the long term, the Company’s policy to
code of conduct business with honesty and integrity,
morality and ethics. The Company will use the best
efforts to develop the business to grow and create a
good return on investment for shareholders, continuous
and sustainable.

The Company has established policies and practices
for the Company’s stakeholders, which are share-
holders, employees, customers, business partners,
competitors, trade creditors, society and environment.
In order to make the business of the company run with
stability and meet fair benefits to all parties.



56-1 ONE REPORT

Srivichaivejvivat Public Company Limited

3.1.2. Employees

The staff is a key factor in the business, be it in any
part of either party. The Company must contribute to
the promotion and support of employees to maximize
the benefits of the Company, as a guideline for good
practice and to develop and build confidence among
employees

The Company is committed to the practice of law
and regulations on employment with important policy
that provide opportunity in employment to all persons
equally. Begin with the searching process to hire the
person to work with. Recruitment, staffing, training and
development can be transferred by us to recruit people
with talent and experience to meet the Company needs
to join or organization. And realize that the importance
of the promotion, suitable compensation and benefits
are based on the performance of employees. The Com-
pany has established a provident fund to take care of
employees in long-term.

The company cares about employees and safety in
various aspects, including hygiene and have a good
environment, therefore, set the guidelines to ensure
safety in the workplace as required by law and has set
principles related to the environment, health, with a
committee of safety, occupational health and working
environment. For safety, occupational health and envi-
ronmentin the workplace. In the past year, the company
has organized training to train employees about of work
safety. The company has taken care of the health of
employees such as organizing annual health check-
ups, influenza vaccination Vaccine against Covid-19,
accident insurance ,a place to exercise for employees
to relax from work and other activities.

3.1.3. Customers

The Company recognizes the importance of customer
satisfaction as a key success of our business. The inten-
tion to seek ways to meet customer needs effectively.
We have set forth the following policies and procedures
delivering quality products and services and to meet or
exceed the expectations of customers.

3.1.4. Partners and / or Creditors
Itis our policy to treat partners and / or creditors equally
and fairly and attain the best interest of the Company
and a fair return of both parties without any conflict of
interest. Using correct information to solve the problem
and find a solution based on the business relationship.
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3.1.5. Competitors

It is our policy to treat competitors in accordance with
international principles and within the framework of
competition law practices that does not violate the con-
fidentiality of trade secrets or know how to partner with
fraud and comply with the rules of the competition well.
As well as non-confidential information to competitors
by means of dishonest or improper.

3.1.6. Community and Environment

Company policy is doing business in all respects
to be legitimate, strict principles with social respon-
sibility. The Company expects its employees to learn
and comply with all applicable laws and policies of the
Company. Related to their responsibilities and observe
the instructions exactly in this Business Ethics and Code
of conduct.

3.2 Anti-corruption

The company intends to conduct business with
loyalty, transparency and responsibility in alignment
with the principle of Corporate Governance. Moreover,
the company also emphasizes on building and sup-
porting the Corporate Governance to be happened in
our organization which the Board of Directors and all
staffs could follow and take account of benefits. Thus,
the company sets the Anti-corruption Policy to resist all
corruption cases and be aware of corruption’s risks that
affect to economic and social development. To make
sure that the company has set the policy to determine
proper responsibility, regulation and action to prevent
corruption from all business transactions, the company
forms the written Anti-corruption Policy to be an ap-
parent approaches in performing business. Moreover,
the company participated in the declaration of intent in
Collective Action Coalition of Thai private sector in order
to preventing corruption.

Srivichai Vejvivat Public Company Limited would
like to announce that the Board of Directors, committee
and all staffs of the company and subsidiary companies
shall not operate any actions which associated with
corruption both in direct and indirect manner in order to
benefits the organization and business corporation in-
cluding individuals, families, friends and acquaintances.
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Bribe taker or even giver who offers money or not money
to the public organization or private organization which
had contacted with our company would be conformed
effectively to the Anti-corruption policy. Moreover, The
Anti-corruption Policy is needed to be reviewed regular-
ly, including the guideline revision which would be done
according to changes of business, order, regulation and
laws. Any violation operating or accepting of corruption
need to consider discipline followed by the company’s
policy.

In 2021 The Corporate Governance Committee fol-
lowing up on the compliance with the Anti-Corruption
Policy of the Company which has been approved and
approved by the Board of Directors meeting. Including
announcements for all departments to know and follow
moreover, the Anti-Corruption policy is published on the
Company’s website. Jointly review the internal control
system of the company according to the guidelines
set out in the self-assessment form on anti-corruption
measures and conduct audits of various departments
That it has been performed in an appropriate, correct
and complete method according to the guidelines set
outin the Self-Assessment on Anti-Corruption measures
and announced guidelines for dealing with giving and
receiving gifts during the festival So that the directors,
executives and employees of the company Adhere to
practice in the same way As well as communicating to
business partners, customers and business stakehold-
ers of the Group And announced on the Company’s
website. And In 2022, it was certified for the 1st renewal
from March 31, 2022 - March 31, 2025.

3.3 Whistle-Blowing Service

The Company recognizes and appreciates the
importance of strengthening relationships and under-
standing of all groups of the Company’s stakeholders,
namely shareholders, customers, trading partners,
creditors, executives and employees of the Company
as well as those who get affected by the Company’s
operations, may file a complaint with or provide infor-
mation to the Company when witnessing, knowing or
doubting or having reasonable grounds to believe in
good faith that employees or the Company breach
or violated laws, rules, regulations, good corporate
governance principles, business code of conduct,
policies and procedures which may result in damage
to the Company. Complainants can file their cases by
clearly spelling out “Confidential” through the following
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channels:

To Chairman of the Audit Committee / Independent
Director
Srivichai Vejvivat Public Company Limited
74/5 Moo 4, Phetkasem Road, Omnoi Subdistrict,
Krathumbaen District, Samutsakhon Province 74130
Telephone Number (+662) 441-7899 ext. 4526
E-mail:  montriwat@hotmail.com

Or Company Secretary
Srivichai Vejvivat Public Company Limited
74/5 Moo 4, Phetkasem Road, Omnoi Subdistrict,
Krathumbaen District, Samutsakhon Province 74130
Telephone Number (+662) 441-7899 ext. 1149
E-Mail: shares@vichaivej.com / bod@vichaivej.com

The Company has a process in place for dealing with
complaints from employees by considering whether the
complaint concerns a wrongful act and how serious the
offense is in order to impose a fair and accurate penalty.
The employees can report complaints or feedback directly
through the Company’s email.

The Company provide confidence for the person
who report complaints, the Company strictly keeps all
complaints confidential and establishes a process of re-
ceiving a complaint and an investigation procedure where
the complaints will be only be disclosed to the relevant
people. The management division will collect complaints
and present them to the audit and risk management
committees for its consideration.

In the year 2022, the Company had no complaint in
relation to fraud or ethical misconduct or any incident that
may cause negative reputation to the Company as the
result from the administration of the Board of Directors.
Non-executive directors of the Company did not resign
due to any CG misconduct. There is no legal dispute on
labor issue, consumer right, or business trading activity.

3.4 Policy on Intellectual Property and Copyright

The Company recognizes the importance of the in-
tellectual property and copy rights of third parties. The
Company will comply with the legal requirements on intel-
lectual property and copy rights. Employees must check
beforehand that the work or information that belongs to
third parties can be used within the Company without
violating the intellectual property of others.
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3.5 Human Rights Policy

The Board of Directors to focus on human rights by
adhering to the business operations of the Company in
accordance with the law, including human rights, which
is a basic right that humans are born with equality. As well
as promoting the awareness and consciousness of rights
and duties and their responsibilities towards the society and
other persons with the policies and guidelines to follow.

Article 4: Disclosure and transparency

The company to focus on the disclosure of important
information about the company correctly, completely.
And timely, which includes important information such as
financial position, operating performance, shareholding
structure and corporate governance practices of the
company as follows.

4.1 Disclosure Policy

The Board of Directors discloses all important informa-
tion including both financial and non-financial information
correctly, timely, and accurately in accordance with reg-
ulations of the “Securities and Exchange Commission”
(SEC), the “Stock Exchange of Thailand” (SET) re: Rules,
Conditions and Procedures Governing the Disclosure of
Information and Other Acts of a Listed Company and the
Guidelines on Disclosure of Information of Listed Compa-
nies, and other state agencies.

In the year 2022, the Company has complied with
the principles of good corporate governance. There is
no record of delayed report submission under section
56 for both form 56-1 and form 56-2, including quarterly
and yearly financial statements.

4.2 Channel Disclosure

The Company provides a wide variety of channels
for users to access fairly. The information is published
both in Thai and English languages through the following
channels:

* SET's news

» Annual Report (Form 56-1 One Report)

« Company’s website (www.vichaivej.com)
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4.3 Information Disclosure Policy or Interview with the
Press or Public

The Company has policy to provide information, media
advertisement, or public release in a clear and correct
manner without misinterpretation. The disclosure infor-
mation is intended to create better understanding about
the Company to all stakeholders based on the aspects
of completely, timely, and fairly communication.

4.4 Investor Relations Department

The Company has established an IR Department (In-
vestor Relations) to be responsible for the disclosure of
information and any activities of the Company to its share-
holders, investors, analysts and the general public. The
channels include the Company’s Home Page, quarterly
performance meeting, analysts meeting, conference call,
road show in Thailand and abroad, etc. The Company
also prepares the Management Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A) on a quarterly basis and IR Newsletter, which
published on SET’s website and the Company’s website,
to provide investors and general public for better under-
standing of the Company’s performance. Unauthorized
persons are not allow to provide information to the media
or the public in any way which may affect the reputation
and business operations of the Company.

Investors may contact the Investor Relations Depart-
ment at 024417899 ext. 1707, 1708 or shares@vichaive;.
com / bod@vichaivej.com

Article 5: Responsibilities of the

Board of Directors

The company to focus on the role and functions of
the Board in guiding the direction of the company’s
operations, including monitoring the performance of
management and the board of its responsibility towards
the company and its shareholders as follows

5.1 Board of Directors’ Meeting

5.1.1 Attendance of the Meeting

The Board of Directors shall have regular meetings
every month. The meeting schedule is set outin advance
since January of each year and designated to be Friday
the 3 rd of every month. (not less than 6 times per year).
The office of Company Secretary shall notify each director
about the schedule and agenda in advance. However,
the schedule of meetings can be changed based on
the significance of the agenda items to be considered.
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In 2022, the company has provided the Board of Directors
of a total of 15 times by attending the AGM 1 time and the
special meeting 2 times.

5.1.2 Meeting Agenda

The chairman, chairman of executive committee will to-
gether determine the agenda to ensure that all significant
matters are included. The directors have the opportunity
to freely propose agendas at the meeting that will benefit
the Company.

5.1.3 Meeting Documents

The Board of Directors assigns the Company Secre-
tary to prepare and send the supporting documents for
the meeting to the directors for their consideration atleast
7 working days prior to the meeting.

5.1.4 The Meeting
The Chairman will allocate sufficient time to consider
the issues in each agenda of the meeting.

5.1.5 Invite management to attend the Meeting

The Board of Directors encourages the invitation of
senior management to attend the Board’s meetings to
provide additional insights into the agenda items being
discussed because of their personal involvement in these
areas and to give the opportunity to meet the Board of Di-
rectors for their further consideration of a succession plan.

5.1.6 Meeting with Non-Executive Directors

The Board of Directors encourages non-executive
directors to independently meet and discuss interested
matters among themselves without the management
participation. The results of the meeting should be notified
to the Managing Director.

5.2 Performance Evaluation of the Board of Directors

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee set up
evaluation of the Board of Directors, Sub-Committee and
Chief Executive Officer at least once a year and disclose
criteria, procedures, and result of the evaluation in the
annual report.

5.2.1 Performance Evaluation of the Board of Directors
Criteria

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall
set up an annual performance evaluation of the Board
of Directors at least once a year based on the self-
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assessment guideline provided by the Stock Exchange
of Thailand and to adapt it to fit the Company’s structure.
The self-assessment serves as a framework to monitor the
performance of the duties of the Board of Directors, pro-
mote collaborative analysis of the operational results and
problems which occurred in the operation of business,
create good corporate governance and to subsequently
disclose the criteria, procedures, and the evaluation result
in the annual report.

Criteria in the performance evaluation of the Board of
Directors are as follows:

» Structure and qualifications of the Board

* Roles and responsibilities of the Board

* Meeting of the Board

» Act of duties of directors

* Relationship with the management

+ Self-development of directors and development of
executives

Criteria in the performance evaluation of the individual
Board of Directors are as follows:

» Structure and qualifications of the Board

* Meeting of the Board

» Roles and responsibilities of the Board

Procedures

The Company shall arrange the performance evalu-
ation of the Board of Directors annually to evaluate the
previous year operation. The Company Secretary will
distribute the evaluation form to each director and present
it to the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and to
propose it to the Board of Directors for its consideration. The
Company shall also use any recommendations on the per-
formance evaluation to improve effectiveness of the Board’s
operation and maximize the benefits of corporate governance.

Result
The performance evaluation results of the board of direc-
tors as a group for the year 2022 are divided into 6 main
topics, totaling 60 topics, with performed “Excellent”.
Including the results of the individual committee self-as-
sessment for the year 2022, divided into 3 main topics,
11 subjects, with performed “Excellent

5.2.2 Performance evaluation of the sub-committee

Criteria

The Board of Directors shall evaluate the performance
of each sub-committee at least 1 time per year on their
leadership, roles and responsibilities, and to setits policy,
practice, meeting, management, and relationships with
involved persons.



56-1 ONE REPORT

Srivichaivejvivat Public Company Limited

Procedures

The Company has evaluated the performance of each
of the committees annually to analyses the previous year
operation. The Company Secretary will distribute the
evaluation form to the Chief Executive Officer to evaluate
the performance of each sub-committee and present it to
the Board of Directors for its consideration.

Result

Result of Performance evaluation of the sub-committee
for the year 2022. The criteria for the evaluation represent
the percentage in each article as “Very Good”

5.2.3 Performance evaluation of the Chief Executive
Officer

Criteria

The Board of Directors shall evaluate the performance
of the Chief Executive Officer at least once a year on
their leadership, set up and implementation of strategy,
planning and financial performance, relationship with the
Board of Directors, outsiders, and employees, operational
management and relationship with other personnel, suc-
cession plan, knowledge on product and service, risk
management and internal control, corporate governance
and business ethics, personal characteristics based on
the assessment guideline provided by the Stock Ex-
change of Thailand.

Procedures

The Company has evaluated the performance of Chief
Executive Officer annually to analyses the previous year
operation. The Company Secretary will distribute the
evaluation form to independent directors or non-executive
directors or Nomination and Remuneration Committee to
evaluate the performance and to subsequently present it
to the Board of Directors for its consideration.

Result

Results of the evaluation of the Chief Executive Offi-
cer (CEO) for the year 2022 had an average the rating
Excellent”

5.3 Development of Directors and Executives

5.3.1 Development of Directors and Executives

The Board of Directors has a policy to support and
facilitate training and learning for its directors and ex-
ecutives to ensure their continued improvement and
performance, both internal and external training courses.
All directors must attend training for understanding of
performance of their duties in the capacity as directors
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5.3.2 Succession policy

The Board of Directors assigns the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee to prepare a succession plan
for the position of CEOQ/President to ensure that the Com-
pany is managed at all the time by CEO with appropriate
competency and skills. The Company is also assigned
Human Resource Department provide a succession plan
for executive and management level position in order to
prepare in case they cannot perform. The Nomination
and Remuneration Committee has prepared a succes-
sion plan for the position of Chief Executive Officer. The
management has sent people who will be successors
to important positions to attend various training courses,
such as Director Certification Program (DCP), senior ex-
ecutive courses in city development management, senior
executive program in Urban ,Management Medical Gov-
ernance Diploma Program for high-ranking executives,
in order to have a successor with knowledge, ability,
experience and other qualifications that benefits to the
Company and its subsidiaries

5.3.3 Orientation for New Directors and Enhancement
of Business Knowledge

The Board of Directors assigns the secretary of the
Board of Directors to prepare information for all new direc-
tors so as to inform them of the business information of the
Company, a director’s roles, duties and responsibilities
and compliance with the Company’s Corporate Gover-
nance Policy and practices. Simultaneously encourage
all directors to have better knowledge and understanding
of Company’s business to enhance their role as efficient
directors. Moreover, the Company has policy to improve
knowledge to directors regularly.
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6.2 Code of conduct

The company stipulates that there is a Company
Code of Conduct and Business Ethics to guidebusiness
operation that is good for the Board of Directors,
executives and employees to practice which focuses
on important principles of corporate governance , the
company has disclosed the code of conduct on the
website: https://www.vichaivej.com

6.3 Significant Changes and
Development of the Policy,Guidelines,
and Corporate Governance System
over the Previous Year.

In 2022, the Company received the results of
evaluation in projects related to good corporate
governance as follows:

«  The Company received a “Excellent” accomplish-
ment in the Corporate Governance Report of Thai Listed
Companies 2022 which was rated by the Thai Institute
of Directors (IOD) in cooperation with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) and the Stock Exchange of
Thailand (SET) and the company was the listed companies
with have a market value of more than 3,000 — 9,999
million baht from the survey of corporate governance
for the year 2022. In addition, the Company was also
considered by the Stock Exchange of Thailand to be a
company with Good Governance with a score of more
than 90% or in the level of Excellent 5 stars every year for
5 consecutive years.

«  The Company was evaluated by the Office of the
Securities and Exchange Commission, in cooperation with
Thai Investors Association and Thai Listed Companies
Association, on the quality of the Annual General Meeting
for the year 2022. The Annual General Meeting of
shareholders for the year 2022 was rated “Excellent” with
a score of 97 points.

» The Company has announced its intention to join the
Thai Private Sector Collective Action Against Corruption
since December 19, 2016 has been certified by the
project in 2019 and in 2022, the company continues to
renew its certification and has been renewed the certification
of the 1st Thai Private Sector Collective Action Against
Corruption from March 31, 2022 to March 31, 2025.
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Certific

* Announcement of guidelines for the process of
accepting and giving gifts entertainment welcome ser-
vice facilitation and other expenses during important
festivals so that the directors, executives and employees
of the Company adhere to the same guidelines as well
as to communicate to business partners, customers and
business stakeholders of the Group. and announced on
the Company’s website.

»  Supported opportunity day activities, listed compa-
nies meet investors for the development of good corporate
governance and allow the company to conduct investor
relations activities by providing information about the
business and operations of the company to securities
analysts and investors.

In 2022, the Board of Directors reviewed and revised
the Corporate Governance Policy according to sugges-
tions of Thai Institute of Directors in order to enhance the
corporate governance. Key details are as follows:
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Section Review and Revision

Disclosure and Transparency

Organized opportunity day activities of the Stock
Exchange of Thailand for the company had the op-
portunity to meet with investors, securities analysts
by clarifying information about the business in 2022,
the Company participated in Opportunity Day activ-
ities 2 times on June 27, 2022 and August 10, 2022.

For the clauses of the good corporate governance that have not been fully complied, the Company has adapted

as much as possible according to appropriateness.

Nor compliance Clause

The BOD should clearly specify the term of Independent
Directors in the Corporate Governance Policy which
should not exceed 9 years without exclusions.

The Company specified the term of Independent Di-
rectors at 3 years and they cannot be in the position for
over 3 consecutive terms (in total not exceeding 9 years).
In case Independent Directors are in position for over 9
years, the BOD has to present the reasons in order to
request approval from the Shareholders Meeting.

The Chairman of the BOD should be Independent
Director.

The Chairman of the BOD is not Independent Direc-
tor. However, the Chairman is not a member of the
Company’s subcommittees, and is not Chief Exec-
utive Officer. Roles and duties are clearly specified.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee should
mostly comprise of Independent Directors (more than
50%).

Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises
the Chairman of Nomination and Remuneration Com-
mittee who is Independent Director, and 2 Indepen-
dent Directors who are not in charge of management
or 50%. The Committee can perform transparently
and independently.
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7.2 Information about the Board Structure

Board of Directors

As of December 31, 2020, the Board of Directors is comprised of 12 Directors as followed: 6 non-executive
directors, 4 of which are independent directors and 6 executive by having qualifications under the Public Limited
Companies Act Securities and Exchange Laws Articles of Association and has no characteristics indicating lack of
suitability to be entrusted with the management of publicly held business as prescribed by the Office of the Securities
and Exchange Commission. As well as having experience that is beneficial to business operations and able to use
discretion honestly and independently, with a variety of knowledge and expertise suitable for the business according
to the composition and qualifications of the Board (Skill Matrix) necessary to perform duties in accordance with the
Company’s strategy The directors have expertise in various fields such as finance, accounting, law, management.
Business Administration and Medicine.

As of December 31, 2022, there are 12 members of the Board of Directors as follows:

Name - Surname Position Appoint Date

Non-Executive Directors

Virah Mavichak, Mr. Independent director First term: February 22, 2011 — March 30, 2012
Chairman of Nomination and Remuneration Second term: March 30, 2012 — April 24, 2015
Committee Third term: April 24, 2015 — April 21, 2018

Fourth term: April 21, 2018 — April 16, 2021
Fifth term: April 16, 2021 — Present

Surin Premamornkit, Mr. Independent director First term: February 22, 2011 — April 5, 2013
Audit Committee Nomination and Second term: April 5, 2013 — April 22, 2016
Remuneration Committee Third term: April 22, 2016 — April 22, 2019

Fourth term: April 22, 2019 — April 22, 2022
Fifth term: April 22, 2022 — Present

Visut Montriwat, Mr. Independent director First term: February 22, 2011 — April 5, 2013
Chairman of Audit Committee Second term: April 5, 2013 — April 22, 2016
Nomination and Remuneration Committee Third term: April 22, 2016 — April 21, 2018
Chairman of Corporate Governance Fourth term: April 21, 2018 — April 16, 2021 Fifth
Committee term: April 16, 2021 — Present

Porntep Siriwanarangsun, MD., Independent director First term: February 19, 2016 — April 29, 2017

MPH., Ph.D Audit Committee Second term: April 29, 2017- April 24,2020

Third term: April 24, 2020 - Present

Nopporn Tirawattanagool, Ms. Director First term: October 17, 2014 — April 29, 2017
Working Group for Financial and Second term: April 29, 2017- April 24,2020
Investment Planning Third term: April 24, 2020 - Present

Tinnawat Mahataradol, Mr. Director First term: October 17, 2014 — April 29, 2017
Working Group for Financial and Second term: April 29, 2017- April 24,2020

nvestment Planning Third term: April 24, 2020 - Present
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Name - Surname

Executive Directors
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Appoint Date

Assoc.Prof.VichaiVanadurongwan,
M.D.,Ph.D.,FIMS

Chairman of the Board

First term: February 22, 2011 — March 30, 2012
Second term: March 30, 2012 — April 24, 2015
Third term: April 24, 2015 — April 21, 2018
Fourth term: April 21, 2018 — April 16, 2021 Fifth
term: April 16, 2021 — Present

Ass.Prof.Saisunee

Vanadurongwan,M.D.

Vice Chairman
Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

First term: February 22, 2011 — April 25, 2014
Second term: April 25, 2014 — April 29, 2017
Third term: April 29, 2017- April 24,2020
Fourth term: April 24, 2020 - Present

Pongsak Vathana,M.D.

Director

Deputy Chief Executive Officer

First term: February 22, 2011 — March 30, 2012
Second term: March 30, 2012 — April 24, 2015
Third term: April 24, 2015 — April 21, 2018
Fourth term: April 21, 2018 — April 16, 2021 Fifth
term: April 16, 2021 — Present

Vilawan Vanadurongwan, Ms.

Director

Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Chairman of Risk Management Committee
Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Chairman of Working Group for Financial and

Investment Planning

First term: April 25, 2014 — April 22, 2016
Second term: April 22, 2016 — April 22, 2019
Third term: April 22, 2019 - April 22, 2022
Fourth term: April 22, 2022 — Present

Mongkon Wanitphakdeedecha
M.D.,M.Sc.

Director
Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Working Group for Financial and Investment

Planning

First term: February 22, 2011 — April 25, 2014
Second term: April 25, 2014 — April 22, 2016
Third term: April 22, 2016 — April 22, 2019
Fourth term: April 22, 2019 - April 22, 2022
Fifth term: April 22, 2022 — Present

Prut Rojmahamongkol,Mr.

Director

Working Group for Financial and Investment

Planning

First term: April 29, 2017—- April 22, 2019
Second : April 22, 2019 - April 22, 2022
Third term: April 22, 2022 — Present

In the year 2022, there are no directors of the company who resigned from office during the year
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Structure of the Board of Directors

According to the Company’s articles of association,
the Board of Directors shall consist of at least five mem-
bers. Not less than half of the number of such directors
must reside in the Kingdom of Thailand.

Board of Directors There are a total of 12 members,
comprising 6 non-executive directors, representing 50
percent of the total number of Board of Directors. In this
number Consisting of 4 independent directors (at least
one-third of the total number of directors), representing
33.33% of the Board of Directors. And 6 executive di-
rectors, representing 50 %.

Appointment of Directors

The appointment of directors are prescribed in the
Company’s article of association, which can be sum-
marized as followed:

1. Each shareholder shall have a number of votes
equal to the number of shares held multiplied by the
number of the directors to be elected;

2. Each shareholder may exercise all the votes he
or she has under (1) to elect one or several persons as
director or directors. If several persons are to be elected
as directors, the shareholder may allot his or her votes
to any person in any number;

3. After the vote, the candidates shall be ranked in
order descending from the highest number of votes re-
ceived to the lowest, and shall be appointed as directors
in that order, until all of the director positions are filled.
Where there is an equality of votes cast for candidates
in descending order causing the number of directors
to be exceeded, the remaining appointments shall be
made by drawing lots.

4. In case of a vacancy on the Board of Directors
otherwise than by rotation, the Board of Directors shall
elect any person who is qualified and not subject to
prohibition under the laws as a replacement director at
the next meeting of the Board of Directors, exceptin the
case where the remaining term of office of such director
is less than two months. The replacement director shall
hold the office only for the remaining term of the director
whom he replaces.

Removal and Termination of Directors

1. At every annual general meeting, one-third of
the number of the directors shall vacate the office. If
the number is not a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to one-third must retire from the office.
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2. Otherthan vacancy by rotation, the director shall
vacate the office upon:

(1) death;

(2) resignation;

(3) lack of qualifications or subject to prohibition
under the law;

(4) being removed by resolution of the sharehold-
ers meeting by voting of not less than three-fourths of
the number of the shareholders present and entitled to
vote and having shares in aggregate not less than one-
half of the number of shares held by the shareholders
present and entitled to vote;

(5) being removed by the court order.

3. Any director wishing to resign from the director
position shall submit the resignation letter to the Com-
pany. The resignation shall take effect upon the date
on which the resignation letter reaches the Company.

The term of office of Directors.

At every annual general meeting, one-third of the
number of the directors shall vacate the office. If the
number is not a multiple of three, then the number near-
est to one-third must retire from the office. After these
Articles of Association become effective, the directors
to retire from office pursuant to the first paragraph in
the first and the second years shall be determined by
ballots. In every subsequent year the directors who have
served longest in office shall retire. Upon an occasion
where several directors who have been in office for an
equal length of time exceed the number of directors to
retire from office for such time, the directors due to retire
shall be determined by ballots. A retiring director based
on the fore goings shall be eligible for re-election.

Duties and Responsibilities of the Chairman

The Company stipulates that the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer must not be the same person. The Chair-
man’s duties and responsibilities include the following:

The Chairman’s duties and responsibilities include
the following:

1. Call Board meetings, chair Board meetings and
shareholders’ meeting, as well as set meeting agenda
in collaboration with the President.

2. Attend Board meetings and shareholders’ meet-
ings, ensure efficient meetings in compliance with
Company’s rules and regulations, while encouraging
directors to express their independent views with ade-
quate information provided.
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3. Encourage the Board to work with their utmost
ability, based on their duties and responsibilities, under
corporate governance, and support the work of the
President.

4. Supervise and follow up the work of the Board
and other sub-committees to ensure that Company’s
objectives are reached.

5. Cast a decisive vote in Board meetings in case
of equal votes of both sides.

Duties and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

1. Supervision and management of the Company
and subsidiary companies to be in accordance with the
laws, objectives and regulations of the Company and
its subsidiaries as well as the resolution of the share-
holders, except in matters that require approval by the
shareholders before proceeding, for instance matters
that need approval from the shareholders’ meeting,
related party transactions and purchase or sale of major
assets by the rules of the Stock Exchange of Thailand
and the Office of the SEC or other government agencies
as required and so on.

2. Review and approve key matters namely the
policy, work plan and budget, investment in projects
not included in the annual budget, management
structure, authority in management of policy relating to
compliance transactions or any actions that may affect
the financial condition, liabilities, business status and
reputation of the Company and its subsidiaries, interim
dividend payment as well as other matters stipulated
by the Stock Exchange or the law.

3. Overseeing the management operations to com-
ply with the policy, plan and budget that have been
approved.

4. To consider and approve the appointment of a
person who is qualified and has no prohibited charac-
teristics as defined in the Public Companies Limited
Act B.E. 2535 (1992) (including the amendments) and
securities and exchange laws as well as notifications,
provisions, and/or relevant regulations, when Director
position is vacant by other causes apart from by rotation,
and the appointment of the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company and subsidiaries.

5. To consider appointment and assignment of the
role of Committees as follows

5.1 Establish Committees as deemed appropri-
ate and necessary to perform the responsibilities of the
Board of Directors including Audit Committee, Executive
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Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee
and Risk Management Committee, etc.

5.2 Consider and approve the role of the
Committees, as well as changes in the composition of
Committees that have been appointed.

6. Oversee the interests of both major and minor
shareholders fairly and treat shareholders and stake-
holders justly.

7. Provide a balance of management and/or major
shareholder in the appropriate level. It is important to
maintain a good ratio or number of independent direc-
tors on the Board of Directors of the Company.

8. Ensure that the Board of Directors receives ad-
equate information from management to perform their
authorized role, duty and responsibility fully.

9. Ensuring a transparent operation and manage-
ment of the Company, including related party trans-
actions between the Company and subsidiaries and
related parties in order to prevent conflicts of interest
by providing accurate and adequate information dis-
closure, as well as reporting to the Board of Directors
regularly.

10.Consider determining and changing the names
of Authorized Directors who have the authority to bind
the Company and its subsidiaries.

11.To provide the accounting system, financial
reporting and credible auditing, as well as a system
of internal control and internal audit that is effective
and efficient, and to approve changes in policies and
practices that have material effect on accounting and
internal control of the Company and subsidiaries.

12.Authority to do as following can only be made
upon receiving approval from the shareholders’ meeting
first. For matter where there may be Director or person
who may have disagreement, stake or conflicts of inter-
est in the Company or subsidiaries, it is stipulated that
that Director who has a stake in the matter shall have
not rights to cast a vote for that matter.

12.1 The matter which the law requires the
resolution of the shareholders’ meeting.

12.2 To perform transaction where Director
will have a stake and required by the law or the Stock
Exchange of Thailand to receive the approval from the
shareholders’ meeting.

13. The Board of Directors may authorize a Director
or many Directors or other person to perform either one
act on behalf of the Board of Directors. This authoriza-
tion does not include the authorization or sub-authori-
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zation that allows the Director or authorized person to
approve transaction where the Director or authorized
person may have conflicts of interest with the Company
or subsidiaries. It is a requirement to seek approval
from the shareholders’ meeting in all related transac-
tions and the acquisition or selling of important assets
of the Company and its subsidiaries, in line with the
requirements of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and
the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission,
and/or other relevant government agencies.

7.3 Board-Committees

The Board of Directors set up 6 sub-committees to
help monitor and supervise the operations more closely
and regularly report to the Board of Directors. They are
The Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, Risk Management Committee, Working
Group for Financial and Investment Planning Corporate
Governance Committee and Executive Committee to
scrutinize and supervise the operation of the Company
over specific issues, in order to perform their duties
efficiently and effectively as well as to ensure that the
Company complies with rules and regulations of the
SEC and SET.

The Audit Committee
The Board appointed the Audit Committee, which
consists of fully qualified members against SEC and
SET requirements. A minimum of three members must
be independent directors, at least one of whom must
be adequately qualified and experienced in reviewing
the credibility of financial statements. The committee
reviews the Company’s performance outcomes, financial
reports, internal control system, and consider related party
transactions, the appropriateness of accounting auditors,
including the selection and appointment process.
As of December 31, 2022, the Audit Committee
consists of three independent directors as follows:
1. Visut
Chairman of the Audit Committee
2. Surin Premamornkit
The Audit Committee
3. Porntep Siriwanarangsun, MD., MPH., Ph.D

Montriwat

The Audit Committee So Mr. Surin Premamornkit,
Mr. Visut Montriwat and Porntep Siriwanarangsun, MD.,
MPH., Ph.D with qualified knowledge and experience
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in accounting and finance to review the reliability of the
financial statements and Public health management
system Knowledge.So, Mrs.Naree Phetdum, serves as
Secretary to the Audit Committee.

Duties and Responsibilities of the Audit Committee

1. Ensure that the Company’s and subsidiaries’
financial reports are correct and adequately disclosed,
by coordinating with the external auditor and executives
who are responsible for preparing quarterly and annual
financial reports.

2. Ensure that the Company’s and subsidiaries’ sys-
tem of internal control and internal audit are appropriate
and effective. Also, to consider the independence of
internal audit unit and approve the appointment, trans-
fer, dismissal of internal audit supervisor, or any other
agency responsible for internal audit.

3. Ensure that the operation of Company and sub-
sidiaries complies with the securities and exchange law,
terms of the exchange or laws relating to the Company’s
and subsidiaries’ Business.

4. Consider the selection and nominate an individ-
ual, who is independent, to act as auditors of the Com-
pany and subsidiaries. This includes consideration of
the remuneration of the auditor to propose to the Board
of Directors to obtain the appointment from the general
meeting of shareholders and attending the meeting with
the auditors without management involved shall be held
at least once a year.

5. Have the authority to hire an independent con-
sultant, if necessary, and determined as necessary to
be regarded as expenses of the Company.

6. Consider list of related transactions or items with
conflicts of interest in accordance with the laws and
regulations of the Stock Exchange and Capital Market
Supervisory Board in order to make sure that the list is
reasonable and in the best interests of the Company or
subsidiaries.

7. During the operation, if the Audit Committee finds
or doubts any items or the following activities that may
have a significant impact on the financial position or
results of operations of the Company or subsidiaries,
the Audit Committee must report it to Board of Directors
to resolve such items or activities promptly.

+ List the conflicts of interest items

» Fraud or significant irregularities or defects of
internal control system of the Company or subsidiaries.
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» The violation or violations of the law on securities,
notification and terms of the Stock Exchange of Thai-
land, the Securities and Exchange Commission and
Capital Market Supervisory Board including laws relevant
to the business of the Company and subsidiaries.

If the Board of Directors or executives cannot re-
solve such items or activities promptly, member of the
Audit Committee may report such items or activities to
the Securities and Exchange Commission or the Stock
Exchange of Thailand.

8. If the auditor of the Company finds a suspicious
incident relating to Director, executive or any person
responsible for the operation of the Company and
subsidiaries that violates the law and the auditor has
reported the incident to the Audit Committee, the Audit
Committee shall proceed as soon as possible to investi-
gate more and report the results of primary check to the
Securities and Exchange Commission and the auditor
within 30 days from the date of receipt of a report from
the auditor.

9. Formulate report of the Audit Committee to dis-
close in the annual report of the Company whereby
the Chairman of the Audit Committee has to sign in the
report. The report must contain at least the following
information.

* Opinion on the accuracy, completeness and
reliability of financial reports of the Company and sub-
sidiaries.

« Opinion on the adequacy of internal controls of
the Company and subsidiaries.

« Opinion on compliance with the Securities and
Exchange Law, terms of the exchange and laws relating
to the Company’s and subsidiaries’ business.

« Opinion on the suitability of the auditor.

+ Opinion on items that may have the conflict of
interest.

* The number of meetings by the Audit Committee
and attendance of each member of the Audit Committee.

« Opinion or overall observation that the Audit
Committee received from the performance of duties
under the Charter.

» Other transactions that shareholders and inves-
tors should be aware of under the scope of duties and
responsibilities assigned by the Board of Directors.
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10.To perform any other duties assigned by the
Board of Directors to be appropriate.

In the scope of duties and responsibilities the Audit
Committee has the authority to invite the management,
executives or employees of the Company or subsid-
iaries that are relevant to provide reports, comments,
attend meetings, or send documents that are relevant
and necessary.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Appointed by the Board of Directors, the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee consists of at least three
directors, most of whom must be independent directors.
They also must not be Chairman of the Board. All of the
members fully qualified as directors in accordance to
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee Charter.
The list of Structure of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee as at December, 31 2022
1. Virah Mavichak
Chairman / Independent Director
2. Surin
Committee /Independent Director
3. Visut
Committee /Independent Director
4. Assit Prof. Saisunee  Vanadurongwan,M.D.

Premamornkit

Montriwat

Committee

5. Vilawan Vanadurungvan
Committee

6. Mongkon Wanitphakdeedecha,M.D.,M.Sc.

Committee

Duties and responsibilities of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

1. Define policies, rules, procedures and processes
with clarity, transparency, suitability and usefulness to
the Company and subsidiaries in terms of the selection,
removal or dismissal of Directors and senior executives
of the Company and subsidiaries and present these to
the Board of Directors for approval.

2. Consider nominating the name of a person who
is qualified as a Director of the Company, Committee
member and senior management to the Board of Di-
rectors in the event that such position is vacant or the
term of office ends.

3. Define policy on remuneration for Director, se-
nior executives of the Company and subsidiaries and
present this to the Board of Directors for approval.
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4. Consider the remuneration for the Board of Direc-
tors and committees whereby the remuneration includes
meeting attendance fee, salary, bonuses, shares and
other related benefits, and present to the shareholders’
meeting for consideration and approval.

5. Provide a succession plan for key management
position and review on a regular basis by evaluating
the importance of the position, recruitment and devel-
opment to ensure that successor of this management
position is educated, competent, experienced and
possesses other qualifications fitting and beneficial to
the Company and subsidiaries.

6. To perform any other duties assigned by the
Board of Directors to be appropriate

Risk Management Committee
The list Risk Management Committee as at December

31, 2022

1. Virgj Mavichak, Ph.D.

Advisory of the Risk Management Committee

2. Vilawan Vanadurongvan

Chairman of the Risk Management Committee
3. Sakda

Member of the Risk Management Committee

Tangchitwatanakorn, Ph.D.
4. Hathaiwan Suwantaweerak
Member of the Risk Management Committee
5. Kjtjaporn
Member of the Risk Management Committee

Pomsanarm
6. Anchalee Suphopark

Member of the Risk Management Committee
7. Navakochamon  Chareonporn

Member of the Risk Management Committee
8. Wannacha Kongchareon

Member of the Risk Management Committee
9. Prapaphan

Member of the Risk Management Committee /

Techatanang

Secretary
10.Passara Sarapol
Member of the Risk Management Committee /

Assistant Secretary

Duties and responsibilities of the Risk Management
Committee

1. Define policies and guidelines for risk management
of the Company and subsidiaries. This covers the financial
risk, Corruption risk, business and market risks, invest-
ment risk and other risks that may affect the operation
and reputation of the Company, and presents this to the
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Board of Directors for consideration and approval.

2. Define criteria to measure risks and limit the risks
that the Company and subsidiaries accept.

3. Consider the important risks of the Company and
subsidiaries and make recommendations to prevent or
reduce risk to an acceptable level.

4. Supervise, monitor and evaluate the results as
well as improve action plan to reduce the risk continu-
ously and appropriate to the business circumstances
of the Company and subsidiaries.

5. Review the sufficiency of risk management poli-
cies and systems by including the effectiveness of the
system and compliance with the policy set.

6. Reportoperations to reduce the risk to the Board
of Directors regularly and for important matters where
there is impact to the Company and subsidiaries signifi-
cantly. These must be reported to the Board of Directors
for consideration as soon as possible.

7. Perform any other duties assigned by the Board
of Directors to be necessary.

Working Group for Financial and Investment Planning
In order to enhance the value of Srivichai Vejvivat
Public Company Limited and subsidiaries companies in
the future and ensuring that there is ongoing growth and
secure financial position, it was deemed appropriate to
appoint the Working Group for Financial and Investment
Planning as follows.
The list Risk Working Group for Financial and Invest-
ment Planning as at December 31, 2022
1. Vilawan
Chairman of the Working Group for Financial
and Investment Planning
2. Nopporn Tirawattanagool
Member of the Working Group for Financial
and Investment Planning
3. Tinnawat  Mahatharadol
Member of the Working Group for Financial
and Investment Planning
4. Mongkon  Wanitphakdeedecha M.D., M.Sc.
Member of the Working Group for Financial
and Investment Planning
5. Prut
Member of the Working Group for Financial
and Investment Planning
6. Sakda Tangchitwatanakorn, Ph.D.
Member of the Working Group for Financial
and Investment Planning / Secretary

Vanadurongvan

Rojanamahamongkol
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Responsibilities of the Working Group for Financial
and Investment Planning

1. Determine the policy, target, and strategies for
finance and investment

2. Plan the direction for investment

3. Find capital for suitable investment

4. Analyze and manage financial and investment risks

5. Regulate, supervise, control, and manage cash
flow to be in accordance with the Company’s target

6. Perform other tasks as assigned by the Board of
Directors and the Chairman

Corporate Governance Committee
The lists of the Corporate Governance Committee
as at December, 31 2022
1. Visut Montriwat
Chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee
2. Rachada Fongtanakit, Ph.D.
Member of the Corporate Governance Committee
3. Kalayanee Kalhasute
Member of the Corporate Governance Commitee
4. Nichapha Rueanthongdi
Member of the Corporate Governance Committee
5. Chinapat Upaijit
Member of the Corporate Governance Committee

6. Prapaphan Techatanang
Member of the Corporate Governance Committee
7. Benchawan Panthong

Member of the Corporate Governance Committee

Responsibilities of the Corporate Governance Com-
mittee

1. To formulate the Corporate Governance Policy,
Anti-Corruption Policy, business ethics and code of
conduct, and Corporate Social Responsibilities, under
legal framework, rules and regulations currently stip-
ulated by regulating organizations such as the Stock
Exchange of Thailand, the Office of the Securities and
Exchange Commission and other related agencies as
well as international corporate governance standards,
and to propose the best practices for the directors
management and employees to the Board of Directors
for approval

2. To regulate and give advice on policy and
guidelines that enable the directors, management
and employees to perform duties with responsibility
in accordance with the Corporate Governance Policy,
Anti-Corruption Policy, and to comply with the best
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practices, business ethics and code of conduct and
Corporate Social Respon sibilities.
3. To follow up and assess performance of gover-
nance and supervision to prevent and monitor risks of
corruption and assess performance of the Corporate
Governance Committee and report the results to the
Board of Directors at the end of each year

4. To perform any other duties assigned by the Board
of Directors

Executive Committee
The lists of the Executive Committee as at December,
31 2022 as follows:
1. Asst. Prof. Saisunee Vanadurongwan, M.D.
Chairman of Executive Committee
2. Pongsak Vathana, M.D.
Member of the Executive Committee
3. Mongkon  Wanitphakdeedecha M.D.,M.Sc.
Member of the Executive Committee
Vanadurongvan
Member of the Executive Committee
5. Sakda Tangchitwatanakorn, Ph.D.
Member of the Executive Committee
6. Prof. Saranate Waikakul, M.D.
Member of the Executive Committee
Thirakaroonwongse, M.D.
Member of the Executive Committee
8. Vatchara Cheupraknam, M.D.
Member of the Executive Committee
9. Prut Rojmahamongkol
Member of the Executive Committee
10.Pacharapan Vanadurongwan
Member of the Executive Committee
11.Komrit
Member of the Executive Committee
12.Teerawan Vanadurongwan, B.Sc., PG.Cert., Ph.D.
Member of the Executive Committee
13.Phannee
Member of the Executive Committee

4. Vilawan

7. Sunee

Kavinakarathiti

Kannee

14.Sunee Joychumras
Member of the Executive Committee
15.Kwanyuen  Suksomphoj

Member of the Executive Committee
16.Pichien Vutthisathiraphinyo
Member of the Executive Committee
17. Asst.Prof.Rachada Fongtanakit, Ph.D.
Member of the Executive Committee /
Secretary
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Duties and Responsibilities of the Executive Com-
mittee

1. Plan and set policy, direction, strategy, work
plans and organizational structure and management
structure of the business operation of the Company
and subsidiaries in accordance to economic conditions
and competition in the market to present to the Board
of Directors for approval.

2. Planand prepare business plans, annual budgets
and the authority in management in various job divisions
of the Company and subsidiaries to propose to the
Board of Directors for consideration and approval and
also to consider and approve the annual budget and
budget change and addition to annual expense budget.
If there is an urgent necessity, proceed to present to
the Board of Directors for further acknowledgement.

3. Audit and operate according to the policies and
guidelines for the management of the Company and
subsidiaries that has been defined to be effective and
conducive for business environment.

4. Monitor the operations of the Company and sub-
sidiaries that has been defined to proceed according
to the approved business plan.

5. Consider large investment projects of the Compa-
ny and subsidiaries in order to provide recommendation
to the Board of Directors for approval.

6. Define the details of the selection, training, hiring
and termination of employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries as well as employee benefits to be appro-
priate with the circumstances and in accordance with
the laws in use today.

7. Otherduties as assigned by the Board of Directors
occasionally.

The administrative power and giving authority to others
which Director deems appropriate does not include the
power or authorization to approve any items that the
Director or related person may have any conflicts of
interest, the stakes, or any other benefits that disagrees
with the Company’s and subsidiaries’ benefits, or any
items that is not normal business operations of the
Company and subsidiaries. The authorization of such
items must be presented to the Board of Directors and/
or shareholders’ meeting of the Company to consider
and approve within the guidelines, rules and regulations
of the Company and relevant laws.
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7.4 Executive Director in 2022

7.4.1 Executive Director (As defined by the SEC)
As of December 31, 2022, Executive Director (As
defined by the SEC) is comprised of 6 Directors as
followed:
1. Asst. Prof. Saisunee  Vanadurongwan,M.D.
Chief Executive Officer
2. Pongsak Vathana,M.D.
Deputy Chief Executive Officer
3. Mongkon Wanitphakdeedecha M.D.,M.Sc.
Deputy Chief Executive Officer
Vanadurongvan
Deputy Chief Executive Officer
5. Sakda Tangchitwatanakorn
(be on duty) Deputy Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
6. Nichapa
Finance Accounting Manager

4. Vilawan

Roenthongdee

7.4.2 Remuneration of Directors and Executives

Monetary Remuneration

a) Remuneration of Board of Directors

The 2022 Annual General Meeting of Sharehold-
ers resolved to approve the directors’ remuneration in
the form of meeting allowances and other remuneration
In the total amount not exceeding 8,000,000 baht, the
amount increased from the year 2021 in the amount of
1,000,000 baht as follows:
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Details

Budget / baht 8,000,000 7,000,000 7,000,000

1. Board of Director

Chairman 18,000 15,000 15,000
Vice-Chairman 15,000 12,000 12,000
Director (Non-executive) 12,000 9,000 9,000
Director (Executive) 10,000 7,000 7,000
Secretary 5,000 3,000 3,000
Monthly [Director (Non-executive) Only] 10,000 10,000 10,000

2. The Audit Committee

Chairman 15,000 12,000 12,000
Director 12,000 9,000 9,000
Secretary 2,000

3. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Chairman 15,000 12,000 12,000
Director (Non-executive) 12,000 9,000 9,000
Director (Executive) 10,000
Secretary 2,000

4. Financial and Investment Planning Committee

Chairman 15,000 12,000 12,000
Director (Non-executive) 12,000 9,000 9,000
Director (Executive) 10,000 7,000 7,000
Secretary 2,000

5. Corporate Governance Committee

Chairman 15,000 12,000 12,000
Director (Non-executive) 12,000 9,000 9,000
Director (Executive) 10,000
Secretary 2,000

6. Risk Management Committee

Chairman 15,000 12,000 12,000
Director (Non-executive) 12,000 9,000 9,000
Director (Executive) 10,000 7,000 7,000
Secretary 2,000

7. Chief executive officer (CEO) performance
evaluation Sub-Committee

Chairman 15,000
Director (Non-executive) 12,000
Director (Executive) 10,000
Secretary 2,000

Other Remuneration: The remainder after deducting the annual meeting allowance and monthly remuneration for
the year 2022 asked the Chairman of the Board of Directors to approve the other remuneration but not more than
8,000,000 baht
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b) Remuneration of Board of Subsidiary Directors
The 2022 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders resolved to approve the Subsidiary directors’ remuneration
as follows:

Saivichai Development Company Limited

Details

Budget / baht 636,000

Board of Director

Chairman 6,000 6,000 6,000
Vice-Chairman 4,500 4,500 4,500
Director (Non-executive) 3,000 3,000 3,000
Director (Executive) 2,000 2,000 2,000
Secretary 1,000 1,000 1,000

Other Remuneration: The remainder after deducting the annual meeting allowance for the year 2022 asked the
Chairman of the Board of Directors to approve the other remuneration but not more than 636,000 baht

Srisakorn Vejavivat Company Limited

Details

Budget / baht 564,000

Board of Director

Chairman 6,000 6,000 6,000
Vice-Chairman 4,500 4,500 4,500
Director (Non-executive) 3,000 3,000 3,000
Director (Executive) 2,000 2,000 2,000
Secretary 1,000 1,000 1,000

Other Remuneration: The remainder after deducting the annual meeting allowance for the year 2021 asked the
Chairman of the Board of Directors to approve the other remuneration but not more than 564,000 baht

usSun awugnlwarglwanada v1na

Budget / baht 468,000 468,000

Board of Director

Chairman 6,000 6,000 6,000
Vice-Chairman 4,500 4,500 4,500
Director (Non-executive) 3,000 3,000 3,000
Director (Executive) 2,000 2,000 2,000
Secretary 1,000 1,000 1,000

Other Remuneration: The remainder after deducting the annual meeting allowance for the year 2022 asked the
Chairman of the Board of Directors to approve the other remuneration but not more than 468,000 baht
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Srivichai Vocational School Company Limited

Details

Budget / baht

Board of Director

Chairman 3,000 3,000 3,000
Vice-Chairman 2,500 2,500 2,500
Director (Non-executive) 2,000 2,000 2,000
Director (Executive) 1,500 1,500 1,500
Secretary 500 500 500

Other Remuneration: The remainder after deducting the annual meeting allowance for the year 2022 asked the
Chairman of the Board of Directors to approve the other remuneration but not more than 276,000 baht

In 2022, the subsidiary has paid remuneration in the form of meeting allowances to each director as follows:

Meeting Fee (Baht)

Bangkok Srivichai
Orthopedic Vocational
Hospital School
Company Company
Limited Limited

Saivichai Srisakorn

Development | Vejavivat

Company Company
Limited Limited

1. Assoc.Prof.Vichai Vanadurongwan,

M.D..Ph.D.FIMS 36,000 30,000 - - 66,000
2. Ass.Prof.Saisunee Vanadurongwan,M.D. 27,000 22,500 42,000 - 91,500
3. Pongsak Vathana,M.D. - - - 6,000 6,000
4. Prof.Dr.Rungsima Wanitphakdeedecha 18,000 14,000 32,000
5. Asst. Prof. Pat Rojmahamongkol 15,000 15,000
6. Asst. Prof. Bavornrat Vanadurongwan, M.D. 18,000 18,000
7. Teerawan Vanadurongwan , B.Sc., 12,000 12.000
PG.Cert., Ph.D. ' ’

8. Vilawan Vanadurongvan 18,000 - - - 18,000
9. Sunee Thirakaroonwongse, M.D. 12,000 12,000
10. Sakda Tangchitwatanakorn,Ph.D. 12,000 10,000 3,000 25,000
11. Mongkon Wanitphakdeedecha M.D.,M.Sc. - 10,000 14,000 - 24,000
12. Prut Rojmahamongkol - 10,000 14,000 3,000 27,000
Total 168,000 82,500 84,000 12,000 346,500

c) Remuneration of Executive (Identified only as compensation executives)

The company measures the performance of the executives and determines the remuneration of the Chief
Executive Officer and Executives appropriately under fair and reasonable rules, taking into account duties and
responsibilities and performance. In 2022 the Company paid compensation in the form of salaries, bonuses and
other compensation to Executive (As defined by the SEC) of the company’s total of six persons in the amount totaling
42,459,707 Baht and in 2021 the amount of 47,190,915 Baht (in the form of salary, bonus and provident fund. And
other remuneration is paid in the administration)
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Non-monetary remuneration
The Company and its subsidiaries have provided other compensation in the form of medical benefits and tailor
suit to the executives.

Determination Remuneration of Directors and Executives

Currently, the company has established a Nomination and Remuneration Committee to consider the remuneration
for the Board of Directors and committees whereby the remuneration includes meeting attendance fee, salary, bo-
nuses, shares and other related benefits, and present to the shareholders’ meeting for consideration and approval.

For remuneration of senior executives the Company has established the evaluation based on the guidelines of the
Board of Director and the Human Resources Department for each level executives in connection with the Company’s
operating results and performance of each executive

7.5 Information about employees

Employees
As at December 31, 2022, the Company and its subsidiaries employ (Excluding directors and executive of the
Company and its subsidiaries) amounted to 2,401 people, with details as follows:

Category Full Time Part Time Number of employees
Doctor 84 443 527
Nurses 305 44 349
Nurse assistant and Murse aid 344 2 346
Pharmacist 28 21 49
Physical therapist 15 10 25
Medical technician 40 10 50
Radiologist 11 11 22
Medical operations and support staff 127 3 130
General staff 887 16 903
Total 1,841 560 2,401

The company has promoted the development of the life quality of vulnerable groups,employment of persons
with disabilities and job renewal for retired people. In 2022, there are 15 disabled people employed and a total of
8 job renewals for retirees.

Employee Compensation

The Board of Directors has set clear and concrete guidelines and guidelines on compensation and welfare to
the employees in line with the performance of the organization and associate the performance of the employees as
follows

» Short-term returns the company has set a compensation plan that can be appropriately aligned with the overall
pay rate of other organizations in the same business to maintain and enhance human resource competitiveness for
the organization. In addition, the Company has set a bonus for each year’s performance, linked to the performance
of its employees, in order to motivate its employees to achieve their goals in the year.

» Long-term return the company has set a remuneration policy to maintain and motivate its employees to perform
their work in the long run in the future, such as the annual wage, living expenses, contribution to Provident Fund and
other benefits.
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The Board of Directors has set policies and practices
regarding compensation and benefits to employees are
clear and tangible to comply with the operating results
of the company in both the short and long term. Em-
ployees of the Company will receive benefits including
salaries, overtime pay, benefits, annual funds and other
grants, the provident fund and also receive financial
assistance for medical treatment and other benefits
such as vacation leave, maternity leave etc.

The Company has a total of 2,401 employees. In
the fiscal year ending December 31, 2022, the total
compensation for employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries is equal to 807.44 million baht, comprising
salaries, overtime pay, professional expenses, living
expenses, bonuses, social security contributions. Con-
tributions to the provident fund medical expenses and
other welfare.

Provident Fund

The Company and its subsidiaries and employees
have jointly established a fund on February 1, 2007
with TMB Asset Management Co., Ltd., with the aim to
build morale among the staff and to motivate employ-
ees to work with the Company and its subsidiaries in
the long term. Later, the Company and its subsidiaries
have changed from TMB Asset Management Limited to
American International Assurance Co., Ltd. (Thailand)
and the Company has appointed American. Interna-
tional Assurance Co., Ltd. (Thailand) to manage the
provident fund of the Company and its subsidiaries on
October 1, 2011 to the present. In 2022, the Company
has 1,612 employees participating in the provident fund,
representing 97.93% of the total number of employees.

Other Compensation

The Company and its subsidiaries give to other
compensation in medical fees welfare and, uniform and
arrange group accident insurance (on December 17,
2022) for employees.

Labor disputes over the past three years

The Company and subsidiary has no significant
labor disputes in the last three years. As at December
31, 2022 the company has employs totaling of 2,401
people and not have any strike or any protest.
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7.6 Other important information

7.6.1 The highest responsibility in accounting and
finance (CFO) and accounting supervisor

The Company has assigned Sakda Tangchitwatana-
korn,Ph.D. Chief finance Officer is the highest respon-
sible person in accounting and finance. The details of
the person holding the position in charge of accounting
in Attachment 1

Education and Experience

*  Ph.D. Public administration, Taksin University.

* Master of Business Administration, Burapha
University

» Bachelor of Laws Faculty of Law, Sukhothai
Thammathirat University.

» Bachelor of Accouting, Faculty of Commerce and
Accounting, Thammasat University.

» Directors Certification Program, 185/2557, |0D

Accounting or Finance Experience in the past 5
years.

» Chief finance Officer, Srivichai Vejvivat Public
Company Limited

The company realizes the importance of financial

reporting to be a quality together with the guidelines of
The Securities and Exchange Commission, Thailand
(SEC), in order that the company has a person with the
highest responsibility in accounting and finance and ac-
counting supervisors who qualifications as prescribed
in the Notification of the Capital Market Supervisory
Board. The person with the highest responsibility in
accounting and finance has more than 5 years of expe-
rience in accounting and finance, completed continuous
training in accounting and the supervisor of accounting
is the bookkeeper according to the announcement of
the Department of Business Development more than 5
years of experience in accounting and in 2022 finance
and undergoing training in accounting with details as
follows

« The Next Normal Financial (3 hours) The Stock
Exchange of Thailand

+ TLCA CFO CPD No. 1/2022, Topic “Upgrading
the Quality of Financial Reports of Thai Listed Compa-
nies” (2 hours) Thai Listed Companies Association

« PDPA for Accounting and Finance (2 hours) Thai
Listed Companies Association
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« Digital asset and business growth opportunities
(New S-Curve) of listed companies (7 hours) The Stock
Exchange of Thailand

+ “Understanding Digital Assets and CFQO’s Role”
(2 hours) Thai Listed Companies Association

« CFO’s Role in Corporate Sustainability (2 hours)
Thai Listed Companies Association

«  Summary of financial reporting standards TFRS
that changed and are effective for the year 2023 (3
hours) The Stock Exchange of Thailand

« ESGBonds in Corporate Financing (2 hours) Thai
Listed Companies Association

» Challenges in Transfer Pricing after COVID-19,
Government Scrutiny and preparation in the business
sector (2 hours) EY Office Company Limited

« Seminar on disseminating study results of the
Value of Audit Project (3.5 hours) The Securities and
Exchange Commission

* Opportunities and new forms of mergers and
acquisitions (1.5 hours) EY Office Company Limited

7.6.2 Company Secretary

The Board of Directors appointed the company
secretary to take responsibilities in providing advices to
the Board and executives regarding the applicable laws
and regulations that the Board must recognize and act
upon, the corporate governance policies as well as the
arrangement of the Board of Directors meetings and the
annual general meeting of shareholders. The company
secretary must also monitor and coordinate to ensure
that the Board and shareholders’ resolutions are fully
complied. The company secretary is also assigned to
keep Company’s important documents as required by
the laws. The Company has assigned a person who
holds the department manager of the Corporate Man-
agement Office to perform the duties as the company
secretary, presently Asst.Prof.Rachada Fongtanakit,
Ph.d. holds such position; as history following. The
details of dutiesand responsibilities of Person holding
company secretary position appears in attachment 1
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Asst.Prof.Rachada Fongtanakit, Ph.D.

Education and Experience

» Doctor of Philosophy of Development Manage-
ment Program, Executive Development Suan Sunandha
Rajabhat University

« Public Management and Public Sector Honors
Master of Public Administration, National Institute of
Development Administration

» Bachelor of Communication, the Honor: Faculty
of Communication Arts. Chulalongkorn University

» Bachelor of Administration, Sukhothai Tham-
mathirat University.

Working Experience

» Director of Business Development Office

« Deputy Director of Managing and Operation of
Vichaivej International Hospital Omnoi.

» Deputy Director of Service and Customer Rela-
tions Vichaivej International Hospital Samut Sakhon

« Deputy Director of Managing of Vichaivej Yeak-
faichail Hospital.

+ Directorand Secretary of the executive committee.

» Director the Corporate Governance Committee

«  Company Reporting Program (CRP) 2/2011

« Company Secretary Program (CSP) 41/2011

« Effective Minute Taking (EMT) 20/2011

« Board Reporting Program (BRP) 9/2012

* Fundamental Practice for Corporate Secretary
(FPCS) 26/2012

+ Directors Certification Program, 185/2014

« Corporate Government for Executive 3/2015

 Anti-Corruption: The Practical Guide (ACPG) 2016

« Advances for Corporate Secretaries 2/2017

« Anti-Corruption: The Practical Guide (ACPG)
56/2021

* Seminar “Check readiness to be confident before
PDPA comes into effect” SEC 2021

» Director’s Briefing 16/2022: Digital Transforma-
tion Trends & Journey
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7.6.3 Internal audit manager

The Company has appointed Mr.Chinnapat Upaijit
as internal audit manager since 1 August 2016, which
was approved by Audit Committee. The committee had
considered his qualification, knowledge, and experi-
ence of internal audit task, had concluded that he has
the right to perform duties appropriately. The details of
the roles, duties and responsibilities of internal audit
manager appears in Attachment 3.

In order to consider and approve the appointment,
transfer and dismissal of the incumbent internal audit
manager of the Company must be approved by the
Audit Committee

7.6.4 Investor Relations Department

The Company has established an IR Department
(Investor Relations) to be responsible for the disclo-
sure of information and any activities of the Company
to its shareholders, investors, analysts and the general
public. The channels include the Company’s Home
Page, quarterly performance meeting, analysts meeting,
opportunity day, etc. The Company also prepares the
Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) on a
quarterly basis and IR Newsletter, which published on
SET’s website and the Company’s website, to provide
investors and general public for better understanding
of the Company’s performance. Unauthorized persons
are not allow to provide information to the media or the
public in any way which may affect the reputation and
business operations of the Company.

Investors may contact the Investor Relations De-
partment at 02 441 7899 ext. 1707, 1708 or shares@
vichaivej.com / bod@vichaivej.com

7.6.5 Auditors

The resolution of Annual General Meeting of Share-
holders of year 2022 to appoint Ms.Vissuta Jariyathana-
korn, Certified Public Accountant No. 3853 and/or Mr.
Krisada Lertvana, Certified Public Accountant No. 4958,
and/or Ms. Manee Rattanabunnakit, Certified Public
Accountant No. 5313 from the EY Office Limited Com-
pany is an auditor of the company for the year 2022,
Because the EY Office Limited Company is independent
and reliable Including having knowledgeable personnel
and being an auditor who has been approved by the
SEC. By approving the auditor's remuneration for the
year 2022 in the amount of 1,400,000 baht
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The auditor of the company is the same auditor as the
auditor of the subsidiary which is independent, has no
relationship or interest with the company, subsidiaries,
executives, major shareholders. The Company and
its subsidiaries do not pay any remuneration for other
services to the auditing office of the auditor, the person
or business related to the auditor and the auditing office
of the auditor.

1. Audit fee

The Company and its subsidiaries paid audit fees
totaling Baht 3,150,000.

+ Provident Fund paid for the audit fees to the au-
ditors’ company for the latest account period amounting
to Baht 1,400,000

» Provident Fund paid for the audit fees to the audi-
tors’ subsidiary for the latest account period amounting
to Baht 1,750,000

* No remuneration to the audit firm where the
auditor works, individuals or businesses related to the
auditor and the audit firm for which the auditor works
for the latest account period

2. Non - audit fee
The Company and subsidiaries paid for non-audit

fees totaling Baht 80,375.50

+ Provident Fund paid for the non - audit fees to
the auditors’ company for the latest account period
amounting to Baht 25,170.50

* Provident Fund paid for the non - audit fees to
the auditors’ subsidiary for the latest account period
amounting to Baht 55,155



56-1 ONE REPORT

Srivichaivejvivat Public Company Limited

s18v1uUs:91U 2565
USBN AS3G8I0BIIU DR (UNIBU)

Corporate Governance Report

8.1 Summary of the Board's
Performance in the Past Year

8.1.1 Nomination, development and performance
evaluation of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors an important role in corporate
governance for the best interest of the company which
stipulated in the Corporate Governance Principles in
Section 5 Responsibilities of the Board of Directors,
namely, the structure of the Board of Directors must
be diverse in terms of skills, professions, specializa-
tions, and gender, as well as the necessary skills that
are lacking being on the board of directors which may
consider using the company advisor or director data-
base When the Board of Directors after receiving a list
of suitable persons, it will be considered and presented
to the shareholders for approval to be appointed as the
Company’s director.

The Board of Directors was appointed by share-
holders to be the director of the Company’s operating
guidelines with a transparent process that the com-
pany emphasized the roles and duties of the Board
of Directors in guiding the Company’s operations
direction, monitoring the work of the management and
responsibility according to the duties of the Board
of Directors towards the Company and shareholders
which is important for the guidelines for the selection
and appointment of directors and high-level executives
are as follows:

® Structure of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors shall consist of at least five
members according to the Company’s articles of as-
sociation, section 4: Article 14 not have any prohibited
characteristics under the Public Limited Companies Act.
The Board of Directors consist have talented and variety
of skills and bust comprised of independent directors
at least one-third and not less than 3 persons in order
to provide sufficient number of independent directors
to check the work of the Board of Directors operations.
Currently, the number of independent directors of the
Company is complete numbers as required by law.

The Board of Directors is comprised of 12 Directors
as followed: 6 executive directors ,6 non-executive
directors, 4 of which are independent directors by the
board of directors has assigned the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee to responsible for recruiting
and selecting directors and executives in the event that
the position is vacant.

In addition, the board of directors has established a
policy on determining the number of listed companies
in which a director can hold a directorship for the com-
pany get the most benefit from the company’s directors
to devote time to performing duties effectively by the
director is limited to serve as a director in the listed
companies in the Stock Exchange of Thailand not more
than 5 companies.

* Directors and Chief Executive Officer Qualifica-
tions , Recruiting

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is
responsible for nominating suitable persons to serve
as directors of the Company and the Chief Executive
Officer when the position of the Company’s director or
the Chief Executive Officer is vacant or replacing direc-
tors who have to retire by rotation. It will give importance
who have skills and experience that are necessary for
the Company’s operations and subsidiary by consider
as the following:

1. Not being prohibited by the Public Limited Com-
panies Act B.E. 2535 or other related laws as well as the
requirements of the SET, the SEC and the Company’s
regulations.

2. Being a qualified person with ability, experience
in various fields of the nature of business
and industry that will benefit and add value to the Com-
pany and subsidiary.

3. Support and promote corporate governance prac-
tices to create value for the company perform duties
responsibly caution and honesty.

Selection of the right person to assume the position
of the Company’s director in place of the one who retires
by rotation, the Company will provide an opportunity
for minority shareholders to submit a list of qualified
persons under the Securities and Exchange Act. and
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according to the qualifications specified by the Com-
pany to be selected as the Company’s directors. The
invitation will be announced on the Company’s website.
In order for shareholders to propose names and per-
sonal profiles to the Company, the Company has set a
minimum percentage of shareholding for shareholders
who have the right to nominate directors in advance
which must hold shares in aggregate of not less than
three (3) percent of the total number of voting rights of
the Company The shares must be held up to the date
of closing of the register book for the right to attend the
shareholders’ meeting.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee will
select and nominate qualified candidates according to
the law and the specified criteria considering the expe-
riences, knowledge, and abilities that will be beneficial
to the Company for the Board of Directors to consider
when the Board of Directors’ meeting After approval,
the Company will nominate such person for approval to
be elected as the Company’s director. at the General
meeting of shareholders by asking for the resolution of
the shareholders’ meeting To be held by a majority vote
of the shareholders attending the meeting.

The appointment of directors is prescribed in the
Company’s article of association, which can be sum-
marized as followed:

1. Each shareholder shall have a number of votes
equal to the number of shares held multiplied by the
number of the directors to be elected;

2. Each shareholder may exercise all the votes he
or she has under (1) to elect one or several persons as
director or directors. If several persons are to be elected
as directors, the shareholder may allot his or her votes
to any person in any number;

3. After the vote, the candidates shall be ranked in
order descending from the highest number of votes re-
ceived to the lowest, and shall be appointed as directors
in that order, until all of the director positions are filled.
Where there is an equality of votes cast for candidates
in descending order causing the number of directors
to be exceeded, the remaining appointments shall be
made by drawing lots.

4. In case of a vacancy on the Board of Directors
otherwise than by rotation, the Board of Directors shall
elect any person who is qualified and not subject to
prohibition under the laws as a replacement director at
the next meeting of the Board of Directors, exceptin the
case where the remaining term of office of such director
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is less than two months. The replacement director shall
hold the office only for the remaining term of the director
whom he replaces.

* Independent Directors Qualifications

Independent directors must be independent from
major shareholders or groups of major shareholders and
the management of the company have access to the
company'’s financial and business information including
other businesses sufficiently to freely express opinions to
protect the interests of minority shareholders. Attend the
Board of Directors Meeting on a regular basis, including
having a duty to prepare a report certifying their inde-
pendence upon appointment and disclose information
on independence in the Company’s annual report. The
independent directors must have all the qualifications as
prescribed by the Capital Market Supervisory Board and
as prescribed by the Company as follows:

1. Shall not hold shares exceeding of one percent
of the total number of voting shares of the Company, or
the parent company, subsidiary company, associated
company, major shareholder, or controlling person,
whilst the number of shares held by any related person
of such independent director must also be counted.

2. Shall not a director participating in management
role, or an employee, an officer, an advisor who receives
regular salary, or a person having controlling power, of the
Company or the parent company, subsidiary company,
associated company, a subsidiary company in the same
level, major shareholder, or controlling person, unless
such an independent director has not possessed the
characteristics referred to above for at least two years.

3. Shall not a person related by blood or legal reg-
istration as a father, mother, spouse, sibling, and child,
including as a spouse of a child of other directors,
management person, major shareholder, controlling
person, or the person being nominated to be a direc-
tor, management person or a controlling person of the
Company or the subsidiary company.

4. Shall neither have and have ever had any business
relationship with the Company or the parent compa-
ny, subsidiary company, associated company, major
shareholder, or controlling person in the manner in
which his/her independent discretion might be affected,
and is not and has not been a significant shareholder
or a controlling person of the person that has business
relationship with the Company, or the parent company,
subsidiary company, associated company, major
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shareholder, or controlling person, unless such an inde-
pendent director has not possessed the characteristics
referred to above for at least two years.

5. Shall not be nor have ever been an auditor
of the Company or the parent company, subsidiary
company, associated company, major shareholder, or
controlling person, and is not a significant shareholder,
a controlling person, or a partner of any auditing firm of
which the auditor of the Company, or the parent com-
pany, subsidiary company, associated company, major
shareholder, or controlling person is working, unless
such an independent director has not possessed the
characteristics referred to above for at least two years.

6. Shall not be nor have ever been any professional
service provider, including legal or financial advisor
who obtains fee of more than Baht two million per year
from the Company or the parent company, subsidiary
company, associated company, major shareholder, or
controlling person, and not be a significant shareholder,
or a controlling person, or a partner of any of such pro-
fessional service provider, unless such an independent
director has not possessed the characteristics referred
to above for at least two years.

7. Shall not be a director appointed as a representative
ofthe Board of Directors, major shareholder, or shareholder
who is a related to major shareholder of the Company.

8. Shall not undertake any business in the same
nature and in competition with the business of the
Company or its subsidiary, nor be a significant partner
in a partnership or director with management authority,
employee, staff member or advisor who receives salary or
holds shares exceeding 1% of the total number of shares
with voting rights of another company which undertakes
business in the same nature and in competition with the
business of the Company or its subsidiary.

9. Shall not have any other characteristics which may
restrict such person from offering independent opinions
regarding the Company’s operations

10. Independent directors have a term of office for 3
years and may not hold office for more than 3 consecu-
tive terms. (total not more than 9 years) and to disclose
the date the independent directors took office In case of
appointing independent directors for more than 9 years,
the Board of Directors The reason must be presented
to the shareholders’ meeting for approval.
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* Qualification audit committee
The Board of Directors or the shareholders’ meet-
ing (as the case may be) appointed at least 3 members
of the Audit Committee as the Audit Committee of the
Company. Each member of the Audit Committee must
be an independent director and must not be a director
assigned by the Board of Directors. to decide on the
operation of the Company, parent company, subsidiary
company, associated company, same-level subsidiary
major shareholder or the person who has the power to
control the company and is not a director of the parent
company, a subsidiary, a subsidiary of the same level
only a listed company. The audit committee must have
qualifications under the law on securities and exchange,
including the announcements, regulations and/or regu-
lations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand that specify
qualifications and scope of work of the audit committee.
However, atleast one member of the audit committee
must have knowledge, understanding or experience in
accounting or finance sufficient to be able to review the
credibility of financial statements including performing

other duties as an audit committee.

* The term of office of Directors.

At every annual general meeting, one-third of the
number of the directors shall vacate the office. If the
number is not a multiple of three, then the number near-
est to one-third must retire from the office. After these
Articles of Association become effective, the directors
to retire from office pursuant to the first paragraph in
the first and the second years shall be determined by
ballots. In every subsequent year the directors who have
served longest in office shall retire. Upon an occasion
where several directors who have been in office for an
equal length of time exceed the number of directors to
retire from office for such time, the directors due to retire
shall be determined by ballots. A retiring director based
on the fore goings shall be eligible for re-election.

* Appointment of Directors

In every the Annual General Meeting, one-third of the
directors shall retire by shareholders based on following
criterion:

1. Each shareholder shall have a number of votes
equal to the number of shares held multiplied by the
number of the directors to be elected;

2. Each shareholder may exercise all the votes he
or she has under (1) to elect one or several persons as
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director or directors. If several persons are to be elected as directors, the shareholder may allot his or her votes to
any person in any number;

3 After the vote, the candidates shall be ranked in order descending from the highest number of votes received
to the lowest, and shall be appointed as directors in that order, until all of the director positions are filled. Where there
is an equality of votes cast for candidates in descending order causing the number of directors to be exceeded, the
remaining appointments shall be made by drawing lots.

4 In case of a vacancy on the Board of Directors otherwise than by rotation, the Board of Directors shall elect any
person who is qualified and not subject to prohibition under the laws as a replacement director at the next meeting
of the Board of Directors, except in the case where the remaining term of office of such director is less than two
months. The replacement director shall hold the office only for the remaining term of the director whom he replaces.

In the Annual General of Meeting 2022 considered and approved the appointment of Mongkon Wanitphakdee-
decha M.D.,M.Sc., Mr.Surin Premamornkit, Miss.Vilawan Vanadurongvan and Mr.Prut Rojmahamongkol to serve as
the Company'’s director for another term. All 4 directors have passed the process of the Nomination and Remunera-
tion Committee. Moreover, approved by the Board of Directors through scrutiny process with caution regarding the
qualifications of the persons who are nominated for the position of directors individually both in terms of professional
skills specialized expertise that is beneficial to the company’s business including past performance as a director
and committee member. Including the 2 independent directors who completed their 9-year term, they are experts
in finance, management and have various abilities. Give useful advice to the company making it possible to solve
problems in various crises go smoothly and can express their opinions independently.

» Development of Directors and Executives

The company encourages directors to continually develop their knowledge by encouraging directors to attend
training courses or attend seminars to increase their knowledge in working.

The Board of Directors always self-improvement by attending seminars/training/meetings with the Thai Institute
of Directors Association, The Stock Exchange of Thailand, The Securities and Exchange Commission Thailand ,Thai
Listed Companies Association and other institutions in order to continually improve operations and apply the knowl-
edge gained for further use in the business and when there is a change of new directors. The Company organizes
an orientation and prepares a director’'s manual for new directors which consists of Document information useful for
the performance of duties of directors and a lecture about the company’s business operations.

Training and Seminars for Directors and Executives of year 2022

Name of Dirctor Training insiute

Ass. Prof.Saisunee Vanadu- + CEO CLUB 2022 : Health Tech Investment The Stock Exchange of
rongwan,M.D. Opportunity to create New S-Curve Thailand

Vice Chairman

Chief Executive Officer

Nopporn Tirawattanagool + 5 Key Technology Trend in Financial & Banking The Stock Exchange of
Director industry for 2022 Thailand
« Environment, Social and Governance (ESG) for Bank of Ayudhya
Sustainable Growth 2022
» Travel the digital world with Mr. Fintech 2022 Bank of Ayudhya
« BOT Digital Finance Conference 2020 Bank of Thailand
» Thought Leadership Session — Sustainable and Central Pattana

Climate Finance 2022
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» Succession policy

The Board of Directors assigns the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee to prepare a succession
plan for the position of CEO/President to ensure that
the Company is managed at all the time by CEO with
appropriate competency and skills. The Company is
also assigned Human Resource Department provide a
succession plan for executive and management level
position in order to prepare in case they cannot perform.

» Performance Evaluation of the Board of Directors

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall
set up an annual performance evaluation of the Board
of Directors at least once a year based on the self-as-
sessment guideline provided by the Stock Exchange of
Thailand and to adapt it to fit the Company’s structure.
The self-assessment serves asa framework to monitor
the performance of the duties of the Board of Directors,
promote collaborative analysis of the operational re-
sults and problems which occurred in the operation of
business, create good corporate governance and to
subsequently disclose the criteria, procedures, and the
evaluation result in the annual report.

Criteria in the performance evaluation of the Board
of Directors are as follows:

1. Structure and qualifications of the Board

2. Roles and responsibilities of the Board

3. Meeting of the Board

4. Act of duties of directors

5. Relationship with the management

6. Self-development of directors and development
of executives

Criteria in the performance evaluation of the individual
Board of Directors are as follows:

1. Structure and qualifications of the Board

2. Meeting of the Board

3. Roles and responsibilities of the Board

* Performance evaluation of the sub-committee

The Board of Directors shall evaluate the perfor-
mance of each sub-committee at least 1 time per year
on their leadership, roles and responsibilities, and to
set its policy, practice, meeting, management, and
relationships with involved persons.

In 2022, the Board of Directors and sub-committees
performed their duties with knowledge and competence
in accordance with the scope of powers, duties and
responsibilities assigned in accordance with the Charter
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and in accordance with good practice. The evaluation
results of the Board of Directors and sub-committees
are as follows:

- Result of the performance evaluation of the Board

of Directors for the year 2022 are divided into 6 main
topics, totaling 60 topics, with the assessment results
at level 4, or has performed excellent.
Including, results of the individual committees’ self-as-
sessment for the year 2022, divided into 3 main top-
ics, 11 topics, which are at level 4, or has performed
excellent.

- Result of Performance evaluation of the sub-com-
mittee for the year 2021 divided into 3 main topics,
totaling 36 topics, with the assessment results at level
4, or has performed excellent.

» Performance evaluation of the Chief Executive
Officer

The Board of Directors shall evaluate the perfor-
mance of the Chief Executive Officer at least once a
year on their leadership, set up and implementation
of strategy, planning and financial performance, re-
lationship with the Board of Directors, outsiders, and
employees, operational management and relationship
with other personnel, succession plan, knowledge on
product and service, risk management and internal
control, corporate governance and business ethics,
personal characteristics based on the assessment
guideline provided by the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

The Company has evaluated the performance
of Chief Executive Officer annually to analyses the
previous year operation. The Company Secretary will
distribute the evaluation form to independent directors
or non-executive directors or Nomination and Remu-
neration Committee to evaluate the performance and
to subsequently present it to the Board of Directors for
its consideration. Results of the evaluation of the Chief
Executive Officer (CEQ) for the year 2022
average the rating Excellent”

had an
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8.1.2 Attendance Board of Directors Meeting

The Company has scheduled a year in advance by the Board of Directors held a meeting every month to keep
you informed of Directors meeting scheduled in advance and can set aside time to attend all sessions of the meeting
will be set the agenda in advance and shall continue to follow the work assigned by the Secretary of the Company
has delivered notice of the meeting and the agenda at least seven working days to provide the Board of Director
with sufficient time to study previous attendance. In 2022, the Board of Directors held totally 15 Board of Directors
meetings, with the proportion of meeting attendance of the entire Board of Directors was 99.44%.

The number of meeting and the amount of annual gratuity for the Board of Directors as the followings:

Attendance/Number of Meeting

Nomination .
Finan- . Corporate
Directors and Remu- . Risk Man- .
Board of . . cial and Govern- Evaluation
) neration Audit agement
Directors . . Investment ) ance of the CEO
Committee | Committee . Committee .
Planning Committee
2022 | 2021 | 2022 | 2021 | 2022 | 2021 | 2022 | 2021 | 2022 | 2021 | 2022 | 2021 | 2022 | 2021
Assoc. Prof. Vichai 14/15°
Vanadurongwan, 1314 - - - - - - - - - - - -
M.D.,Ph.D.,FIMS 93.33%
i 15/15
Ass. Prof.Saisunee / 13/14 11 11 ~ B ~ ~ B B B B _ _
Vanadurongwan, M.D. 100%
15/15
i i 13/14  1/1 1M — — - - - - - - 1/1 1/1
Virah Mavichak, Mr 100%
15/15
Surin Premamornkit, Mr 1414 1/1 11 12/12 12/12 - = = = - - - _
100%
15/15
Visut Montriwat, Mr 100% 12/14 1/1 11 12/12 12/12 - - - - 2/2 1/1 1/1 1/1
0
Porntep Siriwanarangsun, 15/15
14/14 - - 12/12 12/12 - - - - - - - -
M.D. 100%
19715 14/14
Pongsak Vathana, M.D. 100%
) 15/15
VIR N CIe I, 1414 11 11 - - 4/4 77 14/14 16/16 - R VIV
Ms 100%
i 15/15
Nopporn Tirawattanakool, 14/14 ~ B ~ ~ a/4 7/7 ~ ~ - ~ ~ ~
Ms 100%
15/15
i 14114 - - - - a/4  T1/7 - - - - = =
Tinnawat Mahataradol, Mr 100%
i 15/15
Mongkon Wanitphakdeede- 13/14  1/1 11 ~ ~ a/4 6/7 ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~
cha M.D., M.Sc. 100%
15/15
j 14/14 - - - - a/4  T1/7 - - - - = =
Prut Rojmahamongkol, Mr 100%

Remark : 1. In 2022, the company has provided the Board of Directors of a total of 12 times by attending the AGM
1 time and Special Session 2 time ,overall to 15 times
2. The director took a leave of absence from the meeting due to work assignments.
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Non-executive directors Meeting

Development of good corporate governance and for independence in making suggestions that beneficial to
management team. The Board of Directors has determined the non-executive directors to have private meeting
and hold a meeting at least once a year without paying meeting allowances start from 2021 and the company has
provide non-executive directors meeting on November 11,2022.

Remuneration of Directors
Remuneration for the Board of Directors from fiscal year ended 31 December 2022 as the followings:

Meeting Fee 2021 (Baht)

Nomination Corporate
Directors Financial and . B .
. Evaluation | Govern- Risk
Board of Audit and Remuner-

) ) . of the ance Manatement

Directors Comittee Investment ation . :
: . CEO Commit- | Committee

Planning | Committee tee

Non-Executive Directors

Virah Mavichak, Mr 180,000 - - 15,000 15,000 - - 210,000
Surin Premamornkit, Mr 180,000 144,000 - 12,000 - - - 336,000
Visut Montriwat, Mr 180,000 180,000 - 12,000 12,000 - - 384,000
Porntep Siriwanarangsun, M.D. 180,000 144,000 - - - - - 324,000
Nopporn Tirawattanakool, Ms 180,000 - 48,000 - - - - 228,000
Tinnawat Mahataradol, Mr 180,000 - 48,000 - - - - 228,000

Executive Directors

Assoc. Prof. Vichai Vanadu-

252,000 - - - - - - 252,000
rongwan, M.D.,Ph.D.,FIMS
Ass. Prof.Saisunee Vanadu-

225,000 - - 10,000 - - - 235,000
rongwan, M.D.
Pongsak Vathana, M.D. 150,000 - - - - - - 150,000
Vilawan Vanadurongvan, Ms 150,000 - 60,000 10,000 10,000 - 210,000 440,000
Mongkon Wanitphakdeedecha

150,000 - 40,000 10,000 - - - 200,000
M.D., M.Sc.
Prut Rojmahamongkol, Mr 150,000 - 40,000 - - - - 190,000

2,157,000 468,000 236,000 69,000 210,000 3,177,000

The Company had grant monthly compensation to only Non-Executive Directors as a total of 720,000 Baht. Any-
way all remunerations are approved by shareholder meeting in amount.
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Non - Monetary Remuneration
The Company and its subsidiaries give to other
compensation in medical fees welfare and uniform.

8.1.3 Governance of Operation of Subsidiaries and
Associated Companies

In 2022, the Company has 4 subsidiaries, namely
Saivichai Development Company Limited, Srisakorn
Vejavivat Company Limited, Srivichai Vocational School
Company Limited, and Bangkok Orthopedic Hospital
Company Limited must be approved by the Board of
Directors by the person who is appointed as a direc-
tor in the subsidiary. It has a duty to operate for the
best benefit of that subsidiary and the company has
determined that the person appointed to approved by
the Board of Directors before going to vote the right to
vote on important matters. In the case of a subsidiary
who appointed by the company must ensure that the
subsidiary has regulations on connected transactions
that are consistent with the company, to storage data
and accounting records are kept for the company can
check and gathered to prepare consolidated financial
statements on time as well.

Relating transactions between companies in the
group, whether income or expenses, must be less than
25 percent of total income and expenses, except in the
case of a normal business transaction and in the case
of a transaction with a subsidiary or associated com-
pany that does not have a connected person holding
more than 10% of the shares and the Company does
not engage in any transaction that provides financial
assistance to other companies that not the Company’s
subsidiaries.

Directors, executives and all employees of the Com-
pany and subsidiary to be aware of various important
policies and comply with the policy including the code
of conduct and other procedures related to corporate
governance principles to be the same standard.

8.1.4 Monitoring on the Compliance with Corporate
Governance Policies and Practices
The Company has emphasized good corporate
governance by implementing the policies and related
practices in the Company’s Corporate Governance Poli-
cy and Code of Business Conduct as well as promoting
them in practice in order to create reliability for all of its
stakeholders.
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In 2022, the Company has complied with the
good corporate governance principles covering the fol-
lowing matters: Shareholder rights protection, Equitable
treatment of Shareholders, Responsibility to all stake-
holders covering in these areas; Employment, Human
Rights, Competition, Health, Safety and Environment,
Social Responsibility, Community, and Compliance
with the rules and regulations of the governing bodies.
The results showed that the Company had completely
followed the guidelines for each issue. In the following
main areas;

Conflict of Interest Prevention

The Company operates a business in which sit-
uations personal interests of directors, executives and
employees at all levels may conflict with the interests of
the company. Therefore, the best interest of the Compa-
ny without personal interests involved, the Company has
established guidelines that everyone should observe
the following practices:

» Directors, executives and employees must not re-
ceive any money or benefits personally from customers,
business partners of the Company or from any person
due to working on behalf of the company.

» Conflict of interest, company personnel should
not behave in a manner that may cause a conflict of
interest including always being aware that you have a
stake or benefits in the performance or not. If any, the
relevant rules must be strictly observed.

*  The Company opposes and not supports corrup-
tion, calling, receiving gifts or any benefits, giving gifts,
assets or any other improper benefits which may affect
the performance of duties. If found corruption exploita-
tion must be punished according to the regulations of
the company.

* The company provides training for all employees
by organizing training once a year and orientation for
new employees to educate about policies and practices
in anti-corruption of the company.

Insider Trading Control

The Company has established a policy for all em-
ployees are required to strictly comply with the terms
of this policy. Any actions of employees under the
provisions of this policy indicate their ability to exercise
discretion and ethics.
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« All supervisors must ensure that their subor-
dinates understand and comply with this policy. The
supervisors must provide training to their subordinates
who may seek assistance from the legal affairs group
and supervise the company’s business so that employ-
ees are aware of the law and regulations on insider
trading and giving advice on securities trading using
inside information and the terms of this policy.

* In case of employees have questions about the
work action is in accordance with the requirements of
this policy. Please consult the Corporate Governance
Committee before doing so.

* Any employee has reason to believe that an-
other employee has failed to comply with the policy
so reported the matter to the senior management and
the Corporate Governance Committee to be able to
investigate such matters and proceed as appropriate.

*  Employees must understand that all information
obtained from the performance of duties for the Com-
pany is obtained with the trust of the company and the
customers. Therefore, employees must comply with this
policy and prohibits the use of information for personal
gain.

* Employees must protect all inside information
received from others and comply with any agreement,
whether expressly agreed upon or strictly implicitly at
the least; they must perform at the same level as the
Company to take care of the company’s own informa-
tion.

« If employees believe that the information they
know is inside information so consulted with the Cor-
porate Governance Committee. The Corporate Gov-
ernance Committee is responsible for protecting the
confidentiality of internal information and further orders
as appropriate, such as prohibiting the trading of such
securities, etc.

However, in 2022 the company, directors, execu-
tive, employees and related person had not traded in
securities by using inside information.

Anti - Corruption

The Company has joined the Thai Private Sector
Collective Action Against Corruption project by the
company signed a declaration of intention to join the
Thai Private Sector Collective Action against Corruption
on December 23, 2016. In order to acknowledge the
agreement according to the declaration of intent of the
said coalition against all forms of corruption. In 2022, the
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company has renewed the certification period, which
will expire on February 3, 2022. The Board of Directors
has reviewed and announced the revised anti-cor-
ruption policy. On December 24, 2021. Until, in 2022,
the company has been certified for the 1st renewal on
March 31, 2022 - March 31, 2025. The company has
operated in accordance with the anti-corruption policy
as follows:

1. The company had a meeting to clarify the an-
ti-corruption policy by the chairman of the board to
executives, employees and employees of various de-
partments by publishing through the company’s website
and intranet system

2.The Company has provided the platform to report
any corruption found (Whistleblowing). Should there be
any violation, or unlawful or unethical act, or seen cor-
rupt acts and have protection measures for reporters.

3. The Regulations are put in place to control and
prevent potential risks: Procurement Regulations, Re-
ceiving-Payment Manual, Rules of Conduct recruiting
government employees to work, etc.

4. The Corporate Governance Committee has moni-
tored the implementation of the anti-corruption policy of
the directors, executives and employees. There is also
a book to remind you to receive gifts in various festivals.

The Company has disclosed details of policies and
actions to prevent involvement in corruption on the
Company’s website. https://www.vichaivej.com/inves-
tor/ under the heading of Corporate Governance.

Whistleblowing

The Company recognizes and appreciates the
importance of strengthening relationships and under-
standing of all groups of the Company’s stakeholders,
namely shareholders, customers, trading partners,
creditors, executives and employees of the Company
as well as those who get affected by the Company’s
operations, may file a complaint with or provide infor-
mation to the Company when witnessing, knowing or
doubting or having reasonable grounds to believe in
good faith that employees or the Company breach
or violated laws, rules, regulations, good corporate
governance principles, business code of conduct,
policies and procedures which may result in damage
to the Company. Complainants can file their cases by
clearly spelling out “Confidential” through the following
channels:
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To Chairman of the Audit Committee / Independent Director
Srivichai Vejvivat Public Company Limited
74/5 Moo 4, Phetkasem Road, Omnoi Subdistrict, Krathumbaen District, Samutsakhon Province 74130
Telephone Number(+662) 441-7899 ext. 4526
E-mail : montriwat@hotmail.com

Or  Company Secretary
Srivichai Vejvivat Public Company Limited
74/5 Moo 4, Phetkasem Road, Omnoi Subdistrict, Krathumbaen District, Samutsakhon Province 74130
Telephone Number(+662) 441-7899 ext. 1149
E-Mail : shares@vichaivej.com / bod@vichaivej.com

In 2022, no whistleblowing and complaints, related to fraud or violations of the Company’s corporate governance
policy, were found.

8.2 Audit Committee Performance

In 2022, the Company’s Audit Committee Srivichai Vejvivat Public Company Limited consists of 3 independent
directors and has held 12 meetings.

1. Visut Montriwat, Mr Chairman of Audit Committee 12/12
2. Surin Premamornkit, Mr Director 12/12
3. Porntep Siriwanarangsun, M.D. Director 1212

The Audit Committee’s performance in 2022, the committee has carried out its set duties carefully and
independently. There is no limitation in obtaining information on various aspects of the company which all Audit
Committee attends every time. The discussions were held with the internal auditors and the auditors on related
matters. Summary of the performance of duties according to the report of the Audit Committee, as shown in
Attachment 6
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8.3 Performance Report of the other Sub-Committees

Executive Comittee

The Executive Directors Meetings are scheduled twice a month. In 2022, the Executive Committee are a total of
16 directors and appointed Dr. Phichien Wutthisathirapinyo on July 5, 2022, for a total of 17 directors. The Executive
Committee holds 20 meetings to perform duties as assigned and 2 special agenda meetings, totaling 22 times, in
which each meeting will be jointly considered important matters of the Company and reports of meeting results with
guidelines for solving problems Recommendations to the Board of Directors for proper and consistent consideration
The details of the meeting attendance are as follows:

1. Asst. Prof. Saisunee Vanadurongwan, M.D. Chairman of the 21/22
Executive Committee

2. Pongsak Vathana, M.D. Member of the Executive Committee / 19/22
Deputy Chief Executive Officer

3. Mongkon Wanitphakdeedecha M.D.,M.Sc. Member of the Executive Committee / 19/22
Deputy Chief Executive Officer

4. Vilawan Vanadurongvan Member of the Executive Committee / 18/22

Deputy Chief Executive Officer

5. Sakda Tangchitwatanakorn, Ph.D. Member of the Executive Committee 22/22
6. Prof. Saranate Waikakul, M.D. Member of the Executive Committee 12/22
7. Sunee Thirakaroonwongse, M.D. Member of the Executive Committee 19/22
8. Vatchara Cheupraknam, M.D. Member of the Executive Committee 17/22
9. Prut Rojmahamongkol Member of the Executive Committee 21/22
10. Pacharapan Vanadurongwan Member of the Executive Committee 19/22
11. Komrit Kavinakarathiti Member of the Executive Committee 17/22
12. Teerawan Rattanapak, B.Sc., PG.Cert., Ph.D. Member of the Executive Committee 19/22
13. Phannee Kannee Member of the Executive Committee 18/22
14. Sunee Joychumras Member of the Executive Committee 21/22
15. Kwanyuen Suksomphoj Member of the Executive Committee 22/22
16. Pichien Wutthisathiraphinyo Member of the Executive Committee 10/10
17. Asst.Prof.Rachada Fongtanakit, Ph.D. Member of the Executive Committee / 22/22

Secretary
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In 2022, the Executive Committee held 20 meetings to perform duties as assigned, 2 special sessions, a total of
22 meetings, in which each meeting jointly considered important matters of the Company. The results of the meeting
were reported together with guidelines for resolving problems and suggestions to the Board of Directors as follows:

1. To report the company’s operating results every month.

2. Toconsider a strategic plan management in business operation of the company and its subsidiaries, to consider
the suitability of the business plan, annual budget as well as being responsible for the management of the Company’s
business according to the policy business strategy and goals. The performance has been continuously monitored
on a monthly basis as well as giving suggestions that are beneficial to the management of the organization.

3. To plan to increase income, cost control by considering various management approaches of the company
and its subsidiaries in order to achieve the goals.

4. Auditing and following up on the Company’s business operations and its subsidiaries, monthly, quarterly and
yearly to make the performance of the company and its subsidiaries according to the specified goals Including
periodically adjusting strategies as appropriate to the situation.

5. Thefirst quarter of 2022, the outbreak of the corona virus is still spreading to some extent. Therefore, there must
be a management plan to balance the use of bed resources that are contracted with various hotels appropriately in
order to generate income and control expenses including human resource management and medical equipment to
suit the situation.

6. To consider, scrutinize and give opinions on investment in medical equipment laboratory analysis center heart
center investment and a project to build a new hospital including modernizing the service area of the outpatient
department accommodate more patients.

7. To consider the form of excellent service to ensure the highest satisfaction of the service recipients and is a
guideline for implementation in the Vichaivej International Hospital Group.

The Executive Committee is committed to managing the business in order to achieve the vision, mission, goals
and business strategies of the organization. Including management under the principles of good corporate governance.
There is transparency, accountability, fairness, along with conducting business with social and environmental respon-
sibility. Including continuous support against corruption for the organization to grow and have sustainable stability.

/7%\2
(Asst. Prof. Saisunee Vanadurongwan,M.D.)

Chairman of the Executive Committee
Srivichai Vejvivat Public Company Limited
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Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Nomination and Remuneration Committee are 6 directors, held 1 meeting. The Nomination and Remuneration
Committee has performed duties as assigned by the Board of Directors under the duties and responsibilities set
out Consideration of criteria, guidelines and recruitment process and select directors to present to the Board of
Directors’ meeting consider giving approval before presenting it to the shareholders’ meeting annually for approval.
Including considering the remuneration of the top executives of the Company to present to the Board of Directors’
meeting approve The details of attendance at the meeting are as follows:

1. Virah Mavichak, Mr Chairman of the Nomination and 17
Remuneration Committee
(Independent Director)

2. Surin Premamornkit, Mr Member of the Nomination and 11
Remuneration Committee
(Independent Director)

3. Visut Montriwat, Mr Member of the Nomination and 171
Remuneration Committee
(Independent Director)

4. Asst. Prof. Saisunee Vanadurongwan, M.D. Member of the Nomination and 17
Remuneration Committee
5. Mongkon Wanitphakdeedecha, M.D.,M.Sc. Member of the Nomination and 1M

Remuneration Committee

6. Vilawan Vanadurungvan, Miss Member of the Nomination and 171
Remuneration Committee

In 2022, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee had completed the scope of work based on the imple-
mentation framework set forth. The key points of the meeting are as follows:

1. Considering recruits and select a person to be an independent director and the company’s directors to replace
who retire by rotation taking into account the knowledge, ability, experience that will be beneficial to the Company
have transparent work history, integrity, responsibility have appropriate qualifications, completeness, in accordance
with the composition and structure of the directors according to the Company’s business strategy and in accordance
with the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Thailand, characteristics prohibited by law and
presenting to the Board of Directors’ meeting and the general meeting of shareholders for further approval.

2. Review the remuneration of the Board of Directors and sub-committees of the Company by considering the
performance of the company,practices of listed companies in the same industry with similar business sizes includ-
ing taking into account the suitability of the duties, board responsibilities by proposed to the Board of Directors for
approval for proposed to the 2022 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and approval.

3. Improve the performance of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, review and consider the rules and
procedures for selecting the Company’s directors and sub-committees in order for such criteria to be appropriate
up to date Comply with the Company’s corporate governance policy and principles.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee mainly carried out assigned duties carefully, prudently, transpar-
ently, equitably, and straightforwardly, according to the Good Corporate Governance principles for the maximum
benefit of shareholders, investors, and stakeholders.

4
sl Moot
(Virah Mavichak)
Chairman of Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Srivichai Vejvivat Public Company Limited
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Corporate Governance Committee

Conducting business according to good corporate governance principles and have business ethics It is one of
the important matters that the company Strictly abide by Because it is another important factor that will enable the
organization to achieve sustainable success in the future and to achieve the goal of developing the management of
the Company To be accepted, the company has followed the good corporate governance and developed the com-
pany’s corporate governance system for better governance and efficiency by the Corporate Governance Committee
There are 7 members of the Board of Directors as follows:

1.Visut Montriwat, Mr Chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee (Inde- 2/2
pendent Director)

2. Rachada Fongtanakit, Ph.D Member of the Corporate 2/2
Governance Committee

3. Nichapha Rueanthongdi Member of the Corporate 2/2
Governance Committee

4. Kalayanee Kalhasute Member of the Corporate 2/2
Governance Committee

5. Chinapat Upaijit Member of the Corporate 2/2

Governance Committee

6. Prapaphan Techatanang Member of the Corporate 2/2
Governance Committee

7. Benchawan Panthong Member of the Corporate 2/2
Governance Committee

In 2022, the Corporate Governance Committee had meeting to monitor operations and performed the duties in
accordance with the Charter and report to the Board of Directors. The significant consideration issue in these meeting was:

1. The committee has promoted and supported the training of the Committee’s about Anti-Corruption Coalition
Project to study and understand the rules, regulations, rules and regulations concerning the Anti-Corruption Project
improved version.

2. The committee has reviewed has reviewed incidents that may pose a risk of causing corruption problems and
has established guidelines for risk prevention and internal control systems on procurement, recruitment employees,
coordinating with government agencies, etc.

3. The committee has reviewed and revised the anti-corruption policy in accordance with the anti-corruption and
Thai Private Sector Collective Action Against Corruption , new version, version 4.0, proposed to the Board of Directors
and Chairman of the Board of Directors approved to be used as a guideline for the Company and its subsidiaries.

4. The Company has been renewed accreditation for the 1st Thai Private Sector Collective Action Against Cor-
ruption with a period of from 31 March 2022 — 31 March 2025

5.The committee has monitored the implementation of the anti-corruption policy. Including for giving and receiv-
ing gifts during important festivals. For the directors, executives and employees of the company abide by including
communication with business partners, customers, and business associates of the company and announce on the
company’s website.

The Corporate Governance Committee is determined the company’s operation with the Good Corporate Gov-
ernance policy, business ethics and anti-corruption. This also emphasis on the transparency operation, fair and
verifiable in creating confidence among shareholders and stakeholders that contribute to corporate growth in a

sustainable manner.

(Visut Montriwat)
Chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee
Srivichai Vejvivat Public Company Limited
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Risk Management Committee

Risk Management Committee is 10 directors. In the year 2022, there were held 14 meetings and responsibility
according to the risk management framework that has been fully defined by setting a policy and overall risk man-
agement guidelines of the Company and subsidiary which covers financial risks Business and Marketing Risks
investment risk Corruption risk including risks that may affect the operations and reputation of the Company and
subsidiary The details of the meeting are as follows:

1. Viroj Mavichak, Ph.D. Advisory of the Risk 14/14
Management Committee

2. Vilawan Vanadurongvan Chairman of the Risk 14/14
Management Committee
3. Sakda Tangchitwatanakorn, Ph.D. Member of the Risk 7/14

Management Committee

4. Hathaiwan Suwantaweerak Member of the Risk 14/14
Management Committee

5. Kjtjaporn Pomsanarm Member of the Risk 13/14
Management Committee

6. Anchalee Suphopark Member of the Risk 9/14
Management Committee

7. Nawakchamon Charoenphon Member of the Risk 12/14
Management Committee

8. Vanacha Kongcharoen Member of the Risk 13/14
Management Committee

9. Prapaphan Techatanang Member of the Risk 14/14
Management Committee

10. Passara Sarapol Member of the Risk 9/14

Management Committee

In the year 2022, the Risk Management Committee have performed their duties in accordance with the duties
and responsibility according to the risk management framework that has been fully defined A total of 16 meetings
were held, summarized as follows:

1. Define policies and guidelines for risk management of the Company and subsidiaries. This covers the financial
risk, Corruption risk, business and market risks, investment risks, Corruption risks and other risks that may affect the
operation and reputation of the Company, and presents this to the Board of Directors for consideration and approval.

2. Define criteria to measure risks and limit the risks that the Company and subsidiaries accept.

3. Consider the important risks of the Company and subsidiaries and make recommendations to prevent or
reduce risk to an acceptable level.

4. Supervise, monitor and evaluate the results as well as improve action plan to reduce the risk continuously
and appropriate to the business circumstances of the Company and subsidiaries.

5. Review the sufficiency of risk management policies and systems by including the effectiveness of the system
and compliance with the policy set.

6. Consider the risks of the epidemic Covid-19 that affecting the company.

7. Report operations to reduce the risk to the Board of Directors regularly and for important matters where
there is impact to the Company and subsidiaries significantly. These must be reported to the Board of Directors for

consideration as soon as possible.
\‘/!wa VMWA/

(Vilawan Vanadurongvan)
Chairman of the Risk Management Committee
Srivichai Vejvivat Public Company Limited
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Working Group for Financial and Investment Planning

Working Group for Financial and Investment Planning is 6 directors. In the year 2022, there were held 4 meet-
ings. The Working Group for Financial and Investment Planning has completely performed the work as specified by
considering and screening investment projects, investment plans and investment budgets. Including considering
the feasibility of the project, appropriate financial returns and related risk factors in order to be in line with the com-
pany’s goals and action plans, audit, monitor, and supervise the company’s investments in order to achieve returns
in accordance with the project evaluation goals that have been approved for investment and summarize important
matters to report investment results to the Board of Directors. The details of the meeting attendance are as follows:

1. Vilawan Vanadurongvan Chairman of the Working Group 4/4
for Financial and Investment Planning

2. Nopporn Tirawattanagool Member of the Working Group 4/4
for Financial and Investment Planning
3. Tinnawat Mahatharadol Member of the Working Group 4/4

for Financial and Investment Planning

4. Mongkon Wanitphakdeedecha M.D., M.Sc. Member of the Working Group 4/4
for Financial and Investment Planning

5. Prut Rojmahamongkol Member of the Working Group 4/4
for Financial and Investment Planning

6. Sakda Tangchiwatanakorn, Ph.D. Member of the Working Group 4/4
for Financial and Investment Planning and
Secretary

In 2022, the Working Group for Financial and Investment Planning Committee has performed its duties completely
as specified. There were a total of 4 meetings which summarized the essence of the meeting as follows:

1. Consider investment projects, investment plans, investment budgets which includes considering the feasibility of the
project, appropriate financial returns and relevant risk factors to be in line with the company’s goals and operational plans.

2. Considering and approving important financial transactions. Procurement of appropriate sources of funds for
the company, and presenting to the Board of Directors for approval.

3. Inspect, monitor, and supervise the investment of the company in order to obtain the return according to the
target, evaluate the project approved for investment. And summary of important information to report investment
results to the Board of Directors.

4. Monitoring and evaluate the implementation of corporate strategy and taking into account the existing business, limitations,
diversity and ability to expand the business in accordance with the direction, goals and policies of the Board of Directors.

5. Providing advice and advice to management in finding business channels

6. Perform other tasks as assigned by the Board of Directors and the Chairman

The Working Group for Financial and Investment Planning has performed duties as assigned by the Board of Directors
with caution and opinion provision were made independently and based on the Company’s benefits. The Committee
has also monitored, followed up and appraised the performance of the projects the Company has invested in to ensure
that the return on investment is as planned. The Committee also plays a significant role in preventing and solving risks
problem that might affect project development and operations. The Committee considered that the Company’s invest-
ment decision was prudently and carefully made based on both in-depth and breadth analysis by internal and external
experts under the good corporate governance principle to ensure continuous and stable growth of the Company.

\‘/‘/&Wm VAVV\N(/N‘N\lA/

(Vilawan Vanadurongvan)
Chairman of the Working Group for Financial and Investment Planning
Srivichai Vejvivat Public Company Limited
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Internal Control and Related Transaction

9.1 Internal Control

Board of Director and executive management recognizes that internal control system is important mechanism in
reducing business risk and increasing efficient business operation which is included resource allocation appropriately
and achieve objective of the Company.

Board of Directors commissioned the Audit Committee has a duty and responsibility in review the appropriateness
and effectiveness of internal control system which the executive management provided it to ensure that the Company
has adequate internal control system in the risk management, protect the Company’s assets from lost or used by
unauthorized person, compliance with laws and regulations, and correctness and assurance of the financial state-
ment. In addition, the Audit Committee considers the independence of the internal audit department, and considers
the appropriateness and adequacy of personnel in such department, and approves the appointment or dismissal
internal audit manager.

Audit Committee reviewed appropriate and efficient the internal control system and the internal audit by con-
sidered in conjunction with the internal auditor and reported to Board of Director to inform or consider in quarterly.
In the prior year, Audit Committee has expressed their opinion and recommendation to executive management on
matters material. Furthermore, the external auditor, who is EY Office Limited and audited financial statement of the
Company for the year ended 2022, have jointed meetings with Audit Committee and expressed the opinion that
the internal control system of the Company was satisfactory level and not found error/weakness to have significant
impact on the opinion of the external auditor.

In Board of Directors meeting No. 12/2022 as at 13 December 2022, Audit Committee attended the meeting.
Board of Directors has assessed the adequacy of internal control system annually by the Securities and Exchange
Commission’s form in accordance with COSO (The Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tradeway Com-
mission) which included the control environment, the risk management, the control activities, the information and
communication, and the monitoring activities. Board of Directors agreed that the Company performed to COSO
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9.2 Related Transactions

appropriately as (1) Control Environment (2) Risk Assessment (3) Control Activities (4) Information & Communica-
tion The Company and its subsidiaries had significant business transactions with related parties. Such transactions,
which are disclosed in Article 6 Transactions with related parties. Which appears in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements and consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2022
and 2021, which related party transactions is based on commercial terms and bases agreed upon between the
Company and parties related to them. This is normal business in summary, as follows:

1. Relationship

Subsidiary Relationship

Srisakorn Vejavivat Company Limited. Through common shareholdings and directorships
Saivichai Development Company Limited Through common shareholdings and directorships
Bangkok Orthopedic Hospital Company Limited Through common directorships

Srivichai Vocational School Company Limited Through common directorships

2. Pricing Policy
2.1 Medical service income, expenses and buy-sell between each other in group based normal price less
certain discount.
2.2 Service income and expenses based normal price.
2.3 Rental income and rental expenses rate in contract price.
2.4 Consulting fees rate in contract price.

3. Name of directors and executives are related parties
1. Assoc. Prof. Vichai Vanadurongwan, M.D.,Ph.D.,FIMS
2. Asst. Prof.Saisunee Vanadurongwan, M.D.
3. Pongsak Vathana, M.D.
4. Mongkon Wanitphakdeedecha, M.D.,M.Sc.
5. Vilawan Vanadurongvan, Ms
6. Prut Rojmahamongkol, Mr
7.Sakda Tangjitwattankorn, Ph.D.

Details of connected transactions of the Company and its subsidiaries and persons who may have conflicts of
interest in the year 2020 and 2021

The Company and its subsidiaries have connected transactions with persons who may have conflicts of interest
which can be summarized as follows:



56-1 ONE REPORT s19v1uUsS:91U 2565

Srivichaivejvivat Public Company Limited 1 20 USBN ASIGEI063IRUL 91R (UMBU)

1) Srivichai Vejvivat Public Company Limited.
Table 9.1.1 Relationship between companies Srivichai Vejvivat Public Company Limited and persons who may
have conflicts of interest.

Person with have conflict of interest Relationship

Saivichai Development Company Limited 1. It a subsidiaries that the Company Holding 99.43% of the paid-up capital
(“Saivichai”) as of December 31, 2022
2. The two companies have common directors, namely Assoc. Prof. Vichai
Vanadurongwan, M.D.,Ph.D.,FIMS, Asst. Prof.Saisunee Vanadurongwan,
M.D. Vilawan Vanadurongvan, Ms.
3. Both companies have a group of shareholders with common control,
namely the Vandurongwan Group, where the Vandurongwan Group holds di-
rect shares in the Company. Accounting for 49.81% of the Company’s paid-
up capital as of December 31, 2022 and indirectly holding shares in Saivi-
chai Development through the company accounted for 49.53% of Saivichai’s
paid-up capital on the same day

Srisakorn Vejavivat Company Limited. 1. It a subsidiaries that the Company Holding 99.56% of the paid-up capital
(“Srisakorn™) as of December 31, 2022
2. The two companies have common directors, namely Assoc. Prof.
Vichai Vanadurongwan, M.D.,Ph.D.,FIMS, Asst. Prof.Saisunee Vanadurongwan,
M.D.Mongkon Wanitphakdeedecha, M.D.,M.Sc. and Prut Rojmahamongkol, Mr
3. Both companies have a group of shareholders with common control,
namely the Vandurongwan Group, where the Vandurongwan Group holds
direct shares in the Company. Accounting for 49.81% of the Company’s
paid-up capital as of December 31, 2022 and indirectly holding shares in
Srisakorn through the company accounted for 49.59% of Saivichai’s paid-up
capital on the same day

Bangkok Orthopedic Hospital Company 1.1t a subsidiaries that the Company Holding 100% of the paid-up capital as
Limited of December 31, 2022
(“Yaek Fai Chai”) 2. The two companies have common directors, namely Asst. Prof.Saisunee
Vanadurongwan, M.D. Mongkon Wanitphakdeedecha, M.D.,M.Sc. and Prut
Rojmahamongkol, Mr.
3. Both companies have a group of shareholders with common control,
namely the Vandurongwan Group, where the Vandurongwan Group holds di-
rect shares in the Company. Accounting for 49.81% of the Company’s paid-
up capital as of December 31, 2022 and indirectly holding shares in Yaek
Faichai through the company accounted for 49.59% of Yaek Faichai s paid-
up capital on the same day

Srivichai Vocational School Company 1.1t a subsidiaries that the Company Holding 99.98% of the paid-up capital
Limited as of December 31, 2022 (Srivichai School was registered on December 27,
(“Srivichai School”) 2010 to operate a business of providing training and education for prepare

personnel for nursing assistant staff)

2.The two companies have common directors, hamely Pongsak Vathana,
M.D. and Prut Rojmahamongkol, Mr

3.Both companies have a group of shareholders with common control,
namely the Vandurongwan Group, where the Vandurongwan Group holds di-
rect shares in the Company. Accounting for 49.81% of the Company’s paid-
up capital as of December 31, 2022 and indirectly holding shares in Srivichai
School through the company accounted for 49.80% of Srivichai Scool paid-
up capital on the same day.
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Person with have conflict of interest Relationship

Srivichai Saving Cooperative 1.Srivichai Savings Cooperative is a savings cooperative established
to promote savings among employees of Vichaivej Hospital Group. which
consists of the Company, Saivichai, Srisakorn, Yaek Fai Chai and Srivichai
School.

2. Directors of the Company are Assoc. Prof. Dr. Vichai Vandurongwan and
Asst. Director position of Srivichai Savings Cooperative

Assoc.Prof.Vichai Vanadurongwan, 1. Served as the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company, Saivichai
M.D.,Ph.D.,FIMS and Srisakorn.

2. Being a major shareholder of the Company, where Assoc. Prof. Dr. Vichai
and persons under Section 258 hold shares directly and indirectly in the Com-
pany Accounting for 1.51% of the total number of shares with voting rights of
each company as of December 31, 2022

3. A major shareholder of the Company, Saivichai, Srisakorn, Yaek Fai Chai
and Srivichai School, with Assoc. Prof. Dr. Vichai and persons under Section
258 direct and indirect in the company, SaiVichai, Srisakhon, Fai Chai intersec-
tion and Srivichai School representing 1.50% of the total number of shares with
voting rights of each company as of December 31, 2022 respectively.

Asst. Prof.Saisunee Vanadurongwan, 1.Served as Chief Executive Officer and Vice Chairman of the Company’s
M.D. Board of Directors Saiwichai Srisakorn and Director of Yaek Fai Chai.
2.A major shareholder of the Company, Saivichai, Srisakorn, Yaek Faichai
and Srivichai School, with Asst. Prof. Dr. Saisunee and the person under
Section 258 both directly and indirectly in the company, Saivichai, Srisakhon,
YaekfaiChai Intersection and Srivichai School representing 1.50% of the total
number of shares with voting rights of each company as of December 31,
2022, respectively.

Vilawan Vanadurongvan, Ms 1. Served as Deputy Chief Executive Officer, Chairman of the Risk Manage-
ment Committee, Member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
Chairman of the Financial and Investment Planning Committee. and directors
in the Company and Saivichai Company Limited
2. Sister of Assoc. Prof. Vichai Vanadurongwan, M.D.,Ph.D.,FIMS

Pongsak Vathana, M.D. 1. Holding the position of Director and Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Com-
pany and Chairman of the Board of Directors Srivichai School
2. Pongsak Vathana, M.D.and persons under Section 258 hold shares in the
Company and Srivichai School, representing 0.38% of the total number of shares
with voting rights of the Company as of December 31, 2022.

Mongkon Wanitphakdeedecha, M.D., 1.Served as Deputy Chief Executive Officer and director of the Company,
Srisakorn, Yaek Fai Chai
2. The Spouse of Prof.Dr.Rungsima Wanitphakdeedecha
3. Mongkon Wanitphakdeedecha, M.D.,and persons under section 258
hold shares in the company. Accounting for 14.46% of the total number of
shares with voting rights of the Company as of December 31, 202

Sakda Tangjitwattankorn, Ph.D. 1. Served as Chief Financial Officer, Member of the Financial and Invest-
ment Planning Committee and acting Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the
Company and directors of Saivichai, Srisakorn and Srivichai School
2.Sakda Tangjitwattankorn, Ph.D.and persons under section 258 hold
shares in the company. Accounting for 0.30 % of the total number of shares
with voting rights of the Company as of December 31, 2022
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Person with have conflict of interest Relationship

Prof.Dr.Rungsima Wanitphakdeedecha 1. Served as director of the Company, Saivichai, Yaek Fai Chai
2. A daughter of Assoc. Prof. Dr. Vichai and Asst. Prof. Dr. Saisunee Vandu-
rongwan and the spouse of Mongkon Wanitphakdeedecha, M.D.,
3. Prof.Dr.Rungsima Wanitphakdeedecha and persons under section 258
hold shares in the company. Accounting for 14.46 % of the total number of
shares with voting rights of the Company as of December 31, 2022

Asst. Prof. Bavornrat Vanadurongwan, 1. Served as director of the Company, Saivichai
M.D. 2.A Son of Prof. Dr. Vichai and Asst. Prof. Dr. Saisunee Vandurongwan is
the spouse of Dr. Teerawan Vanadurongwan.
3. Asst. Prof. Bavornrat Vanadurongwan, M.D.and persons under section
258 hold shares in the company. Accounting for 14.92 % of the total number
of shares with voting rights of the Company as of December 31, 2022

Teerawan Vanadurongwan , B.Sc., 1. Served as a director of Saivichai, Executive Director, and Deputy Director
PG.Cert., Ph.D of Marketing and Business Development
2. The spouse of Asst. Prof. Bavornrat Vanadurongwan, M.D.
3. Teerawan Vanadurongwan , B.Sc., PG.Cert., Ph.D and persons under
section 258 hold shares in the company. Accounting for 14.46 % of the total
number of shares with voting rights of the Company as of December 31, 2022

Prut Rojmahamongkol,Mr. 1. Served as an Executive Director,director of the company Srisakorn,Yaek
Fai Chai and Srivichai school.
2.The spouse of Asst. Prof. Pat Rojmahamongkol
3. Prut Rojmahamongkol,Mr. and persons under section 258 hold shares
in the company. Accounting for 14.46 % of the total number of shares with
voting rights of the Company as of December 31, 2022

Asst. Prof. Pat Rojmahamongkol 1. Served as a director of the company Saivichai.
2. A daughter of Assoc. Prof. Dr. Vichai and Asst. Prof. Dr. Saisunee Vandu-
rongwan and the spouse of Mongkon Wanitphakdeedecha, M.D.,
3. Asst. Prof. Pat Rojmahamongkol and persons under section 258 hold
shares in the company. Accounting for 14.46 % of the total number of shares
with voting rights of the Company as of December 31, 2022

Komrit Kavinakarathiti,Mr. 1. Served as Executive Director, Director of Srivichai School and Director of
Marketing and Business Development Department of Hospital Group.
2. The spouse of Pacharapan Vanadurongwan
3. Komrit Kavinakarathiti,Mr. and persons under section 258 hold shares in
the company. Accounting for 4.91 % of the total number of shares with voting
rights of the Company as of December 31, 2022

Pacharapan Vanadurongwan 1. Served as Executive Director and Director of Human Resources and Ser-

vice Development of the Hospital Group

2. A daughter of Assoc. Prof. Dr. Vichai and Asst. Prof. Dr. Saisunee Vandu-
rongwan and the spouse of Mongkon Wanitphakdeedecha, M.D., And The
spouse of Komrit Kavinakarathiti,Mr.

3. Pacharapan Vanadurongwan and persons under section 258 hold shares
in the company. Accounting for 4.91 % of the total number of shares with
voting rights of the Company as of December 31, 2022

Saivichai Development Company 1. Served as a director of Srivichai School, Executive Director and company
Limited secretary

- 2. Asst.Prof.Rachada Fongtanakit, Ph.D. and persons under section 258
("Saivichai”) hold shares in the company. Accounting for 0.09 % of the total number of
shares with voting rights of the Company as of December 31, 2022
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2)Saivichai Development Company Limited

Table 9.1.2 Relationship between companies Saivichai Development Company Limited and persons who may
have conflicts of interest.

Persons with have conflict interest Relationship

Srivichai Vejvivat Public Company Limited.  See the table 9.1.1

(“Company”)
Srisakorn Vejavivat Company Limited 1. Saivichai and Srisakorn are subsidiary in the same order of the Compa-
(“Srisakorn”) ny, the Company holds 99.43 percent of Saivichai's paid-up capital as of

December 31, 2020 and the Company holds 99.56 percent of the paid-up
capital. of Srisakorn as of December 31, 2022

2. Both companies have common directors, namely Assoc. Prof. Dr. Vichai.
Vandurongwan, Asst. Prof. Dr. Saisunee Vandurongwan, Dr. Sakda Tangchit-
wattana

3. Both company have a group of shareholders with common control, namely
the Vandurongwan Group, where the Vandurongwan Group indirectly holds
shares in Saivichai representing 49.53% of the paid-up capital as of Decem-
ber 31, 2021 through the Company and indirectly holds shares in Srisakorn
representing 49.59% of the paid-up capital as of December 31, 2022 through
the Company

Bangkok Orthopedic Hospital Company 1. Saivichai and Yaek Fai Chai are subsidiary in the same order of the Com
Limited pany, the Company holds 99.43 percent of Saivichai's paid-up capital as
(“Yaek Fai Chai”) of December 31, 2022 and the Company holds 100 percent of the paid-up
capital. of Yaek Fai Chai as of December 31, 2022
2. Both companies have common directors, namely Asst. Prof. Dr. Sais-
unee Vandurongwan, and Prof.Dr.Rungsima Wanitphakdeedecha
3. Both company have a group of shareholders with common control,
namely the Vandurongwan Group, where the Vandurongwan Group indi-
rectly holds shares in Saivichai representing 49.53% of the paid-up capital
as of December 31, 2022 through the Company and indirectly holds shares
in Srisakorn representing 49.80% of the paid-up capital as of December 31,
2022 through the Company

Srivichai Saving Cooperative 1. Srivichai Savings Cooperative is a savings cooperative that was estab-
lished to promote savings of employees in the Vichaivej Hospital group which
consists of the Company, Saivichai, SriSakorn, Yaek Fai Chai and Srivichai
School

2. Saivichai’s directors are Assoc. Prof. Dr. Vichai Vandurongwan and Asst.
Prof. Dr. Saisunee Vandurongwan as directors of the Srivichai Savings Co-
operative.

Assoc. Prof. Vichai Vanadurongwan, Served as the Chairman of the director, Saivichai
M.D., Ph.D., FIMS

Asst. Prof. Dr. Saisunee Vandurongwan,  Served as the Vice Chairman of the director , Saivichai

Vilawan Vanadurongvan, Ms Served as the director , Saivichai

Sakda Tangjitwattankorn, Ph.D. Served as the director , Saivichai
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3) Srisakorn Vejavivat Company Limited. (“Srisakorn”)
Table 9.1.3 Relationship between companies ) Srisakorn Vejavivat Company Limited and persons who may
have conflicts of interest.

Person with have conflict of interest Relationship

Srivichai Vejvivat Public Company Limited.  See the table 9.1.1
(“Company”)

Saivichai Development Company Limited  See the table 9.1.2
(“Saivichai”)

Bangkok Orthopedic Hospital Company 1. Srisakorn and Yaek Fai Chai are subsidiary in the same order of the Com-
Limited pany, the Company holds 99.56 percent of Saivichai's paid-up capital as
(“Yaek Fai Chai”) of December 31, 2022 and the Company holds 100 percent of the paid-up
capital. of Yaek Fai Chai as of December 31, 2022
2. Both companies have common directors, namely Asst. Prof. Dr. Saisunee
Vandurongwan, and Mongkon Wanitphakdeedecha, M.D., Prut Rojmaham-
ongkol,Mr.
3. Both company have a group of shareholders with common control, namely
the Vandurongwan Group, where the Vandurongwan Group indirectly holds
shares in Saivichai representing 49.59% of the paid-up capital as of Decem-
ber 31, 2022 through the Company and indirectly holds shares in Yaek Fai
Chai representing 49.80% of the paid-up capital as of December 31, 2022
through the Company

Assoc. Prof. Vichai Vanadurongwan, Assoc. Prof. Vichai Vanadurongwan, M.D., Ph.D., FIMS
M.D., Ph.D., FIMS

Asst. Prof. Dr. Saisunee Vandurongwan,  Served as the Vice Chairman of the director, Srisakorn

Mongkon Wanitphakdeedecha, M.D., Served as the director , Srisakorn

Prut Rojmahamongkol,Mr. Served as the director , Srisakorn

Sakda Tangjitwattankorn, Ph.D. Served as the director , Srisakorn
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4) Bangkok Orthopedic Hospital Company Limited (“Yaek Fai Chai”)
Table 9.1.4 Relationship between companies Bangkok Orthopedic Hospital Company Limited and persons
who may have conflicts of interest.

Persons with have conflict of interest Relationship

Srivichai Vejvivat Public Company Limited. See the table 9.1.1

(“Company”)

Saivichai Development Company Limited See the table 9.1.2

(“Saivichai”)

Srisakorn Vejavivat Company Limited. (“Srisakorn”) See the table 9.1.3

Asst. Prof. Dr. Saisunee Vandurongwan, Served as the director , Yaek Fai Chai
Mongkon Wanitphakdeedecha, M.D., Served as the director , Yaek Fai Chai
Prut Rojmahamongkol,Mr. Served as the director , Yaek Fai Chai
Prof.Dr.Rungsima Wanitphakdeedecha Served as the director , Yaek Fai Chai

5) Srivichai Vocational School Company Limited (“Srivichai School”)
Table 9.1.5 Relationship between companies 5) Srivichai Vocational School Company Limited and per-
sons who may have conflicts of interest.

Persons with have conflict of interest Relationship

Srivichai Vejvivat Public Company Limited.
See the table 9.1.1
(“Company”)
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Other Related Transection between Vichaivej Hospital
Group and persons with have conflict of interest

In addition to related transactions between com-
panies in the Vichaivej Hospital Group and Srivichai
Vocational Education including related transactions
between companies in the Vichaivej Hospital Group with
persons who may have conflicts of interest as detailed
in Table 9.1.6-9.1.9. There are still related transactions
with people who may have conflicts of interest which
consists of

1) The transaction of paying advisory fees to the
group of persons who are related to the executives,
including the close relatives of some directors.

Persons who may have conflicts of interest and
relationship characteristics

1. Ms. Wiladda Vandurongwan, a close relative of
Assoc. Prof. Vichai Vanadurongwan, M.D Ms. Wiladda
holds shares in the company representing 0.01 percent
of the total number of shares with voting rights of the
Company as of December 31, 2022

2. Mr. Vicha Vandurongwan, a close relative of As-
soc. Prof. Vichai Vanadurongwan and Mr.Vicha holds
shares in the company representing 0.01 percent of the
total number of shares with voting rights of the Company
as of December 31, 2022

Characteristics of Ralated transactions in the year
2022

The Company and its subsidiaries paid a consultant
fee for marketing and public relations to Ms. Viladda
Vandurongwan totaling 0.16 million baht per year
serves as a marketing and public relations consultant.
Because in the past, the Vichaivej Hospital group have
not personnel with expertise and experience in mar-
keting and public relations directly. On the other hand,
marketing and public relations activities are important
and necessary activities for a successful private hos-
pital business. The Company and its subsidiaries have
hired Ms. Viladda served as a marketing and public
relations consultant. because she saw that Ms. Viladda
was knowledgeable and has experience in organizing
marketing and public relations events for leading com-
panies both inside and outside the Stock Exchange of
Thailand.

The Company paid an advisory fee for the construc-
tion of the Social Security Building and MRI Building to
Dr. Vicha Vandurongwan in the total amount of Baht
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1.23 million per year consulting on social security and
MRI building construction projects because he is knowl-
edgeable and has experience in building construction
projects.

Opinion of the Audit Committee
The opinion of the Audit Committee is the transaction
that the Company and its subsidiaries paid an advi-
sory fee to Ms. Viladda, who is a close relative of the
Chairman of the Board of Directors. It is a reasonable
transaction and beneficial to the private hospital busi-
ness of the Vichaivej Hospital Group.

2) ltems of loan guarantees and obligations of the
Company and subsidiaries by some directors

Persons who may have conflicts of interest and the
nature of the relationship

- Assoc. Prof. Dr. Vichai Vandurongwan (Details of
position and shareholding in Vichaivej Hospital Group
in Table 9.1.1)

- Asst. Prof. Saisunee Vandurongwan (Details of
position and shareholding in Vichaivej Hospital Group
in Table 9.1.1)

Characteristics of Related transactions in the year
2022

The Company and its subsidiaries borrowed money
from several commercial banks. To be used as working
capital for business operations, used in the purchase of
medical equipment and the construction of additional
buildings to expand business including refinance of loans
to financial institutions (Refinance) obligations of the
Company and subsidiary And there are still outstanding
balances as of December 31, 2022 are as follows:

1) Long-term loans from external financial institutions

As of December 31, 2022, the Company has credit
lines from 2 commercial banks as follows: 1) The credit
line is 140 million baht, initially repayment of 1.67 mil-
lion baht per installment, totaling 84 installments, due
in the year. 2023 and 2) Credit line of 200 million baht,
starting to repay the principal of 2.80 million baht per
installment, totaling 84 installments due in 2024. The
loan is secured by the mortgage of the Company's
land and buildings. 3) The credit line is 35 million baht.
Interest MLR- 2.625 percent per annum, repayment of
0.83 million baht per installment, the first installment of
the 13th month since the firstloan drawdown which has
not yet been withdrawn.
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As of December 31, 2022, Saivichai Development
Company Limited (a subsidiary) has loans from a local
commercial bank as follows: 1) 15 million baht credit line
to be used for building construction and the purchase
of medical equipment. The repayment is 0.18 million
baht per installment, totaling 84 installments, interest
rate MLR-1 per annum, due for repayment in October
2024, guaranteed by the Company's land and buildings.
Srisakorn Vejavivat Co., Ltd. (subsidiary) 2) The credit
line is 65 million baht as of December 2021, withdrawn
38.40 million baht for the hospital building renovation.
The repayment is 0.91 million baht per installment, a
total of 84 installments, interest rate MLR-1 per annum,
due for repayment in October 2025, guaranteed by the
Company's land and buildings. Srisakornwetwiwat Co.,
Ltd. (subsidiary) The remaining loan cannot be with-
drawn 3) Credit line of 30 million baht as of December
2022, withdrawn of 18.00 million baht for the purchase
of medical equipment. The repayment is 0.50 million
baht per installment, totaling 60 installments, interest
rate MLR-0.5 percent per year, due for repaymentin July
2024, guaranteed by the Company's land and buildings.
Srisakorn Vejvivat Co., Ltd. (subsidiary). The remaining
loans have not been drawn. 12.00 million baht. 4) Soft-
loan credit line 10 million baht according to the Royal
Decree to provide financial assistance to enterprises
affected by the epidemic infected with the corona virus
2019 by repaying the principal in installments Equal
installments, totaling 12 installments, 0.83 million baht
per installment, fixed interest rate 2% per annum, due
in February 2023. 5) A credit line of 20 million baht to be
used as working capital in the business. The repayment
schedule is baht 0.48 million per installment, totaling
43 installments, interest rate MLR-2.625% per year, but
must not be less than 4.00% per year as of December
31, 2022, has not yet been drawn down.

As of December 31, 2022, Srisakorn Vejvivat
Company Limited (a subsidiary) has credit lines from
commercial banks as follows: 1) Credit line of 90 million
baht, initially repayment of principal plus interest of 1.30
million baht per installment, totaling 84 installments, due
in 2026, interest rate Year 1-3 MLR-1.25 per year 4th
year MLR-1 per year

As of December 31, 2022, Bangkok Orthopedic
Hospital Co., Ltd. Company Limited (a subsidiary has
credit lines from commercial banks as follows: 1) Credit
line amount 26.10 million baht, starting to repay the prin-
cipal plus interest at 0.68 million baht per installment,
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totaling 72 installments due in the year. 2025 Interest
rate 1-2 years MLR-2.65 Year 3-4 MLR-2 per year 5th
year onwards MLR-1.5 per year 2) Credit line from bank
10.00 million baht, repayment of principal plus interest
0.19 per installment million baht in total 60 installments
due in 2024 interest rate MLR -1.5 per year

2) Commitments and contingent liabilities in the
future

As of December 31, 2022, the Company and its
subsidiaries had an obligation with a commercial bank
to require the bank to issue a letter of guarantee for a
medical service contract with the Social Security Office
in the amount of 38 million baht and the National Health
Security Office in the amount of 4 million baht in the con-
solidated financial statements. This is a guarantee for land
and buildings of the Company and its subsidiaries.

As of December 31, 2022, the Company and its
subsidiaries had an obligation with a commercial bank to
require the bank to issue a letter of guarantee for the use of
electricity with the Provincial Electricity Authority, amounting
to 4 million baht in the consolidated financial statements

Opinion of the Audit Committee

Guarantees for borrowings and contingent liabilities
in the future and subsidiary companies by directors
including bringing the company's assets and subsidiary
come to guarantee more as detailed as shown condi-
tional set by commercial banks by guaranteeing loans
and obligations of the Company and its subsidiaries
that may occur in the future. and the subsidiary did not
pay any guarantee payment.

Details of other legal entity that are related to direc-
tors/executives of Vichaivej Hospital Group

Other than natural persons / legal entity who have
relationships with companies in the Vichaive] Hospital
Group as detailed in Table 9.1.1-9.1.5, there is another
juristic person that does not have a direct relationship
with companies in the Vichaivej Hospital Group. But
some directors of the Vichaivej Hospital Group have also
become directors of the said legal entity. Such legal entity
are: Srivichai Hospital Foundation The important details
of the Srivichai Hospital Foundation are as follows.

+ Srivichai Hospital Foundation was authorized to
be established on May 18, 1993 with the objective of

1. To provide supportin the fields of nursing, public
health and social work.
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2. To provide support to public charity work, dona-
tions, giving and alms-giving.

3. Help and promote education at all levels

4. Take action for the public benefit or cooperate
with other charitable organizations for the public benefit.

+ The Company's 3 directors are Assoc. Prof.
Dr. Vichai Vandurongwan, Asst. Prof. Dr. Saisunee
Vandurongwan and M.D. Pongsak Wattana are also
directors of the Srivichai Hospital Foundation.

* Determining Srivichai Hospital Foundation will
use the donated money for charitable activities will be
jointly considered by the Foundation's Board of Direc-
tors. It is not related to the operations of the Vichaive;
Hospital Group. The Srivichai Hospital Foundation is
not considered part of the Vichaivej Hospital Group.

Reasonableness of Related Transactions

The Audit Committee has considered and comment-
ed on the related transactions between the companies
with a subsidiary and related transactions between
the Company and its subsidiaries and persons who
may have conflicts of interest have a stake or there
may be a conflict of interest in the future according
to the announcement of the Securities and Exchange
Commission. The Audit Committee is of the opinion that
the various related transactions the aforementioned
events occurring in 2021 are reasonable transactions,
fair pricing and other conditions are set, as are pricing
to other unrelated parties and there is no transfer of
interests between the Company and its subsidiaries
and persons who may have conflicts of interest. (Can
see details of Each item can be found in Tables 9.1.6
and 9.1.9, including sections relating to other related
transactions between Vichaivej Hospital Group and
persons who may have conflicts of interest)

Measures or procedures for approval of related trans-
actions

Company has given importance to the prevention of
conflicts of interest and related transactions and con-
nected transactions in accordance with the regulations
of the government. The company provides director and
executive above Vice President and discloses relation-
ship information or connection in a business that has
interests related to or connected with and a manual
has been provided for making transactions with related
persons or connected in order to eliminate conflicts of
interest In considering the transaction with the person
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with related interests or connected It will operate with
equality and fairness principles in terms of prices and
conditions with the same rules as transactions with other
customers as well as requiring directors and executives
who have a stake in the transaction must not participate
in the approval of the transaction and have no right to
vote at the meeting.

The Company has assigned the Audit Committee to
consider, review and review connected transactions to
prevent and eliminate conflicts of interest.

The Company will disclose the transaction information
to the person with related interests. connected persons,
including related transactions, are completely transparent
and in accordance with the rules set by the SEC and the
Stock Exchange of Thailand and accounting standards.

In the meeting of the Company's Board of Directors
Srivichai Vejvivat Public Company Limited No. 12/2012
On November 9, 2012, the Board of Directors approved
the announcement of the manual on connected trans-
actions. with the principle that related transactions that
may occur in the future with persons who may have
conflicts of interest have interests or may have conflicts
of interest in the future. The Company and its subsid-
iaries will require the Audit Committee to comment on
the necessity and appropriateness of the transaction.
In the event that the Audit Committee does not have
expertise in considering the connected transactions, the
Company and its subsidiaries will assign independent
experts or auditors to give opinions on such connected
transactions to be used in the decision of the Board of
Directors and/or the Audit Committee and/or share-
holders as the case may be A person who may have a
conflict of interest or has an interest in the transaction
will not have the right to vote in approving the said
transaction by the Company and its subsidiaries will
comply with the law on securities and exchange and
regulations, notifications, orders or regulations of the
Stock Exchange of Thailand. The SEC and the Capital
Market Supervisory Board as well as other regulators
are strictly involved.

Policy or trend of related transactions in future

For future related transactions of the Company and
its subsidiaries. The Board of Directors will consider
the necessity and reasonableness of entering into the
transaction and for the greatest benefit to the Company
and its subsidiaries and consider setting the price and
conditions of the transaction to be in line with normal
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business. will have the Audit Committee to consider and
give opinions on the necessity and reasonableness that
it is in accordance with the nature of normal business
and consider comparing it with the actual price with a
third party.

The Company and its subsidiaries have a policy for
related transactions for various types of transactions
that may occur in the future as follows:

1. Transactions that the Company and its subsidiar-
ies will borrow from the Srivichai Savings Cooperative
In the event that the Company and its subsidiaries
need to borrow money for use in business operations
or business expansion will borrow money from external
financial institutions. However, if the Board of Directors
has considered and agreed that

+ Borrowing money from Srivichai Savings Coop-
erative brings benefits in business and operations to
the Company and its subsidiaries.

» The borrowing conditions are reasonable and
do not facilitate or transfer benefits to persons who
may have interests in the transaction and conditions
for borrowing money and repayment of principal and
interest including better interest rates than borrowing
from external financial institutions

The Company and its subsidiaries may also consider
borrowing money from the Srivichai Savings Coopera-
tive. In the event that the Company and its subsidiaries
borrow money from the Srivichai Savings Cooperative.
It must proceed to request approval of the transaction
from the Board of Directors' meeting (where the Audit
Committee attended the meeting. Directors who may
have interests in the transaction will not have the right to
attend or approve the transaction) or the shareholders'
meeting, as the case may be, in order to comply with
the relevant rules of the Office of the SEC, The Stock
Exchange of Thailand, Capital Market Supervisory
Board including other regulators related.

2. For transactions that the Company and its subsid-
iaries will borrow money between each other to be used
as working capital in business and expected that such
transactions may occur again in the future which if such
type of transaction occurs Interest rates and borrowing
conditions will be set according to the general trading
style or conditions according to reasonable prices by
taking into account the benefits of each company as
important.
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3. In the event that the Company has a necessity
to guarantee the subsidiary's loan The Company will
guarantee the loan in accordance with the Company's
shareholding in each subsidiary.

4. For the guarantee of loans from external financial
institutions of the Company and its subsidiaries by the
directors of that company After the Company and its
subsidiaries have been listed on the Stock Exchange
of Thailand. The Company's directors will no longer
guarantee loans from external financial institutions of the
Company and its subsidiaries exceptin the case where
the Company and its subsidiaries need to borrow mon-
ey from external financial institutions. And the lending
financial institutions have set conditions for having the
guarantee of the loan by the directors of the company.
In this case, the transaction must be approved by the
Board of Directors' meeting (where the Audit Committee
attended the meeting. Directors who may have interests
in the transaction will not have the right to attend or
approve the transaction) or the shareholders' meeting,
as the case may be, in order to comply with the relevant
rules of the Office of the SEC, The Stock Exchange of
Thailand, the Capital Market Supervisory Board and
other relevant regulators.

5. For normal business transactions between the
Company and its subsidiaries, such as drug and med-
ical purchases and being a network hospital to provide
medical services to insurers of the Social Security Office
between the Company and its subsidiaries including
medical device leasing and fixed asset sales (Med-
ical devices) The Company and its subsidiaries will
set prices and conditions taking into account actual
costs plus reasonable profit or normal business price
The price and market conditions are reasonable, fair
and reasonable, taking into account the interests of
each company as a priority. Related transactions will
be reported and conditions of the transaction for the
Audit Committee to consider and give opinions on the
necessity and reasonableness of the transaction.

6. For entering into various types of consulting con-
tracts of the Company and its subsidiaries must bring
benefits or help support the business operations of the
Company and its subsidiaries. The terms of the contract
are fair reasonable and there must be a contract with
every consultant in writing whether itis a consultant who
is a person who is related to the directors / executives
of the company or a subsidiary. The Company has
stipulated that approval of entering into contracts with
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new consultants or renewing contracts with existing consultants must be considered and given an opinion by the
Audit Committee and the Board of Directors' meeting (with the Audit Committee attending the meeting) will consider
and approve the entering into a contract with a new consultant. or renewing a contract with an existing consultant
(as the case may be) by directors who may have interests (whether directly or indirectly) to approve entering into a
contract or renewing the contract (as the case may be) will not be able to attend the meeting to vote on approval of
the transaction and in case the size of the transaction is significant until requiring approval of the transaction from
the shareholders' meeting The Company will comply with the regulations on disclosure of connected transactions
and the acquisition or disposal of important assets of listed companies and subsidiaries Strictly.

7. In addition, in future, the Company plans to provide raw material procurement services for its subsidiaries. The

purchasing department of the company is the procurement operator. by taking into account the benefits of each
company as important.
8. For other types of related transactions which is not specified in Clause 1.-7., the Company and its subsidiaries will
proceed in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Act and regulations, naotifications, orders or requirements
of the Stock Exchange of Thailand, the Office of the Board of Directors. SEC, Capital Market Supervisory Board
including other relevant regulatory bodies strictly will consider the conditions and price of entering into the transac-
tion to be reasonable and not to facilitate or transfer benefits to persons who may have interest in the transaction.

Investor Protection Measures

In the future, for protect investors if there are related transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries
with persons who may have conflicts of interest have a stake or there may be a conflict of interest in the future, the
company will arrange it through the Board of Directors' meeting. (Audit Committee attending the meeting Directors
who may have interests in the transaction will not have the right to attend the meeting or approve the transaction) to
ensure that the transaction is fair and have an appropriate pricing policy. Comply with the Securities and Exchange
Act and regulations, announcements, regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand, the Office of the SEC, the Cap-
ital Market Supervisory Board including other relevant regulatory bodies as well as complying with the requirements
for disclosure of connected transactions and acquiring or disposing of important assets of listed companies and
subsidiaries strictly.



Part 3

Financial Statement




56-1 ONE REPORT s1gvuUs:91U 2565

Srivichaivejvivat Public Company Limited 1 39 USBN ASIGEIEIIAN 9INA (UABU)

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of Srivichaivejvivat Public Company Limited

Opinion

| have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Srivichaivejvivat Public Company Limited
and its subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and
the related consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies, and have also audited the separate financial statements of Srivichaivejvivat Public Company Limited for
the same period.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Srivichaivejvivat Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries and of Srivichaivejvivat Public Company Limited as
at 31 December 2022, their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Thai
Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing. My responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of my report.
| am independent of the Company and its subsidiaries in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Ac-
countants including Independence Standards issued by the Federation of Accounting Professions (Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants) that are relevant to my audit of the financial statements, and | have fulfilled my other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants. | believe that the audit
evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgement, were of most significance in my audit
of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of my audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming my opinion thereon, and | do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

| have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial State-
ments section of my report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, my audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to my assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements.
The results of my audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the
basis for my audit opinion on the accompanying financial statements as a whole.

Key audit matters and how audit procedures respond for each matter are described below.

Estimation of accrued medical treatment income

The Company and its subsidiaries have revenues from the provision of medical services to patients under the
government welfare schemes of the Social Security Office and the National Health Security Office. The amounts of
such revenues are determined based on the government policy, the number of insured persons registered, and
statistical information on the services provided by the Company and its subsidiaries. As discussed in Note 8 to the
financial statements, as at 31 December 2022, the Company and its subsidiaries accrued medical treatment income
from such two government agencies amounting to Baht 141 million. An estimation of accrued medical treatmentincome
requires management to exercise significant judgement. There is thus a risk of the value of such accrued income.
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| have examined the accrued medical treatment income by:

« Assessing and testing the Company and its subsidiaries’ internal controls with respect to the estimation of
accrued medical treatment income by making enquiry of responsible executives, gaining an understanding of the
controls and selecting representative samples to test the operation of the designed controls.

+ Assessing the appropriateness of the criteria, methodology and conditions applied by the Company and its
subsidiaries in estimating accrued medical treatment income in accordance with the government policy.

« Performing the reasonableness of past estimates of accrued medical income by comparing those estimates
with the actual amounts received.

+ Examining cash receipt transactions relating to accrued medical treatment income subsequent to the peri-
od-end date.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprise the information included in
annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries, but does not include the financial statements and my auditor’s
report thereon. The annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries is expected to be made available to me after
the date of this auditor’s report.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and | do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or my knowl-
edge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When | read the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries, if | conclude that there is a material mis-
statement therein, | am required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance for correction of the
misstatement.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance

for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with Thai Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company and its subsidiaries’
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company and its subsidiaries
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company and its subsidiaries’ financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with Thai Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing, | exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:
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+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, mis-
representations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Com-
pany and its subsidiaries’ internal control.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company and its subsidiaries’ ability to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company and its subsidiaries to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Company and its subsidiaries to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. |
am responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Company and its subsidiaries audit. | remain
solely responsible for my audit opinion.

| communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that | identify
during my audit.

| also provide those charged with governance with a statement that | have complied with relevant ethical re-
quirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, | determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. |
describe these matters in my auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, | determine that a matter should not be communicated in my report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

| am responsible for the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report.

Ut L

Khitsada Lerdwana

Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 4958
EY Office Limited

Bangkok: 27 February 2023
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Srivichaivejvivat Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
Statement of financial position

As at 31 December 2022

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
Note 2022 2021 2022 2021

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 7 1,063,007,414 1,185,024,887 236,660,023 393,429,307
Trade and other receivables 8 429,472,329 674,712,972 216,498,108 157,322,396
Medicine and supplies 9 60,966,781 61,527,245 24,444,979 19,313,757
Other current assets 10,944,174 54,758,391 3,348,309 12,238,232
Total current assets 1,564,390,698 1,976,023,495 480,951,419 582,303,692
Non-current assets
Restricted bank deposits 10 489,400 489,400 - -
Other non-current financial asset 11 43,902,000 43,902,000 43,902,000 43,902,000
Investments in subsidiaries 12 - - 346,136,171 346,136,171
Investment properties 13 27,822,817 - 44,825,554 -
Property, plant and equipment 14 2,001,304,141 1,635,194,396 1,131,893,321 982,066,278
Right-of-use assets 18 26,212,560 42,099,309 376,662 2,305,914
Goodwill 15 - - - -
Deferred tax assets 23 15,053,431 13,342,892 - -
Other non-current assets 28,496,415 28,225,260 21,117,506 23,278,078
Total non-current assets 2,143,280,764 1,663,253,257 1,688,251,214 1,397,688,441
Total assets 3,707,671,462 3,639,276,752 2,069,202,633 1,979,992,133

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Srivichaivejvivat Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

Statement of financial position (continued)

As at 31 December 2022

Liabilities and shareholders' equity
Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Current portion of payable from purchase of

investment
Current portion of long-term loans
Current portion of lease liabilities
Income tax payable
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Payable from purchase of investment,
net of current portion
Long-term loans, net of current portion
Lease liabilities, net of current portion
Provision for long-term employee benefits
Deferred tax liabilities
Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

16

12

17

18

12

17

18

19

23
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(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

2022 2021 2022 2021
375,552,069 482,445,397 207,099,332 186,375,771
5,635,489 5,246,909 5,535,489 5,246,909
67,345,110 109,087,689 43,340,000 53,640,000
6,963,630 12,223,846 108,570 589,263
59,097,935 170,939,099 209,408 41,563,247
4,801,170 4,800,895 1,656,997 1,721,323
519,295,403 784,743,835 257,949,796 289,136,513
12,001,077 17,536,566 12,001,077 17,536,566
61,547,812 131,871,767 29,590,000 72,930,000
50,497,532 56,338,445 147,981 721,791
54,969,540 50,932,894 14,708,475 13,534,010
1,282,284 2,275,601 950,914 1,810,509
180,298,245 258,955,273 57,398,447 106,532,876
699,593,648 1,043,699,108 315,348,243 395,669,389

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Srivichaivejvivat Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
Statement of financial position (continued)

As at 31 December 2022

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
Note 2022 2021 2022 2021
Shareholders' equity
Share capital
Registered
570,666,666 ordinary shares of Baht 1 each 570,666,666 570,666,666 570,666,666 570,666,666
Issued and fully paid
570,665,433 ordinary shares of Baht 1 each 570,665,433 570,665,433 570,665,433 570,665,433
Share premium 37,938,115 37,938,115 37,938,115 37,938,115
Retained earnings
Appropriated - statutory reserve 20 57,066,667 57,066,667 57,066,667 57,066,667
Unappropriated 2,314,086,214 1,902,820,354 1,085,462,575 915,930,929
Other components of shareholders' equity 21,391,096 21,391,096 2,721,600 2,721,600
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 3,001,147,525 2,5689,881,665 1,753,854,390 1,584,322,744
Non-controlling interests of the subsidiaries 6,930,289 5,695,979 - -
Total shareholders' equity 3,008,077,814 2,595,577,644 1,753,854,390 1,684,322,744
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 3,707,671,462 3,639,276,752 2,069,202,633 1,979,992,133

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Srivichaivejvivat Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
Statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Profit or loss:

Revenues

Revenues from hospital operations
Dividend income

Other income

Total revenues

Expenses

Cost of hospital operations

Selling expenses

Administrative expenses

Total expenses

Operating profit

Finance cost

Profit before income tax expenses
Income tax expenses

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent periods
Actuarial gain
Gain on changes in value of equity investments
designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income
Less: income tax effect
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent periods - net of income tax

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

145
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(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

Note 022 021 2022 2021

3,645,904,869 4,717,835,342 1,287,032,901 1,334,393,697

12 - - 287,874,429 364,461,705
15,875,888 11,922,310 5,843,394 3,194,584
3,661,780,757 4,729,757,652 1,580,750,724 1,702,049,986
2,361,696,282 2,693,236,138 940,592,817 858,425,761
133,184,526 66,135,140 22,932,074 22,633,673
283,947,901 365,719,303 116,911,141 188,322,849
2,778,828,709 3,125,090,581 1,080,436,032 1,069,382,283
882,952,048 1,604,667,071 500,314,692 632,667,703
21 (11,012,459) (15,682,799) (4,905,763) (6,794,852)
871,939,589 1,588,984,272 495,408,929 625,872,851
23 (172,698,740) (328,773,405) (40,545,573) (64,190,462)
699,240,849 1,260,210,867 454,863,356 561,682,389

19 - 2,449,463 - 566,361
11 - 2,997,000 - 2,997,000
23 - (1,086,587) - (712,772)
- 4,359,876 - 2,851,089

- 4,359,876 - 2,851,089

699,240,849 1,264,570,743 454,863,356 564,533,478

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Srivichaivejvivat Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
Statement of comprehensive income

=or the year ended 31 December 2022

rofit attributable to:
=quity holders of the Company

Non-controlling interests of the subsidiaries

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
=quity holders of the Company

Non-controlling interests of the subsidiaries

=arnings per share
3asic earnings per share

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company

24

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

2022 2021 2022 2021
696,597,570 1,255,182,135 454,863,356 561,682,389
2,643,279 5,028,732
699,240,849 1,260,210,867
696,597,570 1,259,544,865 454,863,356 564,533,478
2,643,279 5,025,878
699,240,849 1,264,570,743
1.22 2.20 0.80 0.98
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Srivichaivejvivat Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
Cash flow statement

For the year ended 31 December 2022

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
2022 2021 2022 2021
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 871,939,589 1,588,984,272 495,408,929 625,872,851
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash
provided by (paid from) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortisation 170,097,215 157,826,725 63,398,342 51,632,422
Allowance for expected credit losses 4,474,366 3,637,850 1,092,609 1,672,216
Reduction of medicine and supplies to net realisable value 5,355,679 194,395 1,256,553 45,568
Impairment loss on goodwill - 64,863,745 - -
Impairment loss on investment in subsidiary - - - 64,863,745
Gain on disposals of equipment (509,700) (796,726) (638,327) (129,131)
Loss on write-off of equipment 599,945 1,402,206 395,160 426,370
Loss on write-off of intangible assets - 24,243 - -
The adjustment of differences arising from
a reduction in rental payments - 108,340 - -
Gain on lease cancellation (201,871) - - -
Withholding tax write-off 19 - - -
Provision for long-term employee benefits 4,748,098 5,135,952 1,375,732 1,426,575
Dividend income from subsidiaries - - (287,874,429) (364,461,705)
Interest income (1,400,531) (418,814) (230,544) (83,999)
Finance cost 11,012,459 15,682,799 4,905,763 6,794,852
Profit from operating activities before changes
in operating assets and liabilities 1,066,115,268 1,836,644,987 279,089,788 387,959,764
Operating assets (increase) decrease
Trade and other receivables 240,766,277 (323,474,417) (60,268,321) 14,239,428
Medicine and supplies (4,795,215) (10,452,886) (6,387,775) (1,783,473)
Other current assets 43,814,198 (44,393,228) 8,889,923 (10,045,348)
Other non-current assets 968,986 (176,665) (27,499) 106,000
Operating liabilities increase (decrease)
Trade and other payables (120,189,065) 180,775,979 8,604,550 31,955,458
Other current liabilities 275 312,570 (64,326) 238,170
Cash paid for long-term employee benefits (711,452) (1,020,534) (201,267) -
Cash flows from operating activities 1,225,969,272 1,638,215,806 229,635,073 422,669,999
Interest received 1,400,531 418,814 230,544 83,999
Cash paid for income tax (287,243,760) (178,481,457) (82,759,007) (28,390,936)
Net cash flows from operating activities 940,126,043 1,460,153,163 147,106,610 394,363,062

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Srivichaivejvivat Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
Cash flow statement (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of in property, plant and equipment
Cash paid for payable of buildings improvement
and equipment
Acquisition of investment properties
Acquisition of intangible assets
Cash receipt from dividend of subsidiaries
Proceeds from sales of equipment
Advance for purchase of equipment
Advance for purchase of intangible assets
Advance for purchase of right-of-use assets
Cash paid for payable from purchase of investment
Interest paid
Net cash flows from (used in) investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Cash receipt from short-term loans from financial institutions
Repayment of short-term loans from financial institutions
Cash receipt from short-term loans from related parties
Repayment of short-term loans from related parties
Cash receipt from long-term loans from financial institutions
Repayment of long-term loans from financial institutions
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities
Interest paid
Dividend paid
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests of the subsidiaries
Net cash flows used in financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplemental cash flows information:
Non-cash items consist of:
Acquisition of buildings improvement and equipment
for which no cash has been paid
Interest expense capitalisation as cost of assets
Transfer of advances for purchases of fixed assets
to property, plant and equipment
Additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
Transfer of right-of-use assets

to property, plant and equipment

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

2022

(554,781,502)

(27,176,780)
(28,128,791)

021

(155,488,745)

(15,140,419)

2022

(172,805,223)

(17,056,079)
(45,235,712)

021

(122,539,314)

(13,374,602)

(5,237,827) (450,755) (2,117,427) (414,642)

- - 287,874,429 364,461,705

521,900 826,500 707,000 158,900
(15,475,184) (3,862,659) (3,607,807) (1,503,012)
(400,000) - (200,000) -
(1,042,106) - - -
(5,246,909) (4,973,373) (5,246,909) (4,973,373)
(2,756,575) (5,083,005) (1,253,091) (1,526,627)
(639,723,774) (184,172,456) 41,059,181 220,289,035
20,000,000 80,000,000 20,000,000 80,000,000

(20,000,000)

(112,066,534)
(13,369,244)
(9,833,286)
(285,057,668)
(2,093,010)

(283,300,000)

110,000,000
(99,288,050)
(12,497,866)
(14,199,433)
(70,918,060)
(913,351)

(20,000,000)
120,000,000
(120,000,000)

(53,640,000)
(1,054,503)
(5,182,904)

(285,057,668)

(275,000,000)
70,000,000
(70,000,000)
85,000,000
(50,859,848)
(1,175,887)
(8,824,167)
(70,918,060)

(422,419,742)

(291,116,760)

(344,935,075)

(241,777,962)

(122,017,473) 984,863,947 (156,769,284) 372,874,135
1,185,024,887 200,160,940 393,429,307 20,555,172
1,063,007,414 1,185,024,887 236,660,023 393,429,307

40,956,434 27,176,780 28,927,796 17,056,079
1,603,484 3,556,378 1,603,484 3,556,378
15,774,682 3,050,913 4,632,258 613,155
2,506,143 3,941,177 - 577,000
8,704,587 2,305,410 1,354,802 578,508
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Srivichaivejvivat Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
Notes to consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

1. General information

Srivichaivejvivat Public Company Limited (“the Company”) is a public company incorporated and domiciled in
Thailand. The Company is principally engaged in hospital business. The registered office of the Company is at 74/5
Moo 4, Phetkasem Road, Omnoi, Krathumbaen, Samutsakorn.

2. Basis of preparation

2.1The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards enunciated
under the Accounting Professions Act B.E. 2547 and their presentation has been made in compliance with the stipulations
of the Notification of the Department of Business Development, issued under the Accounting Act B.E. 2543.
The financial statements in Thai language are the official statutory financial statements of the Company.
The financial statements in English language have been translated from the Thai language financial statements.
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where otherwise disclosed in the
accounting policies.

2.2 Basis of consolidation
a) The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Srivichaivejvivat Public Company
Limited (“the Company”) and the following subsidiary companies (“the subsidiaries”):

Country of Percentage of
Company’s name Nature of business incorporation Shareholding
2022 021

Percent  Percent
Saivichai Development Company Limited Operating of hospitals Thailand 99.43 99.43
Srisakornvejvivat Company Limited Operating of hospitals Thailand 99.56 99.56
Srivichai Vocational College
Company Limited Operating of vocational school Thailand 99.98 99.98
The Bangkok Orthopedic Hospital

Company Limited Operating of hospitals Thailand 100.00 100.00

b) The Company is deemed to have control over an investee or subsidiaries if it has rights, or is exposed, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee, and it has the ability to direct the activities that affect the amount of its returns.

c) Subsidiaries are fully consolidated, being the date on which the Company obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date when such control ceases.

d) The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared using the same significant accounting policies as
the Company.

e) Material balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries have been eliminated from the
consolidated financial statements.

f)  Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets of the subsidiaries that are not
held by the Company and are presented separately in the consolidated profit or loss and within equity in the con-
solidated statement of financial position.
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2.3 The separate financial statements present investments in subsidiaries under the cost method.
3. New financial reporting standards

3.1 Financial reporting standards that became effective in the current year

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries have adopted the revised financial reporting standards and
interpretations which are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2022. These financial reporting
standards were aimed at alignment with the corresponding International Financial Reporting Standards with most of
the changes directed towards clarifying accounting treatment and providing accounting guidance for users of the
standards.

The adoption of these financial reporting standards does not have any significant impact on the Company and
its subsidiaries’ financial statements.

3.2 Financial reporting standards that will become effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2023
The Federation of Accounting Professions issued a number of revised financial reporting standards, which
are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2023. These financial reporting standards were
aimed at alignment with the corresponding International Financial Reporting Standards with most of the changes
directed towards clarifying accounting treatment and providing accounting guidance for users of the standards
The management of the Company and its subsidiaries believe that adoption of these amendments will not have
any significant impact on the Company and its subsidiaries’ financial statements.

4.Significant accounting policies

4.1 Revenue recognition and expense recognition

Revenue for hospital operations

Revenues from hospital operations, mainly consisting of medical fees, hospital room sales, and medicine sales,
are recognised as revenue and the point in time when services have been rendered or medicines have been de-
livered. Revenues are measured at the amount of the consideration received or receivable of services rendered, and
medicine delivered after deducting discounts. Hospital operating revenues from the Social Security Office and National
Health Security Office are recognised based on several expected service fee rates. The Company and its subsidiaries
take into account criteria, procedures, and conditions set forth by the Offices, including statistics on medical services
provided by the hospital’s group and actual payments for medical services received from the Offices.

Rendering of services

Service revenue is recognised when services have been rendered taking into account the stage of completion.
Revenue from tuition fees and educational media
Revenues from tuition fees and educational media are recognised over the teaching period.

Rental income

Rental income is recognised over the rental period and at the rate determined in agreement.

Interest income

Interestincome is calculated using the effective interest method and recognised on an accrual basis. The effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, unless the financial assets subsequently
become credit-impaired when it is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (net of the expected
credit loss allowance).

Finance cost

Interest expense from financial liabilities at amortised cost is calculated using the effective interest method and
recognised on an accrual basis.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised when the right to receive the dividends is established.
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42 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and at banks, and all highly liquid investments with an original

maturity of three months or less and not subject to withdrawal restrictions.
4.3 Medicine and supplies
Medicine and supplies are valued at the lower of cost (average method) and net realisable value.

4.4 Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for in the separate financial statements using the cost method.

45 Investment properties
Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and allowance for loss on impairment (if any).
Depreciation of investment properties is calculated by reference to their costs on the straight-line basis over
estimated useful lives of 20 years. Depreciation of the investment properties is included in determining income.
On disposal of investment properties, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset is recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is derecognised.

46 Property, plant and equipment/Depreciation

Land is stated at cost. Buildings and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and allowance

for loss on impairment of assets (if any).
Depreciation of plant and equipment is calculated by reference to their cost on the straight-line basis over the

following estimated useful lives:

The Bangkok Orthopedic Hospital

Company Limited Operating of hospitals Thailand 100.00 100.00
Buildings 20,40 and 50 years
Buildings improvement 5,20 vyears
Buildings improvement on right-of-use assets 2-20 years
Tools and medical instruments 2-10 years
Office furniture, fixtures and equipment 3,5 years
Motor vehicles 5-10 years

Depreciation is included in determining income.

No depreciation is provided on land and assets under installation and under construction.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on disposal of an asset is included in the profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised.

4.7 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the
respective assets. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist
of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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4.8 Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recorded at cost, which equals to the excess of cost of business combination over the fair value
of the net assets acquired. If the fair value of the net assets acquired exceeds the cost of business combination, the
excess is immediately recognised as gain in profit or loss.

Goodwill is carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and
when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to each of the
Company’s cash-generating units (or group of cash-generating units) that are expected to benefit from the syner-
gies of the combination. The Company estimates the recoverable amount of each cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses relating to
goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

49 Leases

At inception of contract, the Company and its subsidiaries assess whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.

The Company and its subsidiaries as a lessee

The Company and its subsidiaries applied a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, ex-
cept for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.At the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date the
underlying asset is available for use), the Company and its subsidiaries recognise right-of-use assets representing
the right to use underlying assets and lease liabilities based on lease payments.

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation, any accumulated impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities initially recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement
date of the lease less any lease incentives received.

Depreciation of right-of-use assets are calculated by reference to their costs, on the straight-line basis over the
shorter of their estimated useful lives and the lease term.

Land 16  years
Buildings and buildings improvement 1-12 years
Tools and medical instruments 3-6 years
Motor vehicles 3-7 years

If ownership of the leased asset is transferred to the Company and its subsidiaries at the end of the lease term or the
cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made over the lease term. The
lease payments include fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend
on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be payable under residual value guarantees. Moreover, the lease
payments include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and
its subsidiaries and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company and its
subsidiaries exercising an option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
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are recognised as expenses in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

The Company and its subsidiaries discounted the present value of the lease payments by the interest rate implicit
in the lease or the Company and its subsidiaries’ incremental borrowing rate. After the commencement date, the
amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a change in the lease term, a change in
the lease payments or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
A lease that has a lease term less than or equal to 12 months from commencement date or a lease of low-value
assets is recognised as expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Company as a lessor

A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset to a lessee. Lease receivables from operating leases is recognised as income in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the underlying assets and recognised as an expense over the lease term on
the same basis as the lease income.

4.10 Related party transactions
Related parties comprise enterprises and individuals that control, or are controlled by, the Company or its sub-
sidiaries, whether directly or indirectly, or which are under common control with the Company or its subsidiaries.
They also include individuals or enterprises which directly or indirectly own a voting interest in the Company or its
subsidiaries that gives them significant influence over the Company or its subsidiaries, key management personnel,
directors and officers with authority in the planning and direction of the Company’s or its subsidiaries’ operations.

411 Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company and its subsidiaries perform impairment reviews in respect of
the property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, investment properties, and other intangible assets whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that an asset may be impaired. The Company and its subsidiaries also
carry out annual impairment reviews in respect of goodwill. An impairment loss is recognised when the recoverable
amount of an asset, which is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use, is less than
the carrying amount. In determining value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by a valuation model that, based on information available, reflects the amount that the
Company and its subsidiaries could obtain from the disposal of the asset in an arm’s length transaction between
knowledgeable, willing parties, after deducting the costs of disposal.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.
In the assessment of asset impairment (except for goodwill), if there is any indication that previously recognised im-
pairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased, the Company and its subsidiaries estimate the asset’s
recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The
increased carrying amount of the asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss shall not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such
reversal is recognised in profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal,
which exceeds the carrying amount that would have been determined, is treated as a revaluation increase.
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412 Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits
Salaries, wages, bonuses and contributions to the social security fund are recognised as expenses when incurred.

Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plans

The Company, the subsidiaries and their employees have jointly established separate provident funds. The funds
are monthly contributed by employees, the Company and its subsidiaries. The funds’ assets are held in separate
trust funds and the Company and its subsidiaries’ contributions are recognised as expenses when incurred.

Defined benefit plans

The Company and its subsidiaries have obligations in respect of the severance payments they must make to
employees upon retirement under labor law. The Company and its subsidiaries treat these severance payment ob-
ligations as a defined benefit plan.

The obligation under the defined benefit plan is determined by a professionally qualified independent actuary
based on actuarial techniques, using the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from defined benefit plans are recognised immediately in other comprehensive
income.

Past service costs are recognized in profit or loss on the earlier of the date of the plan amendment
or curtailment and the date that the Company and its subsidiaries recognise restructuring-related costs.

4.13 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company and its subsidiaries have a present obligation as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obliga-
tion, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

414 Income tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of corporate income tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax
Current income tax is provided in the accounts at the amount expected to be paid to the taxation authorities,
based on taxable profits determined in accordance with tax legislation.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts at the end of each reporting period, using the tax rates enacted at the end of the reporting
period.

The Company and its subsidiaries recognise deferred tax liabilities for all taxable temporary differences while they
recognise deferred tax assets for all deductible temporary differences and tax losses carried forward to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which such deductible temporary differences
and tax losses carried forward can be utilised.

At each reporting date, the Company and its subsidiaries review and reduce the carrying amount of deferred
tax assets to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

The Company and its subsidiaries record deferred tax directly to shareholders’ equity if the tax relates to items
that are recorded directly to shareholders’ equity.
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415 Financial instruments

The Company and its subsidiaries initially measure financial assets at its fair value plus, in the case of financial
assets that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. However, trade receivables, that do
not contain a significant financing component, are measured at the transaction price as disclosed in the accounting
policy relating to revenue recognition.

Classification and measurement of financial assets

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as to be subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”), or fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"). The classification of
financial assets at initial recognition is driven by the Company and its subsidiaries’ business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flows characteristics of the financial assets.

Financial assets at amortised cost

The Company and its subsidiaries measure financial assets at amortised cost if the financial asset is held in order
to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate (“EIR”) method and
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, mod-
ified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at FVOCI (equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Company and its subsidiaries can elect to irrevocably classify its equity investments
which are not held for trading as equity instruments designated at FVOCI. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses recognised in other comprehensive income on these financial assets are never recycled to
profit or loss.

Dividends are recognised as other income in profit or loss, except when the dividends clearly represent a recovery
of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, the gains are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Equity instruments designated at FVOCI are not subject to impairment assessment.

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

At initial recognition the Company and its subsidiaries’ financial liabilities are recognised at fair value net of
transaction costs and classified as liabilities to be subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process. In determining amortised cost, the Company and its subsidiaries take into account any fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial instruments

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or
have been transferred and either the Company and its subsidiaries have transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or the Company and its subsidiaries have transferred control of the asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in profit or loss.
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Impairment of financial assets

For trade receivables, the Company and its subsidiaries apply a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. There-
fore, the Company and its subsidiaries do not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognise a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.

ECLs are calculated based on its historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking factors specific
to the debtors and the economic environment.

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

4.16 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between buyer and seller (market participants) at the measurement date. The Company applies a quoted market
price in an active market to measure their assets and liabilities that are required to be measured at fair value by
relevant financial reporting standards. Except in case of no active market of an identical asset or liability or when a
quoted market price is not available, the Company measures fair value using valuation technique that are appropriate
in the circumstances and maximises the use of relevant observable inputs related to assets and liabilities that are
required to be measured at fair value.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy into three levels based on categorise of input to be used in fair value measurement as
follows:

Level 1 - Use of quoted market prices in an active market for such assets or liabilities

Level 2 - Use of other observable inputs for such assets or liabilities, whether directly or indirectly

Level 3 - Use of unobservable inputs such as estimates of future cash flows

At the end of each reporting period, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels
within the fair value hierarchy for assets and liabilities held at the end of the reporting period that are measured at
fair value on a recurring basis.

5. Significant accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with financial reporting standards at times requires manage-
ment to make subjective judgements and estimates regarding matters that are inherently uncertain. These judge-
ments and estimates affect reported amounts and disclosures; and actual results could differ from these estimates.
Significant judgements and estimates are as follows:

Accrued medical treatment income

Accrued medical treatment income represents medical income that has not been collected from the Social Se-
curity Office and National Health Security Office. The Company and its subsidiaries are not able to determine the
certain amount to be collected. In this regard, the management is required to make an estimation of such accrued
income in accordance with bases, methods and terms specified by such authority, and consider the amount of the
latest actual collection together with the current circumstances.

Allowance for impairment of non-financial assets

In determining allowance for impairment of a non-financial asset, the management is required to exercise judge-
ments regarding determination of the recoverable amount of the asset, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding
sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
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of disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow model. The cash flows are
derived from the budget for the next 5 years and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet
committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the performance of the assets of the cash-generating
unit being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the discounted cash flow model
as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. These estimates
are most relevant to goodwill and investments in subsidiaries recognised by the Company.

Litigation

The Company has contingent liabilities as a result of litigation. The management has used judgement to assess
of the results of the litigation and believes that no loss will result. Therefore, no contingent liabilities are recorded as
at the end of reporting period.

6. Related party transactions
During the years, the Company and its subsidiaries had significant business transactions with related parties.

Such transactions, which are summarised below, arose in the ordinary course of business and were concluded on
commercial terms and bases agreed upon between the Company and its subsidiaries and those related parties.

(Unit: Million Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements Pricing policy
022 021 022 2021
Transactions with subsidiaries
(eliminated from the consolidated financial
statements)

Medical service income - - 16 33 Normal price less certain
discount

Sale of medicine and supplies - - 1 - Mutually agreed price

Dividend income - - 288 364 Resolution of the Annual
General Meeting of the
shareholders of
subsidiaries

Medical service expenses - - 66 89 Normal price less certain
discount

Purchase of medicine and supplies - - & 1 Mutually agreed price

Interest expense - - 1 - 1.90 percent per annum
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As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the balances of the accounts between the Company, its subsidiaries and

those related parties are as follows:

Trade and other receivables - related parties

(Note 8)

Subsidiaries

Total trade and other receivables - related parties

Trade and other payables - related parties

(Note 16)
Subsidiaries

Related company and individuals

Total trade and other payables - related parties

Short-term loan from related parties
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the balances of loans between the Company and the related companies and

the movement in loans are as follows:

Loan from related parties Related by

Consolidated

financial statements

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate

financial statements

022 021 2022 021
- - 4,327 16,907
- - 4,327 16,907
- - 33,215 37,935
125 145 - -
125 145 33,215 37,935

Separate financial statements

Balance as at

31 December 2021

Increase

during the year

Decrease

during the year

Balance as at

31 December 2022

Saivichai Development

Company Limited Subsidiary
Srisakornvejvivat
Company Limited Subsidiary
Total

(Audited)

- 70,000 (70,000) -
- 50,000 (50,000) -
- 120,000 (120,000) -

Short-term loans from related parties carry interest at a rate of 1.90% per annum, are

unsecured.

repayable at call and
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Directors and management's benefits
During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Company and its subsidiaries had employee benefit
expenses payable to their directors and management as below.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2022 2021 2022 2021
Short-term employee benefits 49,979 53,882 33,284 36,648
Post-employment benefits 15 13 15 13
Total 49,994 53,895 33,299 36,661

Guarantee obligation with related party
The Company has outstanding guarantee obligation with its related party, as described in Note 28 to the
financial statements.

7. Cash and cash equivalents

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2022 2021 2022 2021
Cash 2,183 2,907 502 1,157
Bank deposits 1,060,824 1,182,118 236,158 392,272
Total 1,063,007 1,185,025 236,660 393,429

As at 31 December 2022, the Company and its subsidiaries had bank deposits in saving accounts and fixed
deposits which carried interests between 0.10 and 0.35 percent per annum (2021: between 0.10 and 0.40 percent
per annum).
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8.Trade and other receivables

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2022 2021 2022 2021
Trade receivables - related parties
Aged on the basis of due dates
Not yet due - - 1,888 2,227
Past due
Up to 3 months - - 1,225 7,607
3 - 6 months - - 493 6,410
6 - 12 months - - 291 159
Over 12 months - - 154 -
Total trade receivables - related parties, net - - 4,051 16,403
Trade receivables - unrelated parties
Aged on the basis of due dates
Not yet due 171,973 375,459 58,633 53,876
Past due
Up to 3 months 47,879 55,706 17,956 13,095
3 - 6 months 17,566 6,097 6,609 3,213
6 - 12 months 3,929 2,550 1,490 1,839
Over 12 months 6,087 2,050 3,462 2,029
Total 247,434 441,862 88,150 74,052
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses (5,582) (3,771) (2,849) (1,940)
Total trade receivables - unrelated parties, net 241,852 438,091 85,301 72,112
Total trade receivables - net 241,852 438,091 89,352 88,515
Other receivables - related parties
Other receivables - - 276 -
Accrued income
Other accrued income - - - 504
Total other receivables - related parties, net - - 276 504
Other receivables - unrelated parties
Other receivables 2,551 6,017 1,193 5,109
Accrued income
Accrued social security income 121,363 146,359 81,264 33,173
Accrued national health security income 19,363 30,814 10,727 4,285
Other accrued income 46,507 54,319 33,733 25,790
Total 189,784 237,509 126,917 68,357
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses (2,164) (887) (47) (54)
Total other receivables - unrelated parties, net 187,620 236,622 126,870 68,303
Total other receivables - net 187,620 236,622 127,146 68,807

Total trade and other receivables - net 429,472 674,713 216,498 157,322




56-1 ONE REPORT s1gvuUs:91U 2565

Srivichaivejvivat Public Company Limited 1 63 USBN ASIGEIEIIAN 9INA (UABU)

9.Medicine and supplies

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

Reduce cost to net realisable Medicine and
Cost value supplies - net
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Medicine 35,815 27,222 (5,821) (408) 29,994 26,814
Medical supplies 25,958 30,110 91) (146) 25,867 29,964
Other supplies 5,122 4,767 (16) (18) 5,106 4,749
Total 66,895 62,099 (5,928) (572) 60,967 61,527

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

Reduce cost to net realisable Medicine and
Cost value supplies - net
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Medicine 15,182 9,944 (1,417) (141) 13,765 9,803
Medical supplies 9,341 8,347 (43) (62) 9,298 8,285
Other supplies 1,382 1,226 - - 1,382 1,226
Total 25,905 19,517 (1,460) (203) 24,445 19,314

During the current year, the Company and its subsidiaries reduced cost of medicine and supplies by Baht 5,356
thousand (2021: Baht 197 thousand) (the Company only: Baht 1,257 thousand, 2021: Baht 46 thousand), to reflect
the net realisable value. This was included in cost of hospital operations. (2021: the Company and its subsidiaries
reversed the write-down of cost of medicine and supplies by Baht 3 thousand, and reduced the amount of medicine
and supplies recognised as expenses during the year).
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10. Restricted bank deposits

These represent bank deposits pledged with the bank to secure bank guarantees issued by that bank on behalf
of the subsidiary.

11.0ther non-current financial assets

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated  financial Separate
statements financial statements
2022 2021 2022 2021
Equity instruments designated at FVOCI
Mahanakorn Mae-sod Vejchakarn
Company Limited 43,902 43,902 43,902 43,902
Total other non-current financial assets 43,902 43,902 43,902 43,902

Equity instruments designated at FVOCI include non-listed equity investment which the Company considers this
investment to be strategic in nature.
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A reconciliation of the net book value of investment properties for 2022 and 2021 is presented below.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2022 2021 2022 2021
Net book value at beginning of year - - - -
Acquisition of property and plant 28,129 - 45,236 -
Depreciation charged (306) - (410) -
Net book value at end of year 27,823 - 44,826 -

The additional information of the investment properties as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 stated below:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2022 2021 2022 2021
The fair value 28,000 - 45,000 -

The fair value of the above investment properties has been determined based on valuation performed by an
accredited independent valuer. The fair value of the land, buildings and land and buildings for rent have been
determined based on market prices.
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As at 31 December 2022, certain items of buildings improvement and equipment were fully depreciated but are
still in use. The gross carrying amount (before deducting accumulated depreciation) of those assets amounted to
approximately Baht 819 million (2021: Baht 717 million) (the Company only: Baht 238 million, 2021: Baht 220 million).

The Company and its subsidiaries have mortgaged part of their land with constructions amounting to approxi-
mately Baht 1,229 million (2021: Baht 1,153 million) (the Company only: Baht 986 million, 2021: Baht 903 million) as
collateral against credit facilities received from a commercial bank, and credit facilities of its subsidiaries.

15. Goodwill

Movements of goodwill for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are summarised below.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consolidated

financial statements

2022 2021
Cost
Beginning balance 64,864 64,864
Ending balance 64,864 64,864
Allowance for impairment loss
Beginning balance (64,864) -
Increase during the year - (64,864)
Ending balance (64,864) (64,864)
Net book value
Beginning balance - 64,864

Ending balance - -

Goodwill of The Bangkok Orthopedic Hospital Company Limited (a subsidiary) derived from an acquisition in
2016 amounting to Baht 65 million.

Based on the assessment of the impairment of goodwill by estimating the subsidiary’s cash flow projections, the
Company noted that the recoverable amounts of the assets were lower than their book value. As a result, the man-
agement considered to set aside an allowance for impairment loss on goodwill in full as at 31 December 2021. The
impairment loss on goodwill was presented as administrative expenses in the statement of comprehensive income
for 2021.
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16. Trade and other payables

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2022 2021 2022 2021
Trade payables - related parties 107 28 32,735 37,935
Trade payables - unrelated parties 185,856 257,299 83,603 64,812
Other payables - related parties - - 480 -
Other payables - related individuals 18 117 - -
Other payables - unrelated parties 88,758 116,774 43,287 38,227
Doctor fee payables 45,862 42,386 18,806 16,921
Accrued expenses 54,951 65,841 28,188 28,481

Total trade and other payables 375,552 482,445 207,099 186,376
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(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consolidated Separate

financial statements financial statements

Loan (percent per annum) Repayment schedule 2022 2021 2022 2021
Srivichaivejvivat Public Company Limited
1 MLR-0.75 Monthly installments as from
July 2016 9,740 29,780 9,740 29,780
2 MLR-1.25 to MLR-1 Monthly installments as from

June 2021

Saivichai Development Company Limited

3 MLR-1 Monthly installments as from
November 2017

4 MLR-1 Monthly installments as from
November 2018

5 MLR-1 Monthly installments as from
August 2019

6 2.00% Monthly installments as from

March 2022

Srisakornvejvivat Company Limited

7 MLR-1.25 to MLR-1 Monthly installments as from
February 2020

8 MLR-1.25 to MLR-1 Monthly installments as from
August 2020

9 MLR-1.25 to MLR-1 Monthly installments as from

April 2022
The Bangkok Orthopedic Hospital Company Limited

10 MLR-2.65 to MLR-1.50  Monthly installments as from

September 2019
11 MLR -1.50 Monthly installments as from
September 2019
Total

Less: Portion due within one year

Long-term loans, net of current portion

63,190 96,790 63,190 96,790

3,902 6,050 - -

- 4,010 - -

= 3,500 S =

2,500 10,000 - -

44,500 60,100 - -

- 710 - -
- 15,000 - -

1,593 9,481 - ]
3,468 5,539 - -
128,893 240,960 72,930 126,570
(67,345) (109,088)  (43,340)  (53,640)

61,548 131,872 29,590 72,930
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The loans are secured by the pledge of part of the land with constructions thereon of the Company and two
subsidiaries, part of right-of-use assets of a subsidiary, and guaranteed provided by the Company.

Under loan agreements of two subsidiaries, the Company (as a guarantor) and two subsidiaries are required to
comply with several covenants specified in the agreements, including maintenance of a certain debt-to-equity ratio
and maintenance of the Company’s shareholding in a subsidiary.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company and two subsidiaries had long-term credit facilities under loan agreements
which have not yet been drawn down amounting to Baht 251 million (2021: Baht 265 million) (the Company only:
Baht 219 million, 2021: Baht 219 million).

18. Leases

18.1 The Company and its subsidiaries as a lessee

The Company and its subsidiaries have lease contracts for various items of property, plant, and equipment used
in its operations. Leases generally have lease terms between 1 - 16 years.

a) Right-of-use assets

Movement of right-of-use assets for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are summarised below:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consolidated financial statements

Buildings and Tools and

buildings medical Motor
Land improvement instruments vehicles Total

1 January 2021 10,033 26,820 5,189 9,710 51,752
Additions - 2,028 - 1,913 3,941
Transfer to property, plant

and equipment - - - (2,305) (2,305)
Depreciation for the year (688) (7,199) (747) (2,134) (10,768)
The adjustment of differences

arising from a reduction in

rental payments - (521) - - (521)
31 December 2021 9,345 21,128 4,442 7,184 42,099
Additions - 3,548 - - 3,548
Adjustments due to lease

cancellation - - (36) - (36)
Transfer to property, plant and

equipment - - (3,779) (4,926) (8,705)
Depreciation for the year (688) (7,981) (627) (1,397) (10,693)

31 December 2022 8,657 16,695 - 861 26,213
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(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Separate financial statements

Buildings and Tools and

buildings medical Motor
Land improvement instruments vehicles Total

1 January 2021 - - - 3,134 3,134
Additions - - - 577 577
Transfer to property, plant

and equipment - - - (579) (579)
Depreciation for the year - - - (826) (826)
31 December 2021 - - - 2,306 2,306
Transfer to property, plant

and equipment - - - (1,355) (1,355)
Depreciation for the year - - - (574) (574)
31 December 2022 - - - 377 377

A subsidiary has mortgaged part of their right-of-use assets amounting to approximately Baht 7 million (2021:
Baht 9 million) as collateral against credit facilities received from a commercial bank.

b) Lease liabilities

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate

financial statements financial statements

2022 2021 2022 2021
Lease payments 78,445 93,027 263 1,359
Less: Deferred interest expenses (20,983) (24,465) (6) (48)
Total 57,462 68,562 257 1,311
Less: Portion due within one year (6,964) (12,224) (109) (589)
Lease liabilities - net of current portion 50,498 56,338 148 722

Movements of the lease liability account during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are summarised below:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate

financial statements financial statements

2022 2021 2022 2021
Balance at beginning of year 68,562 77,532 1,311 1,910
Additions 2,507 3,941 - 577
Decrease due to lease cancellation (238) - - -
Accretion of interest 3,602 3,994 42 63
Repayments (16,971) (16,492) (1,096) (1,239)
The adjustment of differences arising from a

reduction in rental payments = (413) S :

Balance at end of year 57,462 68,562 257 1,311

A maturity analysis of lease payments is disclosed in Note 30.1 under the liquidity risk.
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c) Expenses relating to leases that are recognised in profit or loss

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2022 2021 2022 2021
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 10,693 10,768 574 826
Interest expense on lease liabilities 3,602 3,994 42 63
Expense relating to short-term leases/
leases of low-value assets 475 728 304 304
Expense relating to variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate 1,219 1,325 1,219 1,325

The Company has lease contracts for tools and medical instruments that contains variable payments based on
sales and usage. The lease term is 1 - 2 years.

18.2 The Company and its subsidiaries as a lessor
The Company has entered into operating leases for its investment property portfolio consisting of land and
buildings (see Note 13) of the lease terms are 3 years.

The Company has future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 Decem-
ber 2022 and 2021 as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Separate

financial statements

2022 2021
Within 1 year 473 -
Over 1 and up to 5 years 2,169 -
Total 2,642 -

During 2022, the Company has lease income from its subsidiary amounting to Baht 0.18 million (2021: None).
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19. Provision for long-term employee benefits

Provision for long-term employee benefits, which represents compensation payable to employees after they retire
from the Company and its subsidiaries, was as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2022 2021 2022 2021
Provision for long-term employee benefits at
beginning of year 50,933 49,267 13,534 12,674
Included in profit or loss:
Current service cost 3,795 3,944 1,094 1,115
Interest cost 953 1,192 281 312
Included in other comprehensive income:
Actuarial (gain) loss arising from
Demographic assumptions changes - (513) - -
Financial assumptions changes - (7,999) - (2,578)
Experience adjustments - 6,063 - 2,011
Benefits paid during the year (711) (1,021) (201) -
Provisions for long-term employee benefits at end
of year 54,970 50,933 14,708 13,534

The Company and its subsidiaries expect to pay Baht 3.3 million of long-term employee benefits during next
year (2021: Baht 1 million) (the Company only: None, 2021: Baht 0.2 million).

As at 31 December 2022, the weighted average duration of the liabilities for long-term employee benefit was
13 - 23 years (2021: 13 - 23 years) (the Company only: 16 years, 2021: 16 years).

Significant actuarial assumptions are summarised below:

(Unit: percent per annum)

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
2022 2021 2022 2021
Discount rate 0.51-3.59 0.51-3.59 0.51-3.59 0.51-3.59
Future salary increase rate 4.00 - 5.00 4.00 - 5.00 4.00 4.00

Staff turnover rate 0.00 - 30.00 0.00 - 30.00 0.00 - 25.00 0.00 - 25.00
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The result of sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions that affect the present value of the long-term employee

benefit obligation as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 are summarised below:

(% per annum)

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

31 December 2022

Consolidated

financial statements

Separate

financial statements

Discount rate 1.00
Salary increase rate 1.00
Staff turnover rate 20.00

(% per annum)

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
(4,753) 5,501 (1,486) 1,741
5,953 (5,205) 1,856 (1,606)
(6,005) 7,917 (2,165) 2,975
31 December 2021
Consolidated Separate

financial statements

financial statements

Discount rate 1.00
Salary increase rate 1.00
Staff turnover rate 20.00

20. Statutory reserve

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
(4,736) 5,479 (1,448) 1,702
5,363 (4,702) 1,661 (1,441)

(5,353) 7,002 (1,923) 2,621

Pursuant to Section 116 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535, the Company is required to set aside a
statutory reserve at least 5 percent of its net profit, until the reserve reaches 10 percent of the registered capital. The
statutory reserve is not available for dividend distribution. At present, the statutory reserve has fully been set aside.

21. Finance cost

Interest expenses on borrowings

Interest expenses on lease liabilities

Total

Consolidated financial

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate

statements financial statements

2022 2021 2022 2021
7,410 11,689 4,864 6,732
3,602 3,994 42 63
11,012 15,683 4,906 6,795
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22. Expenses by nature

Significant expenses classified by nature are as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2022 2021 2022 2021
Salaries and wages and other employee benefits 807,438 840,004 341,589 339,677
Depreciation and amortisation 170,097 157,827 63,398 51,632
Doctor fees 489,239 438,975 186,908 161,222
Medical treatment expense for
referred patients 164,972 434,174 148,451 150,344
Medicine, medical supplies and
other supplies used 514,857 495,997 154,440 129,819

23. Income tax

Income tax expenses for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are summarised as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2022 2021 2022 2021
Current income tax:
Current income tax for the year 175,403 331,054 41,406 65,040
Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary
differences (2,704) (2,281) (860) (850)
Income tax expenses reported in profit or loss 172,699 328,773 40,546 64,190

The amounts of income tax relating to each component of other comprehensive income for the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021 are summarised as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2022 2021 2022 2021
Deferred tax on gain from the change in value of
financial assets measured at FVOCI
- 600 - 600
Deferred tax on actuarial gains - 487 - 113

- 1,087 - 713
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The reconciliation between accounting profit and income tax expense is shown below.

Accounting profit before tax multiplied by
applicable tax rates

Effects of:
Non-deductible expenses
Tax-exempted dividend income
Additional expense deductions allowed

Total

Income tax expenses reported in profit or loss

$19v1uUs:91U 2565
usEN AS3G8I063IAU DA (UNNBU)

0% - 15% 0% - 15%
174,312 317,767 99,082 125,175
1,102 14,625 593 13,504
- - (57,575) (72,892)
(2,715) (3,619) (1,554) (1,597)
(1,613) 11,006 (58,536) (60,985)
172,699 328,773 40,546 64,190

The components of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are as follows:

Deferred tax assets
Allowance for expected credit losses
Allowance for diminution in value of
medicine and supplies
Provision for employee benefits
Loss on fair value adjustment of
right-of-use assets of subsidiary
from acquisition of business
Lease
Total
Deferred tax liabilities
Accumulated depreciation - buildings
Unrealised fair value gain on investments
Gain on fair value adjustment of
fixed assets of subsidiary from

acquisition of business
Total

Net

Statements of financial position

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated

financial statements

Separate

financial statements

2022 2021 2022 2021
1,549 932 579 399
1,185 114 291 40

11,952 11,145 3,275 3,051
275 329 - -
6,385 6,556 - -
21,346 19,076 4,145 3,490
(6,563) (6,863) (4,415) (4,620)
681) 681) (681) 681)
(331) (465) - -
(7,575) (8,009) (5,096) (5,301)
13,771 11,067 (951) (1,811)
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24. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company
(excluding other comprehensive income) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares issued during the year.

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2022 2021 2022 2021
Profit for the year (Thousand Baht) 696,598 1,255,182 454,863 561,682
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 570,665 570,665 570,665 570,665
(Thousand shares)
Earnings per share (Baht per share) 1.22 2.20 0.80 0.98

25. Segment information

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company
(excluding other comprehensive income) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares issued during the year.

The Company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the hospital business. A subsidiary is engaged in
operating a vocational school, but revenue from this business is immaterial. Therefore, revenues, operating profit
and total assets presented in the financial statements relate to the said principal business.

Geographic information

The Company and its subsidiaries operate in Thailand only. As a result, all of the revenues and assets as reflected
in these financial statements pertain exclusively to this geographical reportable segment.

Major customer

For 2022, the Company and its subsidiaries have revenues from two major customers in amount of Baht 632 mil-
lion and Baht 839 million (2021: Baht 2,388 million and Baht 701 million, derived from two major customers) arising
from the hospital business.

26. Provident fund

The Company, its subsidiaries and its employees have jointly established a provident fund in accordance with
the Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530. The Company, its subsidiaries and its employees contribute to the fund monthly
at the rate of 2 percent of basic salary. The fund, which is managed by the American International Assurance Com-
pany Limited, will be paid to employees upon termination in accordance with the fund rules. The contributions for
2022 amounting to approximately Baht 5 million (2021: Baht 5 million) (the Company only: Baht 2 million, 2021: Baht
2 million) were recognised as expenses.
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Dividend per share

Final dividends for 2020

Total for 2021

Final dividends for 2021

Total for 2022

Annual General Meeting of the

shareholders on 16 April 2021

Annual General Meeting of the

shareholders on 22 April 2022

(Million Baht) (Baht)
71 0.12
71 0.12
285 0.50
285 0.50

28. Commitments and contingent liabilities

28.1 Capital commitmen
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Company and its subsidiaries had capital commitments as follows: ts

(Unit: Million Baht)

Construction of buildings and the

buildings improvement

Acquisition of medical devices and

hospital equipment

Others

Consolidated financial Separate financial
statements statements
2022 2021 2022 2021
52.8 53.8 441 48.6
14.3 64.6 10.2 44.9
5.2 3.7 1.0 -

28.2 Service commitments

The Company and its subsidiaries have entered into consulting, cleaning services provider, security services
provider, medical equipment maintenance service, and other service agreements with unrelated parties.

As at 31 December 2022, future minimum payments required under those service contracts were contracting to
Baht 25 million (2021: Baht 26 million) (the Company only: Baht 13 million, 2021: Baht 14 million).

28.3 Guarantees

(1) The Company has guaranteed bank credit facilities of its subsidiary amounting to Baht 88 million (2021: Baht

88 million).

(2) There were outstanding bank guarantees issued by banks on behalf of the Company and its subsidiaries in
respect of certain performance bonds as required in the normal course of business as follows:
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Bank guarantees for the medical treatment service
contracts with the Social Security Office
Bank guarantees for the medical treatment service

contracts with the National Health Security Office

Bank guarantees for electricity use

Bank guarantees for other proposes

29. Fair value hierarchy

184
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(Unit: Million Baht)
Separate

financial statements

2022 2021
38 34
- 4
4 4

2022 2021

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Company had the assets that was disclosed fair value using different

levels of inputs as follows:

Assets measured at fair value

Investment property

Assets measured at fair value

Investment property

30. Financial instruments

(Unit: Million Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

As at 31 December 2022

Level 1 Level 2

Level 3 Total

28 28

(Unit: Million Baht)

Separate financial statements

As at 31 December 2022

Level 1 Level 2

Level 3 Total

45 45

30.1 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company and its subsidiaries’ financial instruments principally comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables, long-term loans from financial institutions and lease liabilities. The financial risks associated with these
financial instruments and how they are managed is described below.

Credit risk

The Company and its subsidiaries are exposed to credit risk primarily with respect to trade accounts receivable,
deposits with banks and financial institutions. The maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amounts

as stated in the statement of financial position.
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Foreign currency risk

The Company and its subsidiaries had no exposure to foreign currency risk as they rarely have not transactions
denominated in other currencies.

Interest rate risk

The Company and its subsidiaries exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to its long-term loans from fi-
nancial institutions. However, since most of the Company’s and its subsidiaries’ financial assets and liabilities bear
floating interest rates or fixed interest rates which are close to the market rate, the interest rate risk is expected to
be minimal.

Liquidity risk

The Company and its subsidiaries monitor the risk of a shortage of liquidity through bank loans and lease con-
tracts. The Company and its subsidiaries have assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its
debt and concluded it to be low.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company and its subsidiaries’ financial liabilities as at 31
December 2022 and 2021 based on contractual undiscounted cash flows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

As at 31 December 2022

Less than 1to5
1 year years > 5years Total
Trade and other payables 375,552 - - 375,552
Lease liabilities 10,052 31,886 36,507 78,445
Long-term loans 71,858 63,627 - 135,485
Total 457,462 95,513 36,507 589,482

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

As at 31 December 2022

Less than 1to5
1 year years > 5years Total
Trade and other payables 207,099 - - 207,099
Lease liabilities 113 150 - 263

Long-term loans 45,766 30,273 - 76,039
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(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

As at 31 December 2021

Less than 1t05
1 year years > 5years Total
Trade and other payables 482,445 - - 482,445
Lease liabilities 15,748 36,649 40,630 93,027
Long-term loans 115,589 138,304 - 253,893
Total 613,782 174,953 40,630 829,365

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

As at 31 December 2021

Less than 1to5
1 year years > Syears Total
Trade and other payables 186,376 - - 186,376
Lease liabilities 622 737 - 1,359
Long-term loans 57,765 75,503 - 133,268
Total 244,763 76,240 - 321,003

30.2 Fair values of financial instruments

Since the majority of the Company and its subsidiaries’ financial instruments are short-term in nature or carrying
interest at rates close to the market interest rates, their fair value is not expected to be materially different from the
amounts presented in the statement of financial position.

A fair value is the amount for which an asset can be exchanged or a liability settled between knowledgeable,
willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. The fair value is determined by reference to the market price of the
financial instruments or by using an appropriate valuation technique, depending on the nature of the instrument.

31. Capital management

The primary objective of the Company and its subsidiaries’ capital management is to ensure that it has appro-
priate capital structure in order to support the Company and its subsidiaries’ business and maximise shareholder
value and it meets financial covenants stipulated in the loan agreements. The Company and its subsidiaries have
complied with these covenants throughout the reporting periods.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company and its subsidiaries’ debt-to-equity ratio was 0.23:1 (2021: 0.40:1) and the
Company's debt-to-equity ratio was 0.18:1 (2021: 0.25:1).
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32. Litigation

On 28 May 2021, the Company was sued by a subcontractor in a civil case for breach of a hire of work agreement,
claiming retention and damages totaling Baht 99 million because the Company had overdue balances of payments
for construction work and retentions and a performance bond that had to be returned to the subcontractor.The court
set a date in April 2023 to conduct a cross examination of the plaintiff's and the defendant’s witnesses.

As at 31 December 2022, the case is being considered by the Civil Court. The Company is of the opinion that
the Company did not breach the agreement as claimed and, therefore, decided to file statements of defence and
a counterclaim against the subcontractor claiming fines and damages amounting to Baht 446 million plus interest
at the rate of 5% per annum from the filing date until settlement is made, in a civil case for breach of a hire of work
agreement. However, the management of the Company believes that no losses will be incurred as a result of this
litigation, and therefore, no provision has been recorded in the financial statements.

33. Approval of financial statements

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 27 February 2023.
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M.D., Ph.D., FIMS

Age : 83 years
Position :  Chairman of the Board of Director (Authorized Signatory) /
Acting Director of Vichaivej International Omnoi Hospital

Education and Experience

« Honorary philosophical Doctor of Science (Sport Medicine),
Mahidol University

* F.ILM.S., International federation of sport medicine

« Diploma of the Thai Medical Board (Orthopaedic Surgery),
The Medical Council, Thailand

»  Diploma of the Surgery, Faculty of Medicine Siriraj Hospital, Mahidol
University

*  Medical Doctor, University of Medicine

«  Bachelor of Science (Chemistry - Physics), Chulalongkorn University

«  Directors Certification Program (DCP), class of 30/2003, IOD

«  Directors Accreditation Program (DAP), class of 89/2011, I0D

* Advanced Master of Management Program, AMM, class of 2,
Graduate School of Public Administration, National Institute of
Development Administration

Work Experience

«  Assistant Secretary of the Ministry of Education

» Advisor to Ministry of Public Health Ministry of Thailand

* Advisor to the Minister Ministry of Labour

«  Advisor to the Minister Ministry of Tourism and Sports

«  Associate Professor 9, Surgeon (Orthopedic Specialist), Faculty of
Medicine, Siriraj Hospital

« Director, College of Science and sports technology. Mahidol
University

«  Director of the Sports Authority of Thailand, The Prime Minister

«  Vice President, Hospital Administration Association of Thailand

«  Director, Mahidol University Council

*  President of Thai Gymnastics Association

«  Vice President Asian Federation of Sport Medicine (A.F.S.M)

Other Positions

Subsidiary Company

«  Chairman of the Board of Director (Authorized Signatory),
Saivichai Development Company Limited

«  Chairman of the Board of Director (Authorized Signatory),
Srisakorn Vejavivat Company Limited

Listed Company
None

Other Company / Organizations / Institutions

«  Director of Mahanakorn Maesod Company Limited

«  The president of Srivichai Foundation and Srivichai Rescue.

*  The President of Srivichai Savings Cooperative

«  Vice President Asian Federation of Sport Medicine(AISM)

*  Honorary Advisor of Office of Sports and Recreation
Development, Ministry of Tourism and Sports of Thailand

« Advisor of Faculty of Medicine Siriraj Hospital

«  Vice President, Hospital Administration Association of Thailand

Number year of services 11 years
Number of the shareholding includes spouses and dependents  1.51 %

Family Relation with Other Directors

The spouse of Asst Prof. Dr. Saisunee Vanadurongwan and Fatherin law
of Mongkon Wanitphakdeedecha M.D.,M.Sc. and Prut Rojmahamongkol, Mr.
Dispute in the 5 Preceding Years :None

Directorship Qualifications according to Applicable laws and does not have
prohibitedQualifications according to the announcement of the Capital
Market Supervisory Board

Yes

Assoc. Prof. Vichai Vanadurongwan,

$19v1uUs:91U 2565
usEN AS3G8I063IAU DA (UNNBU)

Asst. Prof. Saisunee Vanadurongwan,
M.D.

Age : 77 years
Position :  Vice President (Authorized Signatory) / Chief Executive Officer
/ Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Education and Experience
«  M.D., Faculty of Medicine, Siriraj Hospital, Mahidol University, Thailand
« Higher certificate of clinical science in Pathology Siriraj Hospital
«  Certificate of Executive Administration Project 31st Badge, Faculty
of commerce and Accounting Thammasat University
«  Certificate of the High Flyer 4th Badge Institute of Management
and Psychology
«  Certificate of Environmental Medicine, 3rd Badge Department of
Medical Service, Ministry of publish Health
«  Certificate of Sport Medicine, Society of Sport Medicine of Thailand
« Directors Certification Program, Class 0f110/2008, Thai Institute
of Directors Association
« Certificate of Alternative Medicine in Chelation Therapy, Depart
ment for Development of Thai Traditional and Alternative Medicine,
Ministry of Public Health
«  Certificate “Cost-effectiveness for modern hospital management”,
3rd edition, Faculty of Public Health, Mahidol University
« CEOCLUB 2016 : CEO Branding & CEO as a Brand Champion
for Sustainability
« CEO CLUB 2565 : Health Tech Investment Opportunity to create
New S-Curve
Work Experience
¢ Honorary Committee of the Committee the Child Protection,
Samut Sakhon Province
*  Subcommittee of Health Promotion for Workers at the Provincial
Level, Samut
Sakhon Province
«  Development Committee of Strategic combines the tuberculosis
and AIDS, Ministry of Health.
¢ Medical Committee, Ministry of Laser and Social Affair
«  Service Development committee of Public Services for Oversea
Laser, Samut Sakhon Province
Other Positions
Subsidiary Company
«  Vice President (Authorized Signatory), Saivichai Development
Company Limited
« Vice President (Authorized Signatory), Srisakorn Vejavivat
Company Limited
«  Director (Authorized Signatory), Bangkok Orthopedic Hospital
Company Limited
Listed Company
None
Other Company / Organizations / Institutions
* Vice President of Srivichai hospital Foundation
*  Advisory Committee of Internal Security Operations Commmand,
Samut Sakhon Province
«  Director of Public Health, The National Council of Women of Thailand
« Executive Committee of Public Health Service for Oversea
Labor, Ministry of Public Health
* Advisory Committee of Public Health, The Federation of Samut
Sakhon Province
Number year of services 11 years
Number of the shareholding includes spouses and dependents  1.51 %
Family Relation with Other Directors
The spouse of Associate Professor Vichai Vanadurongwan, M.D., Ph.D.,
FIMS and Mother in law of Mongkon Wanitphakdeedecha M.D.,M.Sc. and
Prut Rojmahamongkol, Mr.
Dispute in the 5 Preceding Years : None
Directorship Qualifications according to Applicable laws and does not have
prohibitedQualifications according to the announcement of the Capital
Market Supervisory Board
Yes
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Srivichaivejvivat Public Company Limited

Virah Mavichak

Age ;79 years
Position : Independent Director / Chairman of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

Education and Experience

» Honorary Degree of Doctor of Science in Engineering, Dhurakij
Pundit University

«  Master’s degree in chemical engineering, The University of Texas
at Austin, USA

* Bachelor of Engineering, Chulalongkorn University.

«  Directors Certification Program (DCP), Class of 26/2003, 10D.

«  Audit Committee Program (ACP), Class of 7/2005, IOD.

*  Role of the Chairman Program (RCP), Class of 17/2007, 10D.

«  Finance for Non-Finance Directors (FND), Class of 23/2005, 10D.

Work Experience

« Distinguished scholar in Faculty of Engineering, Chulalongkorn
University.

*  The former President of the Council of Engineers

«  Director General, Department of Industrial Works Ministry of
Industry

*  The former members of the Senator of Thailand

*  Audit Committee and independent directors, TPT Petrochemicals PCL

*  The President and independent directors, TPT Petrochemicals PCL

» Director of Refine Tech Co.,Ltd.

* Independent Director of B.S. Metal Co.,Ltd.

Other Positions

Subsidiary Company
None

Listed Company
Chairman of the Board of Director (Independent director),
Global Connections PCL

Other Company / Organizations / Institutions
None

Number year of services :11 years

Number of the shareholding includes spouses and dependents : None
Family Relation with Other Directors : None

Dispute in the 5 Preceding Years :None

Directorship Qualifications according to Applicable laws and does not have
prohibitedQualifications according to the announcement of the Capital

Market Supervisory Board
Yes

s18v1uUs:91U 2565
USBN AS3G8I0BIIU DR (UNIBU)

Visut Montriwat

Age . 77 years

Position :  Independent directors /Chairman of the Audit Committee /
Nomination and Remuneration Committee / Chairman of the
Corporate Governance Committee

Education and Experience
+  M.B.A, Northern lllinois University
»  Bachelor of Commerce, Chulalongkorn University
» National Defense College, Class 38
«  Director Certification Program (DCP), class of 77/2006 10D.
+  Audit Committee Program (ACP), class of 15/2006 IOD.
*  Role of the Compensation Committee (RCC), class of 2/2007 I0D.
*  Monitoring the System of Internal Control and Risk Management
(MIR), class of 1/2007 10D.
+  Monitoring the Quality of Financial Reporting (MFR) class of 7/2009, 10D.
+  Corporate Fraud, I0OD.

Work Experience

»  Director of Credit Division, The Comptroller General’s
Department

»  Director of State Enterprise Division,The Comptroller General's
Department

*  Public Debt Specialist, The Comptroller General’s Department

. Deputy Comptroller-General, The Comptroller General’s
Department

»  Deputy Director-General, The Treasury Department

+  Deputy Director-General, The Excise Department

* Inspector-General, Ministry of Finance

+  Deputy Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Finance

» Director-General, The Treasury Department

+ Director-General, The Comptroller General’'s Department

Other Positions

Subsidiary Company
None

Listed Company
Independent Director, Audit Committee, Chairman of the Remu
neration Committee of Bangkok Aviation Fuel Services PCL
(Thailand).

Other Company / Organizations / Institutions

+  Director of Aviation Fuel Co. Ltd. Thailand.

«  Director of INET REIT MANAGEMENT CO., LTD.

Number year of services : 11 years

Number of the shareholding includes spouses and dependents : None
Family Relation with Other Directors : None

Dispute in the 5 Preceding Years : None

Directorship Qualifications according to Applicable laws and does not have
prohibitedQualifications according to the announcement of the Capital

Market Supervisory Board
Yes
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Srivichaivejvivat Public Company Limited

Surin Premamornkit

Age : 74 years
Position :  Independent directors /Audit Committee / Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

Education and Experience
«  B.A. (Economics in Finance and Banking),Thammasat University
«  Directors Accreditation Program (DAP), class of 59/2006, I0D
«  Directors Certification Program (DCP), class of 147/2011, 10D
*  Role of the Compensation Committee (RCC), class of 14/2012, 10D
«  Audit Committee Program (ACP), class of 39/2012, 10D
«  Risk Management Program (RMP), class of 5/2014, 10D
«  Advance Audit Committee Program (AACP), class of 31/2018, IOD
«  Finance Executive 8 (FINEX 8), Thai Institute of Banking and
Finance Association
* Syndicated Loans, The Euro money Institute, Hong Kong
*  Bourse Game Asia, Singapore.

Work Experience
«  Senior Executive Vice President, Bankthai Public Co.,Ltd.
« Director, BT Security Co.,Ltd.
« Director, BT Business Consulting Co.,Ltd.
«  Director, BT Asset Management Co.,Ltd.
«  Director, BT Insurance Co.,Ltd.
« Director, KTT Leasing Co.,Ltd

Other Positions
Subsidiary Company
None
Listed Company
Independent Director and Audit Director, Chukai PCL
Other Company / Organizations / Institutions
«  Director, Thai-Nichi Ventures Co.,Ltd.

Number year of services :11 years

Number of the shareholding includes spouses and dependents : None
Family Relation with Other Directors : None

Dispute in the 5 Preceding Years :None

Directorship Qualifications according to Applicable laws and does not have
prohibitedQualifications according to the announcement of the Capital

Market Supervisory Board
Yes

$19v1uUs:91U 2565
usEN AS3G8I063IAU DA (UNNBU)

Porntep Siriwanarangsun
MD., MPH., Ph.D

Age : 67 years
Position :  Independent directors / Audit Committee

Education and Experience
+ M.D., Chiang Mai University, Chiang Mai, Thailand
*  M.P.H., Mahidol University, Bangkok, Thailand
»  Certificate of Epidemiology, Medical Council, Thailand
«  Ph.D (Health Planning and Financing), University of London, U.K.
+  Certificate of the Community Mental Health Programs, The Medical
Council
+ Diploma, National Defence
« Directors Certification Program, class of 212/2015, |IOD
«  Financial Statement for Directors Class of 28/2015, IOD
* Risk Management Program for Corporate Leaders Class of 16/2019

Work Experience

+ Director-General, Department of Health

» Director-General, Department of Disease Control

»  Deputy Permanent Secretary

* Inspector General, Ministry of Public Health

»  Senior Medical Advisor Public Health, Office of the Permanent
Secretary, Ministry of Public Health

+  Deputy Director — General, Department of Mental Health,
Ministry of Public Health

»  Director, Bureau of Health Policy and Planning, Office of the
Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Public Health

+  Provincial Chief Medical Officer, Satun Province

»  Director, Wangthong Hospital, Phitsanulok Province

* Audit Committee, The Provincial waterworks authority

Other Positions

Subsidiary Company
None

Listed Company
None

Other Company / Organizations / Institutions

» Advisor to the Director of the Dental Unit in the Royal Majesty.

+  Bangkok Councils Members / Chairman of the Board of Health.

« Director of the Provincial Waterworks Authority

»  Executive Director of the Institute of Nuclear Technology

* The Board of Directors of the second plans of the Department of
Health.

»  Member of the Medical Board, Office Fund, Social Security Office.

*  Subcommittee of Risk Management and Corporate Governance,
Metropolitan Electricity Authority

Number year of services : 7 years

Number of the shareholding includes spouses and dependents : None
Family Relation with Other Directors : None

Dispute in the 5 Preceding Years : None

Directorship Qualifications according to Applicable laws and does not have
prohibitedQualifications according to the announcement of the Capital

Market Supervisory Board
Yes
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Srivichaivejvivat Public Company Limited

Age : 83 years
Position :  Director (Authorized Signatory) / Vice Chief Executive Officer

Education and Experience
«  The Medical Council of Thailand Certified Orthopedic Surgeon
« Diploma of American Board of Orthopedic Surgery
« Doctor of Medicine, Faculty of Medicine, Siriraj Hospital, Mahidol
University
< Directors Certification Program, class of 30/2003, IOD
«  How to develop a Risk Management Plan (HRP), class of 4/2013, 10D

Work Experience

«  President of Orthopaedic Foundation under the Royal Patronage
HRH Princess Maha Chakri Sirindhorn, Lerdsin Hospital

«  President of the Orthopaedic Surgeon Club of Thailand

*  President of Thailand Orthopaedic Association

«  President of the Royal College of Orthopaedic Surgeons of
Thailand

« Director of the Orthopaedic Institute, Lerdsin Hospital

« Director of Lerdsin Hospital

< First Vice President of the Medical Council of Thailand

<  Editor of Journal of ASEAN Orthopaedic association

« Director of the Assessment Committee for Medical of Office of
the Civil Service Commission

Other Positions

Subsidiary Company

«  Chairman of the Board of Director (Authorized Signatory),
Srivichai Vocational School Company Limited

Listed Company
None

Other Company / Organizations / Institutions

«  Advisor of Department of Medical Services

«  Advisor of Lerdsin Hospital

Number year of services : 11 years

Number of the shareholding includes spouses and dependents : 0.41 %
Family Relation with Other Directors : None

Dispute in the 5 Preceding Years : None

Directorship Qualifications according to Applicable laws and does not have
prohibitedQualifications according to the announcement of the Capital

Market Supervisory Board
Yes

Pongsak Vathana, M.D.

1

s18v1uUs:91U 2565
USBN AS3G8I0BIIU DR (UNIBU)

Vilawan Vanadurongvan

Age : 75 years

Position :  Director / Vice Chief Executive Officer / Chairman of Risk
Management Committee/Chairman of the Working Group for
Financial and Investment Planning/ Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

Education and Experience
»  Bachelor of Faculty of Commerce and Accountancy, Chulalongkorn
University
« Directors Accreditation Program, Class 84/2010 the Thai Institute
of Directors Association (I0D)
* Risk Management Committee Program, the Thai Institute of
Directors Association (I0D)

Work Experience
* Information and Communication Technology, Financial sector
* Information and Communication Technology, DIGITAL MEDIA
and E-BUSINESS
* Improved workflow “Process Improvement”

Other Positions

Subsidiary Company

» Director, Saivichai Development Company Limited

Listed Company
None

Other Company / Organizations / Institutions

* Vice President of Ratanarajasuda Information Technology Award
Foundation

. Committee, Information Technology center of Thai Red Cross
Society

«  Honorary Director of the Executive Committee, Faculty of
Medicine. Chulalongkorn University

Number year of services :10 years
Number of the shareholding includes spouses and dependents : None

Family Relation with Other Directors :
Sister of Asso.Prof. Vichai Vanadurongwan, M.D., Ph.D., FIMS

Dispute in the 5 Preceding Years : None

Directorship Qualifications according to Applicable laws and does not have
prohibitedQualifications according to the announcement of the Capital
Market Supervisory Board

Yes
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Srivichaivejvivat Public Company Limited

Age ;68 years
Position : Director / Working Group for Financial and Investment Planning
Committee

Education and Experience

*  Master of Accounting, Faculty of Commerce and Accountancy,
Thammasat University

«  Bachelor of Business Administration (in Accounting), Thammasat
University

«  Director Accreditation Program (DAP) class of 5/2003, I0D

«  Role of the Compensation Committee (RCC) class of 8/2009, I0D

«  Audit Committee Program (ACP) class of 31/2010, IOD

«  Director Certification Program (DCP) class of 135/2010, IOD

«  Financial InstitutionsGovernance Program (FGP) class of 2/2011, IOD

«  Anti-Corruption for Executive Program (ACEP) class of 7/2013, 10D

«  Risk Management Program for Corporate Leaders (RCL) class of
1/2015, 10D

* National Director Conference 2018 “Rising above Disruption: A
Call for Action” 2018, 10D

+ National Director Conference 2017 “Steering Governance in a
Changing World” , IOD

«  Future customer experience in financial and banking service 2018

* T Secutiry Trend Update 2017

*  Seminar on Cyber Resilience, 2019

«  Bangkok Sustainable Banking Forum 2019 “An Industry Wake-up Call”

* Agile Leadership for Board Director, 2019

* ESG Sustainable and Banking Development , including response
To the Covid — 19 Situation 2020

*  Cyber Resilience Leadership : “ Tone from the Top” 2020

* Regulatory Technology: Reg Tech 2021 , PWC

*  Cyber Armor: Capital Market Board Awareness The 1st time, titled
Capital Market Threat Landscape Year 2021, SET

*  Cyber Armor: Capital Market Board Awareness The 2nd time, titled
Data-driven Cybersecurity and Intelligence Threats Assessment
Year 2021, SET

* Bangkok FinTech Fair 2021 “Shaping Digital Finance in the New
Decade 2021 , Bank of Thailand

+ National Director Conference 2021: Leadership Behind Closed
Door 2021, 10D

«  Economic Outlook 2021, Central Pattana Public Company Limited

* 5 Key Technology Trend in Financial & Banking industry for 2022

«  Environment, Social and Governance (ESG) for Sustainable Growth 2022

« Travel the digital world with Mr. Fintech 2022

+ BOT Digital Finance Conference 2022

*  Thought Leadership Session— Sustainable and Climate Finance 2022

.Work Experience

»  Executive Committee Member, Bank of Ayudhya PCL

+ Head of Human Resources, Bank of Ayudhya PCL

«  First Executive Vice President, Bank of Ayudhya PCL

»  Director of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Siam City
Cement PCL

«  Director of Risk and Compliance Committee, Siam City Cement PCL

Other Positions

Subsidiary Company
None

Listed Company

«  Director (Authorized Signatory), Risk and Compliance
Committee Member, Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Member of Bank of Ayudhya PCL

» Director, Siam City Cement PCL.

*  Director, Nomination and Remuneration Committee Member,
Corporate Governance Committee

Nopporn Tirawattanagool

$19v1uUs:91U 2565
usEN AS3G8I063IAU DA (UNNBU)

«  Allianz Ayudhya Capital PCL

« Director, Grand Canal Land PCL

Other Company / Organizations / Institutions

- Director (Authorized Signatory) BBTV asset management co. Itd

- Director (Authorized Signatory) CKS Holding Co., Ltd.

«  Director (Authorized Signatory) Super Assets Co., Ltd.

«  Director (Authorized Signatory) C.K.R Co., Ltd.

- Director (Authorized Signatory) The Bangkok Lighters Co., Ltd.

«  Director (Authorized Signatory) The Thai Tapioca Flour Produce
Co., Ltd.

- Director (Authorized Signatory) Cyber Venture Co., Ltd.

«  Director (Authorized Signatory) Khao Kheow Country Club Co., Ltd.

< Director (Authorized Signatory) Siam Purimongkol Co., Ltd.

«  Director (Authorized Signatory) Grand Fortune Co., Ltd

«  Director Bangkok Broadcasting & TV Co., Ltd.

«  Director (Authorized Signatory) BBTV Satelvision Co., Ltd.

- Director (Authorized Signatory) Mahakij Holdings Co., Ltd.

«  Director (Authorized Signatory) BBTV Production Co., Ltd.

«  Director (Authorized Signatory) BBTV Alliance Ltd.

- Director (Authorized Signatory) BBTV Bond Street Building Ltd.

«  Director (Authorized Signatory) ITBC Business Consultant Group
Co., Ltd.

- Director (Authorized Signatory) Exclusive Senior Care
International Co., Ltd.

< Director (Authorized Signatory) BBTV International Holding Company

«  Director (Authorized Signatory) Sunrise Equity Co., Ltd.

«  Director (Authorized Signatory) BBTV Equity Co., Ltd.

« Director (Authorized Signatory) Krungsri Foundation

Number year of services :8 years

Number of the shareholding includes spouses and dependents : None
Family Relation with Other Directors : None

Dispute in the 5 Preceding Years : None

Directorship Qualifications according to Applicable laws and does not have
prohibitedQualifications according to the announcement of the Capital

Market Supervisory Board
Yes
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Srivichaivejvivat Public Company Limited

Tinnawat Mahatharadol

Age : 64 years
Position :  Director / Working Group for Financial and Investment Planning
Committee

Education and Experience
«  Master of Business Administration, Ball State University, USA
« Bachelor of Law, Thammasat University
«  Directors Certification Program, Class of 205, Thai Institute Directors
Association.
«  Risk Management Committee Program (RMP), Class of 6/2015, I0D
«  Certificate of Pacific Rim Banker Program: University of Washington, USA

Work Experience
« Director, Ayudhya Capital Lease Co.,Ltd.
*  Executive Committee Member, Bank of Ayudhya PCL
«  Chief Financial Officer, Bank of Ayudhya PCL
* Head of treasury, Bank of Ayudhya PCL
«  Director, Krungsriayudhya Card Co., Ltd.
« Director, Siam City Cement Co., Ltd.

Other Positions
Subsidiary Company
None
Listed Company
«  Executive Director of Eastern Star Real Estate PCL
«  Director Siam City Cement PCL
Other Company / Organizations / Institutions
« Managing Director, Mahatharadol Co., Ltd.
«  Director of Sunrise Equity Co., Ltd.
«  Director of BBTV Equity Co., Ltd.
«  Director of Rattanarak Co., Ltd.
« Directof of Villa Deva Resort & Hotel Co., Ltd.
«  Director of Nara 12 Co., Ltd.
« Director of The Thai Tapioca Flour Produce Co., Ltd.
« Director of C.K.R Co., Ltd.
« Director of The Bangkok Lighters Co., Ltd.
«  Director of Cyber Venture Co., Ltd.
« Director of Exclusive Senior Care International Co., Ltd.
« Director, BBTV Bond Street Building Company Limited
« Director, BBTV Alliance Company Limited
« Director, BBTV International Holding Company Limited

Number year of services :8 years

Number of the shareholding includes spouses and dependents : None
Family Relation with Other Directors : None

Dispute in the 5 Preceding Years : None

Directorship Qualifications according to Applicable laws and does not have
prohibitedQualifications according to the announcement of the Capital

Market Supervisory Board
Yes

s18v1uUs:91U 2565
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Mongkon Wanitphakdeedecha
M.D.M.Sc.

Age : 51 years

Position : Director (Authorized Signatory) / Vice Chief Executive Officer
/ Working Group for Financial and Investment Planning/
Nomination and Remuneration Committee /Director of
Vichaivej International Hospital Samutsakhon / Managing
Director of Vichaivej International Hospital Omnoi

Education and Experience

¢ M.D., Chulalongkorn University, 1994

« Diploma of General Surgery, Medical Council

«  Masterof Science (Technology Management), Thammasat University

«  Thai Board of Family Medicine

« Certificated Fellowship of Anti-Aging Medicine, the American
Academy of Anti-Aging Medicine

«  Certificate in Occupational Medicine, Class of 19, Department of
Medical Sciences

« Directors Certification Program, Class of 52, Thai Institute of
Directors Association

«  Role of the Compensation Committee (RCC), Class of 14, Thai
Institute of Directors Association

«  Certificate of good governance, medical. Executive Class 3 the
King Prajadhipok and Medical Council of Thailand

«  Metropolitan Administrator Training Course (MATC), Institute of
Metropolitan Development, Navamindradhiraj University

Work Experience
«  General Practitioner, Department of Surgery,Bangkok Metropolit
an General Hospital
* Resident, Department of Surgery, Chulalongkorn Hospital

Other Positions

Subsidiary Company

« Director (Authorized Signatory), Srisakorn Vejvivat Company
Limited

< Director (Authorized Signatory), Bangkok Orthopedic Hospital
Company Limited

Listed Company
None

Other Company / Organizations / Institutions
None

Number year of services : 11 years
Number of the shareholding includes spouses and dependents : 14.46%
Family Relation with Other Directors :

Son in law of Associate Professor Vichai Vanadurongwan, M.D., Ph.D.,
FIMS and Assistant Prof. Dr. Saisunee Vanadurongwan
Dispute in the 5 Preceding Years :None
Directorship Qualifications according to Applicable laws and does not have
prohibitedQualifications according to the announcement of the Capital

Market Supervisory Board
Yes
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Srivichaivejvivat Public Company Limited
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Age
Position

Prut Rojmahamongkol

: 52 years

: Director / Executive Director / Working Group for Financial
and Investment Planning / Director of Information Technology
of Vichaivej Hospital Group / / Deputy Director of Accounting
and Finance of Vichaivej International Hospital Samutsakhon

Education and Experience

Bachelor of Architecture, Chulalongkorn University

M.Sc. Faculty of Information and Communication Information
Technology Assumption University

Master Certificate Strategic Organizational Leadership and Man
agement Michigan State University, USA

Director Certification Program class of 135, Thai Institute of
Directors Association

Financial Statement for Director class of 7, Thai Institute of Directors
Association

Urban Leader Training Course (ULTC), Class of 3/2018,
Navamindradhiraj University

Diploma of Medical Governance For senior management Class
8/2019, King Prajadhipok’s Institute and The Medical Council of
Thailand

Work Experience

Director of Information Technology, Vichaivej International

Hos pital Group

Chairman of the Construction Management, Vichaivej International
Hospital Group

Deputy Director of the premises, Vichaive] International Hospital
Samutsakhon

Deputy Director of Accounting and Finance of Vichaivej
International Hospital Samutsakhon Acting Deputy Director of
Finance and Accounting, Vichaivej Intemnational Hospital Samutsakhon
Deputy Director of Quality and Technology, Vichaivej
International Hospital Samutsakhon

Director of Saivichai Development Co.,Ltd.

Deputy Director of the Procurement, Vichaivej International
Hospital Group

Assistant deputy of Operations Project, Noble Development
Public Company Limited (Thailand)

Architect, plan consultants co. Itd

Other Positions
Subsidiary Company

Director (Authorized Signatory), Srisakorn Vejvivat Company
Limited

Director (Authorized Signatory), Bangkok Orthopedic Hospital
Company Limited

Director (Authorized Signatory), Srivichai Vocational School
Company Limited

Listed Company

None

Other Company / Organizations / Institutions

Number

Number

None
year of services :7 years

of the shareholding includes spouses and dependents : 14.46%

Family Relation with Other Directors :

Son

in law of Associate Professor Vichai Vanadurongwan, M.D., Ph.D.,

FIMS and Assistant Prof. Dr. Saisunee Vanadurongwan

Dispute in the 5 Preceding Years :None

Directorship Qualifications according to Applicable laws and does not have
prohibitedQualifications according to the announcement of the Capital
Market Supervisory Board

Yes

195
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Sakda Tangchitwatanakorn,
13 Ph.D.

Age : 66 years

Position : Chief finance Officer / Vice Chief Executive Officer (Acting) /
Risk Management Committee /Working Group for Financial
and Investment Planning

Education and Experience

*  Ph.D. Public administration, Taksin University.

«  Master of Business Administration, Burapha University

«  Bachelor of Laws Faculty of Law, Sukhothai Thammathirat University.

«  Bachelor of Accouting, Faculty of Commerce and Accounting,
Thammasat University.

« Directors Certification Program, 185/2557, |IOD

«  The Next Normal Financial (3 hours) The Stock Exchange of Thailand

« TLCA CFO CPD No. 1/2022, Topic “Upgrading the Quality of
Financial Reports of Thai Listed Companies” (2 hours) Thai Listed
Companies Association

«  PDPA for Accounting and Finance (2 hours) Thai Listed Companies
Association

- Digital asset and business growth opportunities (New S-Curve) of
listed companies (7 hours) The Stock Exchange of Thailand

«  “Understanding Digital Assets and CFO’s Role” (2 hours) Thai
Listed Companies Association

« CFO’s Role in Corporate Sustainability (2 hours) Thai Listed
Companies Association

«  Summary of financial reporting standards TFRS that changed and
are effective for the year 2023 (3 hours) The Stock Exchange of
Thailand

«  ESGBonds in Corporate Financing (2 hours) Thai Listed Companies
Association

« Challenges in Transfer Pricing after COVID-19, Government
Scrutiny and preparation in the business sector (2 hours) EY Office
Company Limited

«  Seminaron disseminating study results of the Value of Audit Project
(3.5 hours) The Securities and Exchange Commission

« Opportunities and new forms of mergers and acquisitions
(1.5 hours) EY Office Company Limited

Work Experience
« Director, Mahanakorn Mae-Sod Vejchakarn Company Limited

Other Positions

Subsidiary Company

«  Director (Authorized Signatory), Saivichai Development Company
Limited

«  Director (Authorized Signatory), Srisakorn Vejvivat Company
Limited

«  Director (Authorized Signatory), Srivichai Vocational School
Company Limited

Listed Company
None

Other Company / Organizations / Institutions
None

Number year of services : 11 years

Number of the shareholding includes spouses and dependents : 0.30 %
Family Relation with Other Directors : None

Dispute in the 5 Preceding Years : None

Directorship Qualifications according to Applicable laws and does not have
prohibitedQualifications according to the announcement of the Capital

Market Supervisory Board
Yes
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Srivichaivejvivat Public Company Limited

Nichapa Roenthongdee

Age
Position :

43 years
Finance Accounting Manager

Education and Experience

*  Master's degree, Faculty of Business Administration, Accounting,
Ramkhamhaeng University

« Accounting in accordance with accounting standards for service
business

« Consolidate Financial Statement “Guidelines for preparing consol
idated financial statements in accordance with accounting standards”

«  Super Techniques for Corporate Income Tax Planning

«  Professional Accountant Training Program, Budgeting Strategies
for Planning and Control

«  Training program for professional accountants, techniques for
effective accounting system design and internal control system planning

« Acourse on how to prepare financial reports for companies affected
by COVID-19, SET

« TFRS for PAEs Required and Changes in 2021

«  Always ready..when the revenue officer checks the tax

«  Finance Transformation:Consolidation and Reporting

« Digital Assets from the Accounting and Tax Perspectives

«  Sustainability ESG and a company’s reporting

« Analyze the risk of being investigated regarding Transfer Pricing

« Tax consideration for outbound investment: Keeping up with,
understanding and adapting to international taxation measures
with BEPS 2.0 for proper structure of foreign investment.

« Trends, direction of doing M&A, important issues to consider and
M&A strategy

« Update taxation that executives and accountants must know

« Accountants in 2022 with changes

«  Transfer Pricing Documentation Supports inspection and clarification
with the Revenue Department

« Responsibilities of the bookkeeper. and accounting preparation
in accordance with important accounting standards

Work Experience
« Assistant Finance Accounting Manager
¢ Head of accounting departmental

Other Positions
Subsidiary Company
None
Listed Company
None
Other Company / Organizations / Institutions
None

Number year of services :6 years

Number of the shareholding includes spouses and dependents : None
Family Relation with Other Directors : None

Dispute in the 5 Preceding Years : None

Directorship Qualifications according to Applicable laws and does not have
prohibitedQualifications according to the announcement of the Capital

Market Supervisory Board
Yes
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Asst.Prof Rachada Fongtanakit,
Ph.D.

rz.

68 years
Company Secretary / Director and Secretary of the executive
committee / Director of the Corporate Governance Committee

Age
Position :

Education and Experience

+  Doctor of Philosophy of Development Management Program,
Executive Development Suan Sunandha Rajabhat University

*  Public Management and Public Sector Honors Master of Public
Administration, National Institute of Development Administration

»  Bachelor of Communication, the Honor: Faculty of Communication
Arts. Chulalongkorn University

«  Bachelor of Administration, Sukhothai Thammathirat University.

«  Company Reporting Program (CRP) 2/2011

«  Company Secretary Program (CSP) 41/2011

«  Effective Minute Taking (EMT) 20/2011

«  Board Reporting Program (BRP) 9/2012

«  Fundamental Practice for Corporate Secretary (FPCS) 26/2012

« Directors Certification Program, 185/2014

»  Corporate Government for Executive 3/2015

*  Anti-Corruption: The Practical Guide (ACPG) 2016

* Advances for Corporate Secretaries 2/2017

»  Anti-Corruption: The Practical Guide (ACPG) 56/2021

* Seminar “Check readiness to be confident before PDPA
comes into effect” SEC 2021

»  Director’s Briefing 16/2022: Digital Transformation Trends & Journey

Work Experience

»  Director of Business Development Office

+  Deputy Director of Managing and Operation of Vichaivej
International Hospital Omnoi.

+  Deputy Director of Managing of Vichaivej Yeakfaichail Hospital.

« Director and Secretary of the executive committee.

»  Deputy Director of Service and Customer Relations Vichaivej
International Hospital Samut Sakhon

Other Positions

Subsidiary Company

*  Company Secretary , Saivichai Development Company Limited

»  Company Secretary , Srisakorn Vejvivat Company Limited

» Company Secretary , Bangkok Orthopedic Hospital Company
Limited

«  Director (Authorized Signatory), Srivichai Vocational School
Company Limited

Listed Company
None
Other Company / Organizations / Institutions
None
Number year of services : 11 years
Number of the shareholding includes spouses and dependents : 0.07 %
Family Relation with Other Directors : None
Dispute in the 5 Preceding Years : None
Directorship Qualifications according to Applicable laws and does not have
prohibitedQualifications according to the announcement of the Capital

Market Supervisory Board
Yes
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Details of the Subsidiary’s Directors
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Attachment 2

Details of the Subsidiary’s Directors

Subsidiary Companies

Bangkok Srivichai

DeSvaell\(l)l ;rr]w?eln ¢ \S/rel:;sgt] Orthopgdic Vocational
Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd. Hospital | School
: ' Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd.
Assoc. Prof. Vichai Vanadurongwan, M.D., Ph.D., FIMS X X
Asst. Prof. Saisunee Vanadurongwan, M.D. / / //
Pongsak Vathana, M.D. X
Vilawan Vanadurongvan 11
Mongkon Wanitphakdeedecha M.D.,M.Sc. /1 //
Prut Rojmahamongkol /1l // /!
Sakda Tangchitwatanakorn,Ph.D. /1 /'l //
Prof.Dr.Rungsima Wanitphakdeedecha 11 //
Asst. Prof. Pat Rojmahamongkol 1
Asst. Prof. Bavornrat Vanadurongwan, M.D. 11
Teerawan Vanadurongwan , B.Sc., PG.Cert., Ph.D. /1
Sunee Thirakaroonwongse, M.D. 1
Prof. Saranate Waikakul, M.D. //
Asst.Prof.Rachada Fongtanakit, Ph.D. /]
Komrit Kavinakarathiti //
UNELWE . x = Chairman
/= Vice Chairman

// = Director
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Attachment3

Details of the Internal Audit supervisor and Compliance supervisors

Chinapat Upaijit Mr.
Age : 38 Years
Position : Internal Audit Manager

Educational and Trainig
* Bachelor's degree, Accounting Siam University
» Performing audits for novice auditors, Institute of Internal Auditors of Thailand
* COSO, Federation of Accounting Professions
« Certified Professional Internal Auditor in Thailand 37, Institute of Internal Auditors of Thailand
* Fraud Auditing , Institute of Internal Auditors of Thailand
* Audit Report Writing, Institute of Internal Auditors of Thailand
» Audit Working Paper & Audit Evidence, Institute of Internal Auditors of Thailand
» Fraud in basic information technology, Thailand Federation of Accounting Profession
* Anti-Corruption: The Practical Guide Testimonial , IOD
* |T Audit for Non IT Auditor 2/65, Thailand Federation of Accounting Profession

Work Experience
* Internal Audits Assistant Manager
* Internal Audits Officer

Other Positions
Subsidiary Company
None
Listed Company
None
Other Company / Organizations / Institutions
None

Number year of services : 6 Years

Number of the shareholding includes spouses and dependents : None

Family Relation with Other Directors : None

Dispute in the 5 Preceding Years : None

Directorship Qualifications according to Applicable laws and does not have prohibited Qualifications according to
the announcement of the Capital Market Supervisory Board : Yes
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Attachment 4

Details of the property appraisal list

- None -

Attachment 5

Policy and practice of corporate governance

1. The Company disclosed a Code of Conductand a Corporate Governance Policy on the Company’s website https:/

www.vichaivej.com/investor/download.php?menu_id=14 under section “Corporate Gove@iﬁﬂmiﬁﬁﬁ/u@jLLmﬁ‘imiﬁﬁ
OSNAAEY

2. Code of Conduct

Present in website’'s company https://www.vichaivej.com/investor/content.php?menu_id=15
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Srivichaivejvivat Public Company Limited

Report of the Audit Committee 2022

Dear Shareholders of Srivichai Vejvivat Public Company Limited,

The Audit Committee was appointed by the Board
of Directors and comprises of 3 independent directors
who are qualified according to the requirements of the
Stock Exchange of Thailand and well accomplished
in finance, accounting and management. The Audit
Committee of Srivichai Vejvivat Public Company Limited
consists of 3 independent directors as follows
1. Visut Montriwat, Mr
Chairman of the Audit Committee

2. Surin Premamornkit, Mr
Member of the Audit Committee

3. Porntep Siriwanarangsun MD., MPH., Ph.D
Member of the Audit Committee

For 2022, the Audit Committee has performed its
duties as prescribed carefully and independently. The
Audit Committee held 12 meetings, with discussions with
internal auditors and external auditors on relevant issues,
those major activities can be summarized as follows:

1. Reviewed the quarterly and annual financial
statements as well as the consolidated statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries in collaborations
with the appointed Auditor and executive responsible
for preparing financial reports 4 times, which the Audit
Committee is of the opinion that the above financial
statements are complete, accurate, credible, timely,
changes that effect on the financial statement, Finan-
cial reporting standards, Accounting Practices and
disclosed all relevant information adequately.

2. Considered and approved the internal audit plans.
The Audit Committee has considered the assessment
form The sufficiency of the internal control system
stipulated by the SEC, which the opinion of the Audit
Committee that the company has an adequate, appro-
priate and effective internal control system which not
find any significant problems or flaws.

3. Review internal audit to ensure that the conduct
of internal audit activities is appropriate and effective
by reviewing the company. There is an independent
internal audit unit approves the charter Annual audit
plan, budget, review and consider the audit results
together with the internal auditors. The manpower of
the internal audit unit and considering the proposal,
appointing, relocating, termination of employment, as-
sessing the performance of the internal audit manager.

s18v1uUs:91U 2565
USBN AS3G8I0BIIU DR (UNIBU)

and evaluating the performance of the secretary of the
Audit Committee

4. Review and follow the company, comply with the
law on securities and exchange, regulations of the Stock
Exchange of Thailand and/ or laws related to the business
of the company. In order to prevent damages in the form
of penalties, warnings and company reputation and other
related laws, there is no problem or defect that will affect
the reputation and financial position of the company.

5. Consider connected transactions have conflicts
of interest To ensure that such transactions are reason-
able and beneficial to the business of the Company and
its subsidiaries and supervise the anti-corruption policy To
ensure that the company complies with the policies set forth.

6. Report the performance of the Audit Committee
each year to the Board of Directors for acknowledg-
ment. The Audit Committee has performed all duties
as specified in the Audit Committee Charter.

7. Considered, selected and nominated the Com-
pany’s independent auditor, present to the Board of
Directors considered and approval from the sharehold-
ers’ meeting. The opinion of the Audit Committee has
selected auditors that the EY Office Company Limited
which the opinion of the Audit Committee, performed
the audit independently, expertise in auditing financial
statements and get a good cooperation which resulted
in the confidence in the financial reports that were
beneficial to the audit committee. The auditors are as
follows: Mr. Krisada Lertwana, Certificate No. 4958 or
Miss Manee Rattanabunnakij, Certificate No. 5313 or
Mr.Vorapoj Amnauypanit Certified No. 4640

The Audit Committee has performed its duties
carefully and independently in accordance with the re-
sponsibilities assigned by the Board of Directors, and in
compliance with the Charters of Independent Directors
to ensure adequate and effective internal control for the
benefits of the shareholders and all the stakeholders.

U dod

(Visut Montriwat)
Chairman of the Audit Committee
Srivichai Vejvivat Public Company Limited
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Report of the Board of Directors on the Financial Statements year 2022

The Board of Directors has realized the importance of its role and responsibility on implanting the corporate gover-
nance principle into the company’s management. This also means to ensure that the Company’s financial statement
and financial information in the annual report is accurate, complete and in line with the accounting standard. As well
as the reins adequate disclosure of information in the notes to the financial statements that can reflect the financial
position, performance, and cash flows accurately, transparently and beneficially to the shareholders and general
investors

In this regard, the Board of Directors has focused on improving the management structure and internal control
systems to boost the creditability of the Company’s financial statement. Such improvement also helps guarantee
that the Company is equipped with an effective system to monitor its assets and to prevent serious misconducts and
other operational irregularities of the Company.

The Board of Directors has appointed the Audit Committee comprising of a number of independent directors,
who are fully qualified under the requirements by the Stock Exchange of Thailand. The Audit Committee is mainly
responsible for maintaining the quality of the financial report and internal control systems. It is also responsible for
any disclosure of connected transactions. The Committee’s reviews on such matters will appear in this Annual Report
and form 56-1 under the Audit Committee’s Report.

The Board of Directors has the opinion that the Company’s overall internal control system is adequate and
appropriate. The Board is reasonably confident that the separate financial statements and consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2022 are reliable and complying
with generally accepted accounting standards and the practice is incompliance with related law and regulations.

(422 fimetemgm: e

(Assoc.Prof.Vichai Vanadurongwan, M.D.,Ph.D.,FIMS) (Ass.Prof.Saisunee Vanadurongwan,M.D.)
Chairman of the Board Chief Executive Officer
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Statement of change in Shareholdings of directors and management
executives of 2022 (Based on the SEC's definitions)

Bought
30 December Sold during 30 December

during fiscal
2022 . fiscal period 2021
period

Assoc. Prof. VichaiVanadurongwan,

M.D.,Ph.D.,FIMS (Husband of Saisunee Direct 4,792,320 - = 4,792,320
Vanadurongwan)
Ass. Prof.Saisunee Vanadurongwan,M.D. .
(Wife of VichaiVanadurongwan) Direct 3,841,624 . ) 3,841,624
Virah Mavichak,Mr. Direct _ - - =
By Spouse and Minor Indirect _
Surin Premamornkit,Mr. Direct _ _ - -
By Spouse and Minor Indirect -
Visut Montriwat,Mr. Direct - - - -
By Spouse and Minor Indirect -
Porntep Siriwanarangsun, MD., MPH., B . - - -
Ph.D .
By Spouse and Minor Indirect ) ) -
Pongsak Vathana,M.D. Direct 2,328,571 450,000 - 1,878,571
By Spouse and Minor Indirect
Nopporn Tirawattanagool, Miss Direct - _ _ -
By Spouse and Minor Indirect
Tinnawat Mahatharadol,Mr. Direct = - B
By Spouse and Minor Indirect _ -
Vilawan Vanadurongvan, Miss Direct - - -
By Spouse and Minor [ - i
Mongkon Wanitphakdeedecha M.D.,Sc. Direct 3.940.107 _ = 3.940 107
By Spouse and Minor Inelies 78.555.999 ) - 78,555,999
Prut Rojmahamongkol,Mr. Direct 3,940,106 - B 3,940,106
By Spouse and Minor Indirect 78,556,000 - - 78,556,000
Sakda Tungchiwatanakorn, Dr. Direct 1.720.416 - - 1,720,416
By Spouse and Minor . )

Indirect 13,500 - 13,500
Nichapa Roenthongdee, Miss Direct - _ - -
By Spouse and Minor Indirect _

177,688,643 450,000 177,238,643

The directors and management executives holds 177,688,643 shares, representing 31.14 % of the Company’s
paid-up capital.

Remark: Executives refer to the first four executives and the equivalent of four executives from the Company’s Chief
Executive Officer, including executives in accounting or finance, in accordance with the law. With Securities and Stock Market
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Vichaivej International Hospital Omnoi
74/5 Phetkasem Road, Omnoi, Krathumbaen,
Samutsakhon 74130 Tel. (+662) 441 7899

Fax: (+662) 431 0940 , (+662) 431 0943 HOTLINE 1792

Vichaivej International Hospital Nongkhaem
456-456/8 Phetkasem Road, Nongkhangplu

NongKheam Bangkok 10160

Tel. (+662) 441 6999 Fax: (+662) 421 1784

Vichaivej International Hospital

Samutsakhon

93/256 Sethakitl Road, Tambon Tasai,
Amphur Muang , Samutsakhon 74000

Tel. (+6634) 410 700-6 Fax: (+6634) 410 710

Vichaivej Hospital Yaekfaichai S fﬁ@% R
240/2-4 Charunsanitwong Road, Banchanghlor, Bangkoknoi, . - =
Bangkok 10700 Tel: (+662) 412 0055-60
Fax: (+662) 412 7581-2

Srivichai Vocational School
74/5 Phetkasem Road, Omnoi, Krathumbaen,
Samutsakhon 74130 Tel. 1792 Ext. 1703, 1704




Vichaivej
International
Hospital Group

Srivichai Vejvivat Public Company Limited

74/5 Moo 4 Phetkasem Road. Omnoi, Krathumbaen, Samutsakhon 74130
Tel. (+662) 441 7899 Fax. (+662) 431 0940, (+662) 431 0943 Email : omnoi@vichaivej.com

www.vichaivej.com
www.facebook.com/vichaivej

AUgolo3G810u é AKOrObJ
Vichaivej Heart Center monu.z MEDICAL UNIT Fertility Center
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